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We are an integrated producer broadcaster,
creating, owning and distributing high-quality
content on muttiple platforms.
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Corporate website

We maintain a corporate website at

www.itvplc.com containing our financial
results and a wide range of information of

interest to institutional and private
investors.
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We invest over £1 billion annually in our programming,
significantly more than our commercial competitors,

and have an unrivalled ability to deliver mass audiences
across all demographics for cur advertisers.

@ See page 20 for maore

growing

As an integrated producer broadcaster we create
value from world-class content that we develop,
own and distribute around the world.

@ See page 24 for more

building

As we grow our investment in content, we are
creating more windows to extend the reach of that
content and monetise it across more markets and
platforms, both free and pay.

@ See page 28 for more

Strategic Report

The Strategic Report explains in detad how we have performed this year and sets out a fair review of the business, a balanced and comprehensive analysls of our performance, the use of key
petformance Indicators to explam the progress we have made, a description of the principat risks and uncertainties facing the Company, and an indicatlon of potential future developments

Series 16 of I'm a Celebrity...Get Me Out of Herel

launched in the UK with 12,7 million viewers
making it TV's most watched entertainment
programma In 2016, The serles averaged 10.4
milllon viewers and had a 50% share for the
16-34s demographic.

Poldark Is produced

by Mammoth Screen
(part of ITV Studios UK)
for the BBC and has
been recommissioned
for a third serlestobe
delivered in 2017,

Vera is a British based detective drama,
The sixth series was broadcast on TV
in 2016 and was the most watched to
date, averaging 7.2 million across the
series, It has had huge international
success, selling to gover 150 countries.

yoday nboyenys |

The Strategic Report 1s prepared In line with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2006 and the Company has had regard to the guldance issued by the Financial Reporting Council.

Itis Intended to provide shareholders with a better understanding of the Company, ofits position in the markets within which it operates, and of its prospects. In setting out the Company's

main risks and uncertainties, an indication of potential future developments, and in other content, this report and accounts contains statements that are based on knowledge and

information available at the date of preparation of the Strategic Report, and what are believed to be reasonable judgernents, and therefore cannot be considered as indications of liketihood

of certalnty A wlide range of factors may cause the actual outcomes and results to differ materlally from those contalned within, or Implied by, these various forward-looking statements.

None of these statements should be construed as a profit forecast.

! Front Cover
i Victoria, produced by ITV Studios UK.

|
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2016 Highlights

ITV delivered another strong performance in 2016 as we continued to
strengthen, rebalance and grow the business.

Group external revenue’ £m Non-NAR revenue? £m Adjusted EBITA? £m

£3,064m £1,855m £885m

Adjusted EPS p Statutory EPS*p Dividend per share p (ordinary)
17.0p .2p 7.2p

Adjusted EBITA growth of

338%

since 2009

Proposed anincrease of

20% in the

ordinary
dividend

Online, Pay
& Interactive
revenue up

23%

Alternative Parformance Measures

We use both statutory and adjusted measures in our

Strategic Report, the latter of which, n management’s view

reflects the underlylng performance of the business and

provides a more meaningful compatison of how the business
is managed and measured day-to-day A full reconcillation
between our reported and adjusted results is providedin our

Alternative Performance Measures definitions on page 34.

Qur KPIs are set out on pages 36to 39,

1. The Strategic Report also refers to total reveriue which
Indudes all [TV revenue, both intemal and external .

2 Non-Net Advertlsing Revenue (Non-NAR) includes all
TV revenue, both internal and external, except Net
Advertising Revenue (NAR).

3 EBITA before exceptional items has been adjusted
toreflect the Inclusion of production tax credits
(adjusted EBITA),

4. Statutory profit before tax s £553 million
(2015: £641 million)

Unforgottenis a detective drama produced by
Mainstreet Pictures (part of ITV Studios UK)and
has been recormissioned for a second series
to bebroadcast on ITVin 2017,

Good Morning Britain is broadcast on ITV five
mornings a week and reaches & milllon viewers
across this period. Its biggest audience was 1.2
mitlion foliowing the EU referendum result.
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In 2016 we grew our share of
the UK television ad market to

474

21.4%

share of viewing

for ITV Family,
up 1% since 2015

24%

increase in long-form video
requests in 2016 to

over 1bn

Britain’s Got Talent averaged 9.9 million
viewers across the series with two episodes
achieving over 12 mitlion viewers. 50% of

the audience was the 16-34s demographic.

Marcella was one of the top ten new dramas
in 2016, launching with 8.0 milllon viewers.
It averaged 6.8 mllllon viewers across the
serles and has been recommissioned.

Coronatlon Street was the most watched soap
in 2016 averaging 7.6 miWon viewers across the
year. It reached ower 60% of the viewing
population which is around 36 milion.

90%

increase

in total ITV Studios hours
produced since 2010

80 v

formats sold
in 2016

The England vs lceland Euros football match
in June 2016 was watched by 15.2 million
viewers and was the most watched sporting
event of 2016,
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Investor Proposition

ITV continues to make
significant progress in
growing and strengthening
the business creatively,
commercially and financially.

i Pictured top to bottarr:

i ITVon-screenident;

i Multiscreening of a foatball
I match broadcast onITV.

A strong track record
for delivery

Since 2009 we have grown adjusted earnings per

share by 844%. Evenin 2016 when NAR declined 4 %
by 3% we delivered revenue and adjusted EBITA

growth as a result of the significant progress we
have made in rebalancing the business. We are

reducing our dependence on UK advertising and
driving new revenue streams to build amore 53(y
global and diversified organisation 0

increase in adjusted
EPS since 2009

of total revenue is from
sources other than spot
advertising

3 Pictured left toright: Joanna Lumley presented a three-part documentary

1 onJapan for ITV; TV hosted the Six Nations Rugby Championships for the first
i timein 2016. England vs Ireland was the most watched match on ITV with an

i average of 6.6 million viewers,
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Strong market position

The Broadcast business remains robust. Our on-screen

and online viewing performance is strong and we
continue to deliver unrivalled audience scale and reach
for advertisers as well as more targeted demographics
on our digital channels and on the ITV Hub.

Online, Pay & interactive is a material, fast-growing and
profitable part of the business and we are continuing to
build our digital business with the announced launch of our
Subscription Video on Demand (SVOD) service BritBox US

Our international content business is now a globat player

of scale, creating, owning and managing rights and we

will continue to grow both organically and through
acquisitions in key creative markets

99y,

of all commercial
audiences over 5 mitlion
areon TV

50+

of total Studios revenue
is from outside the UK

429,

growthin online
viewing on the ITV Hub

£1.8bn

returned to shareholders
since 201 when the dividend
was restored

! Pictured: The Tour de France has
{ beenbroadcastonITV andITv4
i fornine years.

Highly cash generative

jaodaydjbajenyg |

We are a highly cash generative business and

our disciplined approach to cash, costs and capital
has strengthened our balance sheet and allowed
us to continue to invest across the business

As we continue to deliver our strategy we see
good investment opportunities to grow the
business and enhance shareholder value whilst
maintaining capital discipline

Compelling shareholder returns

The Board is committed to a long-term sustainable
dividend policy. Ordinary dividends will grow broadly
in line with earnings, targeting dividend cover of
around 2x adjusted earnings per share over the
medium-term

[
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ITV at a Glance

ITV, as an integrated producer broadcaster, creates, owns
and distributes high-quality content on multiple platforms.

ITV total revenue i wwns e
O Broadcast & Online £2,132m
O v studios £1,395m

ITV adjusted EBITA
Q Broadcast & Online £642m
O 1TV Studios £243m

Broadcast
& Online

We operate the largest commercial family of channels in the UK
and deliver our content through traditional television broadcasting
as well as on demand via the ITV Hub.

474

largest
share

ofthe UK TV
advertising market

21.4%

share of
viewing
for the ITV Family
in 2016

17m

registered users

of the ITV Hub

ITV broadcasts a wide vatiety of content on its family of free-to-air channels.

Our investment in programming is primarily funded by television advertising revenue.
ITV has the largest share of the UK television advertising market, and we estimate that
this share of broadcast (SOB} is 47.4% in 2076.

The family of channels attracted a total share of viewing (SOV) of 21.4% in 2016, the
largest audience of any UK commercial broadcaster.

Our main channel is the largest commercial channelin the UK, delivering 99% of
all commercial audiences over five million.

Our free-to-air digital channels provide more targeted demographics for advertisers
such as 16-34's, ABC1 Men and Housewives with Children, and consist of ITV2 and ITV3,
the two largest digital channels in the UK, and Ffv4, CITV and ITVBe.

We also have high definition versions of our digital channels available on pay
platforms along with ITV Encore, our pay only channel available exclusively on Sky.

In addition to linear broadcast, ITV delivers its content across multiple
platforms. Thisis either through our over-the-top (OTT) service the ITV
Hub, available on 27 platforms including ITV's website (itv.com), pay
providers such as Virgin and Sky, or through direct content

deals with services such as Amazon, Apple iTunes and Netflix.

We are partnering with the BBC to launch a new SVQD service in the US
during 2017, The streaming service will allow subscribers to access the
best of British television.
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! Pictured left to right: Emmerdale was

i the second biggest soap in 2016 with an

i average SOV of 32%. It reached 60% of
the UK population, which is more than

i 35 million viewers; Assault course game

{ show Ninja Warrior UK produced by ITV

i Studios UK returned for a second seriesin
i 2076, with a third recommission for 2017.

ITV Studios We have built significant scale in key creative markets around the
world, creating and producing programmes and formats that return
and travel, namely drama, entertainment and factual entertainment.

ITV Studios creates and produces content in the UK and internationally, while our
distribution business, Global Entertainment, setls finished programmes and
’ formats worldwide.

hQUI‘S ITV Studios UK

of original content ITV Studios UK is the largest commercial produ  erin the UK. We produce

produced and programming across a diverse range of genres such as drama, entertainment and

ivered in 201 factual for ITV's

delivered 016 own channels, as well as for other UK broadcasters such as the BBC, Channel 4,
Channel 5 and Sky.
ITV America
[TV Americais the largest unscripted independent producer of contentin the US.
We have acquired a number of unscripted and reality producers and have grown

l b l our presence in scripted content, using our strong cash flows to produce high-profile
a e S dramas with the potential to travel and buildinternational appeal.

in 10 dlffe re nt ITV Studios Rest of World

Cou ntri es ITV Studios also operates in the Netherlands (through Talpa Media), Germany, France,

Australia and the Nordics. Talpa produces and distributes entertainment formats while
supplying over the other bases produce content for local broadcasters in these regions. This content is
234 channels either created locally or are formats that have been created eisewhere by ITV, primarily
the UK and Talpa.

Global Entertainment
Global Entertainment, ITV's distribution business, owns the rights to ITV programmes

8 O and formats and acquires third-party content and distributes this to other broadcasters

and platforms internationally. Within this business we also finance productions both on
and of f-ITV to acquire global distribution rights.

formats sold
in 2016

yodaydSnyens |
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Market Review

The market environment in which we operate is dynamic and constantly
changing. Consolidation of media and telecoms companies and the increasing
influence of technology brings both challenges and opportunities.

Global Content

; Pictured: The Good Witchis a scripted format
i produced by ITV America for the Hallmark

! channelin the US and will gointo its third

i seasonin 2017.

Key market trends

Global demand for content continues to
grow, with more channels, more platforms
and new entrants increasing spend on
high-quality programming. We estimate
that the global content market is growing
at around 5% per annum, with some genres
such as drama growing faster than others,

This growth can be attributed to a number
of factors, including: a larger international
pay television market; the consoclidation of
pay providers with content companies and
distributors coupled with the convergence
in the television market, where telecom and
new media companies are cornpeting with
traditional media companies for content and
viewers; online players such as Netflixand
Amazon investing heavily in new original
content and archive; and online advertising
driven platforms like YouTube and Facebook
creating a new market for short formand
digital content.

The US isby far the largest content market in
the world, dominating the global preduction
sector, with the UK the second largest
market. This represents a significant
opportunity for ITV Studios, which has

a strong presence in both regions.

Dernand for drama, particularty US drama,
has increased significantly in the last few
years, Original scripted content becomes
brand defining for broadcasters and OTT
players in an increasingly competitive global
environment. US studios continue to
dominate the market for dramain the Us and
internationally. However, the rise of Netflix
and Amazon, who are investing heavily in
creating high-quality original scripted
content, has significantly increased
competition in the market.

This increased competition for high-quality
content has driven up the cost of production.
Deficit financing has therefore become
increasingly important in financing
productions, where distributors are often
funding the difference between what the
content buyer is paying for the original
broadcast and the cost of production, which
is then covered by global sales, second-run
windows and sales to OTT providers. [TV as a
distributor as well as a producerisin a strong
position to deficit finance its own productions
and therefore produce high-quality content
andretain the rights to it.

Leveraging our network relatioriships and
international distribution network, we are
looking ta expand our global scripted
business and develop a strong portfolio
of international and returning drama.

ITV America has developed several scripted
programmes over the last few years and
has a healthy pipeline of contentin
development. Qur 2016 scripted deliveries
included The Good Witch and Aquarius and
scripted deliveries for 20117 are expectedto
include Sun Records, Somewhere Between,
apilot of Snowpiercer and the third serles
of The Good Witch.
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; Pictured: Come Dine With Me continues
i tosell wellinternationally with 13

i formatsalesin 2016, four of which

! were produced by ITV Studios.

uodeyberens |

Hell's Kitchen

Hell's Kitchen has been a huge international
success with 34 format sales worldwide over
the last ten years.

In the UK, there is stronger demand and
higher viewing figures for UK content over
imported series. We are a major producer of
scripted content and have further reinforced
this position through our acquisitions of
Mammoth Screen and Twofour Group in
2015. Our 2016 scripted deliveries in the

UK included Victoria, Cold Feet, Poldark

and Withess for the Prosecution. Scripted
deliveries expected in 2017 include Prime
Suspect 1973, Fearless, the second series of
Victoria and the second series of Cold Feet,
all of which have international appeal.

While not growing as quickly as scripted
content, dermand for non-scripted content
remains strong as netwarks continue to
require lower cost, high volume popular
series, The UK remains the dominant
producer of unique non-scripted formats.

ITV significantly strengthened its capability
in this area with the acquisition of Talpa
Media in 2015. Along with the established
entertainment and factual entertainment
genres, scripted reality programming, where
we have focused our US acquisitions, has
grown quickly with formats such as Pawn
Stars, Real Housewives and Fixer Upper.

ITV is now a genuine global player in
non-scripted content, being a leading
unscripted independent producer in the US
and Europe as well as the largest commercial
production company in the UK. The large
independent production companies, such as
Endemol Shine Group and Fremantle Media,
continue to be ITV Studios’ main competitors
in non-scripted content.

66

The US is by far the largest content
market in the world, dominating
the global production sector, with
the UK the second largest market.
This represents a significant
opportunity for ITV Studios,

which has a strong presence

in both regions

Pictured: Behind-the-scenes on Victoria.
The eight-part series has been a huge

i success for ITV Studios UK, selling

to around 190 countries. It has been

i recommissioned for asecond series.
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Market review continued

Broadcast & Online

{ Pictured top to bottom: Family watching VOD
i viatheir television set; The ITVHubiogo.

Over recent years the number of ways to
watch TV has greatly increased with viewers
able to choose a variety of platforms, both
free and pay. Traditional linear television
viewing remains resilient despite significant
changes in the market and in the availability
and delivery of content. Viewing habits also
vary by demoegraphic with younger viewers
watching more non-linear content than
older demographics.

In the UK linear television viewing remains the
most popular form of media entertainment
despite year-on-year fluctuations. UK average
television viewing in 2016 was 212 minutes per
day which is similar to 2015 (216 minutes)and
a similar level to ten years ago (Source: BARB).

Television viewing

50V by broadcaster
OITVFamity 21.4%
QO BBC Familly 31.9%
O Channet 4 Family 10.5%
O Five Family 6.2%
Q sky Family 8.3%
O other n%
Source:BARB*

Non-linear viewing, while currently only 2
small proportion of total viewing, is growing
fast, particularly via SVOD services such as
Netflix and Amazon, which have seen
exponential growth over the last few years.
We continue toinvest inITV's online offering,
the ITV Hub, along with rolling out our SVOD
service, BritBox in the US toenable us to
compete in this market,

ITV competes for viewers with the BBC

and commercial broadcasters including
Channel 4, Sky and Channel 5, Over the last
few years, the number of available channels
has grown which has impacted the SOV of the
traditional broadcasters. SOV for the other
channels increased to 21.7%in 2016 from
21.1% in 2015. Despite an increase in the
number of channels, ITV and BBC1 continue
to be the only channels consistently able to
deliver mass audiences as well as targeted
demographics, andin 2016 ITV delivered 59%
of all comrercial audiences over five million
viewers and 95% over three million. In 2016
the ITV family of channels increased their SOV
to 21.4% (2015: 21.2%), second only to the
BBC's family of channels at 31.9% which lost
share during the year (2015: 32.7%} as a result
of 8BC3 moving online.

* Viewingdata s based ot Weeks 1-52 for 2016 compared
t0 Weeks 2-53 for 2015,

10
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i aweek.

Pictured: This Morning continues
i asoneof thelongest running
daytime programimes in the UK.
i Its audience grew by 2% in 2016
reaching 5.2 million viewers

wodeyabaens |

Pay television

The platform
miX in the UK
is roughly 50%
free-to-air

and 50% linear
pay TV

Non-linear viewing
Long-form content viewing

O Live fincluding simulcast) a1%
O Timeshifted (PYR)

up to 28 days 12%
VoD Broadcaster

catch-up k)
O voD: other &%

Source: 2015 Internal estimates

Advertising revenue
Television's share of the
advertising market

O Television 27.5%
O Press BN
©Q Radio 3.3%
O Cinema 1.3%
Q outdoor 5.7%
O Internet £8.6%

Source: Advetrtising Assodation January 2017

Free-to-air television in the UK is delivered
through services including Freeview, YouView
and Freesat, while linear pay television is
delivered through operators such as Sky,

BT, Virgin and Talk Talk. The platform mix
between free-to-air and traditional linear
pay television has remained constant for a
number of years at around 50:50. Linear pay
television revenues continue to grow but the
market dynamics are changing rapidly as
established pay television providers such as
Sky and Virgin face increasing competition
from relatively new entrants to the market
such as BT, Netflix and Amazon.

Increasingly homes are supplementing their
free television with other forms of paid
content including SVOD services such as
Netflix, or by purchasing additional channels
through ‘no-contract’ providers such as Now
TV or Talk Talk TV Store. Around 30% of homes
in the UK have an SVOD service and this is
weighted towards those homes that have
linear pay TV (Source: BARB). Including SVOD
pay services, the platform mixin the UK is
roughly 40% free-to-air and 60% paid viewing,

ITV participatesin the pay television market,
earning revenue from various third parties,
including Sky and Virgin, through the licensing
of channels and content. ITV also has its pay
onty television channet, ITV Encore, on the Sky
platform along with our other pay channels,
ITV2 HD, ITV3HD and ITV4 HD.

ITV also recently announced the creation of a
joint venture with the BBC to launch BritBox,
anew SVOD service in the US. The service
offers a significant amount of content from
both broadcasters and gives ITV access to
the fast growing SVOD market in the US.

Non-linear viewing of long-form content
includes recorded, or timeshifted viewing

(up to 28 days) and catch-up of live television
(linear television - up to 7 days), and also
encompasses Video on Dernand (VOD) and
OTT delivery of other long-form content such
as box sets and movies.

While non-linear viewing has grown fast it
stitl accounts for a small proportion of total
viewing time. In the UK we estimate 81% of
all viewing of legal long-form content is live
{(including simulcast), with a further 12%
timeshifted via a Personal Video Recorder
(PVR) and watched within 28 days of the
criginal broadcast date. Of the estimated
7% of content viewed on demand, 3% is
catch-up viewing of broadcaster content via
the television set or to other devices such as
tablets and mobiles, The remaining 4% of
content is other VOD viewing, where viewing
of box sets via services such as Netflix is
replacing viewing of DVDs. This is growing
quickly driven by increased availability of
devices such as smartphones, tablets and
connected televisions.

There is currently no industry measure for
online viewing. BARB are in the process of
developing a joint-industry, audited measure
of viewing online television.

66

Non-linear viewing, while currently
only a small proportion of total
viewing, is growing fast and we
continue to invest in ITV's VOD
and SVOD services

ITV generates revenues from advertising
through traditional broadcast, sponsorship
and online, and competes with commercial
broadcasters and other advertising media,
for its advertising revenues. In the UK,
television advertising (including VOD,
sponsorship and other television revenues)
continues to hold a significant share of the
overall advertising market with a share of
27.5%in 2016, (2015: 28.7%,). Internet
advertising (search, classified and display)
has grown its share to 46.6% in 2016 (2015:
42.7%), making the UK one of the most
developed markets for online advertising.
This growth is at the expense of print
advertising, which dectined to 15.6% in
2016 (2015:18.2%).

The UK television advertising market

is extrermely difficult to measure as all
broadcasters have different definitions.
We estimate ITV's SOB (which is based on
pure tinear television advertising excluding
VOD, sponsorstip and self promotion) to be
474% in 2016 {including UTV), up from
44.7% in 2009. This increase is because

of ITV's unique ability to deliver mass
audiences across multipte regions and

in key demographics.

m
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Our Strategy and Business Model

We remain focused on our original vision for ITV as an owner, producer and
broadcaster of content. We are confident that our strategy to maximise our
value as an integrated producer broadcastet, creating, owning and distributing
content around the world, is the right long-term path for ITV.

[ ']
Our strategy Our sources of competitive advantage
Our strategy is focused The UK’s biggest marketing platform delivering unrivalled
on three key priorities: commercial audiences
The scale of our channels and the significant investment we make in quality content
gives [TV unique scale and reach on our main channet and more targeted audiences
on our family of channels and the ITV Hub.

maximising

maximise audience %

and revenue share from . .

free-to-air broadcast Our channels reach around 80% of the television owning

and VOD business population each week

@ See page 20 for more

growing
grow an international
content business

@ See page 24 formora

building
build a global pay and
distribution business

@ See page 28 for more

World-class content

At the core of ITV is our focus on creativity and content, whether selling unique
content around the world or investing in third-party content to broadcast across
multiple platforms. Internationally we have built production and distribution scale
inkeyglobal creative markets through organic growth and selective acquisitions.

P £1 bn

We invest over £1bn annually in content for our family of channels

Global distribution

ITV has built relationships globally, with major networks, platform owners and local
broadcasters, and owns the rights to a diverse portfolio of shows, particularly drama
and entertainment, for international distribution.

40,000:-

Hours of television and film content

Our strategic assets

Our strategic assets underpin ITV's competitive advantage

Creating and Our strong brand QOur talented,
owning the rights creative people
to quality content

12
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{ Pictured left to right: This Time Next Yearis a

i reality programme presented by Davina McCall
in the UK and produced by Twofour Group, part
of ITV Studios UK, The format has been sold to
six countries in 2016; Famity Guy launched on
ITV2in 2016. The Seth McFarlane collection

i reached 25 million viewers oniTV2 during
2016, 59% of which were 16-34s,

mnen

Our diversified revenue streams Creating value

By developing and managing the rights to content, [TV
is able to maximise the value of its programme brands
across a range of revenue streams, making TV a more
balanced business and enabling it to drive value from
different revenue models.

Advertising

Our family of channels and the [TV Hub drive
significant advertising revenues from the mass
audiences and more targeted demographics it
delivers, which funds our investment in the
programme budget.

Commarcial
partnerships

We work with advertisers and advertising agencies
to provide unique commercial partnerships and
sponsorship opportunities that extend beyond
pure spot advertising.

Payk
interactive

We earn pay revenues primarily from licensing our
HD channels, our pay channel ITV Encore and our
online VOD services. In the first half of 2017 we )
are launching a joint venture (JV) with the BBC, /
BritBox US, a SVOD service offering the best of

British television.

yd

We also monetise our consumer interaction with our
biggest shows through competitions and voting.

Original
production

We produce original content commissiens far
broadcasters and platform owners internationally
from our production bases in the UK, the US, the
Netherlands, Germany, France, Australia and

the Nordics.

Distribution
revenues

We own the rights to a significant catalogue of
prograrnmes and formats that we sell and license to
broadcasters and platform owners internationally.
The strong global demand for content provides a
significant opportunity for us.

Mo

growth in totat revenue derived from sources
other than traditional spot television advertising

For advertisers

Through delivering unique
scale and breadth of
demographics and new
innovative ways of engaging
with consumers around
quality programme brands

For audiances
Through a varied, high-quality
programming scheduie

For broadcasters and
platform ownaers

Through delivering quality
programming that they can
then monetise through their
own business models

For shareholders
Through a track record of
creating sharehotder value
and delivering significant
shareholder returns

For our paople

Investing in and developing our
creative, on-screen, commercial
and operational talent

wodeydbaens I
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Chairman’s Statement

To be able to announce record results, even after a year in which television
advertising saw a small decline, is eloquent testimony to the health of

ITV’s business.

66

We have a clear
strategy in place
which the
management team
remains very
focused on
delivering

Sir Peter Bazalgette
Chairman

14

This is my first annual report as Chair, and

it's a pleasure to observe how different TV is
compared to seven years ago or indeed since
Ifirst joined the Board in 2013, To be able to
announce record results, even after ayear in
which television advertising saw a small
decline, is eloquent testimony to the health
of ITV's business. It reflects the fruits of the
continued rebalancing of the Company,

with revenues other than spot advertising
representing more than half of the total.

In the business of television, it of course all
starts with superb programmes and they
are made by a plethora of great talent:
performers, writers, directors, preducers and
Jjournatists. Both ITV's main channet and our
family of channels improved their SOV in
2016, a huge achievement in a multi-channel,
multi-platform era. This underlines the value
of one of our greatest assets: the ability to
deliver the only commerdiat, genuinely mass
audience in the UK and one which also offers
the key demographics to advertisers.

Pivotal to our success is offering choice and
flexibility to our viewers, and within that the
ITV Hub which we launched just over a year
ago continues to be highly demanded as we
further develop and enhance its service.
Significantly we have recently announced the
beginning of our SVOD service, BritBox, jointly
with the BBC. BritBox will offer the best of
British content in the US and it is our intention
to roll out our SVOD services further into
other international markets under the
BritBox umbrella.

Key to rebalancing ITV has been the
significant growth of ITV Studios in the UK
and internationally. Worldwide demand for
quality content continues to grow — from
broadcasters, from traditicnal platforms
and from the new VOD services. ITV, as an
increasingly scaled international producer
and distributor of high-quality content, is
well placed to take advantage of that. We'll
continue to seek opportunities to add scale
and valuein the future, both organically and
through acquisitions, as we grow our global
content business and further diversify our
revenues away from our reliance on the UK
television advertising market.

Adam Crozier and ian Griffiths lead a strong
management team, who took swift action
after last June's referendum to deliver
additional cost savings to ensure [TV is

well placed to face the opportunities and
challenges that lie ahead. We have a clear
strategy which the team remains very
focused on delivering.

Our streng balance sheet and significant
cash flows will support this and enable
us to continue to investin the business
as well as dellver sustainable returns

to our shareholdets,

In 2014, the Board made a commitment to
grow the full year ordinary dividend by at
least 20% per annum to 2016 to achieve a
more normal dividend cover of between 20
and 2.5x adjusted earnings per share. In line
with this policy, and reflecting ITV's good
performance in 2016, the Board is propasing
a final dividend of 4.8p which equatesto a
full year dividend of 7.2p.
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Reflecting ITV's strong cash generation and
the Board's confidence in the business, the

Board Is also proposing a special dividend of
5.0p per share, worth just over £200 miltion.

lam proud to be leading a focused Board
of non-executives to which | am pleased to
welcome a new member, Salman Amin, the
Chief Operating Officer of SC Johnson, who
brings extensive experience of advertising
and marketing and who works in one of our
key territories, the US.

On behatf of the Board, I'd like to take this
opportunity to thank all colleagues for the
creative and commerdial achieverments

of 2016 as we look forward to 2017

with enthusiasm.

Sir Peter Bazalgette
Chairman

! Pictured Loose Women has been

{ broadcastas part of the ITV daytime

i schedule for 17 years. It grew its audience
i by8%in 2016 and reached 3.8 million

i viewersaweek,
Dividend
Dividend per share p {ordinary)
7.2p

Sp Special dividend, worth just over

£200m

i Pictured left to right: Fixer Upper is produced by
i HighNoan in the US and was the highest rated

i programme on the network HGTV in 2016; The

i Durrells was commissioned for ITV and was the
i mostwatched new drama launch of 20716.
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Chief Executive's Review

In more uncertain markets, ITV has delivered a good performance
in 2016 as we continue to rebalance and strengthen the business
creatively, commercially and financially.

66

The continued
growth in revenue
and adjusted profit
despite a decline

in the advertising
market is clear
evidence that our
strategy is working

Adam Crozier
Chief Executive

16

" ITV delivered a good performancein

2016 as we continue to rebalance and
strengthen the business creatively,
commercially and financially. External
revenues grew 3% and adjusted earnings
per share (EPS) increased 3% despite a3%
decline in net advertising revenues (NAR),
which was clearly impacted by the wider
political and economic uncertainty.

We measure performance through a range
of metrics, most particularly through our
alternative performance measures and KPI's,
as well as our statutory results, all of which
are set out in more detail later in the report.

Our good performance in 2016 is a result of
ITV continuing to deliver on our strategy to
diversify the business and grow new revenue
streams, thereby reducing our reliance on UK
spot advertising and making ITV a stronger
and more resilient business. Total revenues
from sources other than traditional spot
advertising (non-NAR) were up 1% in the year
and 53% of total revenues carme from sources
other than traditional spot advertising.

Our global production business, ITV

Studios, continues to grow in the UK and
internationally, delivering around 7,800 hours
of content in 2016.1TV is now a global player
of scale, with 50% of total revenues coming
from outside the UK. We have a strong
creative pipeline and continue to perform
well across the key genres that return

and travel.

Our Broadcast & Online business is robust.
We performed strongly on-screen with share
of viewing (SOV) up 3% oh our main channel
and again delivered unrivalled audience reach
for advertisers. Online, Pay & Interactive
revenues grew significantly up 23% as we
continued to grow our audiences and
demand from advertisers online.

We remain committed to our original vision
of ITV as an owner and producer of world-
class content that travels. Our strategy of
maximising our value as an integrated
producer broadcaster, making our content
famous on multiple platforms, both free and
pay and distributing it globally, is clearly the
tight one for ITV.

As we continue to execute our strategy we
remain focused on delivering against our
three strategic priorities:

maximising

maximise audience and revenue
share from free-to-air
broadcast and VOD business

@ See page 20 for more

growing
grow an international
content business

@ See page 24 for more

building
build a global pay and
distribution business

@ See page 28 for more

We will continue to strengthen the business
and grow new revenue streams both
organically and through acquisitions, and we
see further investment opportunities across
ITV. There will be an increasing emphasis on
building our digital assets throughout the
business as we seek opportunities to drive
further value from the content we own by
exploiting and managing it online.

Rebalanced ITV delivers continued
ravenue and profit growth

In 2016 we grew external revenues by 3% to
£3,064 million (2015: £2,972 million) driven
by £191 million growth In non-NAR to £1,855
million (2015: £1,664 million) including the
benefit of acquisitions, while ITV Family NAR
was down 3%. With our continued focus on
cash and costs we delivered 2% growth in our
adjusted EBITA to £885 million (2015: £865
millior), which corresponded to a 29% margin,
in Lline with 2015. Adjusted EPS grew 3% to
170p (2015: 16.5p). Reported profit before tax
declined by 14% to £553 million (2015: £641
million) and reported EPS declined 10% to
1.2p (2015: 12.4p) primarily due to higher
operational exceptional items and
amortisation of acquired intangibles which

is explained in more detail in the Financial
and Performance Review.
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Group external revenue growth £m
£3,064m

Adjusted EPS p
17.0p

We have a strong balance sheet and

the business continues to be highly cash
generative. Profit to cash conversion (as
reconciled in the Finance and Performance
Review)was 97% and we ended the year with
net debt of £637 million after acquisitions

of £97 million, dividend payments of £663
million and pension deficit contributions of
£80 miilion.

n 2014, the Board made a commitment to
grow the fult year ordinary dividend by at
teast 20% per annum to 2016 to achieve a
more normal dividend cover of between 2.0
and 2.5x adjusted earnings per share. In line
with this policy and reflecting ITV's good
performance in 2016, the Board is proposing
a final dividend of 4.8p which equates to a full
year dividend of 7.2p. This is a dividend cover
of 2.4x and delivers on the commitment the
Board made three years ago.

Reflecting ITV's strong cash generation and
the Board's confidence in the business, the
Board is proposing a special dividend of 5.0p
per share, worth just over £200 million.

i Picturedright: The 13th series of

i Saturday Night Takeaway launched

i withits biggest audience inover a

i decade. The series averaged 7.7 million
i viewers, with a quarter of the audience

! being16-34s.

Looking ahead, the Board is committed to
along term sustainable dividend policy. The
ordinary dividend will grow broadly inline
with earhings, targeting dividend cover of
around 2x adjusted earnings per share over
the medium-term,

Maximise audience and revenue share
from free-to-air business

The media environment in which we operate
is constantly changing but our Broadcast &
Online business remains strong and is
evalving to take advantage of the significant
opportunities for growth,

While the current economic uncertainty is
impacting the demand for advertising, the
traditional broadcast market is robust with
overall commercial viewing up in the year and
with television advertising continuing to bein
high demand. ITV has maintained its strong
position within this market with its unique
reach and scale. ITV's SOV was up 3% onthe
main channel, up 1% across the ITV family.
We delivered 99% of all audiences over five
million, which enabled ITV to again grow its
share of broadcast (SOB) which is our share
of television advertising spend 10 474%.

We are also performing strongly online
through the ITV Hub, the digital home for

all our channels and services, which helps ITV
reach younger audiences. Online consumption
{viewing), which measures how long viewers
are spending online, was up 42% and long-
formvideo requests were up 24% driving a
33% increase in online revenue. We also
delivered significant growth in our pay
revenues as we increase the reach of

our broadcast content digitally.

In 2016, Broadcast & Online revenues were
down 1% at £2,132 million (2015: £2,146
million) with adjusted EBITA down 3% at £642
million (2015: £659 million) which reflects 3%
decline in highly geared NAR and 23% growth
in Online, Pay & Interactive.

Grow an intermational content business
Growing a scaled international content
business in the key genres that travel s central
10 our strategy as an integrated producer
broadcaster. As ITV creates, owns and

manages mare content, our channels

and digital services provide a platform

to showcase our programmes before
distributing them across multipie platforms
in the UK and internationally.

Global demand far high-quality content

from both broadcasters and platform owners
rermains strong. Capitalising an this demand,
we continue to strengthen our pasition as the
UK’s largest commerdial production company,
as weli as creating anincreasingly
international business with production bases
in America, the Netherlands, France, Germany,
the Nordics and Australia. Half of our revenues
are generated outside the UK and we have
become a top independent producer in the

US and Eurcpe.

Overall, ITV Studios performed strongly,
although ITV America was impacted by the
phasing of deliveries. We continue to build
alarge portfolio of successful series and
formats across the key genres that return
and travel internationally, namely drama,
entertainment and factual entertainment.
TV delivered around 7,800 hours of content
in 2016 including many new and returning
scripted programmes, such as Victoria,
Poldark, Vera and The Good Witch selling to
over 100 countries. ITV also had 8O formats
sold internationally including The Voice, Hell's
Kitchen and The Chase. We are also making a
number of selective investments in digital
content creation as we look to develop our
expertise in 'digital first' content.

ITV studios detivered 13% growth in total
revenues to £1,395 million (2015: £1,237
million) and 18% growth in adjusted EBITA

to £243 million (2015: £206 million) driven

by acquisitions. Organic revenues (excluding
prior year acquisitions and foreign exchange
movements) were down 7% driven
predominantly by ITV America which was
impacted by the lumpy nature of programme
deliveries. However, we have a strong creative
pipetine of new and returning prograrmmes
with 228 new commissions and 188
recommissions, which will hetp drive a return
to good organic revenue growth in 2017,

17
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Chief Executive’s Review continued

Building a global pay and

distribution business

As a creator, owner and distributor of
high-value sought after programmes, [TV is
well positioned to exploit the opportunities
that arise from the changes in digital media
and consumer behaviour. With over 40,000
hours of content, ITV is continually exploring
and experimenting with hew ways to
distribute our content to broadcasters and
platform owners, bath free and pay, while
also seeking new opportunities to extend the
reach of our content, directly to the consumer,

We have recently announced the creation of
a joint venture with the BBC to create BritBox
US, an ad-free subscription service offering

the very best content from both broadcasters,

BritBox US will Launch in the first half of 2017
and will feature recent series and classics.
BritBox gives ITV access to the fast growing
Subscription Video on Demand (SVOD}
rnarket in the US. In time we will look to

roll it out further internationafly.

We are also increasingly distributing
near-to-broadcast or first broadcast rights
to over-the-top (OTT) platforms across
territories and currently have around 200
programme supply agreements with Netfiix,
Amazon and Hulu,

18

Global Entertainment, the distribution arm
of ITV Studios, delivered 14% revenue growth
to £179 million (2015: £157 million) as we
continue to drive value from the investment
we have made in creating and owning the
tights to quality content with international
appeal. We are building a strong and batanced
portfolio of scripted and unscripted
programmes and formats in the key genres
that travel internationally and we are using
our strong cash flows not only to create and
fund new content but also to acquire
third-party rights.

Outlook for 2017 and beyond

While the economic outlook remains
uncertain, ITV is now a much mere balanced
and resilient business and we expect to see
good growth in non-NAR in 2017 with our
Online, Pay & Interactive and ITV Studios
businesses performing well. ITV Family NAR
is expected to be down 6% in the four months
to the end of April, impacted by the ongoing
economic uncertainty, however over the full
year we expect to outperform our estimate
of the teievision advertising market.

We continue our tight control on costs to
ensure we are operating as efficiently as
possible and maximising investment in our
high-quality programming. We are on track to
deliver £25 million of overhead cost savingsin
2017, and due to the absence of any major

5 Gold Rings is a new entertainment
programme praduced by Talpa Media. The
format is selling well internationally and will
be broadcast on [TV in 2017,

sporting event, the network programme
budget (NPB) will be £25 million iower in 2017
whilst maintaining the strength and depth of
our schedule.

We remain committed to our strategy

of rebalancing and strengthening ITV and
building a global content business of scale
and we see clear opportunities to invest for
further growth across the business both
organically and through acquisitions. We will
continue to invest behind our core Broadcast
& Online business, further developing the

ITV Hub, and the launch of Britbox US willbe a
significant step forward in growing our digital
distribution assets. We will increase our
investment in ITV Studios, particularly our US
scripted business, to strengthen further and
grow our creative capabilities,

Our robust batance sheet and strong
underlying cash flows aliows us todo
so while at the same time delivering
sustainable returns to our shareholders,

Pictured: Behind-the-scenes on
i returning drama Cold Feet, produced

i byITV Studios UK.
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i Pictured left toright- The Jeremy Kyle Show is a daily
i talk show and has been on ITV for over ten years, it

! reaches5.5 million viewers

aweek; Coronation Street

{ Isinits 57thyear on TV and is Britain's longest running
i soap driving huge audiences weekly.

Our responsibility

Building a responsible business that benefits all stakeholders

The success of our strategy depends not just on our operational
efficiency, but also on the way we interact with our stakeholders,
the environment and the wider community. ITV’s sodial purpose is
to grow our business in a responsible way, using the reach of our
channels to create change for good. As well as complying with our
legislative and regulatory requirements we recognise that our
actions can have animpact and our reach can positively influence
society. We therefore work to identify issues that are material to
ITV and matter to our stakeholders.

Our responsibility priorities

Our responsibility strategy focuses on three priorities: people,
planet and partnerships. Each of our priorities highlights the risks
and opportunities that are most retevant to us, and we have made
four commitments under each, that incorperate our main assets
and business operations.

Priority Lavaraging Laveraging Responsible businass How we work
our reach our paaple day-to-day with others
N N N N

Peapia Inclusive programming Inclusive workforce Inclusive culture Inclusive access to
To ensure our programmes To ensure our workforce Te build awareness and programmes and services
portray the diversity of reflects the diverse make-up capacity and create a culture To work with our supply chain
modernsociety by the people  of modern society. that attracts, develops and toencourage inclusivity -«
on-screen and the editorial retains the best talent standards and to make sure
content. possible and enables our services are accessible.

everyone to be their best.

Planet Greener programming Gresnerworkforce Greener footprint Greenar partnars
To ensure our programmes To build the awareness and To minimise our direct To work with our value chain
commaunicate responsible capacity of our workforce to environmental footprint to encourage
environmental messaging have a positive impact on the of energy, water and waste environmentally responsible
through the editorial content, environment. in our operations. standards and behaviours.
directly or indirectly.

Partnerships Empowering charities Empowering our workforce  Empowering our viewers Empowsering communities
and causes Toempower our workforceto  Touse our programmes at To inspire and engage our
To use our mass audience give back, through time and the heart of popular culture local communities to make
reach and influence to raise skills, to support local to raise awareness of pressing a positive difference.
awareness or donations for communities and causes. social topics and inspire
natlonal and international change.
causes,

People Planet

Reflecting the diversity of modern society is the right thing to do,

it helps give our programmes mass appeal by attracting the largest
possible audiences which is essential to our success as an integrated
producer broadcaster, We strive to ensure diversity in cur on-screen
prograriming and in our workforce, ensuring that we're relevant
and accessible to all.

Gender split
Board of Directors
6 8 2
75% f 25%
Senior management’
83 i 63
56.8% 43.2%
All employees?
48.1% i 51.9%
341 3,390

1. Anemployee whois a director of a subsidiary of the Company or who has responsibility for
planning, directing or controlling the activities of the entity or a strategically significant part ofit.

2. Employee gender split Is based on total headcount at 31 December 2016

We have a responsibility to understand and minimise our own
impact on the environment and an opportunity to influence
positively our industry and audiences. Through our reach and value
chain, we have the chance to create tong-term change by bringing
environmental awareness and sustainable behaviour into the heart
of popular culture. See page 101 for our greenhouse gas disclosures.

Partnerships

We believe partnerships mean collaborating with others to make
a positive contribution to society. Through a combination of our
on-air appeals and campaigns, along with local community
engagement, we're committed tc inspiring, engaging and
empowering our stakeholders to make a difference.

Further Information

We aim for continuous improvement in our Responsibility strategy,
actions and performance. More information on our responsibility
initiatives can be found online.

@ Itvresponsibility.com

yodeydibainns l
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! Pictured: Cold Feet returmed to ITV
i aftera13year hiatus and was the most
{ watched drama onITV in 2076 with an
i average of 8.2 million viewers across

f the series.
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Strategic
Priority 1:
Maximise audience and revenue

share from free-to-air broadcast
and VOD business

The media environment in which we operate is
constantly changing and our Broadcast business remains
strong, adaptable and ready to take advantage of the
opportunities that arise. ITV, through its commercial
channels, offers unique scale and breadth reaching
around 80% of the television owning population every
week. At the same time, the [TV Hub, the digital home
for all our channels and services, is growing rapidly
helped by the significant growth in audience appetite
for Video on Demand (VOD).

@ See page 22 for more

odeydbayens |
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Strategic Priority 1 continued

As aresult there continues to be significant
demand for advertising oh our family of
broadcast channels and on the ITV Hub,
which generates substantial profit and cash
to reinvest across ITV. Additionally, as an
integrated producer broadcaster, our
channels provide an important platform to
showcase [TV Studios content, providing it
with a proven track record before exploiting
it internationally.

Remaining responsiva to a changing
maedia environment

Traditionat linear television viewing remains
resilient despite significant changes in the
market and in the availability and delivery
of content. On average viewers watch 212
minutes of television a day, which is a similar
level to 216 minutes in 2015, The majority of
television viewing is live at an estimated 81%
as television continues to have the power to
bring audiences together. VOD is growing
rapidly although it still only accounts for 7%
of total viewing. Meanwhile, PVR viewing, at
12%, has remained relatively constant over
the last few years.

Three key attributes lie at the heart of
ITV’s successful Broadcast proposition:
its first class distribution and reach across
broadcast and OTT platforms; owning the
rights to high-quality, must have content,

23m+

mobile

downloads

1/m

registered
users ®

for all key audiences; and providing
advertisers with creative access to the
biggest and most effective marketing
platformin the UK.

Strong viewing and online performance
ITV performed strongty on-screen in 2016
with mairt channel SOV up 3% and ITV family
SOV up 1% with programmes supplied by both
{TV Studios and independent producers. We
aired seven out of the top ten new dramas;
the most watched soap in Coronation Street;
the most watched sporting event in England
vs, Iceland, during the 2016 European Football
Championships and the most watched
current affairs programme with our coverage
of the EU Referendum Debate. On-screen
successes included a range of new dramas,
such as Victoria, The Durrells, Marcella and
the return of Cold Feet. Our sporting schedule
has performed strongly, particularly the Six
Nations Rugby Championships and the
European Football Championships, as has our
daytime schedule including Good Morning
Britain, This Morning and Loose Women. We
alse continue to drive significant audiences
with Coronaticon Street and Emmerdale,
which are the two largest soaps, and with

our returning brands such as Vera, Endeavour,
Britain's Got Talent, 'm a Celebrity... Get Me
Out Of Herel, Saturday Night Take Away,

The Chase and Tipping Point.

Avaltable on
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Hub

Onine
overso% One \/eal’ on viewingup
ofthe UK's 16-24 420

yearolds are b
registered in2016
users
Delivered

1bn+

video requests

in2016

We continue to target key demographics
through our digital channels and the ITV Hub
and have seen a very significant increase in
our younger audiences, with 16-34 SOV up
25% on ITV2 helped by the successful launch
of American Dad and Family Guy as well as
the return of Love Island.

ITV3 and ITV4 have not performed as well
as we had hoped. [TV3 was impacted by the
launch of new free digitat drama channels
and the allocation of some of our
programming exclusively to ITV Encore,
and ITv4 was affected by the loss of the
Europa League and the Champions League.
Improving their performance is a focus

for 2017.

Looking ahead we believe that around
£1biliion is the appropriate programme
budget for ITV's family of channels to ensure
we continue to deliver standout content that
drives the scale and breadth of the audiences
that advertisers demand.

The programme budget will be £25 million
lower in 2017 than 2016 at around £1,025
million due to the absence of a major sports
tournament. We have a strong slate across
key genres including new programmes The
Halcyon, Good Karma Hospital, Prime Suspect
1973, Lethal Weapon, Little Big Shots, The
Voice, The Voice Kids, Dance Dance Dance,

5 Gold Rings, The Nightly Show and horse
racing, and returning programmes including
Victoria, Cold Feet, Broadchurch, Unforgotten,
Safe House, 'm A Celebrity... Get Me Qut Of
Here!, Britair's Got Talent, Saturday Night
Takeaway, The Chase and the Six Nations
Rugby Championships.

The ITV Hub one year on

ITV's online business has grown rapidly

over the last few years and is contributing
meaningful revenue to the Group, growing the
overalliTV audience and advertising revenues,
The ITV Hub, which was launched last year,
was amajor step forward in the quality,
Innovation and ease of use of [TV's online
services. It is now available on 27 platforms,
the app has been downloaded over 23 millioh
times and it has 17 million registered users.

It drives very significant volumes of viewers
both for simulcast viewing and catch up and

is growing faster than the BBC iPlayer.
Long-form videa requests continue to grow
strongly up 24% with over 1 billion requests
made in 2016. Cnline viewing consumption,
which measures how long viewers are
spending online, increased 42%.
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The ITV Hub also helps ITV reach valuable
younget audiences. Over 50% of the UK's
16-24 year old population are registered
users of the TV Hub as younger audiences
increasingly use it for simulcast viewing as
well as catch up. Programmes such as ITV2's
very successful Love Island, delivered record
VOD viewing via the ITV Hub.

The TV Hub is more thana catchup TV
service. In 2016, it featured previews and
premieres, such as Marcella and The Secret,
as well as original commissions around the
European Football Championships. Locking to
2017, there will be more short and long-form
original content, including The V Room, The
Voice's switchover show as well as content
from AwesomenessTV, the global youth
brand we have formed a partnership with
for exclusive UK television and VOD rights.

We will also be using the insight we gain
from our 17 million registered users to
develop more targeted advertising on the
ITV Hub and toincreasingly drive viewing
through personalisation.

ITV's strong advertising proposition
driven by our unique offering

While political and economic uncertainty has
led to more cautious behaviour by advertisers,
iTV’s unique ability to deliver mass audiences,
as well as more targeted demographics
across the family of channels and the ITV Hub,
has enabled us to again increase our SOB to
47.4%.1n 2016 [TV delivered 99% of all
commercial audiences over five million and
95% of all audiences over three million. SOV
provides an overall measure of viewing
performance, but because advertisersare
buying scale and breadth of audience, SOV

is not necessarily a direct indicator of
advertising performance.

! Pictured left toright: Celebrity Juice is a celebrity
i comedy programme in its 16th series on ITV2;

{ When Ant & Dec Met the Prince was watched by
i 77 million viewers and had a 28% SOV.

ITV Commercial Audiences

Television remains the most efficient and
effective advertising medium for advertisers
to achieve mass simuitaneous reach and,

as viewing and advertising becomes more
fragmented, the scale of advertising that
television, and particularly [TV, delivers
becomes increasingly valuable. The cost

of advertising is similar to 2004 levels and,
compared to many other advertising media,
it remains good value, especially given the
reach and scale it delivers.

Maximising the value of our airtime and
ourbrands

ITVis also focused on maximising the value
of its airtime and driving new revenue
streams through sponsorship, interactivity
and branded content. [TV utilises the core
assets of its strong brand and reputation,
unique commercial relationships and quality
production capability to deliver a wide variety
of marketing solutions. We have developed
many innovative sponsorship and licensing
deals including: Aunt Bessies for I'm A
Celebrity... Get Me Out Of Herel; Domino’s
Pizza for The Voice and William Hill for ITV
Racing. We have also produced branded
content solutions with our new service

ITV AdVentures for a number of customers,
including Suzukiin Saturday Night Takeaway,
Matalan and | Am TeamGB.

Developing ITV's digital broadcast assets
Live television continues to demonstrate

a growing relevance as viewers increasingly
connect through social media. To drive
viewing and enhance engagement with our
content, we are further developing our social
media assets across our international
portfolio of programmes. We have 147
YouTube branded channels delivering over
14 billion views, 32 million Facebook
followers, 22 miilion Twitter followers and
28 programme apps including Love Island,
Dance, Dance, Dance, 'm A Celebrity... Get Me
Out Of Herel, horse racing and The Voice, Our
digital engagement has grown significantly
and in 2016 we received around 100 million
votes across our entertainment shows
prirnarily via our programme apps.

2017 and bayond -

We remain committed to our integrated
producer broadcast model, and key to that

is maintaining the strength and scale of cur
Broadcast & Online business. We have started
the year well with main channel SOV up 4%
and ITV family SOV up 3% for the first six
weeks of 2017,

As the viewing and advertising landscape
continues to fragment, the scale of our linear
audiences becorme increasingly valuable and
we will also continue to drive significant and
growing value from our digital assets, most
significantly the ITV Hub.

We expect ITV NAR to be down 6% over
the first four months of 2017, impacted
by the current economic uncertainty,
although over the full year we expect to
again outperform our estimate of the
television advertising market.

yoday abainng ]
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{ Pictured: The Voice from Talpa Media, isone of the

i biggest selling entertainment formats in the world.

i itis broadcast in more than 180 countries with the
i format produced locallyin 63 countires,
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Strategic
Priority 2:

Grow an international
content business

Growing a scaled international content business is also
central to our strategy as an integrated producer
broadcaster. As ITV creates and owns more content,
our channels provide a platform to showcase our
programmes before distributing them across multiple
platforms in the UK and internationally.

@ See page 26 for more
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Strategic Priority 2 continued

Growing global demand for content

The strong global demand for content

from broadcasters and platform owners
provides a significant opportunity for ITV
Studios. We estimate that the global cantent
rnarket is growing at about 5% per annum,
with some genres such as drama growing
more rapidly than others. To capitalise on this,
our strategy remains to develop, own and
manage content rights in genres that return
and travel internationally - namely drama,
entertainment and factual entertainment.

As well as strong demand from broadcasters,
we are seeing significant demand from a
variety of OTT platforms who want library
and close-to-broadcast content rights as
well as ‘'digital first’ content.

Studios revenue growth £m
£1,395m

Studlos adjusted EBITA growth £m
£243m

Fast growing, international producer
of scale

Since 2010 we have almost doubled the
number of hours of content we produce.

In 2016 we produced around 7.800 hours
of content, through our 60 labels, supplying
over 234 channelsin 10 countries. ITVis
becoming ar increasingly scaled and
international business: we are the number
one commerdial producer in the UK and a
leading producer in Europe and the US, with
50% of total Studios revenues coming from
outside the UK.

In 2016 ITV Studios total revenues grew 13%
to £1,395 million {2015: £1,237 rnillion) and
adjusted EBITA increased 18% to £243 million
{2015: £206 million), driven by the acquisitions
we have made.

TV Studios has three production divisions

- ITV Studios UK, ITV America and ITV Rest
of World (RoW) and across these businesses,
ITV agreed 228 new commissions and 188
recommissions in 2016,

The US and UK are the dominant creative
markets, with the US the largest exporter of
scripted content and the UK the world leader
for exported formats. Over the last few years
we have built scale in these key markets,
organically and through acquisitions, and we
now have a significant portfolio of successful
series and formats that travel.

ITV Studios UK performed strongly with
averall revenues up 14% at £626 million
(2015; £547 million) and with good growth
in sales to ITV and to ather UK Broadcasters.
Our of f-ITV revenues have grown by 20% as
we have continued to strengthen and grow
the business. Qur deliveries to other UK
broadcasters included Poldark, NW and
Witness for the Prosecution for the BBC,
The Jump and Come Dine with Me for
Channel 4, Hotel Inspector for Channel 5
and Agatha Raisin for Sky.

Overall, we have seen 13% growth in revenues
to ITV with programmes such as Victoria, Cold
Feet, Tutankhamun, Saturday Night Take
Away, The Chase, The Next Great Magician
and I'm A Celebrity... Get Me Out Of Here! all
delivered in 2016. We have again grown ITV
Studios UK’s share of original content
commissions on ITV main channel to 63%.

TV America’s revenue was down year-on-year
by 27% to £235 million (2015: £320 million),
predorinantly as a result of three shows we
had in 2015 which have not returnedin 2016.

They are Hell’s Kitchen, which has been
commissioned for two series in 2017 and
Texas Rising and Best Time Ever, which are
not returning. We delivered the second series
of two US dramas, The Good Witch and
Aquarius. We have also benefited from the
delivery of a high volume of programmes
from our stable portfolio of unscripted series,
including Pawn Stars, American Restoration,
Alone, Rich Kids of Beverly Hills and First 48
and new commissions, including American
Grit, Killing Fields and Millionaire Matchmaker.

Across TV RoW, we have seen very significant
growth with revenues up 67% to £355 million
(2015: £213 million) driven by Talpa Media.
Our production bases in Australia, Germany,
France, the Netherlands and the Nordics
produce otiginal content as well as local
versions of ITV Studios formats. We now
produce 14 different formats in three or
more of our production territories, for
example; Come Dine With Me, The Chase,
The Voice from Talpa Media and Love Island.

Talpa Media is performing well and continues
to develop many new formats including
Dance, Dance, Dance, CannonBall and 5 Gold
Rings which are all setling well. it has also had
the benefit of a four-year licensing
agreement for The Voice of China.

Across ITV RoW, we have delivered a number
of new and returning commissions including
The Voice in the UK and USA, The Chase in
Australia, 'm A Celebrity... Get Me Qut Of
Here! in Australia and Germany, Come Dine
With Me in Denmark, Sweden and Germany
and The Price of Beauty in Denmark and
Sweden. In Norway ITV has delivered its first
drama, Aber Bergen, with the second series
already commissioned. In Australia, TV has
had a particularly successful year with a new
management team in place and now
produces for all the major television channels.

Investing in content with

intamational appeal

To continue growing internationalty we must
keep expanding our portfolio of successful
series and formats that return and can be
distributed globally. We have a strong mix of
programmes across genres and also across
their content life cycle, which balances our
risk and financlal exposure, Since 2010 our
total hours produced has increased by 90%,
our drama hours have increased by 370%,
entertainment hours by 109% and factual
hours by 189%.
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Demand for drama is growing strongly, as
standout, original content becomes brand
defining for both broadcasters and OTT
players. To capitalise on this, we are looking
to expand our global scripted business and
develop a strong portfolio of international
and returning drama, particularly in the Us.
We are strengthening our development and
creative capabilities internally and have
invested in a number of producer
development relationships — we now have
around 20 projects in development in the US
with broadcast networks, cable networks and
OTT platforms.

Recent successes include a number of US
drarma commissions which will deliver in 2017
- a ten part drama Somewhere Between, for
ABC, Sun Records for TNT and a pilot for ABC,
Snowpiercer, through Tomorrow Studios.

With the acquisition of Talpa Media we have
significantly strengthened our capability in
entertainment and formats, Across our
businesses we have grown a solid portfolio
of high volume and high margin formats that
travel internaticnally and which we produce
in many of our production bases. These
include The Voice, The Voice Kids, Pawn Stars,
Come Dine with Me, I'm A Celebrity... Get Me
Out Of Herel, Hell's Kitchen, Keeping the
Nation Alive, The Chase, 5 Gold Rings, This
Time Next Year, Big Star's Little Star and

Love Island.

Key new and
returning scripted
pregrammes

Key new and
returning
entertainment
programmes

Pictured left to right: Poldark has been sold to
around 90 countries; The Chase is an internationally
popular gameshow. It is the biggest daytime
programme in the UK and is produced by

ITV Studios in five countries with 31 format

i salessince it launched in 2009,

Investing in our digital

contant capablilities

Through building our digital assets and
content we are increasingly able to engage
with younger audiences.

While demand from traditional broadcasters
continues to be strong we are also seeing an
increasing demand from OTT platforms for
original long-form content, secondary rights
and short form digital content.

We are distributing more content to OTT
players through Global Entertainment as well
as co-producing and jointly commissioning a
number of programmes with OTT platforms.
We currently have over 200 programme
supply agreements in place with the major
OTT platforms, including co-producing
Robozuna, an original kids cartoon for Netflix
and Harlots, which we are co-producing for
Hulu in the US and ITV Encere in the UK.

To further expand our digital assets we are
increasing our exposure to new types of
content, particularly youth focused
programming, and new types of distribution.
In 2016 we made an investment with Skyin
Ginx TV, an eSports channel for the UK and
international markets. We also agreed a
partnership with global youth content
company AwesomenessTV and made
minority investments in two 'digital first’
youth content studios in the US, New Form

and RocketJump, all of which helps to
improve ITV Studios content capability as well
as provide new programming for the ITV Hub.
This is as well as our existing investments

in US digital content companies Believe
Entertainment Group and Indigenous Media.

2017 and beyond

We have a strong international pipeline

of new and returning programmes and
brands. Cur UK and US pipeline of scripted
programmes has never been stronger and we
have a very good slate of new entertainment
shows coming through this year, This gives us
confidence that in 2017 we will deliver good
organic revenue growth and we have already
secured over £150 million more revenue than
at this point last year. However, with increased
investment, particularly in US scripted and the
reversal of the one-off benefit of the The
Voice of China in 2016, ITV Studios profits in
2017 are likety to be broadly in line with 2016.

ITV is now a global business and going
forward we aim to use our scale to grow
our market share and expand the number
of networks and OTT players we work with,
particularly in the US. We will further
strengthen our creative capability, both
organically and through partnerships and
acquisitions, as we continue to reduce cur
reliance on the UK market.
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Pictured: Love Island is a reality programmie produced by
ITV Studics UK. It had huge success on-screen and online,
averaging 1.3 million viewers on [TV2 across the series
and around 1 million requests on the [TV Hub per episode.
64% of the linear audience were 16-34s. Internationally,
Love Island has been broadcast in 15 countries with the
format being produced by ITV Studios in three countries.
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Strategic
Priority 3:
Build a global pay and
distribution business

The environment in which we operate is constantly
evolving and we are seeing significant changes in
digital media and consumer behaviour.

ITV, as a creator, owner and distributor of sought
after content, is well positioned to take advantage
of the opportunities that arise from these changes as
we seek to further monetise our content.

ITV continues to explore and trial new ways, both free
and pay, to distribute content to broadcasters and
platform owners as well as directly to consumers.

@ See page 30 for more
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Strategic Priority 3 continued

Building our pay offering in the UK

and internationally

As we look to build our pay offerings we

are developing a range of SVOD services

to target direct to consumer pay revenues.
We have recently announced the creaticn
of ajoint venture with the BBC, through BBC
Worldwide, to create BritBox LS, an ad-free
SVOD service offering unrivalled content from
both broadcasters. [TV already has a strong
advertising VOD propaosition in the ITV Hub
but the launch of BritBox gives us access to
the fast growing SVOD market in the US.

BritBox US, which is a direct to consumer
service, will launchin the first half of 2017
with the most comprehensive SVOD
collection of British content available in the
US. The service will feature drama premieres
never seen before in the US, a selection of
scaps and series that will be available

24 hours after their UK broadcast, and a
collection of British classics. ITV and BBC
each have a 40.5% voting share, while US
cable network AMC has a 19% non-voting
minority interest.

Over the last few years we have also
established a number of smaller pay
propositions. We now own a controlling

stake in Cirkus, a best of British SVOD service
in Sweden, Norway, Finland and Iceland which
will shortly launch in Germany on Amazon.
Cirkus has developed a second SVOD service,
Curio, due to launch in Norway in 2017, which
is focused on high-quality documentaries.
We have also set up ITV Essentials, an online
service for expats available in 13 countries
and ITV Choice, a general entertainment
channel for emerging markets available

in 100 countries.

We are continuing to develop TV Hub+, cur
ad-free subscription version of ITV Hub. In
2017 we will roll out ITV Hub+ onto more
platforms and we have already added new
functionality, such as download on i0S
devices for off-line viewing.

Locking aheadit is our intention to roll out our
best of British SVOD services internationally
through BritBox and our other SVOD services,
taking advantage of the significant global
demand for UK content and changing
viewing habits.

Further developing our pay revenues
ITV's pay revenues again grew strongly as we
continue to earn revenue from pay television
through licensing our channels and content
across muitiple platforms.

I the UK our pay business includes deals with
Sky and Virgin for our HD digital channels and
catch-up VOD, ITV Encore for Sky and a deal
to make ITV's content available through Sky's
connected platforms. We also agreed a new
deal with Vodafone to carry ITV's free-to-air
{FTA} channels and VOD for their customers,
as well aswith TV Player to carry ITV's

FTA channels.

Expanding our global distribution network
Global Entertainment, the distribution arm
within TV Studios, delivered revenue growth
of 14% to £179 million in 2016 (2015: £157
miltion) as we continue to drive value from
the investment we have made in creating

and owning rights to quality content with
international appeal. Excluding the benefit

of foreign exchange, Global Entertainment
grew 6% to £166 miltion.

Global Entertainment revenue growth £m
£179m

ITV's distribution business has over 40,000
hours of television and film content that we
distribute globally to over 3,500 broadcasters
and platforms. In 2016 we continued to
enhance our distribution network, benefiting
from TV Studios’ continued growth,
increased rights ownership both within iTV
Studios and with third parties and strong
network relationships, selling to around 190
countries around the world. Through our
ongoing investrent in ITV Studios, we are
building an extensive and balanced portfolio
of scripted and unscripted programmes in
the key genres of drama, entertainment

and factual entertainment. We are using our
strong cash flows not only to fund and create
new content from ITV Studios, but also to
invest in third-party producers and their
content from all over the world, such as
Harlots and Schitt’s Creek.
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Our scripted programmes such as Victoria,
Poldark, Endeavour, Vera and The Good Witch,
are all selling to over 150 countries. Our
entertainment and factual entertainment
programmes also continue to sell well,
including titles such as Come Dine With Me,
The Voice, The Voice Kids, The Chase, Hell's
Kitchen, Autopsy and River Monsters.

In 2016 we sold 80 different formats around
the world, 24 of which were produced by
ourselves or other producers in three or
more countries.

We are increasingly doing multi-year and
multi territory deals with OT T platforms
inctuding Netflix, Amazon, Hulu and a range
of smaller platforms. As well as library deals,
we are distributing close-to-broadcast or first
broadcast rights to these OTT platforms
across territories. We currently have over 200
content supply agreements in place, including
Thunderbirds Are Go! series one and two for
Amazon in the UK, US, Germany and India, as
well as The Good Witch, Mr Selfridge and
Poldark for Netflix.

We are also co-producing and jointly
commissioning a number of programmes
with OTT platforms, including Robozuna
for Netflix and Harlots for Hulu.

Pictured left to right: Big Star's Little Staris a
primetime entertainment programme on [TV,
The format is selling well internationally with six
format sales in 2016; Endeavour is a detective
based drama produced by Mammoth Screen,

i ithas been sold to 180 countries Internationally.

Retransmission fees

We are continuing to drive the debate around
the implementation of retransmission fees
in the UK to ensure that we are fairly
compensated for our investment in content
for the main channel when Tt is carried on pay
TV platforms, We see the publication of the
Digital Economy Bill proposing the repeal of
Section 73 as an important step forwardin
achieving retransmission fees.

2017 and beyond

As we continue torebalance ITV and
diversify our revenue streams, we are
further developing our pay and distribution
business to drive more value from our
investment in content and reflecting the
changesin the way people are consuming
content. We are exploring new ways

! Picturedright: Thunderbirds Are Go! has been
i sold to over 100 countries whichincludes a
i pan-territory deal with Amazon.

to package and sell our content to take
advantage of demand for quality content in
the UK and internationally from consumers,
broadcasters and platform owners.

A particular focus for 2017 willbe the

launch of BritBox US and in time we will

look to further roll out our SVOD services
internationally as we continue to explore even
more ways to drive value from our content,
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Performance Dashboard

Demonstrating continued progress against our strategic priorities.

Key
Performance This section focuses on the results and performance of the Group. . ) Ad!usted EBITA
Indicators N\l On the following pages you will find disclosures explaining the . Adjusted EPS
across all /> Group's results for the year, segmental information, exceptional ; - Profitto cash conversion
items, taxation and earnings per share. i + Non-NAR revenue

three { . Employee engagement
priorities
Strategic priority 2016 performance

= Share of broadcast up to 47.4% in 2016
1 « ITV main channel up 3% and ITV Family SOV up 1%

= ITV delivered 99% of commercial audiences over five million and 95% of audiences
Maximise audience aver three million
and revenue share from + Delivered most watched soap, factual programme and sporting event
free-to-air broadcast - Aired seven of the top ten new dramas
and VOD business « ITV2andITV3 largest digital channelsin the UK

.

Long-form video requests up 24% and online viewing up 42% on the ITV Hub

- Over 23 million downloads of ITV Hub app and 17 million registered users, including over 50%
of 16 to 24 year olds

Significant digital engagement with around 100 million votes across our big entertainment
shows primarily via our programme apps

2

Grow an international
content business

- ITV Studios again delivered good growth with total revenue up 13% including acquisitions

+ Produced and delivered around 7,800 hours of original content, almost double since 2010

-« ITV Studios’ share of ITV main channel cutput increased to 63%

« 20% growth in Off-ITV production revenue in the UK

+ Continued investment in creative pipeline with 228 new commissions and 188 recommissions
« 50% of TV Studios total revenue generated outside the UK

« Atop indie producer in Europe and the US

- Co-producing and jointly commissioning a number of programmes with OTT platforms

« Selective investments in 'digital first’ content businesses including New Form, RocketJump
and Ginx

3

Build a global pay and
distribution business

+ Announced new joint venture with the BBC, BritBox, our SVOD service In the US
« Cirkus expanded to Germany on Amazon

» 1TV Essentials and TV Choice SVOD platforms continue to deliver our content to expats
and emerging markets

« Development of the ITV Hub+, ITV's ad-free subscription version of the ITV Hub

» Aleading European distributor of content with over 40,000 hours of content

« Strong drama content including Victoria, Poldark, Endeavour and The Good Witch all selling

to over 100 countries

80 different formats sold around the world, including 24 formats made in three or more

countries, 14 of which are produced by ITV Studios in three or more countries

« Multi territory and multi year content deals with OTT platforms, with over 200 programme
supply agreements in place




TV ple Annual Report and Accounts 2016

i documentary produced by The Garden, part of

Pictured left to right: 24 Hours in A&E is a medical

ITV Studios UK, for Channel 4 and is inits eleventh series;
i Grantchester is areturning drama for TV averaging

i Zmillion viewers across serles twoin 2016,

wodey Jjbeynns I

Focus for 2017 Key Performance Indicators

- Continue to strengthen on-screen viewing in key demographics « ITV Family SOV

» Further invest in our content, channels and brands to maintain ourunique scale  « ITV Family SCCI

« Grow our share of total television and VOD advertising - ITV Family share of broadcast

- Continue to maximise the value of our programme brands through sponsorship, -
interactivity and brand extensions

+ Further invest in the quality and distribution of the TV Hub to drive valuable .
online audiences

- Develop new and more targeted advertising opportunities

+ Enhance engagement with our shows online with sodal media
and programme apps

Percentage of commercial audiences
over three million and over five million

Total long-form video requests

« Further expand our digital assets and capabilities to increase our expasure
to youth focused content and distribution (W) see page 20 for more on
Strategic Priority1
« Build further scale internationalty » Number of new commissions for ITV Studios
« Continue to develop intellectual property in key creative markets to exploit - Percentage of ITV output from ITV Studios
growing wotldwide demand

+ Build a pipeline of programmes across key genres, particularly scripted
+ Develop more 16 to 24 focused content

» Attract and retain key creative talent

« Continue to look at acquisitions, investments and talent deals

@See page 24 for more on

Strategic Priority 2

+ Launchof BritBox inthe US -
- Focus on the further roll out of BritBox internaticnally .
» Launch Curio SVOD service in Norway
+ Further enhance the capabilities and distribution of ITV Hub+
+ Continue to trial direct to consumer pay opportunities
« Further grow our internationat distribution network with high-quality content
+ Maximise the use of our strong cash flows to finance the production of
high-profile dramas that return and travel internationatly
+ Invest in developing third-party distribution deals
- Secure retransmission fees in the medium term

Total long-form video requests
Number of new commissions for [TV Studios

®See page 28 for more on

Strategic Priority 3
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Alternative Performance Measures

The Strategic Report includes both statutory and adjusted measures,the latter of
which, in management’s view, reflects the underlying performance of the business
and provides a more meaningful comparison of how the business is managed and
measured on a day-to-day basis.

Our APMs and KPls are aligned to our strategy and together are used to measure the performance of our business and form the basis of the
performance measures for remuneration.

Adjusted results exclude
certain items because if
included, these items could
distort the understanding of
our parformance for the year
and the comparability
between periods.

Key adjustments for Adjusted EBITA, profit before tax and EPS

Adjusted EBITA is calculated by adding back exceptional items and high end production tax credits to
EBITA. Further adjustments, which include amortisation of intangible assets acquired through business
combinations and net financing costs, are made to remove their effect from adjusted profit before tax
and EPS. The tax effect of all these adjustments is reflected to calculate an adjusted tax charge. These
adjustments are detaited below.

Production
tax cradits

The ability to access tax credits, which are rebates based on production spend, is
fundamental to our Studios business when assessing the viability of investment in
green-lighting decisions, especially with regards to high-end drama. ITV reports tax
credits generated in the US and other countries {e.q. Ireland, Hungary, Canada and
South Africa) within cost of sales, whereas in the UK tax credits for high-end drama
must be classified as a corporation tax item. However, in our view all tax credits relate
directly to the production of programmes. Therefore to align treatment, regardless
of production location, and to reflect the way the business is managed and measured
on a day-to-day basis, these are recognised in adjusted EBITA.

Exceptional
items

This includes acquisition related costs (further detail below), reorganisation and
restructuring costs, non-recurring legal costs, gains or losses on disposal of non-core
assets and impairment of intangible assets. These items are excluded to reflect
performance in a consistent manner and are in line with how the business is
managed and measured on a day-to-day basis. They are typically gains or losses
arising from events that are not considered part of the core operations of the
business ar are considered to be one-off in nature. We also adjust for the tax

effect of these items. Note 2.2 includes further detail on exceptional Items,

Acquisition related costs

We structure our acquisitions with earnouts or put and call options, to allow part of the
consideration to be based on the future performance of the business as wetl as lock In
creative talent. Where consideration pald or contingent consideration payabte in the
future is employment linked, it is treated as an expense (under accounting rules} and
therefore on a statutory basis is part of our reported results. However, we exclude all
consideration of this type from adjusted profit after tax and adjusted EPS as, in our
view, these items are part of the capital transaction. Page 44 of the Financial and
Performance Review explains this further.

Restructuring and reorganisation costs

These arise from Group-wide initiatives ta reduce the ongoing cost base and improve
efficiency in the business. They are non-recurring costs and because of their size and
nature, are excluded from our adjusted measures.

Amortisation
and
Impairment
of intangible
assets

Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets acquired through business
combinations is not included within adjusted earnings. As these costs are acquisition-
related, and in line with our treatment of other acquisition-related costs, we consider
them to be capitalin nature and they do not reflect the underlying trading performance
of the Group. Amortisation of software licences and development is included within
our adjusted results as managernent consider these assets to be core to supporting
the operations of the business.

Netfinancing
casts

Net financing costs are adjusted to reflect the underlying cash cost of interest for the
business providing a more meaningful comparison of how the business is managed and
funded on a day-to-day basis. The adjustments made remove the impact of mark-to-
market on swaps and foreign exchange, imputed pension interest and other financial
gains and losses, which do not reflect the relevant interest cash cost to the business.

A full recondiliation between our adjusted and statutory results is provided on the
following page.
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Reconciliation between statutory and adjusted results

uodeydibeznns I

2016 2018 2016 2015 2015 2015
Twelvemonths to Statutory Adjustments Adjusted Statutory Adjustments Adjusted
3MDecember - ona continuing basis £m £m £m £m £m £fm
EBITA! 857 28 885 842 23 865
Exceptionalitems (operating)? (164) 164 - (109) 109 -
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets? (89) 77 (12) (67) 58 {9)
Operating profit 604 269 873 666 180 856
Net financing costs* ()] 25 (26) (31 18 (13)
Gain on sale of non-current assets and subsidiaries

{non-operating exceptional items) - - — 6 (6) -
Profit before tax 553 294 847 641 202 843
Taxs {100) (60) {160) {139) (38) {177)
Profit after tax 453 234 687 502 164 666
Non-controlling interests {4) - (4) (7) - (7)
Loss from discontinuing operations {net of tax) ()] 1 -~ - - -
Earnings 448 235 683 495 164 659
Shares {(million), weighted average 4,010 - 4,010 4,006 - 4,006
EPS {p) 1.2p 17.0p 12 .4p 16.5p

1. £28milllon adjustment relates to production tax credits which we consider to be a contribution to production costs and working capitalin nature rather than a corporate tax item.

2. Exceptional itemms largely relate to acquisition costs, primarity employment linked consideration, as well as restructuring costs and pension curtailment cost.

3. £77 millien adjustment relates to amortisation on acqulsition related intangible assets. We include only amortisation on purchased intangibles such as software within adjusted PBT.
4. £25millfon adjustment Is primarily for nen-cash lnterest cost This provides a mare meaningful comparlson of how the buslness [s managed and funded on a day-to-day basls.

5, Taxadjustments are the tax effects of the adjustments made to reconcile PBT and adjusted PBT

Other alternative Performance Measures
Total revenue

As anintegrated producer broadcaster, we look at the total revenue
generated in the business which includes internal revenue, which is the
sale of ITV Studios programmes to Broadcast & Online. Our broadcast

channels are a significant customer for ITV Studios and sedling
programmes to Broadcast & Online is an important part of our

strategy as it ensures we own all the rights.

Adjusted net debt

Net debt (as defined in Note 4.1) is adjusted for ali our financial
commitments. This better reflects how credit rating agencies look at
our balance sheet. A reconciliation between net debt and adjusted net
debtis provided below.

2016 2015

Twelve months to 31 December £m £m

A reconciliation between external revenue and total revenue is Net debt (637) {319)
provided below. Expected contingent payments on

acquisitions (328) (303)

2016 2015 Net pension deficit (328) (176)

Twelve months to 31 December fm £m Operating leases (344) 346)

External revenue (Reported) 3,064 2972 Ag' . d?\et debt 163 oYY

Internal supply 463 411 j_us = - (1637) (145

Total revenue (Adjusted) 3,527 3383 Adjusted net debt to adjusted EBITDA 1.8x 1.3x

Reported net debt to adjusted EBITDA 0.7x 0.4x

Net pension deficit

Thisis our defined benefit pension deficit under IAS 19 adjusted for other pension assets, mainly gilts, over which the pension scheme
holds a charge, held by the Group as security for future unfunded pension payments of four former Granada executives.

A full reconciliation is included within Note 3.7.

Profit to cash conversion

This is our measure of cash generation used for working capital management, It is calcutated as adjusted cash flow as a proportion of
adjusted EBITA. Profit to cash conversion is based on adjusted measures to reflect the cash generation of our underlying business after
operating capex, excluding the effect of exceptional items, non-cash expenses such as depraciation and share based payrments.
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Key Performance Indicators

We have defined our KPIs to align our performance

and accountability to our strategy.

These KPIs are the key
measures of success and
cover all three strategic
prioritias. Our KPis have
not changed over the year.

Our strategic priorities

Maximise audience

and revenue share from
free-to-air broadcast and
VOD business

Grow an international
content business

Build a global pay and
distribution business

36
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Adjusted
EBITA

Definition

This is the key profitability measure used across the whote business.
Earnings before interest, tax and amortisation (EBITA) is before exceptional
items and has been adjusted to include the benefit of production tax credits.
It reflects our performance in a consistent manner and in line with how the
business is managed and measured on a day-to-day basis.

Adjusted
EPS

Definition

Adjusted EPS represents the adjusted profit for the year attributable to
equity shareholders, Adjusted profitis defined as profit for the year
attributable to equity shareholders before exceptional items, impairment of
intangible assets, amortisation of intangible assets acquired through
business combinations, net financing cost adjustments and tax adjustments
relating to these iteims. it reflects the business performance of the Group in
a consistent manner and in line with how the business is managed and
measured on a day-to-day basis.

Profit
to cash
conversion

Definition

Profit to cash conversion represents the proportion of adjusted EBITA
converted into a measure of adjusted cash flow (defined as cash generated
from operations before exceptional items less cash related to the
acquisition of operating property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets).

This primarily reflects the effectiveness of our working capital management
and capital expenditure control. Our aim is to keep profit to cash conversion
as high as possible.

Non-NAR
revenue

Definition

Non-NAR reflects all [TV revenue, both internal and external, except NAR
(spot advertising revenues). Online, Pay, Interactive, Spensorship, SDN and
ITV Studios revenues are all included within Non-NAR, with the key drivers of
growth being Online, Pay and ITV Studios.

Growing non-NAR is key to the strategy as we aim to rebalance the business
away from our reliance on television advertising revenue,

1
H
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Employee
engagement

Definition

Continuing to develop a creative, commercial and global organisation
requires high-quality employees who are engaged in the work that they do,
and are committed to the strategy.

Employee engagement measures pride in the work we do, pride in working
for ITV and also what we say about our programmes and services.
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Our strategic priorities

Maximising
Growing

Building

Performance

In 2076 adjusted EBITA increased by £20 million or 2% as a

result of a 3% increase in total external revenue and our continued focus on costs.
Ravenue growth was primarily a result of a 23% increase in high margin Online, Pay &
Interactive revenues and a 13% increase in ITV Studios revenue driven by acquisitions,
the UK business and Global Entertainment. This was partially offset by a decline in
NAR of 3%.

Group EBITA margin remained flat at 29%.

Performance

Adjusted EPS increased by 3% from 16.5p to 17.0p. This is higher than the
corresponding increase in adjusted EBITA of 2% as a result of a lower adjusted
effective tax rate in the year of 19% (2015: 21%).

Performance

Profit to cash has increased in the year to 97% and reflects our continued tight
management of working capital balances and our disciplined approach to cash and
Costs.

Performance

Non-NAR revenue increased by 11% in 2016 as we continue to rebatance the business
away from a reliance on NAR. We delivered strong growth in ITV Studios revenues and
in Online and Pay revenues. Non-NAR revenues were 53% of total revenue which has
increased significantly since 2009 when it was 40%.

yodaydjbanns ’

Parformance

Employee engagement was once again high at 90% which is above the benchmark
score for companies of a similar size and nature to ours of 83%. The participation rate
was 80%.
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Key Performance Indicators continued

Abmyens

ITV Family
Share of
viewing

Dafinition

To help deliver Strategic Priority 1 through maintaining a strong and healthy Broadcast & Online
business, ITV Family SOV is a key indicator of this. ITV Family SOV is the total viewing audience over
the year achieved by ITV’s Family of channels as a proportion of total television viewing, inctuding
the BBC Family. ITV aims at least to maintain the ITV Family SOV.

ITV Family Share of
commercial impacts

Definition

Part of delivering Strategic Priority 1.and maintaining our position as a leading commercial
broadcaster is to have a strong ITV Family share of commercial impacts (30CI). SOCl is the trading
currency in the television advertising market, and since it only covers commercial televisionit does
notinclude the BBC, This is the share of total UK television commercial impacts which is delivered
by ITV's family of channels. Animpact is one viewer watching one 30 second commercial. We aim
to maximise our SOCI. SOC| provides an overall measure of viewing performance, however because
advertisers are buying scale and breadth of audience, 50Cl is not necessarily a direct indicator of
advertising performance.

ITV Family Share
of broadcast

Definition

ITV's share of UK television spot advertising revenue is known as its share of broadcast.

To maximise revenue from our free-to-air business, which is a key component of Strategic
Priority 1, we aim to continue to maximise our share of broadcast and to outperform the UK
television advertising market.

It is increasingly difficult to measure the total television advertising market as all broadcasters
have different definitions and include other sources of revenue, such as sponsorship and VODIn
their estimates of television advertising. Our SOB has always been based on our estimate of the
pure spot advertising market, excluding sponsorship, VOD and for 2016 going forward, we also
exclude all broadcaster's self promotion revenues on their own channels because this year has
seen a significant increase which further distorts the external spot market.

Total long-form
video requests

Definition
A key part of our strategy is to maximise audience share from our free-to-air broadcast and
increasingly from our VOD business.

Long-form video requests is a measure of the total number of our videos requested across all
platforms onwhich the ITV Hub is available and therefore provides a key measure of how much
of our content is being viewed ontine. A long-form video is a programme that has been broadcast
on television and is available to watch online and on demand in its entirety.

Number of new
commissions for
ITV Studios

Definition

To deliver Strategic Priority 2 tracking the performance of the creative renewal pipeline and the
number of new commissions won is a key indicator. This figure includes programmes shown both
onITV and on other broadcasters, and both in the UK and internationally.

Percentage of
ITV* output from
ITV Studios

* {TV¥mainchannel only

Definition

As anintegrated producer broadcaster, part of our strategy Is to use our broadcast channelsas a
platform for ITV Studios content where we aim to make therm famous and then sell them around
the world.

The proportion of the total spend on original commissions on ITV transmitted in the year, delivered
by ITV Studios demonstrates this and our aim Is to increase TV Studios’ supply of prograrmes to
ITV to aliow us to deliver against all three of our Strategic Priotities.
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Our strategic priorities
Maximising
Growing

Buiiding

Parformance

ITV Family SOV grew 1% in 2016 to 21.4%. Within this, the ITV main channel saw
anincrease of 3% benefiting from the Six Nations Rugby Championships and the
European Footbalt Championships along with strong performances in Drama,
Entertainment and Daytime. The digital channels were down 4% in the year mainly
acrossiTV3 and ITV4. ITV2 viewing amongst 16-34s continues to grow, up 25% in the
year and it remains the most popular digital channel in the UK based on SOV,

ITV also continues to deliver mass audiences and in 2016 delivered 99% of all
commercial audiences over five mitlion and 95% over three million.

Performance

ITV Family SOCI declined by 1%, with the main channel up 3%. The digital channets SOC!
was down 6% and was impacted by the launch of a number of new free-to-air digital
channels at the end of 2015 and first half of 2016. In addition, ITV2 is now more
targeted towards younger viewers with SOCl amongst 16-34s up 24% in the year.

Parformance

In 2016 we gained market share again, increasing our share of broadcast to 474%
which includes UTV and excludes self promotion by all broadcasters. 2015 share of
broadcast excluding self promaotion, would have been 46.8% rather than 46.1%.

We have again gained share as a resuit of our unique ability to deliver mass audiences
across the key demographics to our advertisers and more targeted demographics on
our digital channets, as well as the benefit of UTV.

Performance

Long-form video requests were up 24% in 2016 to 1,025 million views supported by our
continued investment and focus on the [TV Hub, mobile apps and simulcast offering.
Ontine consumption, which is the measure of how long viewers are spending online, is
an important indicator of ontine performance and this increased by 42% in 20176,

Performance

There was strong growth in the number of new commissions for ITV Studios in 2016,
up 37% to 228.1102 of these new cormmissions have corme from the UK business, with
the remaining 126 coming from our international businesses.

We continue to invest in our creative pipeline building on our existing portfolio of
programmes and formats. We are particularly focused on the genres that can return
and travel, namely drama, entertainment and factual entertainment.

Performance

The percentage of ITV output fromiTV Studios increased to 63% in 2016 driven
by new dramas in the year. Many of these ITV Studios prograrmmes broadcast in
2016 have now been distributed around the world including Victoria, Cold Feet,
Thunderbirds Are Go!, The Chase and I'm A Celebrity... Get Me Out Of Here!
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Financial and Performance Review

The benefit of rebalancing the business is evident in these results with
growth in non-NAR revenue delivering a good performance and making

ITV a more resilient business.

66

We continue to be highly
cash generative which,
together with our ongoing
focus on costs, places usin

a strong position to continue
to invest in opportunities

to grow the business and
deliver sustainable returns
to shareholders

tan Griffiths
Group Finance Director
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The strategy we set out a number of years ago was to rebalance
the business and reduce our reliance on spot advertising. This
strategy is the right strategy for ITV and the progress we have
made is clearly evident in our performance for 2016, delivering
3% external revenue growth and 3% increase in adjusted EPS, in
a year where spot advertising revenue declined 3%. We continue
to be highly cash generative which, together with our ongoing
focus on costs, places us in a strong position to continue to
invest in opportunities to grow the business and detiver

retumns to shareholders.

Twelve months to 31December -ona 2016 2015 Change Change
continuing basis £m £m £m %
NAR 1,672 1,719 {47) {3)
Total non-NAR 1855 1664 191 M
Total revenue 3527 3383 144 4
Internal supply {463) {411 52 13
Group external revenue 3,064 29572 92 3
Adjusted EBITA 885 865 20 2

Group adjusted EBITA margin 29% 29%

Adjusted EPS 17.0p 16.5p 0.5p 3
Adjusted diluted EPS 170p 163p O7p 4
Dividend per share 7.2p 6.0p 1.2p 20
Special dividend 5p 10p - -

Net debt as at 31December  (637) (319) (318) -

The statutory profit before tax and EPS from the Consolidated
Income Statement is below. A full reconcitiation between cur
statutory and reported results is included in the Alternative
Performance Measures section.

2016 2015 Change Change
Twelve months to 31December £m £m £m %
Profit before tax 583 841 88  (14)
EPS 1.2p 12.4p (1.2)p (10)
Diluted EPS 11.1p 12.3p {1.2}p {10)

Totat ITV revenue increased 4% to £3,527 million (2015: £3,383 million),
with external revenue up 3% at £3,064 million (2015: £2,972 million).
NAR declined by 3% to £1,672 mitlion (2015: £1,719 million) offset by

a 11% growth in non-NAR revenue to £1,855 million (2015: £1,664
millior). Non-NAR now accounts for 53% (2015: 49%) of total revenue.

Growthin high margin Online, Pay & Interactive revenue combined with
the growth in ITV Studios and our continued focus on costs, delivered a
2% increase in adjusted EBITA to £885 million (2015: £865 million) with
the adjusted EBITA margin maintained at 29%. Adjusted EPS grew 3%
to 170p (2015: 16.5p) while statutory EPS declined by 10% to 11.2p
(20115: 12.4p). Statutory EPS declined due to higher exceptional costs,
principally employment linked consideration for our acquisitions
{primarily Talpa Media) which is included within reported eamnings.

In addition there were higher restructuring costs associated with

our 2017 cost savings and higher amortisation of acquired intangible
assets as a result of owning Talpa Media for a full 12 months, These
adjustments are explained over the following pages.
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We remain focused on balance sheet efficiency and working capital
managerment. Qur profit to cash ratio remained strong at 97% and

we ended the period with net debt of £637 million (31 December 2015:
net debt of £319 million) after the acquisition of UTV, the ordinary and
special dividend payments and pension deficit contributions.
Increasing net debt is in line with our objective of gradually increasing
our balance sheet leverage over time whilst maintaining the financial
flexibility to continue to invest in the business.

Cost management remains a key priority and we are on track to
deliver the previously announced £25 million reduction in overheadsin
2017 across the business. This together with our strong balance sheet,
our clear strategy and a more balanced business gives us the flexibitity
to meet the opportunities and challenges ahead.

Broadcast & Online revenue tracker

Adjusted EBITA tracker

Against a backdrop of uncertainty created by the EU referendum,
ITV Family NAR decreased by 3% to £1,672 millioen (including UTV)
{(2015:1,719 million). This decline was less than the decline in our
estimate of the television advertising market which excludes
broadcaster's self-promotion, sponsorship and VOD revenue, and
therefore we again tock market share to increase our SOB to 474%.
Despite the overall fall in NAR we have seen a number of categories
hold or increase spend year-on-year, such as Entertainment & Lelsure,
with increased bookmakers spend around the European Football
Champicnship, Cars, Cosmetics and Toiletries, and Publishing and
Broadcasting. Digital brands continue to spend on television to build
brand awareness. Retail, Finance and Food have seen declines with
supermarkets and traditional banking decreasing spend across the
vear. Excluding supermarkets, Retail was up 4% year-on-year.
2016 advertising category analysis

Broadcast & Online ® Retail 20%

Twelve months to 31December —ona 2016 2015 Change Change & Entertainment & Leisure 10%

continuing basis £m £m £m % @ Finance 99%

NAR 1672 1719 {47) (3) eFood®%

Online, Pay & Interactive ® Cosmetics & Toiletries 7%

revenue 231 188 43 23 e Cars&CarDealers 6%

SDN external revenue 67 64 3 5 @ Publishing & Broadcasting 6%

Other commercial income 162 175 (13 (7) * Airlines, Travel & Holidays 5%

Broadcast & Online ¢ Telecommunications £%

non-NAR revenue 460 427 33 8 @ Household Stores &%

Total Broadcast & Online ® Other 21%

revenue 2132 246 (14) U] .

Total schedule costs {(1,050) {1,045} {5) -

Other costs (440) {442) 2 -

Total Broadcast & Online

adjusted EBITA 642 659 (7 (3)

Adjusted EBITA margin 30% 31%

Broadcast & Online revenue declined by 1% to £2,132 millicn (2015:
£2146 million) with the decrease in NAR largely offset by strong
growth in Online, Pay & Interactive,

41

3odey diBaanns I




Strategic Report P Performance and Financials

Financial and Performance Review continued

As expected, the phasing of NAR was different in 2016 reflecting the
timing of major sporting events and a backdrop of uncertainty driven
by the EU referendum. The first and second quarter were both flat
with strong comparatives in Q1 2015, with a weaker Apriland May
being offset by a strong June as aresult of the Euro Football
Championships. The third quarter was down 4% impacted by the
Rugby World Cup comparatives in 2015 with the fourth quarter down
6% as Increased political and economic uncertainty caused advertisers
to behave more cautiously.

Looking to 2017 we expect the first four months to the end of April to
be down around 6% and as ever the phasing of NAR will be different
across the year, Over the full year we again expect to outperform the
television advertising market.

On-screen we perforrmed strongly with ITV Family SOV up 1% and

a 3% increase in ITV main channel SOV, Going forward we remain
focused on our viewing performance and continuing to deliver both
mass audiences and key demographics which are highly demanded
by advertisers.

Online, Pay & Interactive revenue continued to show strong growth,
up 23% to £231 million (2015: £188 million) reflecting further growthin
bath our online advertising and pay businesses. Audience demand for
VOD remains strong as does the demand for online advertising, which
supported by our strong on-screen proposition, helped drive a 24%
Increase in long-form videc requests and a 42% increase in
consumption on our OTT service the ITV Hub. Interactive revenue

was broadly flat, with daytime competitions and entertainment
programmes performingwell

As we continue to build our digital business we will be Llaunching our
SVOD service BritBox in the US in the first half of 2017, The service is
ajoint venture with the BBC to provide the Best of British content to
subscribers. BritBox US is expected to break even within a couple of
years. ITV's share of total joint venture losses/profits will be
recognised within results from Jvs and Associates.

SDN external revenue, whichis generated from licence sales for DTT
Multiplex A, increased 5% to £67 million {2015: £64 million). This was
driven by the full year impact of the 15th stream which was launched
in August 2015 and the 16th stream launched in May 2016.

Other commercial income indludes revenue from programme
sponsorship, media sales, which relates to commission earned by ITV
on sales of airtime for the non-consolidated licensees {UTV until
acquisition and 5TV), as well as revenue from these licensees for ITV
content. Other commercial income was down year-on-year at £162
million (2015: £175 million) as a result of a reduction in airtime sales
commission and revenue fromUTV following ITV's acquisition of the
business in February 2016.

Schedule costs were broadly flat year-on-year at £1,050 million (2015:
£1,045 million) with higher spend on drama offset by lower spend on
sports rights with the absence of the Champions League. Looking into
2017 we expect our total annual programming budget to be around
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£1,025 million which includes the previously anhounced £25m
reduction as there is no major sporting event. We expect the
programme budget to be weighted to the first half of 2017 driven by
the timing of spend on entertainment and drama programmes and
will be broadly flat year-on-year for the first half.

Other costs in Broadcast were flat year-on-year as we continue to
maintain a tight control on costs across the business.

Overall Broadcast & Online adjusted EBITA was down 3% at £642
million (2015: £659 millicn) with the strong growth in Online, Pay &
Interactive more than offset by the dedline in the advertising market.
This has led to a 1% reduction in the adjusted EBITA margin to 30%
(2015; 31%).

ITV Studios

06 2015 Change Change
Twelve months to 31December £m £m £m %
Studios UK 626 547 79 14
ITV America 235 320 (85) (27}
Studios RoW 355 213 142 67
Global Entertainment 179 157 22 14
Total Studios revenue 1,395 1,237 158 13
Total Studios costs (1,152) (1,037) (121) (12)
Total Studios adjusted
EBITA* 243 206 37 18

Studios adjusted EBITA margin 17% 17%

*Includes the benefit of production tax credits,

16 2015 Change Change
Twelve months to 31December £m £m £m %
Sales from ITV Studios
to Broadcast & Online 463 411 52 13
External revenue 932 826 106 13
Total Studios revenue 1,395 1,237 158 13

ITV Studios total revenue grew strongly up 13% to £1,395 million (2015:

£1,237 million) driven by Studios UK, Global Entertainment and our
acquisitions, as we continue to build scale in creative content markets
and strengthen our international portfolio of programmes that return
and travel Total organic revenue, which excludes our current and prior
year acquisitions, was down 3%, and excluding foreign exchange
movements as well, it was down 7%. This was primarily due to ITV
America being impacted by twe large shows not returning and the
timing of one of our key shows. Good performances by the UK and
Global Entertainment helped offset some of this arganic decline. Qur
resutts include a full 12 months of our prior year acquisitions, Twofour
Group, Mammoth Screen and Talpa Media all of which have delivered
key programmes during the year.

It is in the nature of our business that not ail programmes will return
for another series and the timing of programme deliveries will vary.
However, since 2010 ITV Studios has shown good organic growth
{excluding all currency and all acquisitions) at 4% compound annual
growthrate.
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Reflecting our growth and increasing scale in key production markets
in Europe and the US, 50% of TV Studios total revenue in 2016 was
generated outside the UK. As our Studios business grows
internationally, foreign currency movements have an increasing
impact on our results. On a constant currency basis, which assumes
exchange rates remained consistent with 2015, ITV Studios revenue
for 2016 would have been £75 million lower and adjusted EBITA would
have been £12 million lower as a result of a stronger US dollar and euro
during the year.

Total Studios UK revenue was up 14% to £626 million (2015 £547
million} with 13% growth in internal revenue and 20% increase in
external revenue driven by organic growth of 6% and the acquisition
of Twofour Group and Mammoth Screen in 2015. Programming sales
to [TV Broadcast benefited from new drama deliveries including
Victoria, Cold Feet and Tutankhamun along with returning
entertainment programmes Saturday Night Takeaway, Love Island
and I'm A Celebrity... Get Me Out Here! OFf-HTV revenue grew strongly
with successful deliveries including The Jump, The Job interview and
Raised by Wolves all for Channel 4, Poldark, Moorside and Witness for
the Prosecution for BBC and Agatha Raisin for Sky.

ITV America's total revenue declined 27% to £235 million (2015: £320
million) with organic revenue, excluding acquisitions and fareign
exchange, down 35%. This decline was predominantly driven by three
shows — Texas Rising and Best Time Ever not returning and the phasing
of Hell's Kitchen which did not deliver in 2016 but will return for two
series in 2017 Our acquisitions continue to deliver new and returning
programmes, including Alonhe, Killing Fields, Pawn Stars and Fixer
Upper. Other successful non-scripted deliveries within ITV America
during the year included American Grit, Tiny House Nation and The
Real Housewives of New Jersey. Our returning scripted dramas, The
Good Witch and Aquarius also aired during 20116 with The Good Witch
already recommissioned for a third series in 2017 Aquarius has not
been recommissioned for 2017, but we are confident we can replace it
with our upcoming slate of new programmes, including three dramas;
Sun Records, Somewhere Batween and a pilot of Snowpiercer, as we
build our US scripted business.

Studios RoW total revenue was up 67% to £355 million (2015: £213
million), with organic revenue down 1%. We benefited from 12 months
of Talpa Media, which was acquired on 30 April 2015 and has
significantly strengthened our position as a leading international
producer and distributor. Talpa Media performed strongly in 2016 and
also benefited from a four-year licensing agreement for The Voice of
China. We also saw good growth in Australia and Denmark from
producing UK formats. 2016 dellveries included I'm A Celebrity... Get
Me Out Of Here! and The Chase in Australia and Germany and The
Voice Kids and Come Dine With Me in Denmark. We have a strong
pipeline of new and returning formats, many of which have been
produced by our acquisitions Talpa Media and Twofour Group, which
we will be producing in a number of our key production territories
including; The Voice, This Time Next Year, Love Island, 5 Gold Rings
and Big Star’s Little Star.

Global Entertainment revenue increased 14% in the period to £179
million (2015: £157 million), with revenue excluding foreign exchange
up 6% as we continued to grow our partfolio of programmes and
formats to distribute internationally. Revenue growth was supported
by our strong programme slate including Victoria, Poldark, Mr
Selfridge, Coronation Street, Thunderbirds Are Gal, Aquarius, Hell's
Kitchen and The Chase. We have 10 programmes sold to over 100
countries and 80 different formats we sell internationatly. We have
also increased distribution of our content to OTT providers including
Amazon, Netfiix and Hulu both in the UK and internationally.

Reflecting the strong revenue growthin [TV Studios, adjusted EBITA
increased 18% to £243 million (2015: £206 million). The adjusted EBITA
margin remains unchanged at 177%. In 2016 we invested £160 millionin
scripted content, which is a similar level to 2015. We finance our
larger-scale scripted projects through our strong underlying cashflows.
The production cost is partly funded by the initial sale of the series to a
broadcaster, while the deficit (the difference between the cost and
what the broadcaster pays), is recovered through distribution revenue
from selling the finished product globally to other broadcasters and
platforms. We balance our financial exposure through building a
portfolio of programmes, with successful international dramas
offsetting the risk that we will not recover the full deficit on

every show.

Overall, [TV Studios continued to deliver many creative successes

in the year. The ongoing investment we are makingin our creative
pipeline wit build upon our existing strong portfolio of programmes
and formats and help manage the fluctuations we experience
because of the phasing of deliveries. 2017 will see the delivery of many
new and returning entertainment and drama programmes and as a
result we expect to return to good organic revenue growth over the
full year, although the first half will be impacted the timing of
deliveries. ITV Studios currently has over £150 million maore revenue
secured for 2017 than it did this time last year. Adjusted EBITA will be
broadly flat year-on-year due to our ongoing investment in scripted
content and the reversal of the one-off benefit of The Viice of China
in 2016,

ITV Studios total revenue tracker
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Acquisitions - 2012 to 2016 {undiscounted)

Additlonal Expected Total Total
Initial conskderation future expected Expected MBUMUM
consideration paldin 2016 payments*  consideration* payment consideration**

Company Geography Genre {£m) (Em) {£m) {€m) period &m)
2016

uTtv UK &Ireland Broadcast TV 100 - - 100 100

Total for 2016 100 - - 100 100

Total for 2012-2015 Content 760 3 328 1,091  2016-2021 1,805

Total 860 3 328 1,191 1,905

* Undiscounted and adjusted for foraign exchange. All future payments are performance related Of £328 million expected future payments, £158 million has been recorded

on the balance sheet to date.

* Undiscounted and adjusted for foreign exchange, including the initial cash consideration and excluding worklng capital adjustments.

Acquisitions

0n 29 February 2016 the Group acquired a 100% controiling interest
in UTV Limited, which owns the television assets of the former UTV
Media PLC, far £100 million. This further strengthens ITV's free-to-air
business and, as we have integrated itinto [TVitenablesus torun a
more efficient network. Cn 30 Novemnber 2016, ITV completed the
€10 million sale of UTV Ireland to Virgin Media Limited.

We continue to look at potential acquisitions and partnerships as we
further build scale in our international content business. Since 2012
we have acquired a number of content businesses in the UK, US and
creative locations across Europe, developing a strong portfolio of
programmes that return and travel. As we have grown insize and
expanded our network relationships and distribution capability, this
has helped to strengthen our creative tatent and build our reputation
as a eading European producer and distributor and leading unscripted
independent production company in the US.

We have strict criteria for evaluating potential acquisitions. Financially,
we assess ownership of intellectual property, earnings growth and
valuation based on return on capital employed and discounted cash
fiow. Strategically, we ensure an acquisition target has astrong
creative track record and pipeline in content genres that returnand
travel, nhamely drama, entertainment and factual entertainment, as
well as succession planning for key individuals in the business.

We generally structure our deals with earnouts or with put and
call options in place for the remainder of the equity, capping the
maximum consideration payable. By basing a significant part of
the consideration on future performance in this way, not only can
we lock in creative talent and ensure our incentives are aligned, but
we also reduce our risk by only paying for the actual, not expected,
performance delivered over time. We believe this Is the right way
to structure our deals as we should not pay upfront for future
performance and should incentivise and reward delivery by the
business over time,

The majority of earnouts or put and call options are dependent on
the seller remaining within the business, the most significant of which
is for Talpa Media whereby the total maximum consideration, including
the initial payment, is up to €11 billion whichis contingent on Talpa
Media continuing to deliver significant profit growth to 2022 as well
as John de Mol's continued commitment to the business during

this time. Under the deal structure, because all future payments
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and €150 mitlion of the initial consideration are directly related to
John de Mol remaining with the business, these payments are treated
as employment costs and therefore on a statutory basis are part of
our reported results, Howevet, we exclude thern from adjusted profits
and adjusted EPS as an exceptional itemn, as in our view for the reasons
set gut above, these items are part of capital consideration reflecting
how we structure our transactions. This is consistent with our
treatment of all costs of this type.

The table above sets out the initial consideration payable on our
acquisitions, our expected future payments based on our current view
of performance and the total maximum consideration payable which
is only payable if exceptional compound eamings growth is delivered.

We closely monitor the forecast performance of each acquisition and
where there has been a change in expectations, we adjust cur view of
potential future commitments.

Tatal expected consideration for all our acquisitions has increased

by £128 million since 31 December 2015, primarily as a result of our
acquisition of UTV Limited and future payments denominated in
foreign currency. As at 31 December 2016 the amount recorded on the
balance sheet was £158 million of our total expected future payments.

In 2017, around £120 miltion will be payable on aur acquisitions,
primarily relating to Talpa Media of which €100 million is due, subject
to audit, in March 2017

Forelgn Exchange Sensitivity

As our Studios business grows internaticnally, the performance of
the business becomes increasingly sensitive to movementsin foreign
exchange rates, primarily with respect to the US dollar and euro.

The following table highlights ITV's sensitivity to translation resulting
from a 10% appreciation/depreciation in stering against the US dollar
and eurg, assuming all other variables are held constant. An
appreciation in Sterling has anegative effect onrevenue and adjusted
EBITA, adepreciation has a positive effect.

Adjusted
Currency Revenue (Em) EBITA (Em)
US Dollar +50-60 +8-10
Euro +25-30 +3-4
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Net financing costs Exceptional items

2016 2015 2016 2015
Twelve months to 31 December £m £m Twelve months to 31 December £m £m
Financing costs directly attributable Operating exceptional items:
to loans and bonds 22 (10 Acquisition related expenses (131) {88)
Cash-related net financing costs (3 (3) Reorganisation and restructuring costs {14) {13)
Amortisation of bonds (1 —_ Pension curtailment (19) :
Adjusted financing costs (26) (13) Other - )]
Mark-to-market on swaps and (164) {109)
foreign exchange &) 4 Non-operating exceptional items - 6
Imputed pension interest (5) (10)  Total exceptional items (ret) (164) {103)
Unrealised foreign exchange and other
net financiat losses (17) @) o .
Net financing costs (51) (31 Total exceptional items in the year were £164 million (2015: £103

Adjusted financing costs increased to £26 million (2015: £13 mitlion)
primarily due to 12months of the seven year €600 million Eurobond
issuedin September 2015 and new facility fees.

Net financing costs were £20 million higher in 2016 at £51 million
{2015: £31 million) primarily due to £97 million increase in the expected
future payments on our acquisition portfolio. These relate to those
deals structured with a put and catl option for the remainder of the
equity which are not dependent on the seller remaining within the
business. The imputed pension charge decreased as a result of lower
interest rates.

Profit bafore tax

Adjusted profit before tax, after amortisation and impairment of
intangibles and financing costs, was broadly flat at £847 million (2015:
£843 million). Statutory profit before tax decreased by 14% at £553
million {2015: £641 million), primarily a result of the exceptionalitems
described below, an increase in net financial losses within net financing
costs and a full 12 months amortisation of the intangible assets
acquired in the purchase of Talpa Media, particularly The Voice.

million). Operating exceptional items principally relate to acquisition
related expenses which are mainly performance based employment
linked consideration, primarily £99 million for Talpa Media which

has delivered in line with its first earnout hurdle and will receive . -
€100 million, subject to audit, in March 2017. Reorganisation and -
restructuring costs inctudes £14 million of restructuring and
redundancy costs across the business in relation to our £25 million
overhead cost savings for 2017 The pension curtailment is as a result
of the closure of the defined benefit pension sections of the ITV
Pension Scheme to future benefit accrual.

Tax

Adjusted tax charge

The total adjusted tax charge for 2016 was £160 million (2015: £177
million), corresponding to an effective tax rate on adjusted PBT of 19%
(2015: 21%) which is broadly inline with the standard UK corporation
tax rate of 20% (2015: 20.25%). We expect this effective tax rate to

be sustainable in the medium term. The adjustments made to
reconcile the tax charge with the adjusted tax charge are the tax
effects of the adjustments made to reconcile PBT and adjusted PBT,
as discussed earlier.

2016 2015
Profit before tax (PBT) Twelve months to 31 December £m £m
2078 o Jaxcharge (100) (139)
Twelve months to 31 December - ona continuing basis £m £m Production tax credits (25) (23)
Profit before tax 553 641 Charge for exceptional items {15) (8)
Production tax credits 28 23 Chargeinrespect of amortisation of
Exceptional items {net) 164 103  intangible assets* (") {4)
Amortisation and impairment of Charge in respect of adjustments to net
intangible assets* 77 58 financing costs (6) {3)
Adjustments to net financing costs 25 18  Adjusted tax charge (160) (177)
Adjusted profit before tax 847 843  Effective tax rate on adjusted profits 19% 21%

* Inrespect ofintanglble assets atising from buslness combinatlons.

* Inrespect of intangible assets arising from business combinations. Also reflects the cash
tax benefit of tax deductions for US goodwill
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Cash tax

Cash tax paid in the year was £90 million (2015: £117 million), the
majority of which was paid in the UK. The cash tax figure is net of
praoduction tax credits received in the year. The cash tax payable is

lower year-on-year because of the timing of the receipts of tax credits.

Areconciliation between the tax charge for the year and the cash tax
paid in the year is shown below.

2016 2015
Twetve months to 31 December £m £m
Tax charge (100) (139)
Temporary differences recognised
through deferred tax (13) 29
Prior year adjustments to current tax {10) {9)
Current tax, current year {123) (119}
Phasing of tax payments - UK 5 (1)
Phasing of tax payments - overseas 5 (1)
Production tax credits - timing
of receipt 7 (14)
Cash tax impact of allowable UK
pension payments 16 18
Cash tax paid {90) (17)
Tax strategy

ITV is a responsible business, and we take a responsible attitude to tax,
recognising that it affects all of our stakeholders. In order to allow
thase stakeholders to understand our approach to tax, we have
published our Global Tax Strategy which is available on our

corporate website,

@ wwwLitvple.com
We have four key strategic tax objectives:

1. Engage with tax authorities in an open and transparent way in
order to minimise uncertainty

2. Pro-actively partner with the business to provide clear, timely,
relevant and business focused advice across all aspects of tax

3. Take an appropriate and balanced approach when considering
how to structure tax sensitive transactions

4. Manage ITV's tax risk by operating effective tax governance
and understanding our tax control framewaork with a view to
continuously adjusting our approach to be compliant with our
tax obligatfons

Our tax strategy is aligned with that of the business and its
commercial activities, and establishes a clear Group-wide approach
based on openness and transparency in all aspects of tax reporting
and compliance, wherever the Company and its subsidiaries operate.
Within our overall governance structure, the governance of tax and
taxriskis given a high priority by the Board and Audit and Risk
Committee, including through the operation of the Tax & Treasury
Committee. The ITV Global Tax Strategy as published on the ITV plc
website is comptiant with the UK tax strategy publication regquirement
set outin Part 2 5chedule 19 Finance Act 2016.
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EPS - adjusted and statutory

Overall, adjusted profit after tax was up 3% at £687 million (2015:
£666 million). After non-controlling interests of £4 million (2015:£7
million), adjusted basic earnings per share was 17.0p (2015: 16.5p), up
3% which is higher than the growthin adjusted EBITA of 2% due toa
decrease in our adjusted effective tax rate in the year to 19% (2015
21%). The weighted average number of shares was breadly in line at
4,010 million (2015: 4,006 million). Diluted adjusted EPS in 2016 was
17.0p (2015: 16.3p} reflecting a weighted average diluted number of
shares of 4,029 (20715: 4,035).

Adjusted EPS p

Statutory EPS declined by 10% to 11.2p (2015; 12.4p) primarily as

a result of higher employment tinked consideration (largely Talpa
Media), which is included within reported EPS but as in prior years,

is excluded from adjusted EPS as in our view these costs are part of
capital consideration. In addition there were higher restructuring costs
associated with our 2017 cost savings and higher amortisation of
acquired intangibles assets from a full 12 months of Talpa Media.

A full reconciliation between statutory and adjusted EPS isinciuded
within the Alternative Performance Measures section.

Statutory EPS p

Dividend per share

In 2014, the Board made a commitment to grew the full year ordinary
dividend by at least 20% per annum to 2016 to achieve a more normal
dividend cover of between 2.0 and 2.5x adjusted earnings per share.

In Line with this policy and reflecting ITV’s good performance in 2016,
the Board is proposing a final dividend of 4.8p which equates to a full
year dividend of 7.2p, which gives a cover of 2.4x. We have delivered
average annual growth of 27% in the ordinary dividend over the last
three years.
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Reflecting ITV’s strong cash generation and the Board's confidence in
the business, the Board is proposing a special dividend of 5p per share
worth just over £200 million, bringing the total special dividends since
2012 to alrmost £1.2 billion.

Looking ahead the Board is committed to a long-term sustainable
dividend policy. Qrdinary dividends will grow broadly in line with
earnings, targeting dividend cover of around 2x adjusted earnings
per share over the medium term. ITV has £1.7 billion of distributable
reserves at 31st December 2016 available immediately to support
the dividend policy.

Dividend per share p (ordinary)

Cash generation
Profit to cash conversion

2016 2015
Twelve months to 31 December £m £rn
Adjusted EBITA 885 865
Working capital movement 20) (72)
Depreciation k] 27
Share-based compensation and
pension service costs 10 17
Acquisition of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets {4d) {49
Adjusted cash flow 862 788
Profit to cash ratio 97% 91%

Note: Except where disclosed, management views the acquisition of operating property,
plant and equipment and intangibles as necessary ongoing investrment in the business.

ITV continues to be highly cash generative reflecting our ongoing
tight management of working capital balances and our disciplined
approach to cash and costs. This is particularly important when there
is wider political and economic uncertainty and places usin a goed
position to continue toinvest across the business and deliver
sustainable returns to our shareholders.

In the year we generated £862 million (2015: £788 million} of
operational cash from £885 million {2015: £865 million) of adjusted
EBITA, which equates to a strong profit to cash ratio of 97%

(2015: 91%).

To facilitate our working capital management, we have agreed a
£100 million non-recourse receivables purchase agreement (free of
financial covenants) which gives us the flexibility to access additional
liquidity when required. At the 31st December, £35 million of
receivables were sold under the purchase agreement.

Free cash flow

2016 2015
Twelve months to 31 December £m £m
Adjusted cash flow 862 788
Net interest paid (20) (9)
Adjusted cash tax {126) (127)
Pension funding (80) (50)
Free cash flow 636 562

Note Adjusted cash tax of £126 million is total cash tax paid of £90 million excluding recelpt
of production tax credlts, which are included within adjusted cashflow from operations, as
these production tax credits relate directly to the production of programmes.

After payments for interest, cash tax and pension funding, our free
cash flow remained strong in the period, up 13% to £636 million
(2015: £562 million).

Overall, after dividends (crdinary and special), acquisition related costs,
debt repayments and strategic investments, particularly into ‘digital
first’ businesses, we ended the year with net debt of £637 million,
compared to net debt of £796 million at 30 June 2016 and net debt of
£319 million at 31 December 2015. Our cash generaticn was weighted
towards the second half of 2016 due to the payment of the special
dividend and the acquisition of UTV, both of which were paid in the
first half of 2016,

Net debt tracker
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Financial and Performance Review continued

Funding and liquidity

Debt structure and liquidity

Qur balance sheet strength, together with our strong free cash flow,
enables us tc continue to invest in opportunities to grow the business
and make returns to our sharehalders. To preserve our financial
flexibility we have put a number of new facilities in place. We have
increased our Revolving Credit Facility (RCF) from £525 million to £630
million and extended it for a further five years to 2021 (with the option
to extend to 2023). We have also increased our bilateral financing
facility from £175 million to £300 miltion, which is free of financial
covenants. This, along with our two bilateral loans which total £250
million and mature in 2017 (but may be extended until 2018 at ITV’s
option), provides us with sufficient liquidity to meet the requirements
of the business in the medium to long-term. The RCF and bilaterals
have the usual financial covenants for these type of financing which
are detailed in note 4. Of the total £1,180 million facilities in place,
£250 million was drawn down at 31 December 2016.

Our policy is to maintain at least £250 million of available liquidity at
any point.

Leverage

Our objective is to run an efficient balance sheet. We believe
maintaining teverage below 1.5x reported net debt to adjusted EBITDA
will optimise our cost of capital. At 31 December 2016, reported net
debt to adjusted EBITDA was 0.7 (2015: 0.4x). Qur priority is to invest
to drive organic growth and make acquisitions in line with our strategic
priorities as we find the right opportunities to do so. We will balance
this investment with attractive returns to shareholders where we
have surplus capital.

We also look at an adjusted measure of net debt, takinginto
consideration all of our other debt-like commitments including

the expected, undiscounted contingent payments on acquisitions,
the pension deficit under IAS 19 net of gilts held as security against a
proportion of those liabilities and the undiscounted operating lease
commitrents which mainly relate to broadcast transmission
contracts and property. This adjusted leverage measure better
reflects how the credit rating agencies look at our balance sheet.
At 31 December 2016 adjusted net debt was £1,637 million (31
December 2015: £1,144 million) and adjusted net debt to adjusted
EBITDA was 1.8% (31 December 2015: 1.3x).

Financing

We are financed using debt instruments and facilities with a range of
maturities. In December 2016 we issued a new €500 million Eurobond
at a coupon of 2.00% which was swapped into sterling using a number
of cross currency interest rate swaps. The net sterling interest rate
payable on these swaps is ¢. 3.5%. The net sterling proceeds from the
bond of £425 million were primarily used to refinance existing debt,
including the £161 million bond that matured in January 2017, and will
be used to pay the first tranche of the Talpa Media earnout due in 2077,

Net debt

206 2015
At 31 December £m £m
Gross cash 561 294
Gross debt {1,198) ©613)
Net debt {637) (319)
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Borrowings at 31 December 2016 were repayable as follows:

Amount repayable £m Maturity
£161 million Eurobond 161 Jan 2017
£100 million Bilateral Loan 100 Jun 2017/2018
€600 million Eurobond 508 Sep 2022
€500 million Eurchond* 425 Dec 2023
Finance leases 4 Various

Total debt repayable on maturity**

* Netof £2 million cross currency swaps
= |n addition to above we have a £150 millen bilateral loan which was drawn down at 31
December but was offset by deposit on account

1,198

At 315t December, the £630 million RCF was undrawn,

Ratings

We are rated investment grade by two ratings agencies: BBB- (positive
outlook) by Standard and Poor's and Baa3 (stable outlook) by Moody's
Investor Services. The factors that are taken into account inassessing
our credit rating include our degree of operational gearing, exposure
to the economic cycie, as well as business and geographical diversity.
Continuing to execute our strategy will strengthen our position
against all these metrics.

Foraign exchange

As ITV continues to grow internationally, we are increasingly exposed
to fareign exchange on our overseas operations. We do not hedge our
exposure to revenues and profits generated overseas, as this is seen
as an inherent risk. We may elect to hedge our overseas net assets,
where material. To date we have hedged a significant portion of the
euro net assets arising from the Talpa Media acquisition.

TV is also exposed to foreign exchange risk on transactions we
undertake in a foreign currency. Our policy is to hedge a portion of
any transaction that is either a firm commitment for up to five years
forward or a highly probable forecast for up to 18 months, depending
on the level of certainty we have on the final size of the transaction.

Finally, ITV is exposed to foreign exchange risk on the retranslation

of foreign currency loans and depaosits. Our policy is to hedge such
exposures where there is an expectation that any changes in the value
of these items will result in a realised cash movement over the short
to medium term,

The foreign exchange and interest rate hedging strategy is discussed
and approved by the TV plc Board and implemented by our internal
Tax and Treasury Committee who oversee governance and approval

of Tax and Treasury related policies and procedures within the business.

Pensions

The net pension deficit for the defined benefit schemesat

31 December 2016 was £328 million (31 December 2015: £176 million
excluding UTV pension scheme). The increase reflects a rise in pension
liabilities following a significant decrease in corporate bond yields
along with anincrease in market expectations of long-term inflation.
The overall increase in liabilities has more than offset the deficit
funding contribution and increase in asset values, The net pension
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deficit includes £39 million of gilts which are held by the Group
as security for future unfunded pension payments of four farmer
Granada executives. A full reconciliation is included within Note 3.7,

Following the acquisition of UTV Limited in February 2016, the assets
and liabilities of the UTV defined benefit pension scheme (whichisina
surplus of £1 million) are inciuded within the Group net pension deficit
at 31 December 2016.

Actuarial valuation

The last actuarial valuation was undertaken in 2014. On the basis
adopted by the Trustee, the combined deficits as at 1 January 2014
amounted to £540 million.

The Trustee is in the process of undertaking a full actuarial valuation
of all sections of the Scheme as at 1 January 2017 which we expect to
agree in late 2017 or early 2018.

Net pension deficit tracker

Closure to future accrual

in December 2016, foliowing a member consLiltation, the Group
decided to dlose the defined benefit sections of the ITV Scheme to
future benefit accrual with effect from 28 February 2017. The benefits
of these members will become subject to statutoryincreases from
the date of closure until retirement, rather than the capped
pensionable salary that previously applied. This change has resulted in
aone-off £19 million non-cash curtailment charge which is included
within exceptionals.

Deficit funding contributions

The Group continues to make deficit funding contributionsin line
with the most recent valuation in order to eliminate the deficits in
each section.

The total deficit funding contribution for 2016 was £80 miltion, a £10
million reduction on 2015. This contribution is expected to remain at
£80 mitlion in 2017, Further details are included within Note 3.7.

Subsequent avents
Eurobond repayment: On 5 January 2017 ITV repaid the £161 million

Eurobond as it matured.

Gurney Productions LLC: On 6 February 2017, the Group exercised
the call option to acquire the remaining 38.5% interest of Gurney
Productions LLC.

Lendon Property Strategy: On 21 February 2017, ITV announced that
following an extensive review of its London property requirements,
itintends to seek planning permission to redevelop its South Bank
site and build a new London home. The teams currently located in
the South Bank site will be relocated to various sites during the
redevelopment period. As a result of the review, [TV is also proposing
to close The London Studios {TLS) business and use studio capacity
in the external market to meet our future business needs.

Acquisitions: On 28 February 2017, we announced the acquisition of
65.05% of Tetra Media Studios SAS, the French production business.

lan Griffiths
Group Finance Director
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Risks and Uncertainties

As a producer and broadcaster ITV’s business carries a number of
risks which we manage through our risk management framework.

This risk management framework sets out
our processes for identifying, reviewing
and managing our risks and is regularty
assessed and adapted as the Company,
industry and macro environment evolves.
Our continuing success is dependent on
how well we understand and manage

our risks.,

Qur approach, which is consistent with
previous years, covers risks at all levels of
the organisation:

- Principal risks:

- Highlmpact, Low Likelihood (HILL)
risks — of low inherent liketihood but
where there would be major
consequences were therisk to
materialise

— Strategic risks — would impact the
successful execution of the strategy

» Operational or process level risks
- embedded into everyday activity within
the organisation

Risks are primarily controlled through the risk
management process. The Board has carried
out arobust assessment of the Principal risks
facing the Company and details of these are
set on aut on the following pages. Mitigating
actions have been identified for all of the
Principal risks. Each Strategic risk has been
mapped to at least one of the three key
Strategic Priorities and, where possible,
assigned key risk indicators. Where
appropriate, the key risk indicators are
aligned to our key performance indicators
{KPIs) on pages 36 to 39. All Principal risks
are owned by at least one member of the
Management Board.

Inline with our Risk Management Framework,

the Management and Divisional Boards have
reviewed ITV's Principal risks and
uncertainties. While these potential risks are
predominately unchanged, the Board feels
the potential risk of a sustained cyber/viral
attack should be viewed as aHILL risk rather
than a Strategir risk. The Board believes that
this better reflacts the nature of this risk
because media companies in particular have
faced increased frequency and sophistication
of cyber-attacks,
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Risk appetite

The Board is responsible for setting the level
of risk the Company is witling to take inline
with our strategy. There are clear approvals
frameworks in place and we continue to
develop our approach to ensure that the
business understands the Board's risk
appetite and ensure they understand
tolerance levels and track the key risk
indicators to help manage each risk.

Threa lines of defence

We continue to enhance our three lines of
defence model and develop our approach to
managing risks. The business divisions own
their risks and the shared service functicns
support them in managing the risks. Internal
Audit provide assurance as to the
effectiveness of the internal control andrisk
management systems. In areas which face
day to day operationhal risk, we are continuing
to develop our three lines of defence model
and to move our approach to risk away from
arules and process driven system to a cultural
people driven solution which we believe
encourages a focus on prevention rather than
reaction to failure. Anew Leading Risk training
programme is now in place for ITV Studios

production management which will continue
ta be developed and introduced to other
areas of the business.

Risk culture

Throughout the year we have continued to
focus on and strengthen our risk culture. The
Operational Risk Steering Group considers
ethical behaviours, governance and
compliance with our Cede of Conduct. We
aim to have an open communication culture
where information is shared and issues are
escalated as appropriate.

Assurance

Internal Audit provide objective assurance as
to the effectiveness of the Group's systems
of internal control and risk management,
reporting to the Management Board,
Divisional boards and the Audit and

Risk Committee.

The internal audit plan is driven from ITV's

risk management framework. Internal Audit
review the auditable etements of the HILL,
Strategic and operaticnal risks and this review
informs the areas and topics that Internal
Audit focus on.
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Risk management framework
Our ongoing process for risk identification, review and management is set out below.

ysoday Jjayniyg ]

Board

+ Sets strategic objectives

« Identifies and evaluates Principal risks and uncertainties

» Sets our strategy on risk and establishes tolerance levels and risk appetite
- Ensures a robust and appropriate risk management framework s in place
« Continually monitors the risk management andinternal control systems

Management and Divisional
Boards

Operational Risk
Steering Group

Audit and
Risk Committee

With support from the Divisional
Boards the Management Board has
responsibility for;

« the development and operation of the
risk management framework and for
the operation of our systerns of internal
control. This includes:

- riskidentification and assessment and
establishing controls and procedures
to monitor and mitigate risks.

- assessment and review of financial
controls, policies and procedures to
ensure risks are identified and the
processes and procedures are in
accordance with and aligned to
the strategy.

- reviewing and rmonitoring the
effectiveness of internal controls and
putting in place remedial plans where
controls are weak or there are
opportunities for improvernent.
Serious control weakness (if any) is
reported to the Board and action
taken as appropriate.

» routinely reviewing and challenging
risks and mitigations.

The Operational Risk Steering Group has
responsibitity for:

+ considering and setting actions for pan
ITV risks and for ongoing monitoring of
those actions.

« reviewing incident reports and other
statistics.

« reviewing policies and processes to
ensure they remain fit for purpose.

« identifying and reporting emerging risks.

« identifying and resolving issues.

Risk areas in scope of the group and sub
committees that deal with specific risk
areas are set out in the governance
framework on page 72.

The Chairman of the Audit and Risk
Committee attends meetings of the
Operational Risk Steering Group
periodically.

The Audit and Risk Committee has
responsibility for:

+ overseeing and advising the Board on
strateqgic risk exposures and future
mitigation strategy.

- reviewing internal contrals and their
effectiveness,

« reviewing the effectiveness of the
risk management framewark.

« conducting in depth reviews of high
risk business areas or processes.

« reviewing internal audit actions
and managernent responsiveness
to the findings.

Details of risk reviews undertaken during
the year are set out in the Audit and Risk
Committee report on page 68.

Operation and Assurance - three lines of defence

1Business divisions

2 Shared service functions

3Internal audit

« The business divisions own the
management of their risks and are
responsible for:

- identifying and reporting local risks.

- maintaining risk registers and business
continuity plans where appropriate.

- reviewing and implementing
mitigating actions

« Support the business divisions in
managing risks.

« Provide assurance as to the effectiveness
of the internal control and risk
management systems.

5
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Risks and Uncertainties continued

High Impact, Low Likelihood Risks (HILL)
Potential Risk Kay Drivers Mitigating Factors and Risk Direction
T | ITV loses its credit status « Thereis arepeat of the « The business is cash generative and working capital
g or tines of funding with 2008/09 financial crisisas a management remains a key focus.
3 | existing lenders or there result of a major bank collapse, | - TV has abalance sheet policy to maintain adjusted net
@ | is an event thatimpacts or there s a similar financial debt below 1.5x adjusted EBITDA and have available
~ | financial arrangements/ outcome as aresult of an tiquidity headroom of at least £250 million.
availability of credit. unexpected world event. . ITV has a£630 million Revolving Credit Facility with a
number of core relationship banks and £250 million of
financial covenant free fadilities.

+ The relatively low levels of ITV debt and our two
investrment grade ratings mean ITV continues to have
good access to both bank and bond financing.

There is a major collapse - As aresult of macroeconomic + Thereis regular communication between ITV and the
ininvestment values or changes there can be material pension trustees.
a material change in movements in the Group's + The pension scheme’s assets are invested in a diversified
Liabilities leading to an defined benefit pension portfolio, with a significant amount of the fund held
Impact on the pension scheme, inbonds.
scheme deficit. + For example if the Bank of « ITV has worked with the pension trustees to limit
England announces further the potential deficit by a series of asset backed
Quantitative Easing this may arrangements. Further, it has taken sorme mortality risk
change gilt yields and corporate out of the scheme with a longevity swap and hedged a
bonds rates, increasing the partion of inflation and interest rate variability.
scheme's liabilities,
+ Qrifthereis anunexpected
world event thatimpacts
property values and/or
impacts share prices.
© | Asignificant eventremoves | . Inthe ordinary course of » Thereis a business resilience planin place which includes
'g anumber of the key business activities there will be succession plans or nominated replacements for all key
o | management team from times when the Management positions within the Company.
:-;- the business on a long-term Board are in one location or
3 | or permanent basis. travel together as a group.
2
There is a sustained - Withincreasingly sophisticated | « We continue toimprove our ability to monitor, detect
cyber/viral attack causing technology, the risk of a cyber/ and respand to cyber threats internally and through
prolonged system denial viral attack hasincreased partnerships with specialist security organisations.
or major reputational across the world. « Mandatory online training modules, awareness
damage, for example the « We are higher risk as a resutt campaigns and simplified information security policies
ability to broadcast our of operating in a public have been implemented for employees.
channels or the availabllity environment. « There aredisaster recovery and incident management
of ITVHub or [TV loses a plansin place for high-risk areas of the business to help
significant volume of deliver a rapid and flexible response. These are kept
personal or sensitive data. under review by the Audit and Risk Committee.
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Our strategic priorities Risk direction (after mitigation)
Maximising Increased risk
Growing Risk stayed the same
Building Reduced risk

uodey nbeaeiss |

High impact, Low Likelihood Risks (HILL)

There is a major health and

As the Cormpany expands this

safetyincident that resutts may result in anincrease in
in a significant loss of production hours, and the
human life. Company could produce certain

types of programming which
tave higher inherent risks.

A major incident results in - ITV'sbroadcast technology
ITV being unable to continue chain is complex and risk can
with scheduled broadcasting materialise within ITV or with
for a sustained period. third parties responsible for
servicing the broadcast
supply chain.
There is a significant = ITV could be affectedif thereis
or unexpected changein achange in UK media or
regulation or legislation. intellectual property regulation

or legislation; for example if
there is achange in advertising
restrictions in key categories.
Highlighted below are key risks
as a result of European Union
membership referendum.

Potentlal Risk Key Drivers Mitigating Factors and Risk Direction
2 | Anevent with public = Through the Broadcasting = ITV has a crisis management policy and processin
% interest that causes and studios businesses, the place andisincreasing emphasis on its development
£ | significant reputational Company operates in a public and application.
& ! and brand damage. environment.
=
=

« ITV has a central health and safety team and health
and safety policies and procedures are in place, with
appropriate training for employees where required.
As we continue to expand internationally these will
be kept under review.

+ Regular inspections are undertaken at all sites alongside
aprogramme of appropriate health and safety audits.

- Ariskregister of broadcast operations, including key
outsourced functions, isin place and reviewed ona
regular basis,

« Major incident scenario testing takes place bi-annually.

- Anincident management process has been agreed and
full disaster recovery plans are in place.

- [TV regularly communicates with appropriate groups
and its legal panel and Gfcom to monitor potential
policy, legal and requlatory developments.

Impact of exiting the European Union

As a result of UK European Union membership referendum, any

macro uncertainty may have a knock on impact to the overall

heatth of the UK television advertising market.

In addition, given the reciprocal nature of worldwide trade deals,
there could also be knock on changes to UK legislation affecting
broadcasting and intellectual property laws. For example, there

may be pressure to weaken abligations to purchase original

Further there could be wider changes in regulation or legistation
within the markets in which we operate. While the potential
changes and the impact of any such changes will remain unknown

content made in the UK or to broaden exceptions from intellectual
property protection.

for a while, ITV could, for example, be affected by changes to:

+ EUbroadcasting legislation and/or rules around EU market
access, for example potential barriers against UK companies
selting programming to, or investing in, EU companies;

+ Indirect taxation, direct taxation or transfer pricing reguiation;

« restrictions to free movement of our staff.

The likelihood or extent of any impact is currently unknown but
going forward we will closely monitor and evaluate any potential
areas of risk.




Strategic Report P Performance and Financials

Risks and Uncertainties continued

Strategic risks

Potantial Risk

Kwy Drivers

Mitigating Factors and Risk Directlon
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There is a major decline in
advertising revenues and
ITV does not build
sufficient non-NAR revenue
streams to mitigate the
financial impact of this
decline.

The television market
moves significantly
towards pay televisionasa
preferred model,
negatively impacting ITV's
free-to-air revenue,

+ The current economic
environment is uncertain
which may impact dermand for
advertising. However ITV has
made significant progressin
rebalancing the business and
53% of our total revenue
cornes from sources other
than TV spot advertising.

« The current platform mix
between free-to-air and linear
pay television is around 50%
each and has remained at this
level cver recent years.

» Growing non-NAR in areas such as ITV Studios and
Online, Pay & Interactive, remains akey part of the
strategy.

+ (TV continues to focus on cash and costs, ensuring the
Company has adequate financial liquidity and balance
sheet flexibility to continue to invest.

+ ITV continues to support free platforms, including
YouView, to keep free-to-air strong.

« ITVlooks at and evaluates the opportunities for
expandingits existing pay services and other pay
offerings.

» ITV explares other platforms to understand viewing
habits and what people are prepared to pay for.

5955920.1d pue 3indnis ‘uo!;es!ueﬁ.lo

A faster than expected - Theway people areconsuming | - The business continues to develop the ITV Hub VOD
shift to VOD or other new television is changing and services, maximise the distribution of the ITV Hub and
technologles, such as viewers are spending more grow its VOD advertising business.

internet enabled TVs or time watching online. However | . TV monitors the market for new technology and where
online only services, causes it remains a small percentage appropriate explores how ITV can participate.

a sustained loss of of tatal viewingataround7% | . |Ty continues to invest around £1billion in its
advertising revenue. (2015 internal estimates). pragramme buciget.

ITV falls to evolve its - Employing the best creative, - ITV constantly reassesses the business to create a
organisational structure commercial and management fit-for-purpose organisation.

and culture to ensure that talent is key to our success. - Strategic focus on working across the business to embed
itls capable of delivering - Falling to create the right and strengthen the culture of ‘One ITV" way of working,
continued growth from culture to attract and retain = ITVinvestsin training and development for all key

new businesses_ Or revenue this talent increases this risk. colleagues in the business.

streams a": failsto attract, | , Employee engagement is « Succession plans are in place for all key positions within
develop and retain key critical and we continue to the Company.

creative, commercial and monitor it through our

management talent with employee survey. This ance

the skills required for the

ongoing business,

again showed very high
engagement at 90%, up on
the previous year (2015: 89%).
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Our strategic priorities Risk direction (after mitigation)
Maximising increased risk
Growing Risk stayed the same
Building Reduced risk

Strategic risks

Potential Risk

Key Drivars

Mitigating Factors and Risk Direction

$9553704d pPUe 34n3on4)s ‘uonesiuebip

There is significant loss of
programme rights or ITV
fails to identify and obtain
the optimal rights
packages.

ITV fails to create and own
a sufficient number of hit
programmes/formats
across its international
portfolic of content
companles.

ITV fails to properly
resource, financially,
creatively and
operationally, the new
growth businesses, in
particular online

and International content.

ITV remains heavily reliant
on legacy systems, which
could potentially restrict
the ability to grow the
business. These systems
and processes may nhotbe
appropriate for non-
advertising revenue or
international growth.

There is increased competition
for high-quality programme
rights as broadcasters and
platform owners demand
brand defining content.

As an integrated producer
broadcaster, ITV produces a
significant proportion of the
broadcast schedule itself. In
2016 thisincreased to 63% of
the main channel’s original
commissions.

ITV maintains good
relationships with independent
producers to ensure it has
oppartunities to acquire quality
cantent.

Our ability to create and own
hit programmes depends on
the quality of our content
business.

TV is the largest commercial
producer in the UK and a
leading independent non-
scripted producer in the US
and Europe.

« QOur strategy is clear and we

remain focused on detivering
against our three strategic
priorities in the areas where
we can deliver most growth
as we continue to rebalance
the business.

Qur system requirements
change as we continue to
rebalance the business, grow
new revenue streams and
become increasingly
international

« ITVIs focused on both protecting and exploiting existing
rights and ensuring that future rights generated accrue
tolTV.

- ITV has a detailed model to evaluate the value of
third-party rights to ensure it only buys rights that make
economic sense,

- ITVinvests in creating and owning quality content
through ITV Studios.

+ ITV maximises opportunities for {TV Studios to create
successful shows by investing in the creative pipeline and
focusing on programmes and genres that can return and
travel internationally, i.e. drama, entertainment and
factual entertainment, as evidenced by our increased
investment inscripted content.

« ITVis focused on hiring and retaining the right key
creative talent.

« Talent management plans have been developed and
reviewed to ensure adequate succession planning
acrossITV.

- ITV continues to embed and strengthen the culture of
‘One ITV way of working.

« Lessons from recentinvestments are captured through
post-acquisition reviews.

+ System requirements are kept under review with
business growth and system modernisation projects
implemented as appropriate.

= Amodernisation plan is in place for the legacy systems
which remains under constant review and development
to ensure technology systems meet the needs of the
business.

« Cyber risk mitigations in relation to all of our systems are

set out on page 52.

This is kept under review by the Audit and Risk

Committee,

odey nbesuns |
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Risks and Uncertainties continued

Our strategic priorities Risk direction (after mitigation)
Maximising Increased risk
Growing Risk stayed the same
Building Reduced risk
Strategic risks
Potential Risk Key Drivers Mitigating Factors and Risk Direction
5! A significant high-profile « AsabroadcasterITV has « [TV has ongoing modernisation prajects to ensure
o, incident or series of events significant prominence and transrmissfon and distribution technologies are fit-for-
3 | e.g.asystem fallure,a therefore is exposed to the risk purpose.
% technology issue,or a of a high-profile incident. - There are disaster recovery and incident management
@& | major regulatory breach plans in place in high risk areas of the business to help
< | that causes significant deliver a rapid and flexible respanse.
reputational and/or - 1TV proactively manages its broadcast chain partners and
commercial damage. suppliers to ensure the risk of incidents and regulatory
breachis minimised.
ITV fails to ensure + The key to business continuity « Disaster recovery plans are in place with tests conducted
appropriate business is having an appropriate risk periodically on business critical systems.
continuity planning and management framework and
resillence within its core the right plans and procedures
systems, processes, in place. This is taken very
platforms and technology seriousty at ITV and the
infrastructure. adequacy and robustness of our
plans are reviewed and tested.
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Viability Statement

Annually the Board assesses ITV's prospects and risks at its June
strategy day. Amongst other topics, the Board reviews the five
year finandial plan which is based on our Strategic Priorities.

However, inits assessment of viability the Board reviewed the
planning horizon and is of the view that a three-year period to

31 December 2013 continues to be most appropriate. The factors
the Board considered in adopting this timeframe are as follows:

- Visibility over ITV's broadcast advertising business is relatively
short term, as advertising remains cyclical and closely linked to
UK economic growth;

+ The commissioning process and life cycle of programming gives
ITV Studios division more medium-term outlook. However, while
non-returning brands are replaced with new commissions, over
time there is less visibility as programmes can experience
changes in viewer demand or come to a natural expiration;

» Technology in the media industry continues to change the
demand for content and also how it is consumed;

« Pension funding, which is one of ITV's key funding obligations,
is also agreed triennially with the Trustees of the pension scheme;
and

« [TV's business model does not necessitate investmentin
large capital projects that would require a longer-term
planning horizon.

The Strategic Report was approved by
the Board and signed on its behalf by

Adam Crozier
Chief Executive

When considering the longer term viability of ITV, the Board has
reviewed each of ITV’s Principal risks and uncertainties and, taking
into account current operational and financial performance, has in
particular analysed the impact of:

+ Broadcast & Online experiencing a significant and sharp
downturn, similar to the 2008/09 financial crisis, with regards to
advertising revenues, but in this case with no immediate recovery.
This scenaric is cautious as recessions in the advertising market
have historically not exceeded a two-year period and have
recovered following the downturn;

» Anumber of key programme brands within ITV Studios
are not recommissioned. While the scheduling decisions of
comrnissioners are made in advance, a number of key shows
could come to an end at the same time; and

- Asignificant change in ITV's pension funding obligations,
following the triennial valuation in 2017 resulting in doubling
the deficit funding payments.

The review involved flexing the underlying strategic forecast for the
above impacts, both individually and concurrently and no specific
mitigations were assurmed. The underlying strategic forecast
assumed: business as usual capital spending, the ongoing availability
of the financing facilities {as ITV remains within the covenants,
current bank facilities have more than three years maturity
remaining and all bond repayments due in this period have been
refinanced); and that the Group maintains the stated dividend policy.

Based on the results of this review, the Board has a reasonable
expectation that iTV will be able to continue in operation and

meet its liabilities as they fall due over the three-year period ending
31December 2019. The assessment has been made with reference
to ITV's strategy and the current position and prospects.
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Chairman’s Governance Statement

1 the Governance section

This section of the Annual Report contains a statement fromyour
Chairman and information about the Directors and Management
Board. It explains our governance structure and corporate
governance compliance and includes reports from the Audit and
Risk and Remuneration Committees and the Directors' Report.

Sir Peter Bazalgette
Chairman

. Dear shareholder,

Iwas delighted to be appointed your Chairman in May 2016 andlam
particutarly pleased that governance at ITV is strong as this is essential
to protect shareholders' interests and ensure that we can build and
sustain the long-term success of the Company.

The Board continues to work closely with the executive team

and offers support and robust challenge conductedin a spirit of
openness, trust and transparency. The Board is a relatively small but
has talented, high-performing and experienced members who are
close to the business.

Qver the past few years we have undertaken a continuous evaluation
process carefully considering the Board's composition so that there

is a balanced and diverse combination of creative, commercial and
financial tatent and experience enabling the Board to add the right
value as the business strategy is executed. Across TV, we work to
ensure that the diversity of modern society is reflected at all levels

of the business including on the Board so that we have an appropriate
balance of skills and experience. Further details about diversity are set
out on page 66 and page 99 and further information about the
evaluation process is set out on page 66.

lam very pleased that in January this year the Board was unanimous
in its decision to appoint Salman Amin as a Non-executive Director.
Salman has considerable expertise and knowledge in marketing,
advertising and media planning having worked for S C Jochnson,
PepsiCo and Procter & Gamble and as such will broaden the

Board's perspective of the wider international market. He is
currently undertaking a comprehensive induction programme.

It is our policy to appoint Non-executive Directors for a three-year
period and then consider reappointment on an annual basls following a
robust performance evaluation. At the AGM in May 2017 John Ormerod
will reach the ninth anniversary of his appointment. The Board has
deliberated carefully and has decided to ask John to continue as
Chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee for an additional year

to enable us to ensure an appropriate successor is in place whe has
sufficient time as a member of the Committee before he steps down.

66

We are proud of our culture
and that our colleagues enjoy
working at and are proud to
work for [TV and are fully
engaged with the business
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Andy Haste will be stepping down as Chairman and a member of the
Remuneration Committee following the AGM in May. He will rernain
a Non-executive Director and Senior Independent Director. We are
pleased that Mary Harris has agreed to become Chair of the
Remuneration Committee, having served on the Committee since
May 2016. As a consequence Mary will be looking to reduce some

of her existing commitments over the coming months.

We carefully review Directors’ other commitments to ensure

that they have sufficient time to dedicate to our business. Details

of appointrnent dates and length of tenure for each director can

be found on page 65. All Directors are required by the Company’s
Articles of Association to be elected by shareholders at the first AGM
following their appointment by the Board. Subsequently, all Directors
are subject to annual re-election by shareholders as recommended by
the UK Corporate Governance Code (the Code).

ITV is a diverse business and to ensure appropriate governance it is
impartant that we have the right culture with the right people and
attitudes that encourages integrity and transparency. ITV is a talent
business and ensuring that we employ great people and allow them
creative freedom in the context of tight financial discipline is crucial
to our success.

There are various ways that we as a Board consider and gauge the
culture of the business, We undertake a number of site visits and have
regular formal and inforrnal meetings and discussions with senior
executives and other colleagues across the business. Since becoming
Chairman | have visited the majority of the regional news rocoms, our
production centres in Salford and Leeds and our businesses in New
York and Paris. In addition, 1 hold regular round table discussions with
colleagues and engage regularly with Senior Executives, This continues
regularly as part of our annual board and committee programme. This
helps the Beoard understand the cultural strengths and any weaknesses
in the business that may need to be addressed with management.

The Audit and Risk Committee also keep compliance with internal
control processes under review to help assess behavioural culture
across the business.

We are proud of our culture and that our colleagues enjoy working

at and are proud to work for ITV and are fully engaged with the
business. This is borne out through rigorous, regular surveys designed
to gauge employee morale and attitudes. In addition, we have a robust
process that enables colleagues to speak up if they have any concerns.
We know that colleagues trust this process and are not concerned
about usingit.

The Board meets regularly for scheduled Board and Committee
meetings and has a number of informal meetings to consider specific
Issues, Each year we hold a two-day off-site strategy meeting where
we consider recent and upcoming changes in our business
environment, the risks and impacts of such changes on cur business
and how we might meet these challenges. A brief summary of the
matters considered by the Board during the year and our focus for
2017 is set out on page 65.

WIURLLIBADE |

Our shareholders are important to us and we rernait cormemitted to
maintaining regular open dialogue and effective communication with
you. We believe that continued engagement is highly beneficial to all
parties as it helps to build a greater understanding of our investors’
views, opinions and concerns.

As a listed company, I TV isrequired to report on how it has complied
with the principles of governance set out in the Code. The Board
considers that during 2016 the Company has complied fully with the
pravisions of the Code. Further information on corporate governance
and a schedule setting out how we comply with the Code can be found
oh our website.

@ www.itvplc.com/investors/governance

A copy of the Code is available on the FRC website.

@ www.frc.org.uk/Our-Work/Codes-Standards/Corporate-governance

Sir Pater Bazalgette
Chairman

1March 2017
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Board of Directors

Committee membership
(&) General purpose

{2) Audit and Risk

(W) Nomination

(® Remuneration

@ Fuil biographies can be found on our website:
www.itvplc.com/about/board-of-directors

®©E

' Sir Pater Bazalgetta, Chairman

Appointed: June 2013 (Chairman from May 2016)

Key areas of prior experience: Media consuttant, digital media investor and former television producer.
Current external appointments: Member of Advisory Board for YouGov pic and Bartle Bogle Hegarty.
Previous experience: President of the Royal Television Saciety; Chairrman of the Arts Council of England;
Non-executive Director of Nutopla; Non-executive Director and Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and member of the Audit Committee of YouGov plc; Non-executive Director of Mirriad Ltd, DCMS, Rightster,
Critical Information Group plc and Channel Four Television Corp; Trustee of DebateMate; Chairman of the
ENO and Endemol UK; Deputy Chairman and Director of the National Filrn and Television School; Adviser to
Sony Music's television division; Chairman of the UK production business of Sony Pictures Television Inc;

. Chief Creative Officer at Endemol Group BV and Endemol Entertainment UK Limited.

- Adam Crozier, Chief Executive

Appointed: Aprit 2010

Key areas of prior experience: Business turnaround and change management, advertising.
Current external appointments: Non-executive Director of Whitbread PLC from April 2017,
Previous experience: Non-executive Director of G4S plc, Debenhams plc and Camelot Group plg
Chief Executive of the Royal Mail Group; Chief Executive of the Football Association; Joint Chief
Executive of Saatchi & Saatchi Advertising.

" lan Gritfiths, Group Finance Director

Appointed: September 2008

Key areas of prior experience: Corporate finance and financial restructuring.

Current external appointments: Non-executive Director of DS Smith Plc.

Previous experience: Group Finance Director and other senior finance roles within Emap pic;
Manager in audit and corporate finance at Ernst & Young.

Salman Amin, Non-executive Director

Appointed: January 2017

Key areas of prior experience: General management, marketing, advertising and media planning.
Current extemnal appointments: Chief Operating Officer, Global Commercial Division,

S CJohnsonand Soninc.

Previous experience: Chief Operating Officer, North America, SC Johnson and Son Ing; various positions

at Pepsico including: Chief Operating Officer, Purchase; President, PepsiCo UK and Ireland; other marketing
and various positions within brand management, personal care, paper products and food in the US, Saudi
Arabia, Germany and Switzerland at Procter & Gamble,
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Roger Faxon, Non-executive Director

Appointed: October 2012

Key areas of prior experience: Broad commercial, digital and media rights expetience, development of
business strategy and finance.

Current external appointments: Chairman of Mirriad Advertising Ltd; Non-executive Director of Pandora
Media Inc; Director of The John Hopkins University.

Previous experience: Director of EMI Group Globat Limited and EMI Group plc; Chief Executive Officer of
EMI Group Limited; Chairman and CEO of EMI Music Publishing; Director of the Songwriters Hall of Fame;
other appointments at the American Society of Composers and Authors and Lancit Media Entertainment
Ltd in the US; Chairman of VIVA Television in Germany and Channel V Networks in Asia.

OO

Mary Harris, Non-executive Director

Appointed: July 2014

Key areas of prior experience: Business management consulting, sales and marketing, mergers and
acquisitions, media, television and interactive media investments and digital rights management.
Current external appointments: Non-executive Director of Reckitt Benckiser Group PLC; Non-executive
Director and Chairman of the Remuneration Committee for J.Sainsbury plc; Mernber of the supervisory
board of Unibail Rodamco SE.

Previous experience: Membaer of the supervisory board of TNT Express NV, TNT NV, Scotch and Soda NV
and Irdeto BV; Partner at McKinsey & Company, Amsterdam; various positions worldwide with McKinsey &
Company, Maxwell Entertainment Group, Pepsi Cola Beverages and Goldman Sachs & Co.

®O®

Andy Hastae, Senior Independent Director, Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

Appointed: August 2008

Key areas of prior experience: International and emerging markets, change management,
restructuring and business turnaround.

Current external appointments: Chairman of Wonga Group Limited; Senior Independent Deputy
Chairman of the Council of Lloyd's.

Previous experience: Group Chief Executive of RSA Insurance Group plc; Chief Executive of AXA Sun
Life pic; Director of AXA UK plc {(life and pensions); President and Chief Executive Officer of GE Capital
Global Consumer Finance UK, Western Europe and Eastern Europe; President of the US Consumer Credit
Business and Senior Vice President and Head of the US Consumer Loan Products Division of National
Westminster Bank.

®®

Anna Manz, Non-executive Director

Appointed: February 2016

Key areas of prior experience: Strategy and finance and financial planning.

Current external appointments: Group Finance Director at Johnson Matthey plc; Governor

at Haberdashers’ Aske's School Elstree,

Previous experience: Various appointments at Diageo plc including; Group Strategy Director, Regional
Finance Director Asia Pacific, Group Treasurer, Finance Director Globat Marketing, Sales and Innovation;
ather finance roles at Quest International, Unilever and {Cl.

OO®

John Ormerod, Non-executive Director, Chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee

Appointed: January 2008

Key areas of prior experience: Finance, developing strategy and growth.

Current external appointments: Non-executive Director of Constellium NV; Non-executive Director

and Chairman of the Audit Committee of Gemalto NV.

Previous experience: Non-executive Chairman of First Names Group Limited, Tribal Group ple, Merlin
Claims Service Holdings Limited; Senior independent Director of Misys plc; Trustee of The Design Museum
and The Roundhouse Trust; Non-executive Director and Chairman of Audit Committee of Computacenter
plc; Non-executive Director, Negative Equity Protection Holdings Limited, Millen Group Limited and BMS
Asscclated Limited; Member of Audit and Retail Risk Control Committees of HB0S plc; Chairman Wallbrook
Group; Chairman of the Audit Comrnittee for Transport for London; Practice Senior Partner at Deloitte &

. Touche; Regional Managing Partner at Arthur Anderser.

—
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Management Board

@ Full biographies can be found on our website:
www.itvplc.com/about/board-of-directors

Julian Ballamy, Managing Director, TV Studios

Appointment to the Board: February 2016

Previous experience: Julian joined ITV in 2014 as Managing Director of the Studios business in the UK

and was prormoted to Managing Director of [TV Studios in February 2016. Julian’s previous roles included
Creative Director and Head of Commissioning at Discovery Networks International, Head of Programming
at Channel 4 and prior to that be ran BBC3 and F4. He also spent time as Channel 4's Head of Factual
Entertainment and was a commissioning editor of Channel 4 News and Current Affairs.

Mary Fagan, Group Cormmunications and Corporate Affairs Director

Appointment to the Board: January 2011

Previous experience: Mary joined [TV from the Royal Mail Group, whete she was Corporate and
Government Affairs Director from December 2003, A senior city and business journalist with more than
20 years' experience, Mary's previous roles included Deputy City Editor of the Sunday Telegraph, Industrial
Correspondent for the independent and City Reporter at the Evening Standard.

Andrew Garard, Group Legal Director and Company Secratary

Appointment to the Board: Novernber 2007

Previous experience: Andrew joined ITV as Group Legal Director in 2007 and took on the additional role
of Company Secretary in 2009. He is also on the board of ITN, and responsible for rights management, the
ITV archive and Corporate Responsibility. Previously Andrew was a Partner in the corporate department of
LeBoeuf Lamb's London office. Prior to this, Andrew was Group General Counsel and Company Secretary at
Cable & Wireless plc where he was amember of the Group Executive responsible for Global Legal. Prior to
that he was Global Head of Legal and Deputy General Counsel of Reuters Group pic in the UK, and before
that, Generat Counsel Asia.

Kevin Lygo, Director of Television

Appointment to the Board: August 2010

Previous experience: Kevin joined ITV as Managing Director, ITV Studios in 2010 and became Director
of Television in February 2016. Kevin's previous roles included Director of Television and Content at
Channel 4, Director of Prograrmmes at Channel 5 and a number of positions at the BBC, including
Head of Independent Commissioning for Entertainment.
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David Osborm, Group HR Director
Appointment to the Board: October 2014
Previous experience: David joined ITV as the HR Director for ITV Studios in May 2011, and was appointed
to the Management Board in October 2014 as Group HR Director, responsible for delivering the Group's
People Strategy. David gained previous experience in both the UK and internationally whiist working in
avariety of businesses including EMI Music, Vodafone, Visa Europe and Marks & Spencer,

Simon Pitts, Managing Director, Online, Pay TV, interactive and Technology
Appointment to the Board: January 2011
Previous experience: Simon joined ITV in 2000 and has held a range of roles across corporate strategy,
general managemenit, digital media, policy and regulation, and public affairs. He took on his most recent
role in December 2014 with a remit to grow ITV's Online, Pay TV and Interactive businesses alongside
continued leadership of the Technolegy team. He also has responsibility for SDN, sits on the boards of ITN
and YouView and is a Trustee of the Royal Television Society. Before {TV Simon worked in the European
Parliament in Brussels where he specialised in media issues.

Kelly Williams Managing Director, Commercial

Appointment to the Board: December 2014

Previous experience: Kelly joined ITV in August 2011 as Group Commercial Directer and joined the
Management Board as Managing Director, Commercial in December 2014. He is also Chairman of Thinkbox,
sits on the BARB Strategy board and is Vice Chairman of the Advertising Association. Before joining ITV,
Kelly was the Sales Director at Channel 5 and prior to that held vatious positions at UKTV, Sky and

Thames Television.
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Corporate Governance

Our Governance structure

| Board

N £
N
Audit and Risk Committee Remuneration Committee Nomination Committee
See the Audit and Risk Committee report See the Remuneration Report on page 75. Chairman and Non-executive Directors
on page 68. Meets to review the structure, size, and
compositioh of the Board, including skills,
knowledge and experience. ldentifies and
nominates for Board approval candidates
to fill Board vacancies, and considers
succession planning for Directors and other
Senior Executives. Considers and reviews
any conflicts of interest that may be
reported by the Directors.
Disclosure Committas General Purpose Committee Tax and Treasury Committes
Executive Directors and other Executive Directors Group Finance Director and
senior managers Meets as required to conduct business within | other senior managers
‘ Meets to ensure compliance with the clearly defined limits set by the Board. Meets to consider and approve tax and
; continuing obligations under the Disciosure treasury related matters inrespect of
i and Transparency Rules. corporate transactions or other activities.
Monitors compliance with tax and treasury

related policies and procedures.

Matters reserved for the Board and Committee terms of reference are available on our website: www.itvplc.com/investors/governance

Management Board

and assesses and manages risk.

Meets to consider and approve strategy and operational plans, menitors operating and financial performance,

LNy
N,

| ITV Studios Board ITV Broadcast Board Operational Risk Business Resilience
‘ Executive Directors Executive Directors and Staering Group Response Team
| and Senior Executives Senior Executives of Manages and considers Acts as tacticalresponse
! of divisional business. divisional business. anumber of existing and teamin theeventofan
| emerging operational risks incident, supporting the
i Meets to consider and Meets to consider and and ensures that the business Management Boardin

approve operational matters,
and assesses and manages

approve operational matters,
and assesses and manages

addresses them appropriately
indudingin relation to:

dealing with a crisis. Develops
business area response plans,

Manages and considers issues
and risks in relation to the
programme compliance
frarnework, the interactive
business and regulation.

Manages the direction and
delivery of ITV's Responsibility
Strategy including in relation
to: diversity and inclusion,
environment, communities
and social causes. See page 19.

riskin relation to the risk in relation to the Health & Safety, Child testing programmes and
Studios business. Broadcast business, Protection, Business Resilience, incldent reporting.
Data Protection, Insider Dealing,
Whistleblowing, Anti-Bribery
& Corruption, Information
Security, Fraud, Technology
and Cyber risk.
AN N, 2L
N N
Programme Compliance Corporate Responsibility
Advisory Group Board
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Board and Committee meetings

The number of meetings held during the year and attendance of Directors is set out in the table below. The Board agrees an annual schedule of
matters it wishes to consider at each of its meetings and those of its committees. The schedule ensures that all relevant matters are considered
and receive appropriate attention. Meatings are normally held at one of the London sites or one of the regional or international offices. Board
meetings are structured around the following areas:

+ Operational and functional updates

= Financialupdates

- Strategy and progress against Strategic Priorities

« Riskmanagement framework, key risk areas and risk appetite
» Other reporting and items for approval

Senior Executives and ather colleagues are reqularly invited to attend meetings for specific itemns. in addition to formal Board and Committee
meetings, meetings take place between:

- Board members and Management Board members
« Chairman and Non-executive Directors
- Senior Independent Director and Non-executive Directors (without the Chairman present)

Our focus during 2016 and some of our plans for 2017 are set out below:

2016 2017

European Union Referendum issues International expansion of ITV Studios
Broadcast strategy and changes to commissioning International roll-out of SVOD strategy
Development of creative talent pipeline Impact of exiting the European Union
Review of the North American market London property strategy

Digital platform markets and strategy
Viewing trends, including younger viewers
International content strategy

Online, Pay and SVOD strategy

Board and Committee membership and attendance
Board and Committee membership and attendance at scheduled meetings in 2016 is set out below.

Nominatien Rernuneration Audit
Board Committee Committee  Committee
Date of Tenure at
appointment  31December Contract
Status Notes to the Board 2016 Y/M renewal date 10 1 ] 6
Independent
Sir Peter Bazalgette Chairman 1 1 June 2013 3/7 1 June 2019 10 1 6 -
Adam Crozier Executive 2 26 April 2010 6/8 n/a 10 - - -
Roger Faxon Independent 31 October 2012 4/2  310ctober 2017 10 1 - -
lan Griffiths Executive 2 9 Septermnber 2008 8/4 nfa 10 - - -
Mary Harris Independent 3 28 July 2014 2/5 28 July 2017 10 1 4 6
Independent
Andy Haste SID 11 August 2008 8/5  T1August 2017 10 1 6 6
Anna Manz Independent 5  1February 2016 011 1February 2019 9 1 - 5
Independent
Archie Norman Chairman 4 5 January 2010 nfa n/a 3 1 2 1
John Ormerod Independent 18 January 2008 8/11 18 January 2017 10 1 6 6

1. SirPeter Bazalgette was appointed as Chairman with effect from 12 May 2075

2. Executive Directors have rolling service contracts that provide for 12 months’ notice on either side.

3. Mary Harris was appointed to the Remuneration Committee with effect from 12 May 2016 and two of the scheduled meetin/s were held prior to her appointment

4 Archle Norman stepped down as Chairman and from the Board on 12 May 2016.

5. Anna Manz was appointed to the Board with effect from 1 February 2016 and ane of the scheduled Board meetings was held prior to her appointment She was also appointed to the
Audit Commit tee with effect from 1 May 2016 and one of the scheduled meetlngs was held prlor to her appointment.

6. During 2016 there was full attendance of Directors and Committee members at Board and Committee meetings
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Corporate Governance continued

Terms of engagement for the Non-executive
Directors are availabie on our website.

(@ www.itvplc.comfinvestors/governance

During the year the appointments of John
Ormerod, Andy Haste and Roger Faxon were
extended for a further 12 months.

During the year the Board used executive
search firm Zyqos to assist with the search
process for a Non-executive Director with
experience in the advertising industry and
with an understanding of the future dynamics
in the advertising sales and broader digital
arenas. Following a rigorous search process
Salman Arnin was appointed as a Non-
executive Director with effect from

9 January 2017

Board effectiveness

Experience and independence
Biographical details for the Directors are set
out on pages 60 and 61 with more detailed
biographies available on our website.

@ www.itvpic.com/about/board-of-directors

The Board is of the view that the Non-
executive Directors are independent inboth
character and judgement. They constructively
challenge and help develop proposals on
strategy, scrutinise the performance of
management in meeting agreed goals

and objectives, and monitor the reporting

of performance.

The Board works well together,

bringing strong, independent, balanced
judgement, knowledge and experience toits
deliberations. Each Non-executive Director
has appropriate skills and experience so that
their views carry significant weight in the
decision making.

There are job descriptions in place for each

of the Chairman, the Chief Executive, and the
Senior Independent Director which have been
agreed by the Board. These are available on
our website.

@ www.itvplc.com/investors/governance

Evaluation

Internal

The work of the Board Committeesis
reviewed annually with the support of Group
Secretariat. The evaluation takes the form of
interviews with Board and Committee
members eliciting feedback on a wide range
of topics. In addition input is sought from the

Executive Directors, other relevant senior
executives and external advisers.

Output is reported to the relevant Chairman
and a report of actions is submitted to the
Cornrnittees and actioned as appropriate.

External

During 20116 the Board continued its
ongoing effectiveness review facilitated

by the external firm YSC. The review was
aimed at evaluating progress and identifying
how the Board can best add value as our
strategy develops. The evaluation comprised
the following:

« Individual interviews

« Observation of Board sessions

« Discussions with Senior Executives

+ Interview with the Company Secretary
- Access to key Board papers

In interviews the Board members were

asked to give their views on the challenges
facing ITV and what this means for the Board.
They were also asked to comment an the
strengths and weaknesses of the Boardin
relation to these needs. Board members
who had participated in the earlier review
were also asked to reflect upon any changes
since then.

A report detailing analysis and
recommendations was compiled which
was discussed with the Board as a whole
and feedback was provided to individual
Board members together with additional
development sessions.

It was noted that despite [TV's recent
success there was a need to ensure that the
factors underpinning this success continued
to work productively. The Board needs ta be
sensitive ta creating conditions for keeping
and attracting talented senior executives to
ensure stability and continuity. In view of the
dynamic nature of the external enviranrnent
and the impact of technological change on
the industry the Board needs to maintain
perspective on opportunities and challenges
whilst developing a clear view of its risk
appetite and the extent to which successin
the next phase will require the exploration
of new paths and a greater appetite for risk.

QOverall the Board was perceived to be
extremely strong and composed of seasoned
and experienced individuals who operatein a
professional and disciplined manner. The
culture of the Board was felt to be open and
positive but also challenging. Board members

feel they have a great connection with the
business and are used effectively outside
of Board meetings.

The Board is perceived tc handle regulation
and governance in an effective and efficient
manner as well as creating time for the
discussion of broader strategic and

cultural matters.

Board tenure
The current board tenure is shown in the
diagram below.

Succession planning and diversity
Succession planning

The Board has agreed a succession planning
framework which it regularly reviews to
ensure that:

- Board tenure is appropriate and
encourages fresh thinking and new ideas

= The Board is sufficiently diverse but most
importantly has the appropriate mix of
generalist and specialist skills

- Non-executive Directors have the
appropriate level of independence, from
the executive and each other

This year both John Ormerod and Andy Haste
will have served more than six years on the
Board. The Board continues to believe that
they bring a wealth of knowledge and
experience to their deliberations and provide
a valuable contribution within their roles. At
the AGM in May 2017 John Ormerad will reach
the ninth anniversary of his appointment.
The Board has deliberated carefully and has
decided to ask him to continue as Chairman
of the Audit and Risk Committee for an
additional year to enable us to ensure an
appropriate successor isin place and has
sufficient time as a member of the
Committee before he steps down.

Diversity

It is our policy to retain a strong but relatively
small board bringing a balance of in-depth
commerdial and creative experience.

The Company has an Equal Opportunities
policy which is followed throughout the
organisation - further information is set out
on page 99. It continues to be the Board's
intention to increase the diverse make-up
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and representation of its members as
opportunities arise, but given the size of
the Board specific forrulaic targets are
not appropriate.

induction, training and development

The Company has a policy and programme
for induction and continuing professional
development of Directors. On appointment,
each Director takes part in a comprehensive
induction programme.

During their period in office, the Directors
are continually updated on the Group's
businesses and the competitive and
regulatory environments in which they
operate. This is done through:

+ Updates and papers which cover changes
affecting the Group and the marketin
which it operates meetings with senior
executives across the Group and
key advisors

« Regular updates on changes to the legal
anhd governance requirements of the
Group and in relation to their cwn
position as Directors

- Presentations given at Board and
Committee meetings on business
matters and technicat update
sessions from external advisors
where appropriate

Key stages of the induction programme are:

Stage1

Provision of documents

Duties of a Director, Board procedures,
Board and strategy papers and corporate
governance.

Stage 2

Meetings with Chief Executive and
Group Finance Director

Business overview, strategy, current
trading and key commercial issues

Stage3

Visits to UK and intemational tocations
and meetings with colleagues at all
tevels of the business as appropriate.

During 2016 the Directors visited a number
of different sites. Sir Peter Bazalgette and
Roger Faxon visited the ITV Studios office
in the US, and Sir Peter Bazalgette visited a
number of news rooms across the UK and
the ITV Studios office in Paris.

As part of the YSC board effectiveness
process individual development is considered
and plans put in place, Executive Directors
rmay accept external appointments as Non-
executive Directors of other companies and
retain any related fees paid to them. Details
of positions held and fees received by
Executive Directors in 2016 can be found

on page 87.

Relations with shareholders

The Board attaches a high priority to effective
communication with shareholders and has
regular and open dialogue with investors. The
Board believes that continued engagement
with shareholders is beneficial to bothITV
and its stakeholders as it helps to build a
greater understanding of investors’ views,
opinions and concerns. Adam Crozier, lan
Griffiths and the Director of Investor
Relations meet with many institutional
investors throughout the year to keep them
updated on the Company’s perfarmance
against our strategy. These range from
one-to-one meetings to group presentations
Including the Full Year and Interim results

and the AGM. Specifically, following the Full
Year and Interim results one-to-one meetings
are held with our largest institutional
investors. The Board is kept up to date with
regular feedback as part of the wider
reporting programme.

The Chairman and Senior Independent
Director also respond to shareholder queries
and hold meetings where appropriate.

The Company maintains a programme

of engagement with the investment
community, including results presentations,
briefings to brokers and other sales forces
and attendance at a number of investor
conferences. Presentations given to the
investment community are available to
download from our website.

(E) www.itvplc.com/investors

We regularly seek feedback on the perception
of the Company amongst shareholders and
the investor community more broadly via
our corporate brokers. Investor comments
are fed back to the Board and its committees
requtarly and the Investor Relations team
provides the Board with monthly updates
whichinclude details on stock market
movements, shareholder register, analyst
forecasts and selected news on the

media sector.

Private shareholders represent more than
93% of our shareholders holding 3% of our
shares, We encourage shareholders to
register their email addresses to receive
information from us in a timely manner.

The AGM will be held on Wednesday,
10 May 2017 (further details can be found
onpage 189).

At the AGM shareholders are invited to meet
the Directars prior to and after the formal
proceedings. At the meeting the Chairmnan
and Chief Executive will review the Group’s
current trading which is followed by a question
and answer session. Separate resolutions are
preposed on each substantially separate issue
and all resolutions are taken ona poll. Voting
can be done online or using & form of proxy.
The level of votes lodged on each resolution is
made avaiiable on a Regulatory Information
Service and on the Company's website as soon
as possible after the meeting.In 2016 the
meeting was attended by 125 shareholders.
Detaits of voting at the 2016 meeting

is available on our website.

@ www.itvplc.com/investors/shareholder-
information/agm
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Audit and Risk Committee Report

In the Audit and Risk Committes section
The purpose of this report is to highlight
areas that the Committee has reviewed
during the year, We report to shareholders
on the significant financial reporting issues
and judgements made in connection with
the preparation of the Company’s financial
statements. Also highlighted is how the
Committee has assisted the Board in
reviewing the Company's internal controt
and risk environment. We explain what
the Committee has done to review

the effectiveness of our internal and
external auditors.

John Ormerod
Chairman,
Audit and Risk Committee

' Dear shareholder,

On the following pages we set out the Audit
and Risk Committee's repart for 2016 which
provides an overview of the areas considered
by the Committee during the year.

During the year the Board reviewed and
refreshed its thinking on the Company's
approach to risk management. The Board
decided that it would be useful for the
Committee to provide greater input on the
risk management process. As a result, the
Board has expanded the remit of the
Committee to include risk and changedits
terms of reference accordingly.

The Committee received detailed updates
from a number of executives who own key
business risks which enabled us to understand
how risks which cauld imipact our strategic
abjectives are being managed and mitigated
within the business.

In line with our Auditor Independence policy
we have changed our external audit partner.
Whilst there is no reguirement to do sowe
have as amatter of good governance also
had a change in lead partner for our
outsourced internal audit function.

Looking ahead, with a change in audit
partners, we have an opportunity to review
our overall assurance and risk management
processes. In addition, as our strategy evolves
and the business diversifies we will continue
to develop our approach to new revenue
streams and our international operations.

During the year the FRC's Audit Quality
Review team reviewed our external auditor’s
(KPMG) audit of our 2015 financial
statements. We have discussed the report
with KPMG and the Audit Quality Review
team. The review identified three areas for
improvement in the audit which KPMG will
make in future years. Overall we found the
results of the review reassuring with no issues
identified which we considered cast doubt on
the fundamental quality of our audit or which
raised issues about our financial reporting.

We were detighted that Anna Manz joined
the Committee on 1 May 2016. Anna takes
our membership to four independent
Non-executive Directors. She brings broad
financial and commercial experience from
her executive roles. The skills and experience
of the memnbers of the Comimittee remain
strong and we have had a productive and
effective year.

Further information on corporate governance
and a schedule setting out how we comply
with the Code can be found on our website
www.itvplc.com. We seek to respond to
shareholders' expectation of audit committee
reporting and welcome feedback from them.

John Ormerod
Chairman, Audit and Risk Committee

1March 2017

ITV continues to develop its control
environment in response to the
increasingly international nature

of its business
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Who is on the Committee

The Committee is composed entirely
of Non-executive Directors.

The current members are:

+ John Ormerod (Chairman)

= MaryHarris

- Andy Haste

« Anna Manz (appointed 1 May 2076)

wThe Committee members have between them a wide range of
business and financiat experience. The Committee considers that
John Ormerod and Anna Manz have recent and relevant financial
experience for the purposes of the Code. Anna Manz is Group
Finance Director of Johnson Matthey and brings executive finance
skills to the Committee deliberations.

the table on page 65.

Full detalls of attendance at Committee meetings can be found on

Ourrole

The main role of the Committeeis to:

« monitor the integrity of published
financial information and review
significant financial reporting issues
and judgements;

- provide advice to the Board on whether
the Annual Report and Accounts are fair,
batanced and understandable and the
appropriateness of the going concern
statement and the longer term viability
statement;

= assist the Board to establish and articulate
overalt risk appetite and oversee and

« review the risk identification and assessment

advise the Board on strateqic risk exposures
and mitigations;

processes and undertake deep dives of high
risk business areas or processes;

review the effectiveness of the internal
control and risk management processes;

monitor and review the effectiveness and
independence of the internal audit function;

provide advice to the Remuneration
Committee on financial reporting matters
and related judgements and risk
management as they affect executive

remuneration performance objectives;
and

» review the quality and effectiveness of
the external audit and the procedures
and controls designed to ensure auditor
independence.

Foliowing each meeting the Committee
communicates its main discussion points
and findings to the Board.

-
Meetings
Y i
February } May } July } September } Novembar
» Year-end financial - Half-year finandial - Half-year report » Emerging and business « Year-end planning
reporting issues reporting issues « KPMG review specific risk reviews « Distributable reserves
and judgements and judgements conclusions planning
« Fair, balanced and « External Audit strategy and findings « KPMG interim controls
understandable reviews || . Internal Audit review findings
« Viability Statement independence « Review effectiveness
verification and evaluation of internal audit and
« KPMG audit following years plan
conclusions and findings
+ Audit opinion

In addition to Committee members the Chief Executive, Group Finance Director, Group Financial Controller, Group Legal Director, Head of
Internal Audit, Director of Treasury, Director of Tax and the external audit partner regularly attend meetings. The Committee members meet

regularly with the external auditor and internal audit without executives present.

Annual review

Y

An annual review of the performance of the Committee
was conducted for the year. In addition to feedback from
members of the Committee, input was sought from the
Chief Executive, Group Finance Director, Group Financial
Controller, external auditors, Internal Audit and

the Chalrman of the Board.

Overall, the review concluded that the Commiltteeis
responding appropriately to Its terms of reference and

N

our website.

will continue to develop Its role. Priorities for this year
willinclude appointing a successor te John Ormerod,
developing our risk management processes and
streamtining some of our administration procedures to
free up time to cover awlider agenda.

The Committee’s terms of reference can be accessed on

(@) www.itvplc.com/investors/governance
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Audit and Risk Committee Report continued

Our focus in 2016

In planning its own agenda, and reviewing the audit plans of the internal and external auditor, the Committee takes account of significant issues
andisks, both operational and financial, likely to impact on the Company's financial statements. The Comimittee also addresses specific queties
referred to it by the Board or Remuneration Committee.

During 2016 there were no topics where there was significant disagreement between management, our external auditor and the Committee,
or unresolved issues that needed to be referred to the Board. Set out in the tables below is information on the key matters considered during

the year.

Regular reviews and recurring transactions
The following table summarises the regular reviews and activities undertaken by the Committee. Some of these areas may require the

application of judgement by management or have underlying complexity.

« Post acquisition reviews

(Talpa MediaB.v)
Whistlebtowing process

« Material litigation

Insurance programme

« Fraud controls

Anti-bribery controls
Treasury policy and reports

Tax and Treasury, and Disclosure
Committee review

« Cyber security {page 52)

- Technology modernisation (page 56)

- Health and Safety risk management
{page 53)

Further information on our risk
management framework can be
found on pages 50 to 57.

Financial « Financial results announcements - Auditor engagement and fees External
disclosure » Annual Report and Accounts « Auditor independence and objectivity audit
and + Accounting judgements and estimates - Auditor Independence policy
judgemeﬂts . Deve[opments in financial reporting (includlng non audit fees)

« Fair, balanced and understandable - Auditplans

+ Viability Statement (page 57) » Auditor performance and effectiveness

+ Significant failings and weaknesses + Keyareas of judgemnent

» Going concern

- Goodwillimpairment

(note 3.3, page 140)

+ Tax(note 2.3, page 126)

« Deal debt (see below)

+ Pension accounting (note 3.7 page 148)

« Deficit financing (see below)

+ Revenue recognition (IFRS15)

+ Approptiateness of Alternative

Performance Measures (page 34)
Internal + Internat Auditindependence and + Principal risks and uncertainties Risk
control effectiveness andrisk mitigations
+ Internal Audit plan 2017 « Effectiveness of the
« Effectiveness of internal controls risk management process
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Most of the topics mentioned above are relevant to all businesses. However, matters spedific to ITV include:

« Deal debt: this is where management reviews the over and under delivery of advertising value to agencies. The Committee reviews
management’s approach and methad of determining the provisions required for under delivery.

- Deficlt financing: as part of our strategy to expand our content portfolio, significant investment in high end drama is made.
The Committee reviews the accounting implications, including revenue recognition and recoverability of the amounts invested.

inboth cases the Committee agreed with management’s approach and their conclusions.

Complex discrete transactions
The Group completed certain transactions during the period that were in line with strategy but could have been considered cutside the

normal course of business. The Committee carefully reviewed these transactions to ensure that the judgements applied by management
were reasonable and any complex accounting guidance followed correctly.

Talpa signed a four year deal to
license ‘The Voice of China'in
January 2076,

Whilst ITV has done siritar
multi-year deals for Intellectual
Property (IP) and content, this
was by far the most material,
and therefore the accounting
treatment was examined

in detail.

See also note 2.1, page 120.

had been met.
The following points were noted:

- The format |P was delivered, and
is fully available for exploitation,
and

+ Nomaterial performance
obligations are expected of
Talpain future years.

As aresult of the above key points,
together with the fulfilment of all
other revenue recognition criteria,
management considered it most
appropriate for the format revenue
for all four years (the life of the
contract) to be recognised in full

in 2016.

Area of focus Financial reporting and judgement Action taken by Committes Outcome
Revenue Talpa: contract for The Committee assessed whether  The Committee considered
recognition “The Voice of China. the revenue recognition criteria management’s report on the

accounting and agreed with the
assessment that revenue was
recognised appropriately, in
accordance with IFRS and ITV
accounting policies.

KPMG also presented their view
on the matter to the Committee,
noting censistent conclusions on
the approptiate revenue
recognition for this contract.
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Audit and Risk Committee Report continued

Other matters

In addition to financiat reporting matters the following topics were reviewed:

Area of focus Issue Action taken by Committee Cutcome

Cyber security Cyber security is anincreasing risk The Committee undertook a Completed and planned mitigations
as our business develops new review of the cyber security risks wera reviewed and assessed. The
revenue streams and direct to and strategy and changes to Committee was content with progress
consumer propositions. reflect the ever changing and will continue to monitor and review

cyber threat. this area.

Technology Legacy business systems are being  The Committee reviewed the Compteted and planned mitigations

modernisation modernised toreduce anumberof  programme of work to modernise were reviewed and assessed. The
key business risks. legacy business systems. Committee was content with progress

and will continue to monitor and review
this area.

Health and Following an internal audit of site The Committee has kept the In areas which face day-to-day

safety specific health and safety mitigation actions under reqular operational risk we are continuing
management a number of review andis satisfied with the to develop our three lines of defence
mitigating actions were progress to date. model and to move our approach to
recommended and considered. risk away from a rules and process

In addition a general group wide driven system to a cultural people
health and safety risk assessment  driven solution which encourages
wasrequestedandwas considered  and focuses on preventionrather
in January 2017, thanreaction to failure.
The Committee will continue to
monitor and review this area.

Tax Strategy In accordance with Finance Act The Committee has reviewed ITV's Tax Strategy was approved by
2016 the Company is required to the strategy produced by the board on 26 January 2017 and is
publish its Tax Strategy. management and recommended available to view on cur website at

it for adoption to the Board. wwwi.itvplc.com.

Bond Issue The Company proposed issuinga The Committee reviewed the The bond was successfully issued in
€500 million Eurobond for general  bond issue documentsand related  December 2016 and was hedgedin
corporate purposes and financing disclosures. In addition they accordance with agreed policies.
activities such asrepaymentofthe  discussed the related treasury
£161 million bond issue in January policy decisions such as foreign
2017,and earn out payments due exchange hedging.
on acquisitions, primarily Talpa.

Gurney Productions LLC, a subsidiary of the Group: Before the Group initiated legal proceedings against the sellers, who held a 38.5%
membership interest in Gurney Productions LLC, the Board considered advice received from US Counset and the evidence supporting the
alleged breaches of contract and their fiduciary duties, as well as self-dealing and fraudulent concealment, and agreed with the conclusions
drawn and proposed actions suggested by management. In 2017 the Committee plans to consider whether any improvementsin procedures
and controls might have identified and mitigated the issues sconer and how any lessons learned can be applied to other acquired companies.
Further information is in Note 5.3, page 172),

Risk managemant and lnternal Controls

Risk management

The Committee continued to consider the process for managing risk within the business and assisted the Board in relation to compliance with
the Code and development of the risk appetite framework. During the year the Committee terms of reference were extended so that the
Committee could provide greater input on the Company’s approach to risk managernent. Further information on our risk management
process and details of our Principal risks and uncertainties is included in the Strategic Report on pages 50 to 56.

Internal controls

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s systems of internal control and for regularly reviewing the effectiveness of those systems.
The Committee assists the Board in reviewing the systems of internal control. The primary responsibility for the operation of these systemsis
delegated to management. Such systems can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. Key
control procedures are designed to manage rather than eliminate risk.

72



ITV plc Annual Report and Accounts 2016

As part of our internal control process the strategy is reviewed and approved by the Board. The Group performs a comprehensive annual
strategy review and a rolling five-year financial planning exercise. The five-year plan feeds into the annual budget cycle. The Executive Directors
review formal forecasts, detailed budgets, strategies and action plans and the Board approves the overall Group budget as part of its normal
responsibilities. The resuits of operating units are reported monthly, along with an update of the Group's performance against strateqic KPis
and cash. Actual results are compared to budget and forecasts, and key trends and variances are explained and analysed.

Assurance

The Committee satisfies itself that internal controls are operating throughout the year principally based on a programme of internal audit
reviews, reviews of the effectiveness of internal controls including fraud and anti-bribery and through a suite of automated analytics which
monitor financial transactions in our systems. In addition to the internal audit programme, there are a number of exception reports that cover
transaction processing. For those subsidiaries not covered by exception reporting software, a monthly self assessment takes place which is
subject to independent internal review.

Our Auditors
Internal auditor

The Group’s internal audit activity is outsourced to Deloitte who report directly to the Committee. The Committee continues to believe that
outsourcing offers access to the wide range of skills and resources in the various geographies required and endorses its continuing use. The
Committee keeps under review the internal audit relationship with Deloitte and the procedures to ensure appropriate independence of the
internal audit function is maintained. During the year there was a change to the lead partner to bring a fresh perspective and approach and
continue to bring robust challenge. The effectiveness of internat audit is assessed over the year using a number of measures that include (but

are not limited to}:

« an evaluation of each audit assignment completed using feedback from the part of the business that has been audited; and
« ahigh level annual review that is completed by obtaining feedback from senior management in each division.

At the start of the year the Committee considered and approved the internal audit plan, that included audits across the Group as well as
assurance over live projects. During the year the Committee reviewed findings from these internal audit reports, the actions taken to
implement the recommendations made in the reports and the status of progress against previously agreed actions. All internal audit reports

are available to the Committee.

External auditor

The Group's external auditor is KPMG. The table below summarises the process followed to manage the relaticnship and audit process.

Engagement

# Audit tendering and rotation

| Independence, objectivity
and fees

Reappointment

The Committee considers
carefully the scope of planned
woerk and the assessment of risk
and materiality onwhichitis
based. In particular, through
the Committee Chairman, the
Committee participatesin

the negotiation of the audit fee
toensure that thereis an
appropriate balance between
the scope of work and the cost
of assurance. The Committee's
aim is to support a robust and
effective audit and strong
reporting lines to the
Committee.

The Committee agrees the
terms of engagement, audit and
non audit fees and reviews
progress and results throughout
the year.

We undertook a competitive
tender in 2012 and applying

the BIS guidance on the EU Audit
rules the next mandatory
tender would be for the 2023
financial year.

The Committee continues to
monitor audit quality to ensure
a robust and effective audit.

During 2016 there was arotation
of audit partner. Following a
robust selection process by
managerment and the
Committee, our new partner is
Paut Sawdon.

We comply with the provisions
of the Statutory Audit Services
for Large Companies Market
Invastigation (Mandatory Use

of Competitive Tender and Audit
Processes and Audit Comrmittee
Responsibilities) Order 2014.

The Committee seeks to ensure
the objectivity and independence
of our auditor through:

+ focus on the assignment and
rotation of key personnel;

- the adequacy of audit
resource; and

» policiesin relation to non
audit work.

During the year we updated our
Auditor Independence policy to
comply with EU legislation. A
copy of the policy is available on
our website at wwwitvplc.com.

Fees paid to KPMG for 2016 are
set outin Note 2-1on page 124,
Non-audit fees amounted to
34% of the audit fee, Significant
advice related to employment
taxin the UK.

During the year the Committee
considered the performance
and audit fees of our auditor,
and the level of non-audit work
undertaken, and recommended
to the Board that a resolution
for the reappointment of KPMG
for a further year as the
Company's auditor be proposed
to shareholders at the AGM

in May 2016. The resotution
was passed and KPMG was
reappointed.

The Cammittee has
recommended the
reappointment of KPMG at
the AGM on 10 May 2017
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Audit and Risk Committee Report continued

External Audit effectiveness and quality
The Committee follows the review programme below to satisfy itself of external audit effectiveness and quality.

February # May # July F November
« Audit scope and materiality + Audit Plan and Strategy - Feesand Independence » Auditor Independence policy
- independence and objectivity {| - Engagement « Audit Quality Review focus (reviewed every two years)
. Confirmation of work areas « Audit fees — final
performed and other
significant risks
- Re-appointment

Audit quality is reviewed throughout the year and in 2016 the Committee used the Financial Reporting Council's (FRC} Audit Quality Practice Aid
help structure its review of audit quality. When making its assessment of audit quality, the factors the Committee focused on included:

External audit quality reports The audit strategy for the year addressed thematic concerns that the FRC had highlighted.

Auditor interaction with Reviewing the auditor’s understanding of business progress against the strategy and emerging industry
management themes, as well as the auditor's discussion with management on key corporate transactions.

Auditors own view of Enquired with regards to:

effectiveness

+ their audit methodology and its effective application to [TV,

- their robustness of challenges and findings on areas which require management judgement;

« whether there had been an internal peer review of the ITV audit and what the findings were; and
- the experience of the senior members of the audit team.

Further in its assessment of audit quality the Committee took into account:

« the detailed audit strategy for the year, including the coverage of emerging risks;

=« Group materiality and component materiality;

+ how the auditor communicated any key accounting judgements and conclusions: and
+ feedback from management of the performance of the auditor.

There were no significant findings from the evaluation this year and the Committee considers the external audit to have been robust
and effective.

The Committee also considered the FRC Audit Quality Review feedback from their review of our 2015 audit and agreed with KPMG the
changes in audit procedures they will make and how we will support their implementation.
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Remuneration Report

In this report

The purpose of this report is to set out for shareholders the
proposed revised policy relating to directors’ pay required to be
submitted to shareholders for approval at least every three years
and to update you on how we have applied the current policy for
the financial year ended 31 December 2016. The report also aims
to demonstrate how our Remuneration Policy is aligned to our
strategy, supports the retention of the Executive Directors and
rewards them for strong performance.
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ITV continues

to make significant
progress in growing,
strengthening and
rebalancing the business
away fromits reliance on
television advertising

Andy Haste
Chairman,
Remuneration Committee

. Dear shareholder,

On the following pages we set out:

« the Annual Report on Remuneration (pages 75 to 88) which includes
this letter and will be subject to an advisory vote at our Annual
General Meeting (AGM) on 10 May 2017, and

- our revised Remuneration Policy (pages 89 to 97) which we will
be asking our shareholders to formally approve at the AGM.

2016 performance

As discussed in the Strategic Report, [TV continues to make significant
progress in growing, strengthening and rebalancing the business away
fromiits reliance on television advertising. We continue to believe that
this is the right strategy for the business. Adjusted EPS has grown by
844% since 2009 and although 2016 has seen a softening in the
advertising market as a result of the economic uncertainty we have
delivered revenue growth of 3% and adjusted EBITA of £885m (2015:
£865m). In addition, 53% of our total revenue now comes from sources
other than traditional spot advertising.

While uncertain externat economic factors will clearly have animpact
on our business, we remain focused on our original vision and are
confident that our strategy, focused on three key Strategic Priorities,
remains appropriate for the long-term.

Performance measures for our Annual Bonus Awards and Long-Term
Incentive Plan (LTIP) are closely aligned to our KPIs (set out on pages
36 to 39) and Alternative Performance Measures (APMs). Our KPls
have been defined to align our performance and accountability to cur
strategy. The KPls are the key measures of our success and cover all of
our Strategic Priorities. Details of our APMs and the reconciliation
between statutory and adjusted results is set out on pages 34 to 35,

Perforrnance against KPIs which are atigned to our Bonus and LTIP s
set out below:

2016 2015
Adjusted EBITA .~ £885m £865m
Profittocashconversion 7% 9%
AdjustedEPS o 170p 165p
Family SOV 21.4% 21.2%
Totalnon-NAR growth 11% 25%

In addition, over the past few years we have included a cost-saving
target in our Annuat Bonus Awards to ensure that management
focuses on streamlining the business.

2016 remuneration outcomes

While the Company has continued to perform welt, particularly
in a challenging external environment, we did not achieve the
ambitious profit target set internally at the start of the year.
However, the targets for cost savings and profit to cash
conversion were achieved in full
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Remuneration Report continued

As reported last year the weighting of the personal performance
target was reduced from 40% to 25% of the bonus opportunity.
When considering the bonus payout levels for the Executive Directors
the Cormnmittee took account of the excellent delivery against targets
which included the cost saving target that was fully achieved, the
increase in Family SOV demonstrating the underlying health of the
brand and the strength of the main channel and strong growthin
non-NAR.

As aresult, the Committee agreed the total bonus payout level

for both Executive Directors at 40%, 15% on financial and 25%

onh personal performance oppartunity which paid out in full. This
reflected the excellent delivery against the individual targets which
were set to batance the financial targets. The Committee was
conscious that this cut-turn was higher than the out-turn for the
financial element, but felt it was appropriate given the overal results
and goed performance in delivering cost savings, managing cash,
viewing performance and rebalancing the business. The Committee
concluded that the cut-turn produced a result which was, overall, fair
and did not apply any discretion to adjust it. Further information and
details of the bonus targets for 2016 are set out on page 81.

During the year, awards made under the LTIP in 2014 reached the end
of their performance period and will vest at 80% with the Family SOV
element not vesting despite the improvementin 2016. in line with our
phased approach to the introduction of holding periods 50% of the
vested amount becomes exercisable in May 2017 and the remainder
in May 2018, Details are set aut on page 82.

The Comwmnittee considers the total pay of the Executive Directors to
be a fair reflection of their overall contribution to the success of the
business, The Committee has not exercised any discretion during the
year or felt it appropriate to ¢all on malus and claw-back provisicns.

Remuneration Policy review

During 2016, we undertook a review of the Remuneration Policy for
the Executive Directors in preparation for the AGM in 2017 when the
existing policy will reach its third anniversary and require resubmission
to shareholders.

Objective of the review

The principal objective of the review was to ensure that the
remuneration framework remains aligned with the strategy of
the business and continues to incentivise the Executive Directors
t0 deliver exceptional performance for shareholders.

We believe that our existing remuneration framework remains fit for
purpose, is aligned with the strategy of the business and s linked to our
key KPIs. The Committee therefore does not consider it appropriate to
make significant changes to our policy at this stage as we are satisfied
that our remuneration framework promotes long-term alignment with
shareholders and does not encourage undue risk taking. We will keep
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under review emerging best practice in the light of the Executive
Rermuneration Working Group final report (which proposed replacing
traditional LTIPs with non-performance restricted stock awards) but
do not, currently, consider this appropriate.

Summary of key changes
The proposed adjustments to the remuneration framework for
Executive Directors include the following:

+ Base salary and benefits cap - we are introducing a formal cap
on base salary and on the overall cost of benefits. These do not in
any way form an aspiration and we do not envisage any change
in practice as a consequence; they simply reflect the latest
regulatory guidance.

- Performance measures — we will continue to ensure that
performance measures are closely aligned with our strateqy.
The measures continue to be appropriate but the nature of our
business continues to change which may require us to consider
the measuresin future. To ensure we can retain the link to our
strategy as it evolves we have inciuded more flexibility to change
performance measures for new awards. This Is in line with existing
market practice.

Remuneration pollcy implementation in 2017

Details of how the Committee proposes to implement the policy,
if approved, in 2017 are set out on page 94. Bonus targets and
performance conditions for LTIP awards to be made in 2017 have
been set inline with the proposed Remuneration Policy and have
been aligned closely with our strategy.

The Executive Directors did not receive an increase to base salary
from 1 January 2017. This is in line with the approach taken for the
wider employee population.

Principles considered when setting remuneration

The media market in which ITV operates is particularly competitive.
We aim to balance the need to attract and retain high-quality talent
essential to the Company’s success with the need to be cost-effective
and to reward exceptional performance. The Rernuneration Policy
balances these factars, while taking into account the prevailing best
practice and a fair outcome for investors.

A significant propertion of the remuneration package is tied

to the achievement of stretching performance conditions, that
align remuneration with our strategy to dellver strong business
performance and create shareholder value. Individuats should
be rewarded for success and performance measured over clear
timescales. The remuneration package is focused on rewarding
sustained long-term performance and aligning executives with
the shareholder experience.
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When considering the out-turn for annual bonus awards

the Committee ensures that bonuses do not lead to adverse
environmental, social or governance issues or encourage bad
behaviour. ITV takes these issues seriously and further information can
be found on our Responsibility website at www.itvresponsibility.com
and inthe Strategic and Governance reports.

Shareholder views

Details of voting on remuneration resolutions at the AGM in May 2016
are set out on page 84 for which we were pleased to receive strong
investor support. We will make availabte the results of the voting at
the AGM to be held in May 2017 shortly after the meeting.

We seek to respond to shareholders’ expectations of remuneration
reporting and would welcome feedback. Where we are proposing
to make any significant changes to the ongoing operation of the
Remuneration Policy we shall seek shareholders’ views and take
these into account.

After just over six years as Chairman of the Committee | will
be stepping down following the AGM in May 2017 and lam
very pleased that Mary Harris will succeed rme as Chair. | will
remain as a Non-executive Director and Senior Independent
Director for the time being.

AndyHaste
Chairrmnan, Rermuneration Committee

1March 2017

SINHLIACS I

Throughout this report we make reference to Strategic Priorities.
For reference these are as detailed in the tables below.

For awards made in 2016 and 2017
Target

Maximise audience and revenue from free-to-air
and VOD business

Grow an international content business

Build a global pay and distribution business

Further information on each of the above is set cut in the
Strategic Report on pages 21to 33.

For awards made up to and including 2014

Target
() Create alean, creatively dynarmic and fit-for-purpose
organisation

(@  Maximise audience and revenue share from our existing
free-to-air Broadcast business

@  Drive new revenue streams by exploiting our content
across multiple platforms, free and pay

@  Build a strong international content business

Further information on each of the above is set outin the 2016
Strategic Report available on our website,

(@ www.itvplc.com/investors
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Remuneration Report continued

Who is on the Committee

The Committee is composed entirely of Full details of attendance at Committee meetings can be
Non-executive Directors. The current members are: found on page 65.

« Andy Haste (Chairman)
« SirPeter Bazalgette

» Mary Harris

= John Ormerod

The main role of the Committee is to. - approve the design of the Company’s annual benus arrangements
. . i R and Long-Term Incentive Plans, including the performance targets that
+ review the ongoing appropriateness, relevance and effectiveness of the apply for the Senior Executive Group; and

Remuneration Policy including i relation to retention and development;
« determine the award levels for the Senior Executive Group based on

* proposeto shareholders changes Fo th.e Remuneration Policy and approve performance against annual bonus targets and long-term incentive
its implementation for the Executive Directors, Management Board and conditions.
other Senior Executives {together the Senior Executive Group) taking into
account arrangements for the wider employee group. Details on
employse remuneration can be found on page 123. Following each meeting the Committee communicates jits main
discussion peoints and findings to the Board. Reqular discussion topics
are set out below.

Meetings

January FFnbmry > May Yﬁpﬁmbﬁ g Octobar 3 November

» Financial performance || - Bonustargetsagreed || - Marketupdate + Reward framework » Bonus payout + Bonus framework and
, update for current year « Finantial performance|| and current trends forecasts targets
: = Indicative bonus » LTIP awards and update - Consideration of « Internal Audit process (| »+ Terms of reference
outcomes and payout targets agreed for remuneration in the review review
levels current year wider employee » Review of
= Indicative LTIP + Remuneration report group rermuneration
performance and review consultants
vesting levels - Compliance with the + Annual pay review
« Pay review outcomes Remuneration policy
and changes to Senior || . Compliance with
Executive Group shareholding
+ Advisorindependence guidelines
+ Internal Audit review
| of outcomes

In addition to Committee members the Chief Executive, Group Fihance Director, Group HR Director, Director for Pensions and Reward
and independent advisor FIT Remuneration C L regularly attend tings

Annual review

An annual review of the performance of the Committee was \/ develop its role, Priorities for this year will include a smooth
conducted for the year. In addition to feedback from members transition of Committee Chairman and consideration of

of the Committee input was also sought from the Chief wider membership.

Executive, Group Finance Director, Group HR Director and
FIT Remuneration Consultants, the independent advisor to
the Committee.

The Committee's terms of reference can be accessed on
our website.

1 Overall the review concluded that the Cormnmittee is responding

appropriately to its terms of reference and will continue to @ www.itvplc.com/investors/governance
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Annual Report on Remuneration

The sections of the Annual Report on Remuneration that have been audited by KPMG are pages 80 to 84, and page 86 (from and including
Directors' Share Interests) to page 88,

Remuneration Pollcy In 2017
The fotlowing section provides details of how the Remuneration Policy will be implernented in 2017,

Executive Directors
Salary
There has been no change to Executive Directors’ base salaries with effect from 1 January 2017 and these remain as follows.

1 January 1January

2017 2016
£000 £000 % Change
Adam Crozier 941 941 0
lan Griffiths 575 575 0

Salary increases for Executive Directors followed those of the wider employee population. For 2017, anincrease of 1.5% was paid to employees
earning less than £100,000 per annum.

Taxable benefits and pension
These will be provided in line with the Remuneration Policy and no changes are envisaged.

Bonus (cash and shares)

Awards made to Executive Directors through the bonus will be paid two-thirds in cash and one-third deferred into shares under the Deferred
Share Award Plan {D5A). The proposed performance measures and weightings for awards are detafled below and remain unchanged from 2016.
The Board considers the actual targets for 2017 to be commercially sensitive at this time and we envisage inctuding equivalent disclosures to
those included in respect of the 2016 bonus in next year's report.

Performance measire Strategic target Maximum
Adjusted ITV plc EBITA (before exceptional items) 60%
Profit to cash conversion 10%
Cost savings 5%
Individual targets 25%
Share awards

The proposed performance measures and targets for awards to be made in 2017 are detailed below.

Under the LTIP rules, the maximum annual award that can be granted in any financial year is 350% of salary. This is to allow the Committee
flexibitity when recruiting Executives and to ensure the longevity of the plan. There is currently no intention to grant awards at this level.
Awards in 2017 will be made to the Executive Directors with a value of 225% of salary.

Threshold vesting for all targets is 20% with vesting between threshotd and maxirmurn (100%) on a straight-line basis. Family SOV has an
additional vesting threshold of 75% for performance of 21.36%. When assessing performance against this target, the Committee will also
have regard to the health of the main ITV channel. Each measure is also subject to an underpin that the cumulative EPS is at least 56.3 pence.

SIURLIAOE) |

Performance measire Strateglc target Whaightings Threshold Maximum
Cumulative adjusted EPS 50% 56.3p 64.2p
Family SOV 20% 20.2% 216%
Total non-NAR growth 10% 5% growth pa 10% growth pa
International production revenue 10% 5% growth pa 15% growth pa
Online, Pay & Interactive revenue 10% 5% growth pa 18% growth pa

Shares that vest will be subject to a two-year holding period.
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Annual Report on Remuneration continued

Non-executive Directors
There was no increase to Non-executive Director fees from 1 January 2017 as set out below.

1January 1January
2017 2016
£ £ % change
Chairman {all-inclusive fee)’ 450,000 500,000 o]
Board fee 65,054 65,054 0
Additional fees for:
Senior Independent Director 25,000 25,000 0
Audit and Risk Committee Chairman 20,000 20,000 ]
Audit and Risk Committee member 5,371 5371 0
Remuneration Committee Chairman 20,000 20,000 0
Remuneration Comimittee mernber 5,371 5,371 0
1, Slr Peter Bazalgette was appointed Chairman on 12 May 2016 2016 total is for the previous Chairman.
2. Details of Committee membership can be foundin the Governance section on page 65.
Remuneration policy application in 2016
The following section provides detalls of how the current Remuneration Policy was implemented in 2016.
Executive Directors
The table below sets out in a single figure the total remuneration for both Executive Directors for the financial year.
Bonus
Salary Taxable benefits {cash and shares) Share awards Pension Total
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 20162 20157 2016 2015 2016 2015
£000 £000 £000 £00C £000 £0DD £000 £000 £000 €000 £000 £000
Adam Crozier 941 918 19 19 677 1586 1,571 1129 235 229 3,443 3881
lan Griffiths 575 561 14 15 380 879 960 619 144 M0 2073 2214

1,516 1479 34 34 1,056 2465 2531 1748 379 369 5516 6,095

1. Inthe 2015 Annual Report and Accounts part of the amount shown was the indicative vesting value of the 2013 PSP awards that were sublect ta performance conditions measured to
31Decermber 2015. The figures shown in the table above represent the subsequent value received on the vesting date of 29 March 2016 using the share price on that day (240,98 pence),
a total decrease of £141625.

2. The amount shown s the indicative value of the 2014 LTIP awards that were subject te performance conditions measured to 31 Decernber 2016. The value was calculatedusing the
average share price for the final quarter of 2016 (178 pence). 50% of these shares are subject to a one year holding period

3. The aggregate emoluments for all directors as required under Schedule 5 {(S12008/410) is the total remuneration shown in the table above Less share awards, plus the total emnolument
figures for Non-executive Directors shown on page 83, £3,908k

Further information in relation to each of the elements of remuneration for 2016 set out in the table above is detailed below, An explanation
for 2015 is set out in detail in our 2015 Annual Report and Accounts, which can be found on our website.

(&) www.itvplc.com/investors
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Salary
Executive Directors' base salaries were increased by 2.5% with effect from 1 January 2016 in line with those of the wider employee population.

Taxable benefits
The benefits provided to the Executive Directors include the cost of private medical insurance and car-related benefits.

Bonus (cash and shares)
Annual incentives are provided to Executive Directors through the bonus, with one-third of any award deferred into shares under the

Deferred Share Award Plan (DSA). The performance conditions that apply to the bonus are set on an individual basis and are linked to the
Company's corporate, financial and strategic priorities. This enables the Committee to reward both annuat financial performance delivered
for shareholders, and performance against specific financial, operational or strategic objectives set for each Executive Director, which are
dosely linked to the strategic priorities of the business. As stated in last year's report, the weighting on personal performance was reduced
for 2016 from 40% to 25% of the total bonus opportunity. Payments and deferrals in respect of the financial year are set out below,

% of maximum Valte deferred

bonus into shares value paid
opportunity  under the DSA incash Total value
earned
Adamn Crozier 40% £225,828 £451,656 £677,484
lan Griffiths 40% £126,506 £253,011 £379,517

Percentage of maximum bonus opportunity earned for 2015 was 96% and 55% for Adam Crozier and lan Griffiths respectively.
when considering performance outcomes, the Committee looks to ensure the outcomes align with overall business performance.

The majority of the bonus (75%) was based upon the achieverment of carporate and financial targets, with payout determinedin accordance
with pre-set target ranges subject only to the usual adjustments to exclude the impact of material in-year acquisitions and disposals, significant
unbudgeted initiatives and currency movements.

The remainder of the bonus (25%) was based upon the Committee’s assessment of the contribution each Executive Director has made to the
overall strategy through the delivery of specific targets. Both Executive Directors had a number of common objectives aligned to our Strategic
Priorities. The Strategic Report sets out more detail of the Company’s achievements in the year.

In a year which brought the EU referendum result, the subsequent market uncertainty and a 3% decline in NAR the Executive Directors
responded swiftly and robustly to the resulting business impact. They instigated prompt cost savings and provided strongieadership which has
resulted in a record adjusted profit for the Company. The Executive Directors delivered well on their original objectives and also on some new
ones developed in response to the changed market conditions:

» Adam Crozier oversaw a refreshed broadcasting strategy, resulting in SOV growth beth for the Company's main and family of channets.
There was once again strong growth in ITV's Online, Pay and Interactive businesses. The Group's global business was driven forward, with
verticalintegration of value from the Talpa acquisition and the announcement of BritBox in the USA.

« lanGriffiths supported ITV Studios and ITV Broadcast to develop their international businesses and creative performance and secured
agreement to ITV's London property strategy.

In the circumstances and noting that all of these targets were fully achieved along with full delivery of other personal measures, the Committee
agreed that a 100% pay out against personal measures was appropriate as explained in the Chairman’s letter on page 75. The Committee also
confirms that, where relevant, it also considered environmental, social and governance factors in considering the overall outcome,

a1
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Annual Report on Remuneration continued

In order toreflect best practice, the Committee has provided disclosure of the corporate and financial targets used for 2016, together with
performance against those targets and the resulting level of payout as set out below.

Perforrance required Payout level

Performance Strategic
Petformance measure Weighting Threshold Target Max achieved target
Adjusted ITV plc EBITA (before excepticnal itemns) 60% £906m £941mM £971m £885m 0%
Profit ta cash conversion 10% 78.5% 83.5% 88.5% 97% 100%
Cost savings 5% £16.2m £182m  £202m  £289m 100%

Petformance against the personal targets as noted above (25% weighting), resulted in payouts of 100% of the maximurn against these targets for Adam Crozier and 1an Griffiths. Up 1o 20%
is payable for threshold and up to 60% for target performance

Share awards

We are required to show share awards in the remuneration table on page 80 according to the year inwhich the performance petiod for each
performance condition came to an end. 100% of the awards made in 2014 under the LTIP were subject to performance conditions measured to
31 December 2016. The indicative value of these awards is set out below.

Value at
Value at Number 31December Change in
Number of award date of shares 2016 share price since
shares awarded £ vesting' £ award date
Adarn Crozier 1,103,543 2,025,000 882,835 1,571,448 (3.0)%
lan Griffiths 674,387 1,237,500 539,510 960,327 {(3.00%

1. The vesting figures shown in the table above reflect BQ% of the total award that met performance conditions on 31December 2016. 50% will become exercisable on 30 May 2017,
and the remaining 50% will become exerclsable after 3 one year holding period on 30 May 2018,

2. The share price used to value the shares at 31 December 2016 is the average share price for the final quarter of 2016 (178 pence). The share price used to caiculate the number of shares
under award was 183 5 pence (the average of the share price on each of the 27, 28 and 29 May 2014).

When considering performance outcomes the Committee looks beyond formulaic results to ensure the outcomes align with overall business
performance. In the circumstances, the formulae were applied without adjustment.

Details of the performance achieved for the 2014 LTIP awards are below. A gateway condition of minimum cumulative adjusted EPS (371 pence)
was met before any portion of the award could vest.

Performance

Parformance measure Strategic target Walghting  Targats achleved Payout level
Cumulative adjusted EPS @ 50% 371p=20% vesting

42,3p = 100% vesting

Vesting on a straight-line basis between L71p 100%
Family SOV @ 20% Maintain at 23.05 = 20% vesting

23.51% (+2% growth) = 100% vesting

Vesting on a proporticnate basis between 21.36% 0%
Total non-NAR growth Q@ 10% 5% growth pa = 20% vesting

10% growth pa = 100% vesting

Vesting on a straight-line basis between 15.27% 100%
International preduction
Revenue for 2016 @ 10% 5% growth pa = 20% vesting

15% growth pa = 100% vesting

Vesting on a straight-line basis between 31.52% 100%
Online, Pay &
Interactive Revenue ©) 10% 5% growth pa = 20% vesting

18% growth pa = 100% vesting

Vesting on a straight-line basis between 25.13% 100%
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Pension

The Executive Directors are not part of an ITV pension scheme but receive a cash allowance in lieu of pension with a value of 25% of base salary.
Payments were reviewed and increased in 2013 to ensure they were market competitive. The cash allowance does not form part of the base
salary for the purpose of determining incentives.

Non-executive Directors
The table below sets out in a single figure the total remuneration for Non-executive Directors for the financial year.

Fees Taxable benefits? Total

6 2015 2016 2015 016 2015

Notes £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Sir Peter Bazalgette 2 312 69 2 2 314 71
Roger Faxon 65 63 8 5 73 68
Mary Harris 3 74 66 8 7 82 73
Andy Haste 5 114 1 2 15 16
Anna Manz 4 63 - 1 - 63 -
Archie Norman 5 184 500 - 3 184 503
John Ormerod 90 89 2 2 92 91
903 901 22 21 923 922

1. The amounts disclosed in the table above relate to the reimbursement of taxable relevant travel and accommodation expenses for attending Board meetings and related business.
The value disclosed is inclusive of tax arising on the expense, whichis settled by the Company.

2. Peter Bazalgette was appointed Chaitman on 12 May 2016.

3. Mary Harris was appointed to the Remuneration Committee on 12 May 2016.

4. Anna Manz was appointed to the Board on 1 february 2016 and to the Audit and Risk Cornmittee on 1 May 2016

5. Archie Norman stepped down fromthe Board on 12 May 2016.

LTIP awards made in 2016
0On 29 March 2016 awards were made under the LTIP to bath Executive Directors in the form of nit-cost options, subject to performance over

the pericd to 31 December 2018.

% salary Number of Value at Performance
Award date awarded options award date pariod ends Vasting date Release date
Adam Crozier 29 March 2016 225 878,481 £2,177138 31December2018 29 March2013 29 March 2021
lan Griffiths 29 March 2016 225 536,850 £1,293,806 31December2018 29March2019 29 March 2021

The number of nil-cost options was calculated using the average share price over the three-day period prior to the award date (247 pence).

The LTIP was introduced in 2014 following a remuneration review and subsequent approval by sharehoclders at the 2014 AGM. The holding
periods were phased in over the first two annual awards made in 2014 and 2015, with 100% of the awards made in 2016 subject to & two-year
holding period. The shares that vest under the 2016 award wilt not release until March 2021.

The Committee sets targets for the LTIP taking into account external forecasts, internal budgets, business priorities, and risks and uncertainties,
Targets are set to be appropriately stretching in this context, with maximum performance set at a level which is considered to be the delivery of
exceptional performance. The awards made in 2016 are subject to performance measures and targets as set out below. Awards will be subject
to aninitial cumulative adjusted EPS performance gateway equal to that required for threshold performance (54.6 pence) before any portion of
the award can vest.

Performance measure Strategic target Weighting Threshold Maxinmum
Cumulative adjusted EPS 50% 54.6p 624p
Family SOV 20% 20.2% 21.6%
Total non-NAR growth 10% 5% growth pa 10% growth pa
International production revenue 10% 5% growth pa 15% growth pa
Online, Pay & Interactive revenue 10% 5% growth pa 18% growth pa
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Annual Report on Remuneration continued

Threshold vesting for all targets is 20% with vesting between threshold and maximum (100%) is on a straight-line basis. Family SOV has an
additional vesting threshold of 75% for performance of 21.2%. When assessing performance against this target, the Committee will also have
regard to the health of the main [TV channel.

Other Disclosures
Payments to past Directors or for loss of office
No payments were made during the year.

Committee membership and advisors
The Directors who were members of the Committee when matters relating to the Executive Directors’ remuneration for the year were
considered, are set out on page 65.

The Committee obtains advice from various sources in order to ensure it makes informed decisions. The Chief Executive and Group Finance
Director are invited to attend Committee rmeetings as appropriate. No individual is involved in decisions relating to their awn remuneration.

Ttie Group HR Director is the main internat advisor and provides updates on remuneration, employee reiations and human resource issues.
FIT Remuneration Consultants acted as the independent advisor on remuneration policy and the external remuneration environment during
2016 and provided advice on benichmarking, shareholder consultation and long-term incentive arrangements. Total fees for the advice provided

to the Cormmittee during the year amounted to £103,154 (exclusive of VAT and expenses) which were charged on their normal terms.

The Cammittee has formally reviewed the work undertaken by FIT for the Committee and is satisfied that the advice they have received has
been objective and independent. FiT is a member of the Remuneration Consultants Group and abides by its Code of Conduct.

Shareholder voting
At the AGM held on 12 May 2076, votes cast by praxy and at the meeting in respect of the Executive Directors' remuneration were as follows:
Voting for Voting against
Number of Number of
Resolution shares % shares % Total votescast Votes withheld
Annual Remuneration Report 3,002,101,203 9615 120,053,675 3.85 3122,154,878 51,538,304

The Remuneration Policy was approved at the AGM held on 14 May 2014 for a three-year period. Votes cast by proxy and at the meetingwere as
foltows:

Voting for Voting against
Numberof Numbet of
Resplution shares % shares % Total votescast  Votes withheld
Remuneration Policy 2,272,594,109 96.04 93,825,641 396 2,366,419,750 366,266,825
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Historic performance

BIUCLISADD I

The graph below shows the TSR performance of the Company against the FTSE 100 index over the eight-year period to 31 December 2016.

Chief Executive remuneration

The table below provides a summary of the total remuneration received by the Chief Executive over the last eight years, including details of the

annual bonus payout and long-term incentive award vesting level in each year.

Long-tsim

incentive

Total award

remuneration Bonus % of vesting % of

£000 maximum maximum

2016 Adam Crozier 3,443 40 80
2015 Adam Crozier 3,881 96 75
2014 Adam Crozier 4,842 94 75
2013 Adam Crozier 8,399 93 87
2012 Adam Crozier 2915 91 12
20M Adam Crozier 2158 88 -
2010 Adam Crozier (for the eight manth period served) 1,350 95 -
2010 John Cresswell (for the four month period served) 661 a3 -
2009 Michael Grade 2,583 94 -

The long-term incentive award vesting percentage relates to the proportion of the award that met performance conditions in the relevant

financial year. The 2015 numbers have been amended to reflect the actual value of the LTIP on vesting.

The table below provides details of the percentage change in the base salary, benefits and bonus of the Chief Executive between 31December

2015 and 31 December 2016 compared to the average percentage change for other employees.

% change

% change in % change In inbonus

base salary benefits payment
Chief Executive 2.5% (1.66) (57.29)
All employees 5% (3.67) (13.37)

1 Benefits include the cost of medical insurance and car-related benefits.
2. Asthe majority of employees are based In the UK, overseas employees have not been inctuded

3 Thepercentage change inbenefits is the average change for all ernployees (excluding the Chief Executive) with any of the same benefits as the Chief Executive

a8s
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Annual Report on Remuneration continued

Spend on pay
The table betow shows pay for all employees compared to other key financial indicators.
2016 2015

Notes £m £m % Change
Employee pay 1 419 400 475
Ordinary dividend 261 208 2548
Special dividend 402 251 6015
Employee headcount 2 6121 5,558 1013

1. Employee pay is the total remuneration paid to all colleagues across iTV on a full-time equivalent basis. More detall is set out on page 123.

2 Employee headcount is the monthly average number of colleagues across ITV on a full-time equivalent basis. More detail is set out on page 123.

3. There were no share buy-backs durlng either year,

Directors' share interests

Shareholding guidelines

The Committee continues to recognise the importance of Directors being shareholders so as to align their interests with other shareholders.

Shareholding guidelines are in place, which encourage Executive Directors to build up a holding of ITV plc shares based on a percentage of base
salary, 50% of the requirernent must normally be obtained within three years of appointment and the remainder normally within five years.

% of salary % of salary
held at

required under
shareholding 3tDecamber
guidelines 2016
Adam Crozier 400 446
lan Griffiths 200 473

The share price used to value the shares as at 30 December 2016 was 206 pence. The shares included in the calculation are shares held in the individual's own narme and the net of
tax shares held under the 2014 DSA which are not contingant on continued employment (awards made from 2015 are contingent on continued employment and will not farmapart
of the requirement.

Where the value of shares required to be held increases as aresult of a salary increase (or anincrease in the relevant percentage), the Executive
Directors will have three years from such increase to achieve compliance. The Committee may change the guidelines so long as they are not,
overall, in the view of the Committee, less onerous.

Non-executive directors are currently required to use 25% of their annual fees, after statutory deductions, to acquire shares in the Company.
The shares are purchased quarterly and held until they retire from the Board. From 2017 it is proposed that this will change so that (unless they
are unable to retain their fees) they are all required to build and then maintain a holding of 100% of their base fee over the six years from the
date of appointment to the Board.

Interestsin shares
The figures set out below represent shareholdings in the ordinary share capital of ITV plc beneficiaily owned by Directars and their family
interests at 31 December 2076.

31 December 31December

016 2015
Sir Peter Bazalgette 197,108 13,685
Adam Crozier 1,909,263 2,241,233
Roger Faxon 21,910 15,835
fan Griffiths 1,254,554 1,754,554
Mary Harris 12,028 6,138
Andy Haste 125,446 109,222
Anna Mangz 31,588 -
John Ormerod 168,407 153,898

Anna Manz was appolnted to the Board on 1 February 2016

There were no changes in Directors’ interests in shares between the end of the finandal year and 1March 2077,



ITV plc Annual Report and Accounts 2016

Executive Directors’ non-executive directorships
With specific approval of the Board, Executive Directors may accept external appointments as non-executive directors of other companies

and retain any related fees paid to them.

During the year the Executive Directors retained fees for the directorships set out below.

2016

Company £000

Adam Crozier G4S plc 25
lan Griffiths DS Smith plc 55

Adam Crozier stepped down from the board of G4S plc on 27 May 2016

Service contracts and loss of office

Executive Directors
Executive Directors have rolling service contracts that provide for 12 months notice on either side. There are na special provisions that apply in

the event of achange of control.

Notice period from Notice period from Compensation provisions

Date of appointment Nature of contract Company Director for early termination

Adam Crozier 26 April 2010 Rolling 12 months 12 months None
lan Griffiths 9 September 2008 Rolling 12 months 12 months None

A payment in lieu of notice, including base salary, contractual benefits and contractual provision for an income in retirement, may be made if:

« the Company terminates the employment of the Executive Director with immediate effect, or without notice; or
- termination is agreed by mutual consent.

Wwith the exception of termination for cause or resignation, Executive Directors will be eligible for a bonus award prorated to reflect the
proportion of the financial year for which they were employed and subject to performance achieved, provided they have a minimum of
three- months service in the bonus year.

Non-executive Directors

Each Non-executive Director, including the Chairman, has a contract of service with the Company. Non-executive Directors will serve for

an initial term of three years, subject to election and annual election and re-election by shareholders, unless otherwise terminated earlier by
and at the discretion of either party upon one month’s written notice (12 months for the current Chairman). After the initial three-year term
reappointment is on an annual basis.

All Non-executive Directors are subject to election or re-election at the AGM in 2017, Details of unexpired terrns are set out in the table on
page 65.

The Directors' service contracts and letters of appointment are available for inspection at the Company's registered office.
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Annual Report on Remuneration continued

Outstanding Interests under share schemes
The following tables provide detalls of Directors’ interests in outstanding share awards.

Share  Share price
At At price used at date of Date of
1.January Awarded Vested Exercised Lapsedin  31December for award vesting release/exercise
Notes 2018 nyear inyear inyear inyear 2016 {pence) (pence) inyear
Adam Crozier
DSA
29 March 2016 3,6 - 219406 - - - 219406 241.0
27 March 2015 197,741 - - - 197,741 256.7
28 March 2014 240,534 - - - - 240,534 194.5
28 March 2013 346,228 - 346,228 346,228 - - 1295 24098 29 March 2016
LTiP
29 March 2016 6 - 878481 - - - 878,481 2410
27 March 2015 804,636 - - - 804,636 256.7
30 May 2014 4  1103,543 — - - - 1,103,543 1835
Psp
1 March 2013 5 624,647 - 468,485 468485 156162 - 1211 24098 29 March 2016
lan Griffiths
DsSA
29 March 2016 3,6 - 121628 - - - 121,628 2410
27 March 2015 112,186 - - - 112,186 256.7
28 March 2014 122,269 - - - - 122,269 194.5
28 March 2013 175,891 - 175891 175891 - - 1205 24058 29 March 2016
LTip
29 March 2016 6 - 536,850 — - - 536,850 2410
27 March 2015 491,722 - - - 49,723 256.7
30 May 2014 4 674,387 - - - - 674,387 183.5
Psp
1March 2013 5 342,549 — 2656912 256912 85,637 - 1211 24098 29 March 2016

1. Noawards are outstanding that have vested but have not been exarcised.

2. There are no performance conditions attaching to the DSA.

3. D5A awards made in 2016 for 2015 performance are Included in the remuneration tabie on page 80.

4 LTIP performance conditions were met In 2016 (80%), 50% will become exercisable on 30 May 2077, the remainder on 30 May 2018, The indicative value at 31Decemnber 2016
is includedin the remuneration table on page 80 and is described on page 82

& n

under the DSA.

. PSP performance condltions were met in 2075 (75%) and the value is included in the remuneration table on page 80.
. The face value of awards granted in the financlal year were £2,117,138 and £1,293,806 under the LTIP for Adam Crozier and fan Gnffiths respectively, and £528, 758 and £293,122

7 Performance condltions that apply to the outstanding awards under the L TIP are set out in the table below.

2004LTIP 20015LTIP 2016 LTIP
Threshold
Strateglc target Weighting vesting Threshold Maximum Threshold Maxmum  Threshold Maximum
EPS Gateway @ 379p 45.7p 54.6p
Cumulative adjusted EPS @ 50% 20% 371p 42.3p 457p 52.2p 54.6p 62.4p
Family SOV @ 20% 20% 23.05% 2351% 22% 22.44% 20.2% 21.6%
Annual non-NAR growth 1] 10% 20% 5% 10% 5% 10% 5% 10%
International praduction revenue growth @  10% 20% 5% 15% 5% 15% 5% 15%
Online, Pay & Interactive revenue growth @ 10% 20% 5% 15% 5% 18% 5% 18%
Cumulative adjusted Curmulative adjusted Cumulative adjusted
EPS years 2004 10 2016 EPSyears 201510 2017 EPS years 201610 2018

Vesting between threshold and maximum (1009%) is on a straight-line basis for all targets except SOV which vests at 75% with a

straight-Une vesting from each threshold and maximum.
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Remuneration Policy

The tables below summarise the main elements of the remuneration package for Directors and will be effective from the date approved

by shareholders in 2017 and will apply untit shareholders next consider and vote on the policy.

Executive Directors
Purpose and link Maximum potential
Fixed elements to strategy Oparation payment Performance metrics Proposed changes
Base Reflects the individual's Reviewed annually Ordinarily salary None, although introduce a formal cap
s alary skills, responsibilities and paid montbly in increases will be In overall individual and on salarles; thisisa cap
and experience. cash. Consideration line with the average business performance and not an aspiration.
Supports th is typically given toa increase awarded to is considered when
Dp?c 5 te d range of factors when other employees in the setting and reviewing
reirunfmnegf ::e cutive determining salary Company. Increases salaries.
retentio levels, including: may be made above
Directors of the calbre .
ired to deli h p Land this level to take
rbqu_.ure to deliver t. :_ : cersona and d account of individual
siness strateqy within amparny-wide circumstances, which
the competitive media perfarmance. - )
. . may include:
market « Typical pay levelsin
relevant markets for + Increase insize or
each executive whilst scope of therole or
recognising the need responsibility.
for an appropriate « Increase to reflect
premium to attract the individual’s
and retain superior development and

talent, balanced
against the need

to provide a cost-
effective overall
remuneration
package.

The wider empioyee
pay review.

performance in role.

No salary will exceed

£1:13 million (being 120%

of the CEQ’s current
salary) as further
increased by RPIover
the life of the policy.
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Remuneration Policy continued

Purpose and link Maximum potential

Fixed elements to stratagy Operation payment Performance metrics Proposed changes

Provision To provide competitive Executives can choose The maximum None No change.

for an post-retirtement to participate ntheITvV contributions or cash

income in benefitsor cash defined contribution allowances for the

retirement allowance asa scheme, receive a cash Executive Directors are
framework to save allowance or receive 25% of base satary.
for retirement. paymentsintoa

personal pensionara
Suppprts the combination thereof.
recruitment and
retention of Executive Contributions are set
Directors of the callbre as a percentage of
required to dellver base salary.
the business strat
within the competei'tgivve Post-retirement
media market. benefits do not form
partof the base salary
for the purposes of
determiningincentives.

Benefits Ensures the overall The Company provides Set at a level which the None Introduce a formal cap
package is competitive arange of market Committee considers on benefits; thisis a cap
and provides financial competitive benefits to be appropriately and not an aspiration.
protection for inctuding travel related positioned taking into .
employees and their benefits, privatemedical  account typical market Permit t:elevant
families. isurance and other levels for comparable protec_tnon for .

insurance benefits, roles, Individual expatriate execlitives.

Additional benefits circumstances and the
overall cost to

may iflsc! be provided in the business.

certain circumstances,

if required for business The overall cost of

need. For example benefits will not exceed

{but not limited ta), £100,000 (£30:0,000in

relocation expenses, the case of a director

housing allowance and required to relocate

education support. between countries)
inany year.
In addition, the
Comparny may
reimburse relocation
expensesand/ or
provide for tax
equalisation
arrangements.
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Purpose and link Maximum potentlal
Varable elements to strategy Operation payment Perfarmance metrics Proposed changes
Bonus and Incentivises executives Measures and targets The maximum bonus Performancemeasures  No material changes,
DSA and colleagues to are set annually based opportunity for any and targets are set by
achieve key strategic onbusiness plans at the Executive Director will the Committee each
outcomes cnan start of the financial not exceed 200% aof year based on corporate
annual basis, year and pay-out levels salary. The current objectives closely linked
Forus onkey financial are determined by the bonus opportunities to the Strategic
. - Committee following are 180% of salary for Priorities and individual
metrlt‘:s and objectives the year-end based Adam Crozier and 165% contributions. The
todeliver the business on performance of salary for lan Griffiths.  majority of the bonus
strategy. against objectives, Increases above the opportunity will be
The element . current opportunities, based on the corporate
compulsorily deferred :::je%r:;?: dr;:zlts up to the maximum and financial measures.
into shares rewards Annual bonus . Lirmit, may be made The remainder of the
delivery of sustained - to take account of bonus willbe based on
calculations that are .
long-termperformance, |~ oL el lnd!vidual circumstances, Per_fgmwance against
provides alignment results for the year are which rmay include: |ndnndl.!al aqdlo.r
with t!“e shareholder audited byintermal Audit - Increaseinsize or strategic objectives.
experience and . and reviewed by the scope of the role Up to 20% of the
supports 'the retention Audit and Risk or responsibility. maximum opportunity
of executives. Committee before + Increase toreflect will be received for
consideraticn by the individual's threshold performance.
the Committee. development and
The Committee f: ;oma neein
has the discretion .
to amend the bonus
pay-out should any
formulaic assessment
of performance not
reflect abalanced view
of overall business
performance for
the year.
Not more than

two-thirds of the bonus
is delivered in cash with
the balance deferred
into shares under the
DSAnormally fora
period of three years.

During the deferral
period share awards
may bereduced or
cancelled incertain
drcumstances. Further
detail is provided on
page 96,

Dividends are paid to
participants on the
deferred shares during
the deferral period.
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Remuneration Policy continued

Purpose and Unk Maximum potential
Variable elements to strateqy Oparation payment Performance matrics Proposed changes
LTIP Incentivises executives Awards aremade under  Our current operational The Committee may Consistent with market
to deliver performance the LTIP rules. practice is to make set such performance practice, greater
whichis aligned to the awards of 225% of conditions on LTIP flexibility to set relevant
business strategy over Awards are normally salary each year. awards as it considers performance conditions
the longer term and the mad_e annually with appropriate (whether for new awards.
creation of shareholder ves?mg dependent on Undgrthe LTI rules, the financial or
value. business performance maximum annualaw.ard hon-financial and
duringthe performance  that may be grantedin wh
" ether corporate,
Acts as aretention tool period. The any financial year s divisional or individuat),
to retain the executives performance perlodwill  350% of salary. i
required to deliver the be not less than three The Committee has
business strategy. years, other thanin sought to set measures
exceptional which are closely linked
dircurnstances. to the Company's
The Committee ﬁr!an-c!al and strategic
has discretion to amend p"or.'t'es and wil
the final vesting level continue to da so.
should any formulaic The proportion of
assessment of each element of the
performance not reflect award that will vest for
abalanced view of the threshold performance
business performance agalnst a metric will be
during the performance hot more than 20%.
period. Performance
Awards will be required periods may be over
tobe held foran such periods as the
additional two-year Committee selects at
holding perlod after the grant, whichwill not be
end of the performance less (but may be longer)
period. than three years.
Dividends are earned on
deferred shares during
the holding period.
During the hoiding
period awards may be
reduced or cancelled in
certain crcumstances.
Further detailis
provided cnipage 96.
SAYE Provides all Executive Directors are Participation limits are None No changes.
employees, including entitled to participate as per the rules of the
Executive Directors in the plan on the plan and in accordance
the opportunity to same basis as other with HMRC Limits.
voluntarily invest in employees.
Company shares.

should the Company choose to implement a tax efficient ali-empioyee shara participation ptan (for example a 5IP) the Executive Directors would be eligible to participatein accordance with
any shareholder appreved plan rules and HMRC imits.
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Legacy arrangements

The Committee may make any remuneration payments and payments for loss of office (including exercising any discretions avaitable to it in
connection with such payments) notwithstanding that they are not in line with the Remuneration Policy set out above. This would apply where
the terms of the payment were agreed before the policy came into effect or at a time when the relevant individual was not a director of the
Company and the payment was not in consideration for the individual becoming a director of the Company.

Malus and claw-back

Malus and claw-back provisions may be operated at the discretion of the Committee in respect of any cash and deferred share elements of
the bonus and awards made under the LTIP. Under malus, unvested share awards (including any LTIP shares subject to a post vesting holding
period) can be reduced (down to zero if considered appropriate) or be made subject to additional conditions. Claw-back allows for repayment
of bonuses previously paid and/or shares previously received following vesting. Malus/claw-back can be operated up to four years following
the start of the relevant bonus year for bonuses, and up to six years from the relevant date of grant for LTIP awards. The circumstancesin
which the operation of these provisions may be considered from time to time and currently include material misstatement of results, gross
misconduct or fraud.

Performance measures and target setting

The annual bonus is assessed against both financial and individual targets determined by the Committee. This enabtles the Committee to
reward both annual financial performance delivered for shareholders, and performance against specific financlal, operational or strategic
objectives set for each director, which are closely linked to the Strateqgic Priorities of the business.

The Committee sets targets for the long-term incentive plans taking into account external forecasts, internal budgets and business priorities.
Targets are set to be appropriately stretching in this context with maximum performance being set at a level which is considered to be the
detivery of exceptional performance.

When considering performance outcomnes the Committee witl look beyond formulaic results to ensure the outcomes align with the overall
business performance.

Non-executive Directors
The tabte below summarises the main elements of remuneration for Non-executive Directors:

Component

Approach of the Company

Maximum potential payment

Chairman fees

The Committee determines the fees of the Chairman and
sets the fees at a level that is considered to be appropriate,
taking into account the size and complexity of the business
and the expected time commitment and contribution of
therole.

The aggregate fees (together with any shares and/or
benefits Including the reimbursement of travel and other
expenses - If subject to taxation — and an amount to meet
any tax arlsing on such expenses) of the Chairman and of
Non-Executive Directors will not exceed the limit from
time to time prescribed within the Company's Articles

of Association {currently £1,500,000 p.a)).

Non-executive
fees

The Board determines the fees of the Non-executive
Directors and sets the fees at alevel that is considered to
be appropriate, taking into account the size and complexity
of the business and the expected time commitment and
contribution of the role

Fees are currently structured as a basic fee with additional
fees payable for membership and/or chairmanship of a
committee or other additional responsibilities but may

be restructured within the overall limits.

As above.

Benefits

Additional benefits may also be pravided in certain
circumstances, if required for business purposes. Thnis
includes the reimbursement of any travel expenses
(and associated tax on those expenses).

As above.
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Remuneration Policy continued

Application of the Remunaration Policy
The chart below provides an indication of the level of remuneration that would be received by each Executive Director under the following three
assumed performance scenarios.

Below threshold | Fixedelements of remuneration only - base salary, benefits and pension
performance
On-target Assumes 60% pay-out under the annual bonus
Performance Assumes 20% pay-out under the LTIP (aligned with threshold performance)
Maximum Assumes 100% pay-out under the annual bonus
Performance Assurmnes 100% pay-out under theiTIP

Notes:

1. The scenarlos do not Include any share price growth assumptions or take into account any dividends that may be paid.

2. Fixed pay is the salary as at 1 January 2017, pension is 25% of salary, and the value of benefits Is equivalent to thatmncluded in the remuneration table on page 80,
3. Annualbonus is based on 180% of salary for Adam Crozier and 165% of salary for lan Griffiths.

4. LTIP amount Is based on 225% of salary for both Executive Directors.
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Recruitment Remuneration
When agreeing the components of a remuneration package for a new Executive Director, the Committee will apply the principles

detailed below.
The package will be competitive to attract and retain the most suitable candidate for the job.

Where possible, the Committee will always seek to align the remuneration package with the Remuneration Policy outlined above.
However, where appropriate, elements of the package may be outside of this policy to meet the circumstances of the individual upon
recruitment. The Committee will ensure that the arrangements are in the best interests of both ITV and its shareholders and remain
subject to the overall variable pay limits set out below.

ongoing In determining an appropriate remuneration structure and levels, the Committee will take into account all relevant factors to
remuneration ensure they are able to recruit the most appropriate candidate for the job and that the arrangements are in the best interests of
both ITV and its shareholders. The Committee will typically seek to align the ongoing remuneration package with the ongoing
Remuneration Policy outlined on pages B9 to 97.

Consistent with the DRR Reqgulations, the caps contained within the Remuneration Policy for fixed pay do not apply to new recruits
(whether internal or external), although the Committee daes not currently envisage exceeding these caps in practice.

The maximum level of variable remuneration which may be granted to a new director upon appointment (excluding any buy-out
awards for forfeited remuneration) will not be greater than 550% of salary (the sum of the maximum bonus and maximum new
LTIP opportunities).

Buy-out awards The Committee may make awards to 'buy out' a candidate's remuneration arrangements that are forfeited as a result of leaving

for forfeited their previous employer.

remuneration In doing so, the Committee will take account of relevant factors including any performance conditions attaching to the forfeited
awards, the likelihood of the awards vesting and the form and timing of the awards. The Committee will typically seek to make
buy-out awards on a comparable basis to those that have been forfeited but, particularly where the performance period is
substantially complete, may reflect such conditions in some other way such as through a significant discount to the face value
of awards forfeited. Exceptionally, where necessary, this may include

aguaranteed or non-prorated annual bonus in the year of joining.

In exceptional circumstances, the Committee may grant a buy-out award under a structure not included int the
policy but that is consistent with the principles set out above (any rmay rely upon Listing Rule 9.4.2 in structuring
such a buy-out).

The Committee will take all relevant factors into account (including the candidate’s location, the calibre of the individual, external influences,
internal relativities and the overall business context) when determining the new remuneration package and seek to ensure that no more is
paid than necessary.

In the Remuneration Report following the appointment, the Committee will fully explain tc the shareholders the remuneration package for
the appointed individual and the raticnale for such arrangements and will display such information on the ITV plc website and announce via
aregulatory information service as soon as practicable following the appointment.
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Remuneration Policy continued

Service contracts and loss of office
Executive Directors

Executive Directors have rolling service contracts that provide for 12 months notice on either side. For a new joiner, the contract may
commence with a natice period of up to twa years reducing to the standard 12 months over time. There are no special provisions that apply
in the event of a change of contrel.

A payment in lieu of notice, including base salary, contractual benefits and contractual provision for an income in retirement may be made if:

- the Company terminates the employment of the executive with immediate effect, or without due notice; or
« termination is agreed by mutual consent.

The Company may also make a payment in respect of outplacement costs, legal fees and the cost of settling any potential claims where

appropriate.

With the exception of termination for cause or resignation (unless the Committee determines ctherwise), Executive Directors will be eligible for
a bonus award prorated to reflect the proportion of the financial year for which they were employed and subject to the performance achieved,
provided they have a minimum of three months service in that bonus year.

The treatment of shares awarded under the DSA and LTIP on termination are set out below.

Good leaver Mutual agreemant Other circumstances Change of control
DSA Inyury, ill health, disability The Committee has the right Awards lapse. Awards release in fullat

ortransfer of undertakings. to exercise its discretion as to effective date of change.

Awards release in full at the the extent to which awards, if

leaving date. any, may release, for example

For other good leaver reascns where someane is asked to

leave because of a change in

awards release §t the end of circumstances outside of

the deferral period unless the their controi.

Committee decides to release

the shares earlier,
LTIP injury, ill health or disability, The Committee has the right Awards lapse. Outstanding awards would

redundancy, retirement ar to exercise its discretion to normally vest and become
During the transfer of undertakings, or apply good leaver treatment, exercisable subject to

rF otherwise at the discretion for example where someone satisfaction of performance

pe . ormance of the Committee. is asked to leave because of conditions and capped based
period Award scal ed a change in drcumstances on the time in the performance

f:::imsea;eerl%caz d"s'::;r::t outside of their contrel. period since grant, subject

to the discration of the
to achievement of the N
.. . Committee.

performance conditions during

the performance period.

Awards become exercisable at

the end of the holding period

unless the Committee decides

to release the shares earlier.
LTIP Awards become exercisable at Awards become exercisable at For resignation, awards Awards become exercisable at
During the the end of the holding period the end of the holding period become exercisable at the end the effective date of change.
additional unless the Committee decides uniess the Committee decides of the holding period unless the
holding period to release the shares earlier. to release the shares earlier Committee decides to release

o ap the shares earlier.
In the case of misconduct
awards will lapse.
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Non-executive Directors
Each Non-executive Director, including the Chairman, has a contract of service with the Company. Non-executive Directors will serve for an

initial term of three years, subject to election and annual re-election by shareholders, unless otherwise terminated eartier by and at the
discretion of either party upon one month's written notice (12 months for the Chairmanj.

The director's service contracts and letters of appointment are avaltable for inspection at the Company's registered office.

External appointments
With specific approval of the Board, Executive Directors may accept external appointments as non-executive directors of other companies and

retain any related fees paid to them.

Employment conditions elsewhere in the Company
When setting the policy for directors’ remuneration, the Committee considers the pay and employment conditions of employees elsewhere in

the Company.

The Company does not consult directly with employees in respect of determining the Directors’' Remuneration Policy. However, the Committee
does receive general feedback from employees via the HR function as part of the output from the employee engagement survey and receives a
report on employment practices elsewhere in the Company.

Shareholder views
The Committee maintains regular and transparent communication with shareholders. We believe that it is important to regularly meet with our

key shareholders to understand their views on our remuneration arrangements and what they would like to see going forward. We welcome
feedback from sharehiolders at any time during the year.

Where we are proposing to make any significant changes to the ongoing operation of this Remuneration Policy we shall seek major
shareholders' views and take these into account.
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Directors’ Report

The Directors present their Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2016. The Directors’ Report required under
the Companies Act 2006 comprises this report and the entire Governance section including the Chairman’s Governance Statement.

Articles of Association
Unless expressly specified to the contrary, the Articles of Association may only be amended by special resolution of the sharehalders.
The Articles are available on our website,

@ www.itvplc.com/investors/governance

Auditor

During the year the Audit and Risk Committee considered the performance and audit fees of the external auditor, and the level of non-audit
work undertaken. They recommended to the Board that a resolution for the reappointment of KPMG LLP for a further year as the Company's
auditor be proposed to shareholders at the AGM in May 2017,

Change of control
No person holds securities in the Company carrying special rights with regard to control of the Company.

All of the Company’s share schemes contain provisions relating to a change of control. Outstanding awards and options would normally
vest and become exercisable on a change of control, subject to the satisfaction of any performance conditions and proration for time
where appropriate.

Certain of the Group's bonds/borrowing facitities have change of contral clauses whereby the issuer can require ITV to repay/redeerm bonds
in the event of a change of control. The Company is not aware of any other significant agreements to whichit fs party that take effect, alter
or terminate upon a change of control of the Company.

Directors
Appointments: A table showing Directors who served in the year can be found on page 65. Biographies for Directors currently in office can
be found on pages 60 and 61and on our website.

(@) www.itvplc.com/about/board-of-directors

Non-executive Directors are appointed for an initial three-year period and annually thereafter.In accordance with the UK Corporate Governance
Code, each Director will retire and submit himsetf or herself for election or re-election at the AGM on 10 May 2017,

Detail on compensation for loss of office can be found in the Remuneration Report on page 84,

Conflicts of interest: The Board has delegated the authorisation of conflicts to the Nomination Cornmittee and has adopted a Conflicts
of Interest Policy. The Board has considered in detail the current external appointments of the Directors which may give rise to a situationat
conflict and has authorised potential conflicts where appropriate. This authorisation can be reviewed at any time but will always be subject
to annual review. The Board is confident that these procedures operate effectively.

Contracts of significance: No Director had any interest in any contract with the Company or its subsidiary undertakings.

Powers: The powers of the Directors are set cut in the Articles of Association. The Articles and a schedule of Matters Reserved for the Board
can be found on our website.

@ www.itvplc.com/investors/governance
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Dividends
The Board has proposed a final dividend and a special dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016. Details of these and other dividends paid

for the year are as follows:

2016 2015
Interim dividend 2.4p 1.9p
Final dividend 4.8p 4p
Total ordinary dividend 7.2p 6.0p
Special dividend 5.0p 10.0p
Total dividend payment 12.2p 16.0p

The final dividend and special dividend for 2016 will be paid on 25 May 2017 to shareholders on the register on 28 April 2017. The ex-dividend
date is 27 Aprit 2017.

Employees

Disability: The Company has been certified a ‘Disability Confident’ employer by the Department for Work and Pensions and gives full and™
fair consideration to the employment of people with a disability or tong-term health condition in accordance with the Equality Act 2010.
Our employment and recruitment policies are based on equal opportunities and non-discrimination. ITV is a member of ‘Diversity Jobs,,
which connects people to employers who place high importance on a diverse staff population. The Company provides tailored measures
to ensure colleagues are fully supported and that reasonable adjustments are made. We are committed to ensuring that all training, career
development and promotional opportunities are accessible and inclusive to all colleagues with a disability,

The Company's commitment around the disability agenda extends beyond our legal obligations and we partner with a variety of specialists
to drive best practice. Further information can be found on our Responsibility website.

(@) www.itvresponshbility.com

Diversity: Our goal is to reflect modern society through our pregrammes, channels, workforce and services, ensuring we are relevant and
accessible to all. It's integral to our business aims to reflect, represent and appeal to the breadth of communities that characterise modern
society. The Company has four strategic commitments to diversity: inclusive programming, inclusive workforce, inclusive culture and inclusive
access to programmes and services. The Company has a number of policies to support this, for example the Code of Conduct, Equal
Opportunities Policy and Social Partnership framework for prograrmme-makers. The Corporate Responsibility Board is responsibte for

the implementation plans to deliver on these commitments and embed practicesinto the business.

Further information can be found on our Responsibility website,

(@ www.itvresponsibility.com

Engagement: Attracting and retaining talent is critical to our success. It is therefore in our interest to ensure that we provide the appropriate
rewards and opportunities for development so that colleagues feel engaged with the Company.

In 20716 the Management Board led a series of roadshows across the business. This gave colleagues an opportunity to feed back their thoughts
and concerns about the business, Engagement was reinforced through forums such as the intranet, regular soft and hard-copy newsletters
and briefings between management and thelr teams. These channels enabled colleagues to understand the financial and economic facters
affecting the Company's performance, how their role contributed towards the execution of the strategy and how they could benefit from
Company success through involvement in employee share schemes and information on their rights and benefits.
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To further promote colleague engagement, the Company has a network of Ambassadors who are nominated and elected by their colleagues
to represent each part of the business. These Ambassadors share the views of colleagues with the business, enabling us to understand ways to
make ITV a better place to work. The Ambassadors also keep colleagues up te date with what is going on across the business.

We have continued to measure and listen to colleagues through employee surveys. This year, in line with best practice, we changed the way we
measured engagement globatly by Including additional questions in order to capture a more rounded picture. 90% of employees said they were
proud to work for {TV (2015: 89.33%), and the score for total engagement was 83%.

Remuneration: When the Company reviews pay it takes a number of factors into consideration, including the need to stay competitive.
Our focus on cash and costs remains incredibly important for the future heaith of our business. We need to balance our business and financial
commitments with our continuing investment in our pragramming and people.

The Company continues to be committed to ensuring colleagues earn at least the Living Wage or greater. Where appropriate we have agreed
additionalincreases. On 1st January 2017, alt eligible colieagues received a pay increase of 1.5% (2016: 3.0%), with all those on a full-time
equivalent basic salary of £100,000 or above receiving no salary increase, including the Executive Directors,

In addition a bonus arrangement extends to all our colleagues, providing a comprehensive incentive framework which rewards everybody
when the Company is successful. The all-colleague bonus award for 2016 was paid at £1,300 (2015: paid in full at £1,500).

The Company also operates a successfut and popular Save As You Earn scheme that encourages voluntary investment in Company shares and
a package of voluntary benefits, which provides valuable cost savings for both colleagues and the Company.

Information about remuneration for the Directors is included in the Remuneration Report on pages 75 to 88.
Succession planning: When planning succession within the Company consideration s given to emergency cover together with medium

and long-term succession and this is reviewed annually by the Nomination Committee. There is particular ernphasis on growing the internal
leadership pipeline through the launch of the following key programmes:

Executive Next generation potential Management Board successars, glving them an opportunity to develop their managerment potential
Development and gain a greater understanding of the business.

Programme

Developing Delegates selected from across the business identified as a result of the performance review process, Content

Future Leaders includes understanding what it means to be a eader at [TV, how to manage performance effectively, coaching skills
Programme and change management.

A comprehensive portfolic of development courses and workshops is in place for all colleagues which address common development needs.

Greenhouse Gas emissions
The Company is required to report annually on the quantity of carbon dioxide equivalent emissions in tonnes emitted as aresult of activities for
whichitis responsible.

All data for the financial year ended 31 Decernber 2016 is disclosed below for direct and indirect (electricity consumption) emissions. More
information on how we minimise our environmental impact can be found oh our Responsibility website.

@ www.itvresponsibility.com

Indicater e 2015
Total gross CO,e emissions 26,984 (tC0e) 31196 (1CO.€)
Scope 1: Direct emissions 7,793 (tC0,e) 8,294 (tCO.L)
Scope 2: Indirect emissions 19,191 (tCO.e) 22902 (tCO.e)
Total revenue £3,527m £3,383m
Emissions per unit/£m revenue 7.7 (1C0,e) 9.2 (tCO.&)

Source: Mitle Energy analysis of TV data.
The emissions data covers our global operations. The tatest conversion factors from the Department for Business, Energy & industrial Strategy were used to calculate emissions in tonnes of
carbon dioxide equivalents 34% of our data set is based on estimated data Estimates are calculated from previous consumption trends and published benchmarks.
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As 90% of our greenhouse gas emissions are generated within our UK operations we have concentrated our efforts this year in our oldest
builldings by starting to replace the ageing infrastructure with more efficient plant. in the last year we have seen a 12% reduction in energy

use at our main site in Leeds as the replacement programme has delivered benefits. We have been able to reduce energy use in our Birmingham
studio by almost 20% by replacing the air conditioning with a more efficient system and have reduced our gas consumption in London by 10%
by conducting a review of building operations and varying the operating hours of the heating plant. Further investment in 2017 should deliver
continued steady reductions.

Health and safety

The health and safety of our colleagues, contractors and those participating in our productions is always a high priority. The significant loss of
human life as the result of a major incident has been identified as a Principal risk to the organisation. The Company's professional Health and
Safety team continue to develop and refine our management system to ensure it meets the specific risk profile of the business and embeds
the ownership of risk with business owners.

In 2016 we rolled out a Leading Risk programme with the leadership teams in ITV Studios UK, supported by a research project being undertaken
in collaboration with the London School of Economics to give us a greater understanding of risk taking beliefs and behaviours within our
production business.

We wilt build on this in 2017 across our international business and we and will continue to underpin our Health and Safety Management system
with three key principles:

« People are the solution.
« Safetyis about positive outcomes.
» Safetyis a moral responsibility.

Performance indicators - UK

2016 2018
Non Non

Staff Staff Total Staff Staff Total

Lost time accidents reported under RIDDOR? 4 1 5 5 7 12

Specified injuries reported under RIDDOR? 2 2 4 1 8 9
Performance indicators - intermnational

Australia France Germany Talpa USA Finland Norway Sweden Denmark

Serious injuries sustained at work by staff 201 0 0 0 0 3 0 o 0 0

or people directly involved in our activities’ 2015 0 0 1 - 1 0 [+ 0 0

1. Thisindicates accidents that have led to people being unable to undertake their normal role for seven days or longer.

2. Specified injuries in this context means injuries suchas broken bones (net fingers or toes), amputation, serious burns, loss of consciousness caused by a head injury or inpatient
hosprtalisation, These are reported if they were caused by our work activity,

3 Reported data excludes Mammoth, TwoFour and Talpa as these were not integrated Into the ITV Health and Safety Management system In the year ended 31 December 2015,

Due to differing local legislative reporting requirements figures for lost time accidents have not yet beenintegratedinto the ITV Health and Safety Managernent System.

Insurance and indemnities
The Company maintains liability insurance for its Directors and officers that is renewed on an annual basis. The Company has also enteredinto
deeds of indemnity with its Directors and other Senior Executives. A copy of the indemnity can be found on our website.

@ www.itvplc.com/investors/qovermnance

The Company operates a pension scheme that provides retirement and death benefits for colleagues. Qualifying pension scheme indemnity
provisions, as defined in Section 235 of the Companies Act 2006, were in force for the financial year ended 31 Dacember 2016 and remain in
force for the benefit of each of the directors of ITV Pension Scheme Limited. These indemnity provisions cover, to the extent permitted by
law, certain losses or liabilities incurred as a director of ITV Pension Scheme Limited.

101



Governance P Directors’ Report

Directors’ Report continued

Listing rule 9.8.4 disclosures
There are no disclosures to be made other than that the trustee of the ITV Employees’ Benefit Trust (EBT} waived their rights to receive
dividends on shares held by them which do not relate to restricted shares held under the ITV DSA.

Political contributions

Itis the Company's policy nat to make cash contributions to any palitical party. However, within the normal activities of the Company's national
and regional news-gathering operations there may be occasions when an activity might fall within the broader definition of ‘political
expenditure’ contained within the Companies Act 2006. Shareholder authority for such expenditure was given at the 2016 AGM. However,
during 2016 the Group made ha payments falling within this definition (2015: nil).

Report and Accounts disclosures

Financial risk management: The Directors have carried out a robust assessment of the Principal risks facing the Company, indudingin
relation toits business medel, future performance, solvency and liquidity. Details of our risks and associated mitigations together with detalls
of our appreach torisk management are set out on pages 50 to 57

Note 4.3 to the accounts on page 161 gives details of the Group's financial risk management policies and related exposures. This is deemed to
form part of this report.

Future developments: Our strategy is set out in the Strategic Report.

Going concern: The going concern statement is set out on page 116, This note is deemed to form part of this report.

Subsequent events: Details of post balance sheet events are set out in the Strategic Report on page 49 and in Note 5.3 on page 172.
Research and Development: Relevant information is set out in the Strategic Report.

Share capital

Issued: At the date of this report there were 4,025,409,194 ordinary shares of 10 pence each in issue, alt of which are fully paid up and quoted

on the London Stock Exchange.

Purchase of own shares: The Directors have the authority to purchase up to 402.5 rmillion of the Company’s ordinary shares. The authority
remains valid until the AGM in 2017 or 10 August 2017, if earlier.

Restrictions: There are no restrictions on the transfer of ordinary shares in the capital of the Company other than those which may be imposed
by law from time to time. In accordance with the Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules (DTRs), Persons Discharging Managerial
Responsibility are required to seek approval to deal in ITV shares. The Company is not aware of any agreements between shareholders that may
result in restrictions on the transfer of securities and/or voting rights.

Rights: The rights attaching to the Company’s ordinary shares are set out in the Articles of Association,
Share Schemes: Details of employee share schemes are set out in note 4.7. The Company's EBT is funded by loans to acquire shares for the
potential benefit of employees. Details of shares held by the EBT at 31 December 2016 are set out on page 171. During the year shares have been

released from the EBT in respect of share schemes for employees. The trustee of the EBT has the power to exercise all voting rights inrelation
to any investment (including ordinary shares) held within the EBT.
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Substantial shareholders
Information regarding interests in voting rights provided to the Company pursuant to the DTRs is published on a Regulatory Information Service

and on the Company’s website.

As at 1March 2017, the information in the table below had been received, in accordance with DTRS, from holders of notifiable interests {voting
rights) in the Company’s issued share capital. It should be noted that these holdings may have changed since notified to the Company. However,
notification of any change is not required until the next applicable threshold is crossed.

% interest
% interest Nature of in financial Total number of shares
in shares interestinshares  instruments Nature ofinterestin financial instruments  orinterest inshares
Liberty Global Incorporated Limited 990 Direct - - 398,515,510
Ameriprise Financial, inc. and its group 485 Indirect 0.01 Equity swap 201,233,569
Blackrock Inc. 341 indirect 3.08 Securities lending 284,240,487
0.56 Contract For Difference
The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. 0.07 Indirect 0.27 Stock Loan (physical) 826,553,051
2019 Swap (cash) Contract
For Difference {cash)
Over The Counter option
{physical or cash)

The number of shares is based on anhouncements made by each relevant shareholder using the Company’s issued share capital at that date.
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The Directots consider that the Annual
Report and Accounts, taken as a whole, is fair,
balanced and understandable and provides
the information necessary for shareholders
to assess the Company's and the Group's
position and performance, business model
and strategy.

Each of the Directors, whose names and
functions are listed on pages 60 and 61,
confirm that, to the best of their knowledge:

- the Group accounts, which have been
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the EU, give a true and fair view
of the assets, liabilities, financial position
and profit of the Group; and

- the Strategic and Directors' Reports include
a fair review of the development and
performance of the business and the
position of the Group, together with
a description of the Principal risks
and uncertainties that it faces.

In accordance with Section 418 of the
Companies Act 2006, the Directors confirm
that, so far as they are each aware, thereis
no relevant audit information of which the
Company's auditor is unaware; and each
Director has taken all steps that they
ought to have taken as a Director in order
to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that
the Company’s auditor is aware of

that information.

The Board has conducted a review of

the effectiveness of the Group’s systems
ofinternal controls for the year ended
31December 2016. In the opinion of

the Board, the Company has complied with
the internal control requirements of the UK
Corporate Governance Code throughout the
year, maintaining an ongoing process far
identifying, evaluating, and minimising risk.
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The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and Accounts in accordance
with applicable law and reguiations.

Company kaw requires the Directors to prepare Group and parent company finahcial
statements for each financial year. Under that Llaw they are required to prepare the Group
financial statements in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and applicable law
and have elected to prepare the parent company financial statements in accordance
with UK Accounting Standards, including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework,

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless
they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
and parent company and of their profit or loss for that period. In preparing each of the
Group and parent company financial statements, the Directors are required:

« toselect suitable accounting policies and then apply thern cansistently;

« to make judgements and estimates that are reascnable and prudent;

- for the Group financial statements, to state whether they have been prepared
in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU;

» for the parent company financial statements, state whether applicable UK Accounting
Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the parent company financiat statements; and

+ toprepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate
to presume that the Group and the parent company wilt continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient
to show and explain the parent company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the parent company and enable them to
ensure that its financial staterments comply with the Companies Act 2006. They have
general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard
the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

tnder applicable law and regulations, the Directors are also responsible for preparing
a Strategic Report, Directors’ Report, Remuneration Report and Corporate Governance
Statement that comply with that law and those regulations.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and
finandalinformation included on the Company's website. Legistation in the UK governing
the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislationin
other jurisdictions.

By order of the Board

l1an Griffiths

Group Finance Director
1March 2017

ITVple

Registered number 4967001
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Financial Statements

In this The financial statements have been presented in a style that attempts to make them less complex
section and more relevant ta sharehalders. We have grouped the note disclosures into five sections: ‘Basis of
Preparation’, ‘Results for the Year’, ‘Operating Assets and Liabilities’, ‘Capital Structure and Financing
Costs’ and ‘Other Notes’. Each section sets out the accounting policies applied in producing the relevant
notes, along with details of any key judgements and estimates used. The purpose of this format is to
provide readers with a clearer understanding of what drives financial performance of the Group,
The aim of the text in boxes is to provide commentary on each section, or note, in plain English.

In this Notes to the financial statements provide information required by statute, accounting standards or Listing
section Rules to explain a particular feature of the financial statements. The notes which follow will also provide

expianations and additional disclosure to assist readers’ understanding and interpretation of the Annual
Report and the financial statements.

&
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Financial Statements

Independent Auditor’s Report to the

Members of ITV plc Only

Opinions and conclusions arising from our audit

1. Our opinion on tha finandial statements is unmodified

We have audited the financial statements of ITV plc for the year ended 31 December 2016 set out on pages 110 to 188. In our opinion:

+ the finandal statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group's and of the parent company's affairs as at 31 December 2016

and of the group's profit for the year then ended;

+ the group financiai statements have been properly prepared in accordance with intemational Financial Reporting Standards as adopted

by the European Uniory;

« the parent company financial statements have been property prepared in accordance with UK Accounting Standards, including FRS 101

Reduced Disclosure Framework; and

= the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and, as regards the group

financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.
2. Our assassmant of risks of material misstatemant

In arriving at our audit opinion above on the financial statements the risks of material misstatement, in decreasing order of audit significance,

that had the greatest effect on our audit, were as follows:

The risk

Our response

Net Advertising Revenue (‘NAR") £1,672 million (2015: £1,719 million) Risk vs 2015: « »,
Refer to page 71 (Audit Committee report), page 120 {accounting policy) and pages 121 and 122 (financial disclosures)

The majority of ITV's advertising revenue {NAR') is subject to regulation
under Ofcom’s Contract Rights Renewal system ('CRR'). CRR works by
ensuring that the annual share of TV advertising that will be placed
with ITV by each advertising agency can change in relation to the
viewing figures for commerdial television that it delivers. The CRR
systern, the pricing of the annual contractual arrangements with
advertising agencies and the details of each advertising campaign,
together with the related processes and controls, are complex and
involve estimation.

In particular, the pricing mechanism means it is possible for a
difference to arise between the price received by ITV for an advertising
campaign and the value it delivered, mainly as a result of the actual
viewing figures being different from the agreed level Where the
Group has over-delivered viewers this is referred to as a 'deal credit’,
or a‘deal debt’ where delivery has fallen short. Rather than the price
paid for that campaign being adjusted, these differences are noted for
each agency and then taken account of when agreeing either future
campaigns or the annual contract. A net deal debt position with an
agency is recorded in [TV's accounts, as a liability. Net deal credit
positions are not recagnised.

NAR is therefore considered a significant risk due to:

*» The number and complexity of contractual agreements with
advertising agencies;

= The complexity of the systems and processes of control used to
record revenue; and,

*+ The level of estimation involved in determining the deal debt liability
at the period end.

Qur procedures incdluded:

= Testing of controls, assisted by our own IT specialists, induding those
over: segregation of duties, input of annual deal terms with agencies,
input of individual campaigns' terms and pricing, comparison of
those terms and pricing data against the related contracts with
advertising agencies; linkage to transmission/viewer data; and the
system generated calculation of deal debt for each campaign,

Analysing revenue based on our industry knowledge and external
market data, following up variances; and

= Challenging the year-end deat debt positicn based on comparison
with customers’ correspondence and agreed terms of business.

We also assessed the adequacy of the group's disclosures in respect
of the accounting policies on revenue recognition.
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The risk

Qur response

Other revenue streams ("Non-NAR revenue’) £1,392 million {2015: £1,253 million) Risk vs 2015: v
Refer to page 71 (Audit Committee report), page120 (accounting policy) and pages 121 and 122 {financial disclosures)

Non-NAR revenue inctudes revenue from: programme production,
the sale of programme rights, transmission supply arrangements and
the Online, Pay & Interactive division within the Broadcast segrment.

Recognition of revenue is driven by the specific terms of the related
contracts and is considered to be a significant risk as the terms of
the contracts are varied and can be complex, with the result that
accounting for the revenue generated in any given period can require
individual consideration and judgement. Due to the contractual
nature of these revenue streams, the focus of our werk is on the risks
associated with significant one-off contracts.

Our procedures included:

* We considered the Group's revenue recognition policies against the
relevant accounting standards; and

* For higher value revenue contracts entered into during the year,
we considered whether revenue had been recognised in accordance
with the contractual terms in the correct accounting period, given
the requirements of the relevant accounting standard.

Woe also assessed the adequacy of the group's disclosures in respect
of the accounting policy on revenue recognition.

Defined benefit pension scheme obligations £367 million (2015: £176 million) Risk vs 2015: 4
Refer to page 70 (Audit Committee report), page 148 (accounting policy) and pages 148 to 156 (financial disclosures)

Significant estimates are made in determining the key assumptions
used in valuing the group's post-retirement defined benefit
obligations. When making these assumptions the Group takes
independent actuarial advice relating to their appropriateness.

Following an analysis of the membership data carried out for the
related longevity swap, the Group updated its mortality assumptions
in the year which had an impact on the obligations at the year-end.

The Group also closed the ITV Pensions Scheme for future benefit
accrual with effect from 28 February 2017,

The valuation of the defined benefit cbligations is considered a significant
risk given the quantum of the pensian deficits, the developments related
to the schemnes in the year, and given that a small change in assumptions
can have a material finandalimpact on the Group.

Our procedures included:

+ Challenging the key assumptions applied in determining the.Group's
pension obligations, being the discount rate, inflation rate and
mortality/life expectancy, with the support of our own actuarial
spedialists;

+ This included a comparison of these key assumptions against
externally derived data; and

+ Testing the methodology applied in deterrnining the revised
mortality expectation by comparing the conclusions of the Group's
analysis with our own analysis formed using extemally derived data.

We also considered the adequacy of the group's disclosures in respect
of the sensitivity of the deficits to these assumptions.

We continue to perform procedures over acquisition accounting and royalty accruals. We have not assessed these as risks that had the greatest
effect on our audit for the reasons explained below and, therefore, they are not separately identified in our report this year:

Acquisition accounting is not separately identified in our report this year as the Group did not enter into any complex transactions in the year.

Royalty accruals are no longer considered a significant risk reflecting further improvement in controls in the year and the overall size of the

balance by comparison with the Group's Net Asset position.

107

SJUBWIINIS [RPURLY |




Finhancial Statements

Independent Auditor’s Report to the
Members of ITV plc Only continued

3. Qur application of materiality and an overview of the scope of our audit

Materiality for the group financial statements as a whole was set at £35 million {2015: £29 million), determined with reference to a benchrnark
of group profit before tax normalised to exclude the one-off pre-paid employment linked remuneration charge and pension curtailment cost
disclosed in note 2.2, £623 miltion, of which materiality represents 5.5% (2015: 4.6% of group profit before tax).

We reported to the Audit Committee any corrected or uncorrected identified misstaterments exceeding mitlion £17 million (2015: £1.5 millien),
in addition to other identified misstatements that warranted reporting on qualitative grounds.

Scoping and coverage

The Group's principal operations are in the United Kingdom. The Group audit team performed the audit of the core UK operations {(comprising
Broadcast and Online, the UK Studios, Global Entertainment and the central functions) as if they were a single aggregated set of financial
information using materiality of £25 million (2015: £25 million). The group team performed procedures on the items exduded from normatised
group prafit before tax This year Talpa Media BV, in the Netherlands, was also scoped in for Greup audit purposes as a full scope audit. The work on
Talpa Media B.V, was performed by a component auditor as instructed by the Group, induding the assessment of relevant risks and determination

of the inforrmation to be repotted bade The Group audit team set the materiality of £5 million for this component.

The Group team visited the component in Netherlands, including to assess the audit risk and strategy, and held several telephone conference
meetings with the component audit team, At this visit and in these meetings, the findings reported to the Group team were discussed In more
detail, and any further work required by the Group team was then performed by the component auditor.

Although not in-scope for Group reparting purposes, in agreement with the Audit Comrmittee, specified risk-based audit procedures were also
performed on two entities in the US by component auditors simultanecusly with the audit of the in-scope operations. The Group audit team
set the materiality for specified audit procedures at £5 million for these US components. Together the above audit and these specified audit
procedures covered 90% (2015: 92%) of group revenue, 89% (2015: 94%) of group profit before taxation; and 90% {20115: 88%) of total

group assets.

4, Our opinion on other matters prescribad by the Companies Act 2006 is unmaodified
In our opinion:

* the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006; and

* the information givenin the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared
is consistent with the financial statements.

Based solely on the work required te be undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial statements and from reading the Strategic
Report and the Directors' Report:

* we have not identified material misstaternents in those reports; and

= in our opinion, those reports have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.
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5. We have nothing to report on the disclosures of principal risks
Based on the knowledge we acquired during our audit, we have nothing material to add or draw attenticon to in relation to:

« the Directors’ viability statement on page 57, concerning the principal risks, their management, and, based on that, the Directors' assessment
and expectations of the group’s continuing in operation over the 3 years to 31 December 2019; or

» the disclosures in note 1 of the financial statements concerning the use of the going concern basis of accounting.

6. We have nothing to report in respect of the matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under ISAs (UK and Ireland) we are required to report to you if, based an the knowledge we acquired during our audit, we have identified other
information in the annual report that contains a material inconsistency with either that knowledge or the financial statements, a material
misstatement of fact, or that is otherwise misleading.

In particular, we are required to report to you if:

+ we have identified material inconsistencies between the knowledge we acquired during our audit and the Directors’ statement that they
consider that the annual report and financial statements taken as a whote is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the group's position and performance, business madel and strategy; or

« the Audit Committee Report does not appropriately address matters comemunicated by us to the Audit Committee.
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinior:

« adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or retums adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or

= the parent company finandal statements and the part of the Directors' Remunetation Report to be audited are not in agreement with the
accounting records and returns; or

= certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made: or

= we have not received all the information and expianations we require for our audit.

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review:

« the Directors' statements, set out on pages 104 and 57, in relation to going concern and longer-term viability; and

= the part of the Corporate Governance Statement on pages 64 to 67 relating to the company’s compliance with the eleven provisions of the
2014 UK Corparate Governance Code specified for our review.

We have nothing to report in respect of the above responsibilities.

Scope and responsibilities

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 104, the Directors are responsible for the preparation

of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. A description of the scope of an audit of financial
statements is provided on the Financial Reporting Council's website at www.frcorg.uk/auditscopeukprivate. This report is made solely

to the company's members as a body and is subject to important explanations and disclaimers regarding our responsibilities, published on our
website at www.kpmg.com/uk/auditscopeukco2014a, which are incorporated into this report as if set out in full and should be read to provide
an understanding of the purpose of this report, the work we have undertaken and the basis of our opinions.

Paul Sawdon (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London

£14 5GL

1 March 2017
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Financia| Statemaents

Consolidated Income Statement

206 2015
For the year ended 31 Decernber Note £m £m
Revenue 21 3,064 2972
Operating costs {2,460) (2.306)
Operating profit 604 666
Presented as:
Earnings before interest, tax, amortisation (EBITA) before exceptional items 21 as7 842
Operating exceptional items 22 (164) (109
Amortisation of intangible assets 3.3 (89) 67)
Operating profit 604 666
Financing income 44 2 6
Financing costs 4.4 (53) (37)
Net financing costs 44 ~ (51) 31)
Gain on sale of non-current assets (exceptional items) 22 - 5
Gain on sate of subsidiaries and investments (exceptional items) 22 - 1
Profit before tax 553 641
Taxation 23 {100) (139)
Profit from continuing operations 453 502
Loss after tax for the period from discontinued operation 25 {1} -
Profit for the year 452 502
Profit attributable to:
Owners of the Company 448 495
Non-controlling interests 46.6 4 7
Profit for the year 452 502
Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share 24 M2p 12.4p
Diluted earnings per share 24 .p 123p
Eamings per share from continuing operations
Basic earnings per share 24 12p 124p
Diluted earnings per share 24 11.p 12.3p

10
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

2016 2015

For the year ended 3t December Note £m £m
Profit for the year 452 502
Other comprehensive income;
items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
Revaluation of available for sale financial assets 464 1 {1)
Net loss on cash flow hedges 46.3 ) -
Exchange gain on translation of foreign operations (net of hedging) 4.6.3 46 10
Items that will never be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement {losses)/gains on defined benefit pension schemes 3.7 {248) 91
Income tax charge on items that will never be reclassified 23 40 {19)
Other comprehensive {cost)/income for the year, net of income tax (163) 81
Total comprehensive income for the year 289 583
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the Company 285 576
Non-cantrolling interests 466 4 7

289 583

Total comprehensive income for the year

m
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Financial Statements

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

2016 2015
As at 31 December Note £m £m
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 32 244 239
Intangible assets 33 1,624 1500
Investments in joint ventures, associates and equity investments 35 76 30
Derivative finandial instruments 43 1 8
Distribution rights 312 3 29
Other pension asset 37 39 -
Deferred tax asset 2.3 17 -
2,032 1806
Current assets
Programme rights and other inventory 311 406 373
Trade and other receivables due within one year 313 526 531
Trade and other receivables due after more than one year 313 39 33
Trade and other receivables 565 564
Current tax receivable T 13
Derivative financial instruments 43 8 1
Cash and cash equivalents 4. 561 294
1551 1,245
Current liabilities
Borrowings 4.2 {165} )
Derivative financial instruments 43 (£)) [E)]
Trade and other payables due within one year 314 (960) 786)|
Trade payables due after more than one year 315 (57) “8)|
Trade and other payables (1,017) 834)
Current tax liabilities {76) (69)
Provisions 36 (19) (28)
(1.280) (847
Net current assets Fral 298
Non-cutrent liabllities
Borrowings 42 {1,035) (602)
Derivative finandal instruments 43 ® _®)
Defined benefit pension deficit 37 (367) (176)
Deferred tax liabilities 23 70) 79
Other payables 315 (63) 89
Provisions 36 (4) {5
{1.548) {857)
Net assets 755 1147
Attributable to equity shareholders of the parent company
Share capital 461 403 403
Share premium 46.1 174 174
Merger and other reserves 462 pry) 20
Translation reserve 463 79 35
Available for sale reserve 464 7 6
Retained earnings 465 {162) 275
Total equity attributable to equity shareholders of the parent company 722 ma
Non-controlling interests 33 33
Total equity 755 1147

The accounts were approved by the Board of Directors on 1 March 2017 and were signed on its behalf by:

lan Griffiths
Group Finance Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Attributable to equity shareholders of the parent company

Merger Available Non-
Share Share  andother Translation for sale Retalned controlling Total
capital premium reserves reserve reserve earnings Total interasts equity
Note £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 2016 403 174 n 35 6 275 1114 33 1,147
Total comprehensive income for
the year
Profit - - - - - 448 448 4 452
Other comprehensive income/(cost)
Revaluation of available for sale
financial assets - - - - 1 - 1 — 1
Net loss on cash flow hedges - - - (2 - - {2) - (7]
Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations (net of hedging) - - - 46 - - 46 - 46
Remeasurement loss on defined benefit
pension schemes 37 - - - - - (248) (248 - (248)
Income tax charge on other
comprehensive income 23 - - - - - 40 40 - &0
Total other comprehensive income - - - 44 1 {208) (163) - {163)
Total comprehensive income for
the year - — - 44 1 240 285 4 289
Transactions with owners, recorded
directly in equity
Contributions by and distributions
to owners
Equity dividends - - - - - {663) (663) {4) (667)
Movements due to share-based
compensation 47 - - - - ~ 10 10 - 10
Tax on items taken directly to equity 23 - - - - - {4) (4) - {4)
Purchase of own shares via employees’
benefit trust 4.7 - - - - - (20) {20) - 20)
Total contributions by and distributions
to owners - - - - - 677) 677) (4)  (e87)
Total transactions with owners - - - - - 677 677) (4 (e81)
Balance at 31 December 2016 4.6 403 174 Py 79 7 {162) 72 33 755
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RUILINS [RPUTUL |




Financial Statements

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity continued

Attributable to equity shareholders of the parent company

Merger Available Non-
Share Share  andother Translation forsale  Retalned controlling Totat
capital premium reserves reserve reserve earnings Total interasts squity
Note £m £m £m £m m £m £Em m i £m
Balance at 1January 2015 ) 403 174 228 25 7 77 10% 50 1064
Total comprehensive income for
the year _ _
Profit - - - - - 495 495 7 502
Other comprehensive income/(cost) _
Revaluation of available for sale
financial assets B - - - - )] - ] - _m
Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations (net of hedging) - - - 0 - - 10 - 10
Remeasurement gains on defined
benefit pension schemes - 37 - - - - - Ell ) - n
Reclassification of revaluation reserve
on disposal of property, plant and
equipment - - (4) - - 4 - - -
Income tax charge on other
comprehensive income 23 - - - - - (19 (19 - (19)
Total other comprehensive income - - ()] 10 )] 76 81 - 81
Total comprehensive income for
the year - - {4) 10 {1 571 576 7 583
Transactions with owners, recorded
directly in equity . -
Contributions by and distributions
to owners L
Equity dividends - - - - - {459) (459) (5).__ (464)
Moavements due to share-based
compensation 47 - - - - - 14 14 - 14
Tax on items taken directly to equity 23 - - - - 5 5 - 5
Purchase of own shares via employees’
benefittrust 47 - - - - - (33) 33) adl &3
Total contributions by and distributions
to owners - = - - - (473) 473) (B  (a78)
Total transactions with owners - - - - - (473) (473) (B)  (478)
Changes in noh-cantrolling interests® 34 - - 3 - - - €) (19) 22)
Balance at 31 December 2015 45 403 174 p7y 35 6 275 1114 33 1,147

(a} Movements reported in merger and other reserves include a put option for the acquisition of non-controlling interests.

M4



ITV plc Annual Report and Accounts 2016

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

2016 2015

For the year ended 31 December Note £m £m £€m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations before exceptional items: 21 870 827
Cash flow relating to operating exceptional items:

Operating exceptional items 22 {164) (109)

Prepaid employment linked consideration 34 - {109)

Increase in exceptional payables 7 60

Decrease in exceptional prepayments and other receivables 66 36
Cash outflow from exceptional items {27) {122)
Operating cash flow from discontinued operation 25 (6) —
Cash generated from operations 837 705
Defined benefit pension deficit funding (80) (°0)
Interest received 38 pic)
interest paid on bank and other loans (58) (34)
Net taxation paid (90) (17)

(190) {216)

Net cash inflow from operating activities 647 489
Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of subsidiary undertaking, net of cash acquired 34 (97) {406)

Prepaid employment linked cansideration 34 - 109
Net consideration paid (97) (297)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment - 28
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (29} (33)
Acquisition of intangible assets (15) {16)
Acquisition of investments (47) {14)
Loans granted to associates and joint ventures @) @
Net proceeds from sale of assets held for sale 25 10
Proceeds from sale of subsidiaries, joint ventures and available for
sale investments - 1
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities {174) (333)
Cash flows from financing activities
Bank and other loans - amounts repaid (655) (447
Bank and other loans — amounts raised 11477 797
Capital elernent of finance lease payments (6) @
Equity dividends paid (663) {459}
Dividend paid to minority interest (4) {5
Purchase of own shares via employees’ benefit trust (20) {33}
Net cash outflow from financing activitles (a7n (154)
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 302 2
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 4.1 294 297
Reclassification of gilts to other pension assets 37 (39) -
Effects of exchange rate changes and fair value movements & {5)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 4.1 561 294

s
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements
Section 1: Basis of Preparation
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In this This section sets out the Group's accounting policies that relate to the financial
section statements as a whole. Where an accounting policy is specific to one note, the policy
is described in the note to which it relates. This section also shows new EU endorsed

accounting standards, amendments and interpretations, and whether they are
effective in 2016 or later years. We explain how these changes are expected to
impact the financial position and performance of the Group.

The financial statements consolidate those of ITV plc (‘the Company’) and its subsidiaries (together referred to as
the ‘Group’) and the Group's interests in associates and jointly controlied entities. The Company is domiciled in the
United Kingdom.

As required by European Union law (IAS Regulation EC 1606/2002) the Group's financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (IFRS), and approved
by the Directors.

The financial statements are principally prepared on the basis of historical cost. Where other bases are applied these
are identified in the relevant accounting policy.

The parent company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101
Reduced Disclosure Framework (FRS101).

Golhg concemn

At 31 December 2016 the Group was in a net debt position. The Group’s strong balance sheet and continued generation
of significant free cash flows has enabled further investment as well as the payment of a special dividend. The Group
has also saught to gain further efficiencies in the balance sheet and maintain the flexibility to invest in the business by
issuing a new Eurobond (see section 4 for details on capital structure and financing).

The Group continues to review forecasts of the television advertising market to determine the impact on ITV's liquidity
position. The Group’s forecasts and projections, taking account of reasonably possible changes in trading performance,
show that the Group will be able to operate within the level of its current available funding.

The Group also continues to focus on development of the non-advertising business, and evaluates the impact of
further investment against the strategy and cash headroom of the business.

After making enqiries, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue
in operation for at least twelve months from the date of this report, Accordingly, the Group continues to adopt the going
concern basls in preparing its consolidated financial statements.

Subsidiaries, joint ventures, associates and available for sale Investments

Subsidiaries are entities that are directly or indirectly controlled by the Group. Control exists where the Group has
the power to govern the financial and operating policies of the entity in order to obtain benefits from its activities.
In assessing control, potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are taken into account.

A joint venture Is a joint arrangement in which the Group holds an interest under a contractual arrangement where
the Group and one or more other parties undertake an economic activity that is subject to joint control The Group
accaunts for its interests in joint ventures using the equity method, Under the equity method the investment in the
entity is stated as cne line item at cost plus the investor's share of retained post-acquisition profits and other changes
in net assets.

An associate is an entity, other than a subsidiary or joint venture, over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in, but not control or jointly control, the financial and operating
dedisions of an entity. These investments are also accounted for using the equity method.

Investments where the Group concludes it does not have significant influence are deemed ‘available for sale’. These
investments are held at fair value unless the investment is a start-up business, in which case it is valued at cost and
assessed for impaitment,
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Current/non-current distinction

Current assets include assets held primarily for trading purposes, cash and cash equivalents, and assets expected to be
realised in, or intended for sale or use in, the course of the Group's operating cycle. All other assets are classified as non-
current assets.

Current liabilities inciude liabilities held primarily for trading purposes, liabilities expected to be settled in the course
of the Group's operating cycle and those liabilities due within one year from the reporting date. All other liabilities
are classified as non-current liabilities.

Classification of financial instrumants
The financial assets and liabilities of the Group are dlassified into the following financial staterment captions in the
statement of financial position in accordance with IAS 39 Financial Instruments:

» Loans and receivables — separately disclosed as cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables;

+ Available for sale financial assets — measured at fair value through other comprehensive incorme;

« Finandial assets/liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - separately disclosed as derivative finandal instrumentsin
assets/liabilities and induded in non-current other payables (contingent consideration); and

= Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost - separately disclosed as borrowings and trade and other payables.

Judgernent is required when determining the appropriate classification of the Group's financial instruments.
Details on the accounting policies for measurement of the above instruments are set out in the relevant note.
Where unconditional rights to set off financial instruments exist, the Group presents the relevant instruments
net in the statement of financial position.

Racognition and derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

The Group recognises a financial asset or liability when it becomes a party to the contract. Financial instruments
are no fonger recognised in the statement of financial position when the contractual cash flows expire or when
the Group no longer retains control of substantially all the risks and rewards under the instrument.

Cash and cash squivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, call deposits with a maturity of less than or equal to three months
from the date of acquisition and cash held to meet certain finance lease commitments. The carrying value of cash and
cash equivalents is considered to approximate fair value. Cash and cash equivalents that has a charge executed over it
is excluded froim cash and cash equivalents.

Foreign currencies
The primary economic environment in which the Group operates is the UK and therefore the consolidated financial
statements are presented in pounds sterling ('£).

Where Group companies based in the UK transact in foreign currencies, these transactions are translated into pounds
sterling at the exchange rate on the transaction date. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated
into pounds sterling at the year end exchange rate. Where there is a movement in the exchange rate between the date
of the transaction and the year end, a foreign exchange gain or loss is recognised in the income statement.

Hedge accounting is implemented on certain foreign currency firm commitments, which allows for the effective
portion of any foreign exchange gains or losses to be recognised in other comprehensive income (note 4.3).

Where a forward currency contract is used to manage foreign exchange risk and hedge accounting is not applied,
any movernent incurrency is taken to the income statement.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at historical cost are translated intc pounds sterling at the exchange rate
on the date of the transaction.

The assets and liabilities of Group companies outside of the UK are translated into pounds sterling at the year end
exchange rate. The revenue and expenses of these companies are translated into pounds sterling at the average
monthly exchange rate during the year. Where differences arise between these rates, they are recognised in the
translation reserve within other comprehensive income.

"7
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Section 1: Basis of Preparation continued

Exchange differences arising on the translation of the Group's interests in joint ventures and assodiates are recognised
in the translation reserve within other comprehensive income.

On disposal of a foreign subsidiary, an interest in a joint venture or an associate, the related translation reserve
is released to the income statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Accounting judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to exercise judgerment in applying the Group’s
accounting policies. It also requires the use of estimates and assumpticns that affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, with revisions recognised in the period
in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity are set cut betow and in more detail in the related notes:

* Revenue recognition (note 2.1}
+ Business combinations (note 33 and note 3.4}

In addition to the above, the areas involving the most sensitive estimates and assumptions that are significant to the
financial staterments are set out below and in more detail in the related notes:

» Defined benefit pensian {(note 3.7)
» Taxation (hote 2.3)
» Testing of goodwill impairment (note 3.3)

New or amended EU andorsed accounting standards
The table below represents new or amended EU endorsed accounting standards relevant to the Group's results that
are effective in 2016:

Accounting Stanhdard Requlrement

IAS 38 Intangible The amendments clarify acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisation introducing
Assets and arebuttable presumption that the use of revenue-based amortisation or depreciation

IAS 16 Property, Plant  methods is inappropriate. This presumption ¢an be overceme when revenue and the

and Equipment consumption of the econemic benefits of the asset are highly correlated.

IAS 27 Separate The amendments allow the use of the equity method in separate financial statements, and
Financlal Statements  apply to the accounting not only for associates and joint ventures, but also for subsidiaries.
IAS 11 Joint The amendments require business combination accounting to be applied to acquisitions of
Arrangements interests in a joint operation that constitutes a business.

IAS 1Presentationof  Amendments to darify various standards including IFRS 5 Non-cutrent Assets Held for Sale

financial statements  and Discontinued Operations, IFRS 3 Business Combinations, IFRS 8 Operating Segments,
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement, I1AS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment, 1AS 24 Related Party
Disclosures and IAS 38 Intangible Assets.

Annual Improvements Amendments to clarify various standards including IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale
to IFRS 2012 - 2014 and Discontinued Operaticns, IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures, IAS 19 Employee
cycle Benefits and [AS 34 Interim Financial Reparting.

Based on the Directors’ analysis the amendments outlined above do not have a material impact on the Group's
financial position or performance for the year ended 31 December 2016.

The Directors also considered the impact on the Group of other new and revised accounting standards, interpretations
or amendments that are currently endorsed but not yet effective. There are none that are effective for periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016 that are expected to have a significant impact on the Group's results.
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IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers is effective 1January 2018. IFRS 15 will require the Group to identify
distinct promises in contracts with customers that qualify as ‘performance obligations'. The price receivable from
customers must then be allocated between the performance obligations identified.

An initial assessment of impact on the Group's performance has been performed on material revenue streams.

The impact is not expected to be materiat for Broadcasting revenues. Studios revenues are mainly comprised of
production and distribution revenue streams. No materiat impact is expected on the preduction revenues. Further
detailed analysis on licensing and merchandising revenues is ongoing to assess whether contracts include dynamic

(e.g. continued obligation to update content over the license period) or static performance obligations, which will aid

in determining whether revenue should be recognised over the license period or at a point in time. The impact on those
revenue streams is expected to be limited.

The Directors anticipate adopting IFRS 15 on 7 January 2018. When it is adopted, IFRS 15 can be applied either on a fully
retrospective basis, requiring the restatemnent of the comparative periods presented in the financial statements, or
with the cumulative retrospective impact of the standard applied as an adjustment to equity on the date of adoption.
When the latter is applied disclosure of the impact of IFRS 15 on each line itemn in the financial statements Is required.
The Directors currently intend to apply the cumulative effect method.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments is also effective 1 January 2018. Based on the initial assessment of the impact,
the Directors are currently not expecting the application to significantly impact the Group’s current accounting
or hedging activities.

IFRS 16 Leases is effective 1 January 2019 and has not been endorsed by the EL. IFRS 16 will change lease accounting
for lessees under operating leases. Such agreements will require recognition of an asset representing the right to use
the leased itern and a lability for future lease payments. Lease costs (such as property rent) will be recognised in the form
of depreciation and interest, rather than operating cost. The detailed assessment of impact on the Group's performance

is ongoing, the adoption is likely to have amaterial impact on the presentation of the Group's assets and liabilities.

e

r SJUBLIINIS JRDuRULS ]



Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements

Section 2: Results for the Year

2.1 Profit
before tax

120

In this
section

Keeping
it simple

"

Accounting policies
Revenue recognition

This section focuses on the results and performance of the Group. On the
following pages you will find disclosures explaining the Group’s results for
the year, segmental information, exceptional items, taxation and earnings

per share.

This section analyses the Group’s profit before tax by reference to the activities
performed by the Group and an analysis of key operating costs

Adjusted earnings before interest, tax, amortisation (EBITA} is the Group's key profit
indicatar. This reflects the way the business is managed and how the Directors assess
the performance of the Group. This section therefore also shows each division's
contribution to total revenue and EBITA.

Revenue is stated exclusive of VAT and equivalent sales taxes, and comnprises the sale of products and services

to third parties. Judgement is required when determining the appropriate timing and amount of revenue that can

be recognised, specifically around whether there is a firm contract and that the service has been provided, and if so,
whether there is a fixed or reasonably determinable price that is reasonably certain will be collected. Complexity in
advertising revenue recognition is driven by intricate autormated and manual processes involtved in measuring the value
delivered to the customer.

Revenue is recognised when the Group has transferred both the significant risks and rewards of cwnership and control,
and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue recognition criteria for the Group's key classes of
revenue are recoghised on the following bases:

Applicable segment Class of revenue Recagnition criteria
Broadcast & Online Advertising (NAR) oh transmission
Video on Demand (VOD} as audience targets are met
Sponsorship across petiod of transmission of the sponsored
programme or series
Pay over the term of the contract or for the expacted
revenue per subscriber or download
Participation (Interactive & as the service is pravided or event occurs
Brand Extensions)
Studios Programme production on delivery of episode and acceptance by the

custemer

Programme distribution rights

when the contract is signed and content is available
for exploitation

Forrnat and licences at the point in time when the license is transferred
and the customer is able to use and benefit from
the licence; over the license period if continued
involvernent of the Group is required

Digital: Archive on delivery of content (one-off) or over the contract

period in a manner that reflects the flow of content
delivered {top-up)
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The results for the year aggregate these classes of revenue into four significant categories:
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2016 2016 21015 2015
£m %oftotal €m % of total
NAR
Broadcast & Online 1,672 47% 1,719 51%
Non-NAR
Broadcast & Online 460 427
ITV Studios: Productions 1,089 1,045
ITV Studios: Distribution 306 192
Total Non-NAR 1,855 53% 1,664 49%
Total revenue from continuing operations 3527 100% 3,383 100%
Segmental information

Operating segments, which have not been aggregated, are determined in a manner that is consistent with how the business
is managed and reported to the Board of Directors. The Board is regarded as the chief operating decision rmaker.

The Board considers the business primarily from an cperating activity perspective. The reportable segments for the
years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 are therefore Broadcast & Online and ITV Studios, the results
of which are outlined in the following tables: v

Broadcast
a online IV Studios*  Consolidated
2016 ams 016
£m £m £m
Total segrnent revenue 2,143 1395 3,538
Intersegment revenue - {463) {463)
Revenue from external customers including discontinued operations 2343 932 3,075
Less: Discontinued operations (note 2.5) ) - {1
Revenue from external customers 2,132 932 3,064
Adjusted EBITA including discontinued operations** 636 243 879
Less: Operating loss fromn discontinued operations (note 2.5} {6) - {6)
Adjusted EBITA** 642 243 885
Broadcast
& Online TV Studios* Consolldated
2015 2015 2015
£m £m £m
Total segment revenue 2,146 1,237 3383
Intersegment revenue - (L] {a1)
Revenue from external customers including discontinued operations 2,146 826 2972
Less: Discontinued operations - - -
Revenue from external customers 2146 826 2972
Adjusted EBITA including discontinued operations** 659 206 865
Adjusted EBITA from discontinued operations* - - -
Adjusted EBITA* 659 206 865

* Revenue of £320 million (2015: £389 million) was generated in the US during the year; the US represented £346 millicn
{2015: £314 million) of non-current assets at year end,

w Adjusted EBITA is before exceptionat items and includes the benefit of production tax credits, It is shown after the elimination
of Intersegment revenue and costs. This measure represents the continuing operations.

Intersegment revenue, which is earned on arm's length terms, is generated from the supply of ITV Studics programimes
to Broadcast & Online for transmission primarily on the ITV Network This revenue strearmn is a measure which forms
part of the Group's strategic priority of building a strong international content business, as producing and retaining
rights to the shows broadcast on the ITV Network benefits the Group further from subsequent international content
and format sales.

In preparing the segment information, centrally managed costs have been allocated between reportable segments
on a methodclogy driven principally by revenue, headcount and building occupancy of each segment. This is consistent
with the basis of reporting to the Board of Directors.
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The Group’s principal operations are in the United Kingdom. Revenue from external customers in the United Kingdom
is £2,370 million 2015: £2,275 million), and revenue from external customers in other countries is £694 million
(2015: £657 million). The Financial and Performance Review provides further detail on ITV's international revenues.

There is one media buying agency (2015: two) acting on behalf of a number of advertisers that represent the Group's
major customers. This agency is the only customer which individually represents over 10% of the Group’s revenue.
Revenue of approximately £552 million (2015: £576 million) was derived from this customer. This revenue is attributable
to the Broadcast & Online segment,

Broadcast & Online

The Group operates the largest commercial family of channels in the UK and delivers content through multiple
platforms. in addition to linear television broadcast, the Group delivers its content on the ITV Hub, pay platformns,
and through direct content deals. Content commissioned and scheduled by this segment is funded primarily by television
advertising, where revenue is generated from the sale of audiences for advertising airtime and spensorship,

Other saurces of revenue are from: online advertising; HO digital channels on pay platforms (e.q. Sky and Virgin); SON '
revenue {which generates licence sales for DTT Multiplex A); and participation revenue (which includes interactive sales
from competitions) and the ITV Choice subscription service in other countries.

ITV Studios
1TV Studias is the Graup's international content business, creating and producing programimes and formats that return
and travel, namely drama, entertainrment and factual entertainment.

ITV Studios UK is the largest commercial producer in the UK and produces programming for the Group’s own channels,
accounting for 63% of ITV main channel spend on commissioned programming, Programming is also sold to other UK
braoadcasters such as the BBC, Channel 4 and Sky.

ITV America is the leading unscripted independent producer of content in the US and is growing its scripted presence
by increasing investment in high-profile dramas straight to series.

ITV Studios also operates in five other intemational locations being Australia, Germany, France, the Netherlands {primarily
Talpa) and the Nordics, where content is produced for local broadcasters. This content is either locally created IP or formats
that have been created elsewhere by ITV, primarily in the UK and the Netherlands.

Global Entertainment and Talpa Global, ITV's distribution businesses, license ITV’s finished programmes and formats
and third-party content internationally. Within this business we also finance productions both on and off ITV to acquire
global distributicn rights.

Adjusted EBITA

The Directors assess the performance of the reportable segments based on a measure of adjusted EBITA. The Directors
use this measuremnent basis as it excludes the effect of transactions that could distort the understanding of the Group's
performance for the year and comparability between periods. See the Financial and Performance Review on pages 34
ta 35 for the detailed explanation of the Group's use of adjusted performance measures.

A reconciliation from adjusted EBITA to profit before tax is provided as follows:

2016 2015

£€m £m
Adjusted EBITA 885 865
Production tax credits (28) 23)
EBITA before exceptional items from continuing operations 857 842
Operating exceptional items {164) {109)
Amortisation of intangible assets {89) 57)
Net financing costs {51 £1)]
Gain on sale of non-current assets (exceptional items) - 5
Gain on sale of subsidiaries and investments (exceptional items}) - 1
Profit before tax from continuing operations 553 641
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Cash generated from operations
A reconciliation from profit before tax to cash generated from operations before exceptional items is as follows:
2016 2015
£m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 553 641
Gain on sale of subsidiaries and investments (exceptional itemns) - U]
Gain on sale of non-current assets {exceptional iterns) - (5)
Net financing costs 51 Ejl
Operating exceptional items 164 109
Depreciation of property, plant and equipmtent N 27
Amortisation of intangible assets L . 89 67
Share-based compensation and pension setvice costs 10 7
(increase)/decrease in programme rights and other inventory, and distribution rights {35 4
(Increase) in recetvables (56) {21
Increase/{decrease) in payables 63 (42)
Movemnent in working capital I {28) {59}
Cash generated from operations before exceptional items 870 - 827
Operating costs
Staff costs
Staff costs before exceptional items can be analysed as follows:
2016 2015
£m £m
Wages and salaries 336 318
Social security and other costs o 46 43
Share-based compensation (see note 4.7) o 10 14
Pension costs 27 25
Total staff costs 419 400
Less: staff costs allocated to productions (147) {137)
FTEE staff costs (non-production) 272 263
Exceptional staff costs are disclosed separately in note 2.2
The number of full-time equivalent employees (FTEE) {excluding short-term contractors and freelancers who are
predominantly allocated to the cost of productions), calculated on a weighted average basis, during the year was:
2016 2015
Broadcast & Online - 2,087 2109
TV Studios 4,034 3,449
6,121 5558

The increase in full-time equivalent employees inITV Studios is primarily driven by the full year effect of acquisitions

completedin 2015.

Details of Directors’ emolurnents, share options, pension entittements and long-term incentive scheme interests are
set out in the Remuneration Report. Listed Directors’ gains on share options for 2016 are set out in the ITV plc entity

financial statements.

Deprediation

Depreciation in the year was £31 million (2015: £27 million), of which £13 million {2015: £14 million) relates to Broadcast

& Ontine and £18 million {2015: £13 mitlion) to ITV Studios.
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Operating leases
The total undiscounted future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are due for payment
as follows:;

M8 Transponders Proparty Total
Within one year 28 19 47
Later than one year and not later than five years 29 58 188
Later than five years 92 7 109

249 95 344
2015 Transponders Property Total
Within one year 34 17 51
Later than one year and not later than five years m 48 159
Later than five years 115 Fil 136

260 86 346

The Group's operating leases relate to transponder assets, offices and studio properties. The Group holds transmission
supply agreements that require the use of transponder assets for a period of up to ten years with payments increasing
over time, limited by specific RPI caps. These supply agreements are classified as operating leases, in accordance with
the Group's policy on leases detailed in note 3.2

Property leases run for terms ranging from five to twenty years, depending on the expected operational use of the site. L eases
may include break clauses or options to renew (options to renew are not induded in the commitments table). Lease payments
are generally subject to market review every five years to reflect market rentals, but because of the uncertainty over the
amount of any future changes, such changes have not been reflected in the table above. None of the lease agreements
indude contingent rentats.

The total future minimum sublease payments expected to be received under non-cancellable subleases at the year end
are £1million (2015: £1 million).

The total operating lease expenditure recognised during the year was £47 million (2015: £51 million) and total sublease
payments received were £1million (2015: £2 million).

Audit fees
The Group engages KPMG LLP (KPMG) on assignments additional to their statutory audit duties where their expertise
and experience with the Group are important and are in line with Group’s policy on auditor independence.

Fees paid to KPMG and its associates during the year are set out below:

2018 2015

£m £m

For the audit of the Group's annual accounts 06 0.6
For the audit of subsidiaries of the Group 06 0.4
Audit-related assurance services 0.2 0.2
Total audit and audit-related assurance services 1.4 12
Taxation advisory services 02 01
Other assurance services 0.1 0.3
Total non-audit Services 03 0.4
Total fees pald to KPMG 1.7 1.6

There were no fees payable In 2016 or 2015 to KPMG and associates for the auditing of accounts of any assodate
or pension scheme of the Group, internal audit services, services relating to corporate finance transactions entered
into or proposed to be entered into, by or on behalf of the Group or any of its associates.

Fees paid to KPMG for audit and other services to the Company are not disclosed in its individual accounts as the Group
accounts are required to disclose such fees on a consolidated basis.
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22
Exceptional
items

Keeping Exceptionatitems are excluded from management’s assessment of profit because

it simp[e by their size or nature they could distort the Greup's underlying quality of earnings.
They are typically gains or losses arising from events that are not considered part of
the core operations of the business {e.g. costs relating to capital transactions, such as

% professicnal fees on acquisitions). These items are excluded to reflect performance in
a consistent manner and are in line with how the business is managed and measured
on a day-to-day basis.

Accounting policies
Exceptional items as described above are disclosed on the face of the income statement.

Subsequent revisions of estimates for items initially recognised as exceptional are recorded as exceptional items
in the year that the revision is made. Gains or losses on disposal of non-core assets are also considered exceptional
due to their nature and impact on the Group’s underlying quality of eamnings.

Exceptional itams

Operating and non-operating exceptional items are analysed as follows:

2016 2015

(Charge)/credit Ref. £m €m
Operating exceptional items:

Acquisition-related expenses A (131 {88)

Reorganisation and restructuring costs B {14) {(13)

Pension curtailment cost c (19) -

Legal related costs - (8)
Total net operating exceptional items (164) {109)
Non-operating exceptional items:

Gain on sale of nen-current assets D - 5

Gain on sale and impairment of subsidiaries and investments E - 1
Total non-operating exceptional items - 6
Total exceptional items before tax {164) (103)

Tax on exceptional items 15 8
Total exceptional items net of tax {149) (95)

A - Acquisition-related expenses

Acquisition-related expenses of £131 million includes £110 million (2015: £78 million) relating to performance-based,
employment linked costs to former cswners mainly in relation to Talpa Media. The remaining £21 million (2015: £10 million)
is primarily comprised of integration costs and professional fees (mainly financial and legal due diligence). See note 3.4 for
further details on acquisitions.

B - Reorganisation and restructuring costs
In 2016 £14 million (2015: £13 million) of costs were incurred as a resuit of a Group-wide commitment to reduce the
overhead cost base by £25 million. This cost was primarily comprised of redundancy.

C - Curtailment cost
In 2016, following a member consultation, the Group decided to close the ITV Pension Scheme to future benefit accrual,
resulting in a cne off non-cash curtaitment cost of £19 million (see note 3.7 for further detail).

D - Gain on sale of non-current assets
In 2015 a £5 miltion gain on sale of non-current assets arose primarily as a result of the sale of a freehold property and
related assets in Manchester.

E - Gain on sale and impairment of subsidiaries and investments
The gain of £1millionin 2015 relates to a histerical disposal
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23 Keeping This section sets out the Group's tax accounting policies, the current and deferred tax
Taxation it simp[e charges or credits in the year (which together make up the total tax charge or credit
in the income statement), a reconcitiation of profit before tax to the tax charge for

Accounting policies
The tax charge for the period is recognised in the income statement, the statement of comprehensive income and

directly in equity, according to the accounting treatment of the related transactions. The tax charge comprises both
current and deferred tax, The calculation of the Group's tax charge involves a degree of estimation and judgement in
respect of certain items whose tax treatment cannot be fully determined until a resolution has been reached by the
relevant tax authority.

Current tax
Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment
in respect of previous years.

the period and the movementsin deferred tax assets and liabilities.

The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of the additional taxes that are likely

to become due, which require judgement. Amounts are accrued based on management’s interpretation of specific tax
law and the likelihood of settlement. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax arises due to certain temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and tiabilities for
financial reporting purposes and those for taxation purposes.

The following temporary differences are not provided for:

* thenitial recognition of goodwill;

= the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit other than in a business
combination; and

« differences relating to investrments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future

The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is calculated using tax rates that are enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset Is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to utilise the temporary difference. Recognition of deferred tax assets, therefore, involves judgement regarding the
timing and level of future taxable incorme.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are disclosed net to the extent that they relate to taxes levied by the same authority
and the Group has the right of set-off.
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Taxation - income statement
The total taxation charge in the income statement is analysed as follows:
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2016 2015
£m £m
Current tax: L
Current tax charge on profit before exceptional items {134) (125
Current tax (charge)/credit on exceptional items 1 6
L (123) (119)
Adjustments to prior petiods 10 9
(13) (1o)
Deferred tax: L _ .
Origination and reversal of temporary differences - 18 RO
Deferred tax (charge)/credit on exceptional items . 4 2
Impact of change in the statutory tax rate 1 2
- . . 23 29
Adjustrments to prior periods {10) 9)
13 {29)
Tatal taxation charge in the Incorme staterment {100) (139)

In order to understand how, in the income staternent, a tax charge of £100 million {2015: £139 million) arises on a profit
before tax of £553 million (2015; £641 million), the taxation charge that would arise at the standard rate of UK
corporation tax is reconciled to the actual tax charge as follows:

2016 2015
£m £m
Profit before tax 553 641
Notional taxation charge at UK corporation tax rate of 20% (2015: 2025%) on
profit before tax L {111 {130)
Non-taxable income/non-deductible expenses o (25) @3)
Othertaxes L) -
Current year losses not recognised - (03] -
Impact of overseas tax rates L 10 R /]
impact of changes in tax rates R 1 @
Production tax credits 28 23
Total taxation charge In the incorne statement (100} {139}

Non-deductible axpenses are expenses that are not expected to be allowable for tax purposes. Similarly non-taxable
income is income that is not expected to be taxable.

Adjustments to prior periods primarily arise where an outcome is obtained on certain tax matters which differs from
expectations held when the related provision was made. Where the outcome is more favourable than the provision
made, the difference is released, lowering the current year tax charge, Where the outcome is less favourable than our
provision, an additional charge to current year tax will occur. This year there is no net impact of prior year adjustments
in the total tax charge. The current tax charge includes a £10 million credit relating to prior years, and the deferred tax
credit includes an equal and opposite £10 million charge.

The impact of overseas tax rates reflects the fact that some of our profits are earned in territories other than the UK,
and taxed at rates different to the UK corporation tax rate. This year losses arising in higher taxed jurisdictions, which
wa recognise through deferred tax, give rise to a reconciling benefit.

The UK corporation tax rate has been enacted to fall to 19% from 1 April 2017 and 17% from 1 April 2020 (this
supersedes the originally enacted reduction to 18%). The carrying value of UK temporary differences at the balance
sheet date has been adjusted accordingly. This has given rise to a charge of £5 million (2015: £1 million) of which
£1million is recognised as a credit in the income statement and £6 million as a charge in other comprehensive income.

The Production tax credits included within the reconciliation abave are UK High-End Television (HETV) tax credits and
Children's Television tax credits, which are part of a group of incentives provided to support the creative industries. The
ability to access these tax credits is fundamental when assessing the viability of investment dedisions in the production
of high-end drama and children’s programmes. Under IFRS these production tax credits are reported within the total
taxation charge in the income statement, however ITV considers thern te be a contribution to production costs, and
therefore working capital in nature, and excludes them from its adjusted tax charge, including them instead within
Adjusted EBITA.
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The effective tax rate is 18.1% {2015: 21.7%), and js the tax charge on the face of the income statement expressed

as a percentage of the profit before tax. In the years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, the effective
taxrate is comparable to the standard rate of UK corporation tax 20% in 2016 and 20.25% in 2015). As explained

in the Financial and Petformance Review, the Group uses an adjusted tax rate to show how tax impacts total adjusted
earnings In a way that is more aligned with the Group's cash tax positicn.

This year the current year moverment on origination and reversal of temporary differences fexduding exceptional items) s a
credit of £18 million, compared with a charge of £20 million in 2015, The main reasons for this change are the recognition of
tax losses in our overseas businesses, and the urwinding of deferred tax liabilities as intangible assets are amortisad.

Taxation — Other comprehensive income and squity

As analysed in the table below, a deferred tax credit of £40 million on actuarial movements on pensions has been
recogrised in ather comprehensive incorme. A deferred tax charge of £6 million has been recognised in equity in respect
of share based payments.

A current tax credit of £2 miltion has also been recognised in equity in relation to share based payments.

Taxation - Statemaent of financlal position
The table below outlines the deferred tax assets/(labilities) that are recognised in the statement of financial pesition,
together with their movements in the year:

At Recognised In At

1 January the income Recoghised in Business Forelgtt 31 December

2016 Reclasslfication statement OCland equity acqulsitions Exchange 2016

£m £m £m £m £m £€m £Em
Intangible assets {0y 14 15 - {10} {12 (94)

Prograrmme rights 1 - -~ - - - 1

Pension scheme deficits 1 1 s 40 - - 34

Tax losses 4 - 23 - - 3 30
Share-hased compensation T &)} 4) (6) - - (4)
Other temporary differences 5 (10) (13) - - 2 {20)
79 - 13 34 (19) )] (53)

At Recognised in At

1 January theincome  Recognisedin Business 31December

2015 statement OClandequity acquisitions 2015

£im £m £m £m £m

Property, plant and equipment Ul 1 - - —
Intangibie assets 15) {10} - {76) {107

Programme rights 1 - - - 1

Pension scheme deficits 36 {16) (19 - 1

Tax losses 7 3 - ~ 4

Share-based compensation 14 (1) (2) - 1

Other temporary differences 1 - - 4 5
43 29) @1 72 79)

At 31 December 2016, total deferred tax assets are £65 million (2015: £22 million) anad totat deferred tax liabilities
are £118 million (2015: £101 million). After netting off balances within countries, there is a deferred tax liability of
£70 million and a deferred tax asset of £17 million (2015: net deferred tax liability of £79 million) recognised in the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.

The deferred tax balances relate to:

= property, plant and equipment temporary differences arising on assets qualifying for tax depreciation
= temporary differences on intangible assets, including those arising on business combinations

« programme rights ~ ternpotary differences on intercompany profits on stock

» pension scheme deficit temporary differences on the 1AS 19 pension deficit

« temporary differences arising from the timing of the use of tax losses

= share-based compensation temporary differences on share schemes and

= other temporary differences on provisions and other items
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24
Earnings
per share

The deferred tax balance associated with the pension deficit has been adjusted to reflect the current tax benefit
obtained in the current year foliowing the employer contributions of £93 mitlion to the Group’s defined benefit pension
scheme. The adjustment in other comprehensive income to the deferred tax balance primarily relates to the actuarial
loss recognised in the period.

A deferred tax asset of £377 million {2075 £399 million) in respect of capital losses of £2,215 million (2015: £2.215 million)

has not been recognised due to uncertainties as to whether a capital gain will arise in the appropriate form and relevant
tefritory against which such losses could be utilised, For the same reasons, deferred tax assets of £19 million (2015: £15 million)
inrespect of overseas losses that time expire between 2017 and 2027 have not been recognised.

Keeping
it simple

&

Earnings per share (EPS") is the amount of post-tax profit attributable to each share.
In 2016 we present EPS for the continuing business and the discontinued operation,
UTV Ireland Limited (see note 2.5 for further details).

Basic EPS is calculated on the Group profit for the year attributable to equity
shareholders of £448 million (2015: £495 million} divided by 4,010 miitlicn (2015:
4,006 miilion) being the weighted average number of shares in issue during the year.

Diluted EPS reflects any commitments made by the Group to issue shares in the
future and so it includes the impact of share options.

Adjusted EPS is presented in crder to show the business perfarmance of the Group
in a consistent manner and reflect how the business is managed and measured on
aday-to-day basis. Adjusted EPS reflects the impact of operating and ncn-operating
exceptional items an Basic EPS. Other items excluded from Adjusted EPS incltude
amortisation and impairment of intangible assets acquired through business
cambinations; net financing cost adjustments and the tax adjustments relating to
these items. Each of these adjustments are explained in detail in the section beiow.

The catculation of Basic EPS and Adjusted EPS, together with the diluted impact on each, is set out below:

Earnings per share

2016 2015

£m £m

Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders of TV ple 448 495
Less: Loss for the year from discontinued operations (N -
Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders of ITV pic
from continuing operations 449 495
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue — million 4,010 4,006
Eamings per ordinary share and from continuing operations 112p 12.4p
Loss per ordinary share from discontinued operations - -
Diluted earnings per share

2016 2015

£m £m

Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders of ITV plc
from continuing operations 449 495
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue — million 4,010 4,006
Dilution due to share options 19 29
Total weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue — million 4,029 4,035
Diluted eamings per ordinary share and from continuing operations .1p 123p
Diluted loss per ordinary share from discontinued operations - -
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Adjusted earnings per share
2016 2015
Ref £m £m
Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders of 1TV plc 448 495
Exceptional items {net of tax) A 149 95
Less: Loss after tax for the period from discontinued operations ) -
Profit for the year before exceptional items
from continuing operations 598 590
Amaortisation and impairment of acquired intangible assets B 66 54
Adjustments to net financing costs C 19 15
Adjusted profit from continuing operations 683 659
Total weighted average numiper of ardinary shares in issue - million 4,010 4,006
Adjusted eamings per ordinary share and from continuing operations 17.0p 16.5p
Adjusted loss per ordinary share from discontinued operations - -
Diluted adjusted sarmings per share
2016 s
Em £Em
Adjusted profit from continuing operations 683 659
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue - mitlion 4,010 4,006
Dilution due to share options 1% 29
Total weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue - million 4,029 4,035
Diluted adjusted eamings per ordinary share and from continuing operations 17.0p 16.3p
Diluted adjusted loss per ordinary share from discontinued operations - -

Details of the adjustrments to eamings are as follows:

A_Exceptional items (net of tax) £149 miltion (2015: £95 million)
Calculated as total exceptionat items of £164 million (2015: £103 million) net of related tax credit of £15 million
(2015: £8 million). See note 2.2 for the detailed composition of exceptionat items of £164 million.

B. Amortisation and impairment of acquired Intangible assets of £66 million {2015: £54 million)

Calculated as total amortisation and impairment of £89 million {2015: £67 million), less amortisation of software
licences and development af £12 million (2015: £9 million}, net of related tax credit of £20 million {2015: £13 million).
This is then adjusted to recognise a £9 million cash tax benefit arising from goodwilt on US acquisitions, which for
tax purposes is amottised cver a 15-year petiod (2015: £9 millich).

C. Adjustments to net financing costs £19 milllon (2015: £15 million)

Net financing costs are adjusted for mark-to-market movements on derivative instruments, foreign exchange
and imputed pension interest charges of £25 rmillion (2075: £18 million) net of related tax credit of £6 miltion
(2015: £3 million).
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25
Discontinued
operations

Keeping A discontinued operation is a distinct component of the business that has been or is
it simp[e in the process of being disposed. Accounting standards dictate that the loss from
discontinued operations is recognised outside of the Group’s aperating results.

Management agreed to sell UTV Ireland Limited te Virgin Media on 11 July 2016
for €10 million. The sale completed on 30 November 2016 and the assets and
tiabilities classified as a disposal group held-for-sale have been disposed of. See
section 3.4 for further details.

Results of discontinued operations

2015 2015
Em m
Revenue - " -
Expenses (7 -
Operating loss © -
Taxation - -
Loss after tax o (&) -
Gain on sale of discontinued operations o 5 -
Tax on gain on sale of discontinued operations - -
Loss for the period (1) =
Eamings per share o
Basic loss per share = -
Diluted loss per share - -
Cash flows from (used in) discontinued oparations
2016 2015
£m £Em
Net cash used in operating activities o (6 -
Net cash frorm investing activities 10 -
Net cash flow for the period 4 -
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Working
capital

132

In this This section shows the assets used to generate the Group's trading

section performance and the liabilities incurred as a result. On the following pages
there are notes covering warking capital, non-current assets and liabilities,
acquisitions and disposals, provisions and pensions.

Liabilities relating to the Group’s finarncing activities are addressed in section 4.
Deferred tax assets and tiabilities are shown in note 2.3.

Keeping Waorking capital represents the assets and liabilities the Group generates through its

it simple trading activity. The Group therefare defines working capital as distribution rights,
programme rights and praoductian costs, trade and other receivables and trade and
other payables

% Careful management af working capital ensures that the Group can meet its trading
and financing abligations within its ordinary operating cycle.

Working capital is a driver of the profit to cash conversion ratio, a key performance
indicator for the Group. The Group’s target profil to cash ratio on a rolling three-year
hasisis at least 90%. Far those subsidiaries acquired during the year, working capital
at the date of acquisition is exctuded from the profit to cash calculation so that only
subsequent working capital movements in the period owned by ITV are reflected in
this, metric.

in the tollowing section you will find further information regarding warking capital
management and analysis of the elements of working capital.

3.1.1 Programme rights, other inventory and commitments
Accounting policies
Rights are recognised when the Group controls the respective rights and the risks and rewards assoclated with them.

Programme rights and production costs not yet utilised are included in the statement of financial position at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. In assessing net realisable value for programimes in production, judgement is required
when considering the contracted sales price and estimated costs to complete.

Broadcast programme rights

Acquired programme rights (which include films), and sports rights, are purchased for the primary purpose of broadcasting
on the ITV Family channels, induding VOD and SVOD platforms. These are recognised within current assets as payments
are made or when the rights are ready for broadcast. The Group generally expenses these rights through cperating costs
over anumber of transmissions reflecting the pattern and value in whidh the right is consurmed.

Commissians, which primarlly comprise programmes purchased based on editorial specification and over which
the Group has some control, are recognised in current assets as payments are made and are generally expensed
to operating costs in full on first transmission. Where a commission is repeated on any platform, incrernental costs
associated with the broadcast are included in operating costs.

In assessing het realisable value for acquired and commissioned rights, the net realisable value assessment is based on
estimated airtime value, with consideration given to whether the number of transmissions purchased can be efficiently
played out over the licence period.

The Broadcast prograrmime rights and other inventory at the year end are shown in the table below:

2016 2015

£m £m

Acquired programmme tights 157 m
Commissions 69 61
Sports rights 27 30
253 202
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Broadcast programme commitments

These are operating commitments in respect of programming entered into in the ordinary course of business with
programme suppliers, sports organisations and film distributors in respect of rights to broadcast on the ITV network.
Commitments in respect of these purchases, which are not reflected in the statement of financial position, are due
for payment as follows:

2016 2015

£m £m

Within one year 454 451
Later than one year and not mere than five years 789 633
More than five years 12 141
1,355 1225

Studios production costs

Production inventory comprises the costs incurred by ITV Studios in producing a programrme, where the programme is
part way through the production process and not yet available for delivery to a broadcaster. They are recognised within
current assets at the production cost incurred, and are expensed in operating costs on delivery of episodes.

Also indluded here are dramas that that are typically more expensive to produce. The preduction cost of adramais
partly funded by the commissioning network licence fee and tax credits, if available. The remaining deficit is funded
by the Group and is recovered by future distribution sales. Once the productionis complete the deficit is classified
as a Distribution Right.

The Studios programme rights and other inventory at the year end are shown in the table below:

2076 2015
£m £m
Production costs 153 171
3.1.2 Distribution rights
Accounting policies

Distribution rights are programme rights the Group buys from producers to derive future revenue, principally through
licensing to broadcasters. These are classified as non-current assets as these rights are used to derive long-term
economic benefit for the Group.

Distribution rights are recognised initialty at cost and charged through operating costs in the income statement over
a period not exceeding five years, reflecting the value and pattern in which the right is consumed. Advances paid for
the acquisition of distribution rights are disclosed as distribution rights as soon as they are contracted. These advances
are not expensed until the programme is available for distribution. Up to that point they are assessed annually for
impairment through the reassessment of the future sales expected to be earned from that title.

The net book value of distribution rights at the year end are as follows:

2016 2015
£m £m
Distribution rights 31 29

The movement during the year comprises new rights acquired of £40 million (2015; £43 million) and amounts charged
to the income statement of £38 mittion (2015: £27 million).
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3.1.3 Trade and other receivables

Accounting policies

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the value of the invoice sent to the customer and subsequently at the
amounts considered recaverable (@mortised cost). Where payments are not due for more than one year, they are
shown in the financial statements at their net present value to reflect the economic cost of delayed payment.
The Group provides goods and services to substantially all its custornars on credit terms.

Estimates are used in determining the level of receivables that will not, in the opinion of the Directors, be collected.
These estimates include such factors as historical experience, the current state of the UK and overseas economies and
industry specific factors. A provision for impairment of trade receivables is established when thete is sufficient evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due.

The carrying value of trade receivables is considered to approximate fair value. During the year £35 miltion of trade
recelvable invoices were sold under a receivables purchase agreement (see note 4.2 for more details). Trade and other
receivables can be analysed as follows:

2018 2015
£m £m
Due within one year:

Trade receivables 315 328
Other receivables 39 37
Prepaid ernployment linked consideration (see note 3.4} 3 55
Prepayments and accrued income 151 m
526 531

Due after mare than one year:
Trade receivables 12 8
Prepaid employment linked consideration (see note 3.4) - 18
Accrued income and other receivables 7 7
Total trade and other receivables 565 564

Prepaid employment linked consideration totalling £21 million (2015: £55 million) retates to the acquisition of Talpa
Media in 2015 (see note 3.4 for details). This represents the portion of the initial consideration of €150 million that
is recoverable frorn the seller in the event he leaves within the initial two years following acquisition. This amount
is amortised over the twe years to 31 March 2017 and recognised as exceptional expense (see nate 2.2).

£327 million (2015: £336 million) of total trade receivables that are not impaired are aged as follows:

2016 2018

£Em £m

Current 299 308
Up to 30 days overdue 19 17
Between 30 and 90 days overdue 6 8
Over 80 days overdue 3 3
327 336

The balance above is stated net of a provision of £4 million (2015: £5 million) for impairment of trade receivables. Of the
provision total, £3 millicn relates to balances overdue by more than 90 days 2015: £4 million) and £1 million relates to
current balances (2015: £1 million).

Movements in the Group's provision for impairment of trade receivables can be shown as follows:

2016 2015

£m £m
At 1 January 5 7
Charged during the year 3 3
Unused amounts reversed (4) (5)
At 31 December 4 5

134



ITV plc Annual Report and Accounts 2016

3.1.4 Trade and other payables due within one year
Accounting policies

Trade payables are recognised at the value of the invoice received from a supplier. The carrying value of current and

non-current trade payables is considered to approximate fair value. Trade and other payables due within one year

¢an be analysed as follows:

2016 2015
£m £m
Trade payables n 65
VAT and sodial security 61 Pl
Other payables iyl 177
Accruals 332 289
Deferred income 205 184
960 786
Other payables indude £105 million {2015 £3 million} of acquisition related liabilities due in 2017, of which £72 million is
employment linked contingent consideration and £33 million is payable to sellers under put options agreed on acquisition.
3.1.5 Trade and other payables due after more than onhe year
Trade and other payables due after more than one year can be analysed as follows:
2016 2015
£m fm
Trade payables 57 48
Other payables 63 89
120 137

Trade payables primarily relate to film areditors for which payment is due after more than one year. Other payables indude
the non-current portion of acquisition related liabilities of £53 million 2015 £82 million), of which £38 million is employment

linked contingent consideration and £15 million is payable to sellers under put options agreed on acquisition.
3.1.6 Working capital management

Cash and working capital management continues to be a key focus. During the year the cash outflow from working

capital was £28 million (2015: cutflow of £59 million} derived as follows:

2016 2015

£m £m

(Increase)/decrease in programme rights and other inventory and distribution rights (35) 4
fincrease) in receivables (56) 21
Increase/{decrease) in payables 63 (42)
Working capital outflow {28) (59)

The working capital outflow for the year excludes the impact of balances acquired on the acquisition of subsidliaries

during the year (see note 3.4).
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3.2

Property,
plant and
equipment

deprediated vabue.
ditional ane-off impairment

Lains the accountng policies 1o o by 1TV and the s
riving at the net book value of the :

Actounting policies

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Certain items
of property, plant and equipment that were revalued to fair value prior to 1 January 2004 (the date of transition to IFRS)
are measured on the basis of deemed cost, being the revalued amount less depreciation up to the date of transition.

Leases
Finance leases are those which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.

Determining whether a lease is a finance lease requires judgement as to whether substantially all of the risks and
benefits of ownership have been transferred to the Group. Estimates used by management in making this assessment
include the usefut economic life of assets, the fair value of the asset and the discount rate applied to the total
payments required under the lease. Assets held under such leases are included within property, plant and equipment
and depreciated on 3 straight-line basis over their estimated usefut lives.

Outstanding finance lease obligations, which comprise the principal plus accrued interest, are included within
borrowings. The finance element of the agreements is charged to the income statement over the term of the lease
on an effective interest basis.

All other leases are operating leases, the rentals on which are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis
over the lease term (see note 2.1 for further details of operating lease commitments).

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property, plant and equipment less estimated residual value, on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, The annual depreciation charge is sensitive to the estimated useful
life of each asset and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The major categories of property, plant and
equipment are depreciated as follows:

Asset class Depreciation policy

Freehold land not depreciated

Freehold buildings up to 60 years

Leasehold improverments shorter of residual lease term or estirated useful life
Vehicles, equipment and fittings * 3 to 20 years

*  Equiprment includes studio production and technology assets.
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Impairment of assets

Property, plant and equipment that is subject to depreciation is reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Indicators of impairment may include
changes in technology and business performance.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment can be analysed as follows:

Freeholdland  Improvements to leasehold Vehicles, equipment
and bulldings land and buildings and fittings Totat
- T Finance
Long Short Owned leases
£m £m £m £€m £m £m
Cost
At1January 2015 120 &7 7 237 16 457
Additions - - 1 37 - 38
Disposals and retirements 31 {1) - {10) - (42)
At 31 December 2015 89 66 18 264 16 453
Additons 3 2 28 - 33
Foreignexchange = - - 6 - 6
Redlassifications - - - 3 3) -
Disposals and retirements - - - (29) {13) (42)
At 31 December 2016 92 66 20 72 - 450
Depreciation o
At 1 january 2015 17 13 15 150 14 209
Charge for the year 1 2 - 24 - 27
Disposals and retirements (12) (1) - (9) - 22
At 31 December 2015 6 14 15 165 14 4
Charge for the year I R 27 - 3
Foreign exchange i L 7 - = - 3 - 3
Reclassifications - - - - T .1 ¢)] .
Disposals and retirements - - - 29) (13) {42)
At 31 Deceinber 2016 7 16 16 167 - 206
Net book value
At 31 December 2016 85 50 4 105 - 244
At 31 December 2015 83 52 3 99 2 239

Additions in the year includes £4 million (2015: £6 million) relating to assets owned by subsidiaries acquired during
the year.

Included within property, plant and equipment are assets in the course of construction of £19 miltion (2015: £16 million).

In 20186, the Group retired £42 million of assets from use with a net book value of £nil In 2015, the Group disposed of
the Quay Street site and retated assets in Manchester for £23 million, representing a gain on sale of £5 million.

in 2013 the Group acquired the freehold for the London Television Centre for £58 million, although the Directors’ view
is that fair value of the property would be significantly higher than the carrying value.

Capital commitments
There are £4 miilion of capital commitments at 31 December 2016 (2015: £2 million).
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33
Intangible
assets

138

Keeping The following section shows the non-physical assets used by the Group 1o generate
it simple revenue and profits.

These assets include formats and brands, custemer contracts and relationships,
contractual arrangements, licences. software development, film libraries and

% goodwill. The cost of these assetsis the amount that the Group has paid or, where
there has heen a business cormbinatian, the fair value of the specificintangible assets
that could be sold separately or which arise from legal rights. In the case of goodwill,
its cost is the amount the Group has paid i acquiring a business over and above the
fair value of the individual assets and tiabilities acquired. The value of goodwill is
‘intangible’ value that comes from, for example, a uniquely strong market position
and the outstanding productivity of its employees.

The value of intangible assets, with the exception of goadwill, reduces over the
number of years the Group expects 1o use the asset, the useful economic life, via an
annual amortisation charge to the income statement. Where there has been

a technological change or decline in business performance the Directors review the
value of assets, including goodwill, to ensure they have not fallen below their
amortised value. Should an asset’s value fall below its ameortised value an additional
one-off impairment charge is made against profit

This section explains the accounting policies applied and the specific judgements and
estimates made by the Directers in arriving at the net book value of these assets.

Accounting policies

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the future economic benefits that arise from assets that are not capable of being individualty
identified and separately recognised. The goodwill recognised by the Group has all arisen as a result of business
combinations. Goodwill is stated at its recoverable amount being cost less any accumulated impairment losses
and is allocated to the business to which it relates.

Due to changes in accounting standards goodwill has been calculated using three different methods depending on the
date the relevant business was purchased.

Method % All business combinations that have occurred since 1January 2009 were accounted for using the acquisition
method. Under this method, goodwill is measured as the fair value of the consideration transferred (including the
recognition of any part of the business not yet cwned (hon-controlling interests)), less the fair value of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed, atl measured at the acquisition date. Any cantingent consideration expected to
be transferred in the future will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition date and recognised within other payables.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument is measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the income statement. The determination of fair value is based on discounted cash
flows. The key assumptions take into consideration the probability of meeting each performance target and the
discount rate.

Where less than 100% of a subsidiary is acquired, and call and put options are granted over the remaining interest,

a non-controlling interest is initially recognised in equity at fair value, which is established based on the vatue of the put
option. A call option is recognised as a derivative financial instrument, carried at fair value. The put option is recognised
as a liability within other payables, carried at the present value of the put option exercise price, and a corresponding
charge is included in merger and other reserves. Any subsequent remeasurement of the put option liability is
recognised within finance income or cost.

Subsequent adjustments to the fair value of net assets acquired can cnly be made within 12 months of the acquisition
date, and only if fair values were determined provisionally at an eatlier reporting date. These adjustments are
accounted for frorm the date of acquisition.

Acquisitions of non-controlling interests are accounted for as transactions with owners and thetefare no goodwill is
recognised as a result of such transactions. Transaction costs incurted in connection with those business combinations,
such as legal fees, due diligence fees and other professional fees, are expensed as incurred.
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Method 2: All business combinations that occurred between 1 January 2004 and 31 December 2008 were accounted
for using the purchase method in accordance with IFRS 3 Business Combinations (2004). Goodwill on those
combinations represents the difference between the cost of the acquisition and the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired and did not include the value of the non-controlling interest. Transaction costs incurred in connection
with those business combinations, such as legal fees, due diligence fees and other professional fees, were included in
the cost of acquisition,

Method 3; For business combinations prior to 1 January 2004, goodwill is included at its deemed cost, which represents
the amount recorded under UK GAAP at that time less accumulated amortisation up to 31 December 2003, The
classification and accounting treatment of business combinations occurring prior to 1January 2004, the date of
transition to IFRS, has not been reconsidered as permitted under FRS 1,

Other intangible assets
intangible assets other than goodwill are those that are distinct and can be sold separately or which arise from legal rights.
Within ITV there are two types of other intangible assets: those assets directly purchased by the Group for day-to-day

operational purposes (such as software licences and development} and intangible assets identified as part of an
acquisition of a business.

Intangible assets acquired directly by the Group are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation. Those separately
identified intangible assets acquired as part of an acquisition or business combination are shown at fair value at the
date of acquisition less accumulated amortisation.

The main intangible assets the Group has valued are formats, brands, licences, contractual arrangements, customer
contracts and relationships and libraries.

Each class of intangible assets' valuation method on initial recognition, amortisation method and estimated useful Life
is set out in the table below:

Class of intangtble
asset

Amortisation method Estimated useful life  valuation method

Brands Straight-line B to 14 years Applying a royalty rate to the expected future revenue over

the life of the brand.

Formats Straight-line up to 8 years Expected future cash flows from those assets existing at the

Customer Straight-lineor up to6 years date of acquisition are estimated. if applicable, a contributory

contracts reducing balance charge is deducted for the use of other assets needed to

as appropriate ) exploit the cash flow. The net cash flow is then discounted

Customer Straight-line 51010 years back to present value.

relationships - B 7 B .

Contractual Straight-line upto10years  Expected future cash flows from those contracts

arrangements dependingon  existing at the date of acquisition are estimated. if applicable,
the contract a contributory charge is deducted for the use of other assets
terms needed to exploit the cash flow. The net cash flow s then

discounted back to present value.

Licences Straight-line 11to 29 years Start-up basis of expected future cash flows existing
dependingon  at the date of acquisition. If applicable, a contributory charge
term oflicence  is deducted for the use of other assets needed to exploit the

cash flow. The net cash flow is then discounted back to
present value.

PSB licences are valued as a start-up business with only the
license in place.

Libraries and Sum ofdigitsor upto20years  Initially at cost and subsequently at cost less accumulated

other straight line as amortisation.

appropriate
Software licences  Straight-line 1to 5 years Initially at cost and subsequently at cost less accumulated

FUBMIEIS 1R URIL) |

and development. amortisation.

Determining the fair value of intangible assets arising on acquisition requires judgement. The Directors make estimates
regarding the tirming and amount of future cash flows derived from exploiting the assets being acquired. The Directors
then estimate an appropriate discount rate to apply to the forecast cash flows. Such estimates are based on current
budgets and forecasts, extrapolated for an appropriate period taking into account growth rates, operating costs and
the expected useful lives of assets. Judgements are also made regarding whether, and for how long, ticences will be
renewed; this drives our amortisation policy for those assets,

The Directors estimate the appropriate discount rate using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the assets or businesses being acquired.
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Amgortisation

Amortisation is charged to the income statement aver the estimated useful lives of intangible assets unless such lives
are judged to be indefinite, Indefinite life assets, such as goodwill, are not amortised but are tested for impairment at
each year end,

Impairment
Goodwill is not subject to amortisation and is tested annually for impairment and when circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired.

Other intangible assets are subject to amortisation and are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changesin
circumstances indicate that the amount carried in the staternent of financial position is less than its recoverable amount.

Determining whether the carrying amount of intangible assets has any indication of impairment requires judgement,
Any impairment is recognised in the income statement.

An impairment test is performed by assessing the recoverable amount of each asset, or for goodwill, the cash-
generating unit {or group of cash-generating units) related to the goodwill Total assets (which include goodwill) are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating unit’ or CGL).

The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value inuse. The value in use is based
on the present value of the future cash flows expected to arise from the asset.

In testing for impainment, estimates are used in deriving cash flows and the discount rates. Such estimates reflect
current market assessments of the risks specific to the asset and the time value of money. The estimation process

is complex due to the inherent risks and uncertainties associated with long-term forecasting. If different estimates

of the projected future cash flows or a different selection of an appropriate discount rate or long-termgrowth rate were
made, these changes coutd materially alter the projected value of the cash flows of the asset, and as a consequence materially
different amounts would be reported in the finandial statements.

impairment losses in respect of goodwill cannat be reversed. In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable ameunt. An impairment
loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.
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intangible assets
Intangible assets can be analysed as follows:
Custormer
Formats contractsand  Contractual Librarles Software
Goodwill andbrands relationshlps arrangerments Licences andother  licencesand Total
£m £m £m £m £€m fm development £m
Cost
At 1January 2015 3627 201 385 10 121 97 89 4,530
Additions 102 273 23 - - 1 15 414
Foreign exchange 15 7 3 - - 1 - 26
At 31 December 2015 3744 481 411 10 171 99 104 4970
Additions 44 3 - - 55 - 13 115
Foreign exchange 47 51 ) 1 - 4 - 12
At 31 December 2016 3,835 535 420 T 176 103 117 5197
Amortisation and
impairment
At 1January 2015 2654 177 347 5 S0 57 71 3401
Charge for the year - 27 17 2 4 8 9 67
Foreign exchange - 1 1 — - — - 2
At 31 December 2015 2,654 205 365 7 94 65 80 3470
Charge for the year - 44 16 2 6 9 12 89
Foreigh exchange - 5 6 1 - 2 - 14
At 31 December 2016 2,654 254 387 10 100 76 92 3573
Net book value
At 31 December 2016 1,181 281 33 1 76 27 25 1,624
At 31 December 2015 1,090 276 46 3 27 34 24 1,500
All intangible asset additions in the year, excluding software, are due to the acquisition of UTV Limited, as detailed in
note 3.4 (2015: four companies acquired).
Goodwill impairment tests
The carrying amount of Goodwill for each CGU is represented as follows:
2016 2015
Em £m
Broadcast & Online 386 342
SDN 76 76
ITV Studios 719 672
1,181 1,090

There has been no impairment charge for any CGU during the year {(2015: £nll),

When assessing impairment, the recoverable amount of each CGU is based on value in use calculations. These calculations
require the use of estimates, spedifically: pre-tax cash flow projections; long-term growth rates; and a pre-tax market
discount rate.

Cash flow projections are based on the Group's current five-year plan. Bayond the five-year plan these projections are
extrapolated using an estimated long-term growth rate of 2% (2015: 2%). The growth rate used is consistent with the
long-term average growth rates for both the industry and the countries in which they are located and is appropriate
because these are long-term businesses.

The discount rate has been revised for each CGU to reflect the latest market assumptions for the risk-free rate, the
equity risk premium and the net cost of debt. There is currently no reasonably possible change in discount rate that
would reduce the headroom in any CGU to zero.
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Broadcast & Online

The goodwill in this CGU arose as a result of the acquisition of broadcasting businesses since 1999, the largest of
which was the merger of Cariton and Granada in 2004 to form [TV plc, which was treated as an acquisition of Carlton
for accounting purposes. Broadcast & Online goodwill also includes the goodwill arising on acquisition of UTV Limited
in February 2016.

The main assumptions on which the forecast cash flow projections for this CGU are based include: the share of the
television advertising market; share of cornmercial impacts; programme and other costs; and the pre-tax market
discountrate.

The key assumption in assessing the recoverable amount of Broadcast & Online goodwill is the size of the television
advertising market. In forming its assumptions about the television advertising market, the Group has used a
combination of tong-term trends, industry forecasts and in-house estimates, which place greater emphasis on recent
experience. No impairment was identified. Atso as part of the impairment review, a sensitivity of up to -10% was applied
to 2017 and -3% to 2018 with no subsequent recovery, again with no impairment identified. The Directors believe that
currently no reasonably possible change in these assumptions would reduce the headroom in this CGU to zero.

An impairment charge of £2,309 million was recognised in the Broadcast & Online CGU in 2008, as a result of the
downtum in the short-term outlook for the advertising market. The advertising market has substantially improved
since then however the impairment cannot be reversed. The impairment review set out above results in significant
headroom in excess of the 2008 impairment amount.

A pre-tax market discount rate of 10.4% (2015: 9.7%) has been used in discounting the projected cash flows.

SDN

Goodwill was recognised when the Group acquired SDN {the licence operator for DTT Multiplex A} in 2005. It represented
the wider strategic benefits of the acquisition specific to the Group, principally the enhanced ability to promote Freeview

as a platform, business relationships with the dhannels which are on Multiplex A and additional capacity available from 2010,

The main assurnptions on which the forecast cash flows are based are income to be eamed from medium-term contracts;
the market price of available multiplex video streams; and the pre-tax market discount rate. These assumptions have been
determined by using a combination of current contract terms, recent market transactions and in-house estimates of
video stream availability and pricing. No impairment was identified.

As part of the impainment review, sensitivity was applied to the main assumptions with no impairment identified
(2017: -10% growth, 2018: 0% growth). The Directors believe that currently no reasonably possible change in the
income and availability assumptions would reduce the headroom in this CGU to zero.

A pre-tax market discount rate of 11.7% (2015: T1.5%) has been used in discounting the projected cash flows.

ITV Studios

The gooadwill for ITV Studios has arisen as a result of the acquisition of production businesses since 1999, Significant
balances were created from the acquisition by Granada of United News and Media's production businesses in 2000 and
the merger of Granada and Carlton in 2004 to form ITV pic. ITV Studios goodwill also includes all of the goodwill arising
from recent acquisitions since 2612, with the largest acquisitions being Leftfield in 2014, followed by Talpa and Twofour
Group in 2015,

The key assumptions on which the forecast cash flows for the whole CGU were based include revenue (including
international revenue and the ITV Studios share of ITV output, growth in cornmissions and hours produced),
rargins and the pre-tax market discount rate. These assumptions have been determined by using a combination
of extrapolation of historical trends within the business, industry estimates and in-house estimates of growth rates
in all markets. No impairment was identified.

As part of the impairment review sensitivity was applied to the main assumptions with no impairment identified
(2017:-10% growth, 2018: 0% growth). The Directars believe that currently no reasonably possible change in the
income and availability assumptions would reduce the headroom in this CGU to zerc.

A pre-tax market discount rate of 11.6% (2015: 10.1%) has been used in discounting the projected cash flows.

There have been no changes to the ITV Studios CGU in the year and the Directors consider that a single ITV Studios CGU
continues to rernain appropriate.
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3.4
Acquisitions

Keeping
it simple

&

Acquisitions

During the period, the Group completed the acquisition of UTV Limited, which has been included in the results of the

The following section outlines what the Group has acquired in the year.

Most of the deals are structured so that a large part of the payment made to the
sellers (‘consideraticn’} is determined based on future performance. This is done
so that the Group can both align incentives for growth, while reducing risk so that
total consideration reflects actual performance, not expected.

IFRS accounting standards require some of this consideration te be included in

the purchase price used in determining goodwill (‘contingert consideration’).
Examples of contingent consideration include top-up payments and recoupable
perfarmance adjustments. Any remaining cansideration is required to be recognised
as a llability or expense outside of acquisition accounting (put aption liabilities ane
employment-linked contingent payments known as ‘earnout’ payments).

The Group considers the income statement impact of all consideration to be capital
in nature and therefore excludes it from adjusted profit. Therefare, for each
acquisition below, the distinction between the types of consideration has been
explained in detail.

Broadcast & Online operating segment. The business fits with the strategy of strengthening the Group’s free-to-air

business and enables it to run a more efficient network. The following section pravides a summary of the acquisition.

UTV Limited

0On 29 February 2016 the Group acquired a 100% controlling interest in UTV Limited which, together with its 100%

subsidiary UTV Ireland Limited, owned the television assets of UTV Media plc. UTV is the market leading commercial

broadcaster in Northern Ireland, broadcasting ITV content alongside high-quality local programming. The strategic
rationale for the acquisition was to purchase the Northern Irish Channel 3 license.

UTV Limited launched a new dedicated channel for the Republic of Ireland in 2015 via its subsidiary UTV Ireland Limited.

Management concluded that the best prospect of delivering a strong and sustainable Irish broadcaster was to bring

UTV Ireland under common ownership with TV3. ITV therefore sold the company to Virgin Media, owner of TV3 on
30 Novernber 2016, for consideration of €10million. Further details are included in note 2.5

Key terms:

The Group purchased the businesses for a cash consideration of £100 million.

UTV Limited acquisition accounting:

Intangibles, being the value placed on brands and licences of £58 million were identified and goodwill was valued at

£44 million. Goodwill represents the value placed on the cpportunity to diversify and grow the business by the Group.
The goodwill arising on acquisition is not expected to be deductible for tax purposes. Other fair value adjustments have
been made to the opening balance sheet, though none of them are individually significant.

Acquisitions in 2015

In 2015 the Group made four acquisitions, all of which are included in the results of the ITV Studios operating segment.

Talpa MediaB.V.

On 30 April 2015 the Group acquired a 100% controlling interest in Talpa Media B.V, and its subsidiaries.

Key terms:

Cash consideration of £362 million (€500 rillion) was paid at acquisition and the maximurm total consideration for
100% of the business, including the initial payment, was £796 million (€1,100 million, undiscounted). All future payments

are performance based.

The deal structure allows for a further £434 million (€600 million) payable after two, five and eight years, on the
achievernent of stretching performance targets for the business in the years following acquisition. For these amounts
to be payabile in the future, the deal requires the seller to remain with the business during the earnout period. Further,
if the seller leaves within the first two years following acquisition, €150 million of the initial consideration would be
refunded to ITV. While accounting standards determine that these payments are treated as an expense, even the

€150 million refundable, the Group considers these payments as capital in nature, and therefore expenses in relation
to these payments are excluded from adjusted profits as excepticnal iterns.
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Talpa Media B.V. acquisition accounting:

Intangibles, being the value placed on formats, brands, customer contracts, non-compete arrangements and libraries,
of £276 million (€382 millicn) were identified and goodwill was valued at £41 million (€57 million). Goodwill represents
the value placed on the opportunity to diversify and grow the content and formats produced by the Group. The goodwill
arising on acquisition is not expected to be deductible for tax purposes. Other fair value adjustments have been made

to the opening balance sheet, though none of them are individually significant.

Twofour Group
On 24 June 2015 the Group acquired Boom Supervisory Limited, the holding company of Twofour Group.

Key terms:

The Group purchased 100% of the Twofour Group for a cash consideration of £55 million. Subsequently the sellers
subscribed to 25% of the share capital of the acquiring company. Put and call options have been granted over this
25% in Twofour Group; these options both being exercisable over the next three to five years. The transaction has
been accounted for on an anticipated acquisition basis and a non-controlling interest has not been recognised. The
maximummn total consideration, including the initial payment, is £280 million {undiscounted). These payments are
dependent on future performance of the business and linked to ongoing employment, therefore accounted for

as expense. The Group considers these payments as capital in nature, and therefore expenses in relation to these
payments are excluded from adjusted profits as exceptional items.

Twofour Group acquisition accounting:

Intangibles, being the value placed on formats, brands, customer contracts, non-compete arrangements and libraries,
of £18 million were identified and goodwill was valued at £50 miilion. Goodwill represents the value placed on the
opportunity to diversify and grow the content and formats produced by the Group. The goodwill arising on acquisition
is not expected to be deductible for tax purposes, Other fair value adjustments have been made to the opening balance
sheet, though none of them are individually significant.

Qther 2015 acquisitions

The Group made initial payments totalling £15 million for two smaller acquisitions, Cats on the Roof Media Ltd and
Mammoth Screen Ltd, with a view that these acquisitions will strengthen and complement ITV's existing position as

a producer for major television networks in the UK. The maximum additional consideration that the Group could pay is
£66 million {undiscounted), Goodwill totalling £11 million arising on these acquisitions is not expected to be deductible
for tax purposes.
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Effect of acquisition
The acquisitions noted above had the following impact on the Group assets and liabilities:

2016 2015
£m urv Total
Consideration transfetred:

Initial consideration {net of cash acquired) (Note A) o7 406

Less: consideration classified as prepaid employment linked consideration (Note B) - (109)
Total consideration 97 297
Fair value of net assets acquired:

Property, plant and equipment 4 6

Intangible assets 58 27

Deferred tax liabilities 11 71)

Trade and other receivables 5 101

Trade and other payables (4] (138)
Net assets held for sale 4 -
Fair value of net assets 53 195
Goodwill 44 102
Contributions to the Group's performance:
From date of acquisition

Revenue 7 185

EBITA before exceptionals {Note Q) 8 29
Proforma - January to December

Revenue 33 306

EBITA before exceptionals (Note C) 9 49

Note A: Consideration for all acquisitions is net of cash acquired and estimated debt and working capital settlements. Cash acquired

during the year is £3 million (2015: £33 million).

Note B: in 2015 total consideration was net of employrment linked consideration of £109 million (€150 million). IFRS requires the
etnptoyment linked consideration to be treated as remuneration. See note 3.1.4 for further detall of this prepayment.

Note C: UTV profit for the ten months from date of acquisition is £8 million and £9 million for January to December 2016, both excluding

the effect of discontinued operations. This represents UTV's contribution to Group profits. On a consolidated basis the acquisition
resulted in a reduction in [TV Non-NAR revenues previously earmed from UTV, which on a Group basis is offset by the reduction in

UTV's costs.
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35 Keeping The Group holds non-controlling interests in a number of different entities.
Investments it simple Accounting for these investments, and the Group's share of any profits and losses,
depends on the level of control or influence the Group is granted via its interest.
The three principal types of non-consolidated investments are: joint arrangements
% {joint ventures or joint operations), associates and available for sale investments.

Ajoint venture is an investment where the Group has joint control, with one or mare
third parties. An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence
{i.e. power to participate in the investee's financial and operating decisions). Any
otherinvestment is an available for sale investiment.

Accounting policias .

For joint ventures and associates the Group applies equity accounting. Under this method, it recognises the investrnent
in the entity at cost and subsequently adjusts this for its share of profits or losses, which are recognised in the income
statement within non-operating items and included in adjusted profit. Where the Group has invested in associates by
acquiring preference shares or convertible debt instruments, the share of profit recognised is usually £nil as no equity
interest exists. Available for sale investments are held at fair value unless the investment is a start-up business, in which
case it is valued at cost and assessed for irmpairment.

The carrying amount of each category of our investmentsis represented as follows:

2018 2075
£m £m
Jeint ventures a4 1
Associates 60 18
Available for sale investments 12 1
76 30

The increase in the year Is due to investment in New Form, a digital producer-broadcaster, and increased investment
In ITV Tomotrow Studios, a scripted studio launched in 2014, Further smaller investments have been made in line with
Group’s strategy to grow the international content business.

Please refer to page 184 for the Uist of principal investments held at 31 December 2016.
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36
Provisions

Keeping A provision is recagnised by the Group where an obligation exists relating to events
it simple in the past and it is probable that cash will be paid to settle it.

A provision is made where the Group is not certain how much cash will be required to
% settie a liability, so an estimate is required. The main estimates relate to the cost of

holding properties that are no longer in use by the Group, the likelihood of settling
legal claims and contracts the Group has entered into that are now unprofitabte.

Accounting policies

A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising fram past events, it is probable cash will be paid to settle it and the amount can be estimated
reliably. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows by a rate that reftects current

rnarket assessments of the time value of rnoney and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is
recognised as a financing cost in the income statement. The value of the provision is determined based on assumptions

and estimates in relation to the amount and timing of actual cash flows which are dependent on future events.

Provisions
The movements in provisions during the year are as follows:

Contract Property Legal and Other

provisions provisions provisions Total

£m £m £m £m

At 1January 2016 & 2 25 33

Additions - 1 - 1
Utilised (6) - {4) {(10)
Released - (U] - {0

At 31 December 2016 - 2 2 23

Provisions of £19 million are classified as current liabilities (2015: £28 million). Unwind of the discount is £nil in 2016
and 2015,

Contract provisions comprised onerous comimitments on transmission infrastructure that were expected to be utilised

over the remaining contract period and onetous technology services contracts which would not be utilised.

Legal and Other provisions totalling £27 million (2015: £25 million) primarily relate to potential liabilities that may
arise as a result of Boxclever having been placed into administrative receivership, most of which relate to pension
arrangements. In 2011 the Determinations Panel of the Pensions Regulator determined that Financial Support
Directions (FSDs) should be issued against certain Group companies, which would reqguire the Group to put in place

financial support for the Boxclever Scheme. The Group Is challenging this in the Upper Tribunal The process is ongoing

and aside from procedural issues there were no substantive case developments in the period. The Directors have
obtained leading counsel’s opinion and extensive legal advice in connection with the proceedings and continue to
believe that the provision held is appropriate. The reduction in provisions during the year was due to settlement of
various other legal matters.
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37
Pensions

148

Keeping In this note we explain the accounting policies governing the Group's pension
it simp[e scheme, followed by analysis of the components of the net defined benefit pension
deficit, including assumptions made, and where the related movements have been
recognised in the financial statements. In addition, we have placed text boxes to
% explain some of the technical terims used in the disclosure.

What are the Group's pension schemes?

There are two types of pension schemes. A 'Defined Contribution' scheme that

is open to ITV employees, and a number of ‘Defined Benefit' schemes that have been
closed to new members since 2006 and wilt close to future accrualin 2017.1n 2016
on acquisition of UTY Limited the Group took over the UTV Defined Benefit Scheme.

VWhat is a Defined Contribution scheme?

The ‘Defined Contribution’ scheme 1s where the Group makes flixed payments into
a separate fund on behalf of those employees that have elected to participate
insaving for their retirement. ITV has no further obligation to the participating
employee and the risks and rewards assaciated with this type of scheme are
assumed by the members rather than the Group. It is the members' responsibility
to make investment decisions relating to their retirement benefits,

What is a Defined Benefit scheme?

in a '‘Defined Benetit’ scheme, members receive ¢ash payments during retirement,
the value of which is dependent on factors such as salary and length of service.

The Group makes contributions to the scheme, a separate trustec-administered fund
that is not consolidated in these financial statements, but is reflected on the defined
benefit pension deficit line on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Itis the responsibility of the Trustee to manage and invest the assets of the Scheme
and its funding position. The Trustee, appointed according to the terms of the
Scheme's documentation, is required to act in the best interest of the members

and is responsible for managing and investing the assets of the scheme and its
funding position.

in the event of poor returns the Group needs to address this through a combination
of increasedlevels of contribution or by making adjustments to the scheme.
Schemes can be funded, where regular cash contributions arc made by the employer
into a fund which is invested, or untunded, where no regular money or assets are
required to be put aside ta cover future payments.

Accounting policies

Defined contribution scheme

Obligations under the Group's defined contribution schemnes are recognised as an operating cost in the income
statement as incurred. For 2016, total contributions expensed were £16 million (2015 £16 million).

Defined benefit scheme

The Group’s obligation in respect of the Defined Benefit Scheme {the ‘Scheme’) is calculated by estimating the amount
of future retirement benefit that eligible employees {members’) have earned in return for their services. That benefit
payable in the future is discounted to today's value and then the fair value of scheme assets is deducted to measure
the defined benefit pension deficit.

The liabilities of the Scheme are measured by discounting the best estimate of future cash flows to be paid using the
‘prajected unit' methad. This method is an accrued benefits valuation method that makes allowance for projected
earnings of members in the future up to retirement.
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These calculations are complex and are performed by a qualified actuary. There are many judgements and estimates

necessary to calculate the Group's estimated liabilities, the main assumptions are set out later in this section.
Movemnents in assumptions during the year are called ‘actuarial gains and losses’ and these are recognised in

the period in which they arise through the statement of cormprehensive income.

The latest triennial valuation of the Scheme was undertaken as at 1 January 2014 by an independent actuary appointed
by the Trustee of the Scherne and agreed in early 2016. The next triennial valuation will be as at 1 January 2017 and is

expected to be agreed in late 2017 or early 2018. This will drive subsequent contribution rates.

An unfunded scheme in relation to four former Granada executives is accounted for under IAS 19 and the Group is

responsible for meeting the pension obligations as they fall due. The unfunded scheme has additional security

compared to the ITV main scheme, in the form of a charge over gilts held by the Group. The current Directors of ITV plc
recognise the legacy pension obligations should be honoured, but believe the additional security for the schemeis
inappropriate compared to the security provided to the members of the ITV Pension Scheme. Following the Group's
unsuccessful attempt to remove the charge, the £39 million securitised gilts have been classified as other pension

assets, rather than cash/cash equivalents, to more fairly reflect the Group’s net pension deficit.

In December 2016, following a member consultation, the Group decided to close the ITV Pension Scheme to future
benefit accrual with effect from 28 February 2017. Members’ benefits are no longer subject to a capped pensichable
salary, the benefits will be linked to statutory revaluation until retirement This decision gave rise to a one off, non-cash

£19 million curtailment charge recognised in the year.

0On 29 February 2016 the Group acquired 100% of the assets and liabilities of UTV Limited, including responsibility for

a defined benefit pension scheme. At acquisition the UTV Scheme had neither surplus nor deficit on an IAS 19 basis, and
had a surplus of £1 million as of 31 December 2016. Due to the size of the surplus the Directors present the results and
position of the UTV Scheme together with the existing ITV Schermes. The next triennial valuation will be as at 30 June

2017 and is expected to be agreed in 2018.

Unless otherwise stated, references to ‘the Schermes' within this note refer to the ITV Pension Scheme, the unfunded

scheme and the UTV Scheme combined.
The defined benefit pension deficit

Net pension deficit of £328 million at 31 December 2016 {2015: £176 miillion} is stated after induding the unfunded

scheme security asset of £39 million (2015: £nil).

The totals recognised in the current and previous years are:

2016 2015
£m Em
Total defined benefit scheme obligations {4,200) (3,446)
Total defined benefit scheme assets 3,833 3,270
Defined benefit pension deficit JAS 19) {367) (176)
Other pension asset 39 -
Net pension deficht (328) (176)

The remaining sections provide further detail of the value of the Scheme's assets and liabilities, how these are

accounted for and the impact on the income statement.
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Defined benefit scheme obligations

Keeping What cause movements in the defined benefit pension obligations?
it simple The areas that impact the defined benefit obligation (the pension scheme liabilities)
position at the year end are as follows:

s Current service cost — the cost to the Group of the future benefits earned
% by members that retates to the members’ service in the current year. Thisis

charged to operating costs in the income statement.
Past service cost — is a change in present value of the benefits built up by the
members in the prior periods; can be positive or negative resulting from changes
to the existing plan as aresult of an agreement between ITV and employees or as
aresult of significant reduction by ITV in the number ot employees covered by the
plan (curtailment).
Interest cost — the pension abligations payable in the future are discounted to the
present value at year end. A discount factor is used to determine the current value
today of the futurc cost. The interest costis the unwinding of one year's movement
in the present value of the obligation. It is broadly determined by muttiplying the

I discount rate at the beginning of the periad by the updated present value of the
sbligation during the period The discount rate is a key assumption explained later
in this section. Thig interest cost is recegnised through net financing costsinthe
income statement {sec note 4 4).
Actuarial gains or losses - There are broadly two causes of actuarial moverments.
‘Experience’ adjustments, which arise when comparing assurnptions made when
estimating the liabilities and what has artually occurred, and adjustments resulting
from changes in actuarial assumptions e.g. moverments in corporate bond yields.
Key assumptions are explained in detail later in this section. Actuarial gains or losses
are recognised through other comprehensive income.
Benefits paid - any cash benefits paid out by the Scheme wilt reduce the obligation.
One-off events - for example the acquisition of UTV Limited set out above.

The movement in the present value of the Group’s defined benefit obligation is analysed below:

2016 2015

£m £m

Defined benefit obligation at 1 January 3,446 3687

Current service cost 7 B

Curtailment charge 19 -

Interest cost 1) 126
Actuarial loss#{gain) 664 217

UTV acquisition 98 -

. Benefits paid (165) {(158)
Defined benefit obligation at 31 December 4,200 3,446

Of the above total defined benefit obligation at 31 December 2016, £51 million relates to unfunded schemes
(2015: £46 miillion), including the scheme in relation ta the four former Granada executives.
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Assumptions used to estimate the Scheme obligations

Keeping What are the main assumptions used to estimate the Scheme obligations?
it simple The main assumptions are:

future salary levels
future pensionable salary levels

% an estimate of increases in pension payments
the life expectancy of members

the effect of inflation on all these factors
the discaunt rate used to estimate the present day fair value of these obligations

How do we determine the appropriate assumptions?
The Group takes independent actuarial advice relating to the appropriatencess of the
assumptions used

IFRS requires that we estimate a discount rate by reference to high-quality
fixed income investments in the UK that match the estimated term of the
pension abligations.

The inflation assumption has been set by looking at the difference between the
yields on fixed and index-linked Government bands. The inflation assumption is
used as a basis for the remaining financial assumptions, except where caps have
been implemented.

The discount rate has therefore been obtained using the yields available on AA rated
corporate bonds which match projected cash flows. The Group's estimate of the
weighted average term of the liabilities is 17 years (2015: 15 years).

The principal assurmptions used in the Scheme’s valuations at the year end were:

2016 205

Discount rate for:

Past service liabilities 2.60% 3.80%

Future service labilities 270% 4.00%
Inflation assumption for:

Past service liabilities 3.25% 3.00%

Future service liabilities 320% 3.10%
Rate of pensionable salary increases

[TV Pension Schemes N/A 0.50%

UTV Pension Scheme 3.75% N/A
Rate of increase in pension payment (LPI' 5% pension increases) 3.15% 250%
Rate of increase to deferred pensions (CPJ) 225% 2.00%

1. Limited Price Index,

The table below reflects published mortality investigation data in conjunction with the results of investigations into the
mortality experience of Scheme members. The assumed life expectations on retirement are:

2016 2016 20%5 2015
Retiring today at age 60 65 60 65
Males 271 22.4 28.0 232
Females 293 245 306 257
Retiring in 20 years at age 60 65 60 65
Males 288 239 300 250
Females 3.0 26.1 326 276

Ouring 2076 a review of the longevity of the Scheme pensioners was conducted and revealed lower life expectancy
than previously assumed. The net pension deficit is sensitive to changes in assumptions. Those are disclosed further
in this section.
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Total defined benefit scheme assets

Keeping The Scheme holds assets across a number of different classes which are managed
it simp[e by the Trustee, who consults with the Group on changes to its investment policy.

What are the pension Scheme assets?

At 31December 2016 the Scheme's assets were invested in a diversified partfolio
% that consisted primarily of equity and debt securities. The tables beicw set aut the

major categories of assets.

. Financial instruments are in place in order to provide protection against ¢changes
' in market factors (interest rates and inflation) which could act to increase the defined
benefit pension deficit. These finandial instruments are classified as Scheme assets.

Cne suchinstrument is the longevity swap which the Scheme transactedin 2011

ta obtain protection against the effect of increasesin the lite expectation of the

majority of pensioner members at that date. Under the swap, the Trustee agreed

10 make pre-determined payments in return far payments to meet the specified

pension abligations as they fall due, irrespective of how long the members and |
their dependants live. The difference in the present values of these two streams

of paymentsis retlected in the Scheme assets. The swap had a nil valuation at

inception and, using market-based assumptions, is subsequently adjusted for

changes in the market life expectancy and market discount rates. in line with

its fair value.

How do we measure the pension Scheme assets?
Defined benefit scheme assets are measured at their fair value and can change due
to the following:

« Interpst ncome on scheme assets — this is determined by multiplying the
fair value of the Scherme assets by the discount rate, both raken as of the beginning
of the year. This is recognised through net financing costs in the income statement
Returnon assets arise from differences between the ac fual return and interest incorme
onScheme assets and are recagnised through other comprehensive income.
Employer's contributions are paid into the Scherme to be managed and invested
Benefits and administrative expenses paid out by the Schemes will lower the
fair value of the Scheme's assets.

The movement in the fair value of the defined benefit scheme’s assets is analysed below:

2016 2015

£m £m

Fair value of Scheme assets at 1 January 3,270 3341

Interest income oh Scheme assets 126 16
Return/(loss} on assets, excluding interest income 416 {126)

Employer contributions 93 102

UTV acquisition 98 -
Benefits paid {165) {158}
Administrative expenses paid (5) {5)

Fair value of Scheme assets at 31 December 3,833 3,270

‘ The actual return on the Scheme’s assets, being the sum of the interest income on Scheme assets and return on
Scheme assets, for the year ended 31 December 2016 was an increase of £542 million (2015: dacrease of £10 million).
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How are the Scheme’s assets invested?

At 31 December 2016 the Scheme's assets were invested in a diversified portfolio that consisted primarily of equity
and debt securities. The Trustee is responsible for deciding the investment strategy for the scheme’s assets, although
changes ininvestment policies require consultation with the Group. The assets are invested in different classes to
hedge against unfavourable movements in the funding obligation. When selecting the mix of assets to hoid, and
considering their related risks and returns, the Trustee will weigh up the variability of retums against the target
long-term rate of return on the overall portfolio.

The fair value of the Scheme's assets are shown in the following table by major category:

Market value Market value
26 2015
£m £m
Liability hedging assets T T T T T T )
Fixed interest gilts 678 . 532
Index-tinked interest gilts 1135 9\
Interest rate and inflation hedging derivatives (swaps and repos) 270 59
2,083 54% _1505 46%
Other bonds 784 20% 733 - 2%
Retum seeking investments .
Quoted equities . . .. . ®33 65
Infrastructure - . @ 88 _
Property 62 = 54
Hedge funds/alternatives 196
1,012 7% 971 30%
Other investments
Cash and cash equivalents 183 86
insurance policies 42 40
Longevity swap fair value 71 (65)
(46) {1%) &1 2%
Total Scheme assets 3833 100% 3,270 100%

Included in the above are ovetseas assets of £1,304 million (2015: £1,198 million), comprised of quoted equities
of £565 million (2015: £564 million} and bonds of £739 million (2015: £634 million).

The Trustee entered a longevity swap in 2011 which provides cash flow certainty by hedging the risk of increasing life
expectancy over the next 70 years for 11,700 of current pensioners covering £1.7bn of the pension obligation. The fair
value of the longevity swap equals the discounted value of the projected net cash flows resulting from the contract
and has changed substantially over the year due to two key factors:

+ Areview of the longevity of pensioners covered by the swap which revealed lower life expectancy than previously
expected. This reduced the asset value by £127 million.

« Areduction in the yields used to value the swap as falling yields adversely impact the fair value. This reduced the
asset value by £79 million.
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Defined pension deficit sensitivities

Keeping Which assumptions have the biggest impact on the Scheme?
it simp[e Itis important to note that comparatively small changesin the assumptions used may
have a significant effect on the consolidated income staterment and staternent of
financial position This ‘sensitivity' to change is analysed below to demonstrate how
% smail changes in assumptions can have alarge impact on the estimation of the
defined benefit pension deficit.

The Trustee manages the investment, mortatity andinflation risks ta ensure the pension
obligations are met as they fall due. The investment strategy s aimed at the valuation
obligation rather than IA519 defined pension deficit value. As such the effectiveness of the
risk hedging strategies on a valuation basis will not be the same as on an accounting basis.
Those hedging strategies have significant impact on the movement in the net pension
deficit as assumptions change, offsetting the impacts on the obligation disclosed below.

In practice, changes in one assumption may be accompanied by offsetting changes in
another assumption (although thisis not always the case} Changesin the
assumptions may accur at the same time as changes in the market value of Scheme
assets, which may or may not offset the changes in assumpticns.

Changes in assumptions have a different level of impact as the vatue of the net
pension deficit fluctuates, because the relationship between themis not linear.

The analysis below considers the impact of a single change in principal assumptions on the defined benefit obligation
while keeping the other assumptions unchanged and does not take into account any risk hedging strategies:

Assumption Change in assutnption Impact on defined benefit abligation
Increase by 0.1% Decrease by £65 million
Discount rate Decrease by 0.1% Increase by £75 million ;
Increase by 0.1% Increase by £15 million _
Rate of inflation (Retail Price index) Decrease by 0.1% ___Decrease by £15 million -
increase by 0.1% tncrease by £10 million _
Rate of inflation (Consurmer Priceindex)  Decrease by 0.1% Decrease by £10 million -
Life expectations Increase by ohe year Increase by £130 million

The sensitivity anatysis has been determined by extrapolating the impact on the defined benefit obligation
at the year end with changes in key assumptions that might reasonably occur.

While the Scherme's risk hedging strategy is aimed at a valuation basis, the Directors estimate that on an accounting
basis it would significantly reduce the above impact on the defined benefit obligation.

In particular, an increase in assumption of life expectations by one year would benefit from an estimated increase of
the value of the longevity swap by £100 million, reducing the net impact on the defined pension deficit to €30 million.

Further, the [TV Pension Scherme invests in UK Government bonds and interest rate and inflation swap contracts
and therefore movements in the defined benefit obligation are typically offset, to an extent, by asset movements.
This occurred during 2016 when both corporate and UK government bond yields fell significantly and the market
expectation of future inflation rose. However, as corporate bond yields fell further than UK Government Bond yields,
the impact on the defined benefit obligation exceeded the impact on the assets,
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Keeping What was the impact of movements on the Scheme's assets and liabilities?
it simple

The sections above describe how the Scheme obligations and assets are comprised
and measured. The following section sets out the impact of varicus movements and
expenses an the Scheme on the Group's financial statements.

&

Amounts recognised through the income statement
Amounts recognised through the income statement are as follows:

2016 2015
£m £m
Amolnt charged to operating costs:
Current service cost (2] (8)
Scheme administration expenses {5) (5)
(12) 03
Amount charged to net financing costs:

Net interest on defined benefit obligation {5) {10)
Amount charged to excepticnal costs:

Curtailment cost (19) -
Total charged in the consolidated income statement (36) (23)
Amounts recognised through the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
The amounts recognised through the consolidated statement of comprehensive income/(cost) are:

2016 2015
£m £m
Remeasurement gains / (losses):

(Loss)/Return on scheme assets excluding interest income 416 (126)

Actuarial gains / (losses) on liabilities arising from change in:

—inflation experience ) 48

- financial assumptions (868) 169

~ martality assumptions 173 -

(664) 217
Total recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income (248) o1

The £664 million actuarial loss on the Scheme’s liabilities was principally due to a decrease in bond yields over the year,
which has resulted in anincrease in the liabilities. The £416 million gain on the Scheme's assets primarily results from

increases in the market values of gilts and swaps, which has led to assets ocutperforming expectations.
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Addressing the defined benefit pension deficit

Keeping The Group works closely with the Trustee to agree appropriate levels of funding
itsim ple for the Scheme. This involves agreeing a Schedule of Contributions at each triennial
valuation, which specifies the contribution rates for the employer and scheme members
and the date these contributions are due. A recovery plan setting out the steps that will
% be taken to address a funding shortfallis also agreed.

In the event that the Group’s defined benefit scheme is in a net liability position, the
Directors must take steps to manage the size of the deficit. Apart from the funding
agreements mentioned above, this could involve pledging additional assets 1o the
Scheme, as was the case in the SDN and London Television Centre (LTVC) pension
funding partnerships {explained belaw).

The levels of ongoing contributions to the Scheme are based on the current service costs (as assessed by the Scheme
Trustee) and the expected future cash flows of the Scheme. Normal employer contributions in 2017 far current service
(including administration expenses) are expected to be in the region of £6 million {2016: £12 million) and deficit funding
contributions in 2017 are expected to be £66 million (2016: £66 million), assuming current contribution rates continue
as agreed with the Trustee. The reduction in normal employer contributions for current service is as aresult of the
closure of the ITV Pension Scheme to future benefit accrual

The Group has two asset-backed pension funding agreements with the Trustee and makes annual payments of
£11 million for 12 years from 2011 and £2.5 miillion, increasing by 5% per annum until 2038. In 2077 a payment of
£14 million is expected as a result of those agreements.

IFRIC 14 clarifies how the asset ceiling should be applied, and in particular, how local minimum funding rules work. The
Group has determined that it has an unconditional right to a refund of surplus assets if the Schemes are run off untit
the last member dies, on which basis IFRIC 14 does not cause any change in the balance sheet disclosures before tax.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Section 4: Capital Structure and Financing Costs

in this This section outlines how the Group manages its capital structure and related
section financing costs, including its balance sheet liquidity and access to capital markets.

The Directors determine the appropriate capital structure of ITV, specifically,
how much is raised from shareholders (equity) and how much is borrowed from
financial institutions (debt) in order to finance the Group’s activities both now
and in the future. Maintaining capital discipline and balance sheet efficiency
remains important to the Group, as seen through the issuance of a new
Eurobond during the year. Any potential courses of action will take into account
the Group's liquidity needs, flexibility to invest in the business, pension deficit
initiatives and impact on credit ratings.

The Directors consider the Group's capital structure and dividend policy at least
twice a year ahead of announcing results and do so in the context of its ability
to continue as a going concern, to execute the strategy and to invest in
opportunities to grow the business and enhance shareholder value.

A Tax and Treasury committee acting under delegated authority from the
Board, approves certain financial transactions and monitors compliance with
the Group's tax and treasury policies.

41 Keeping Net cash / ({debt) is the Group’s key measure used to evaluate total cash resources net
Net debt it simple of the current gutstanding debt.

Adjusted net debt is aisc monitored by the Group and more closely reflects how
credit agencies see the Group's gearing. To arrive at the adjusted net debt amaount,
%] we add our total undiscounted expected contingent payments on acquisitions, our
net pension deficit and our undiscounted operating lease commitments. A full
analysis and discussion of adjusted net debt is included in the Financial and

Performance Review,

The tables below analyse movements in the components of net cash during the year:

Net cash flow Currency and

1 January and non-cash 31 December

2016 acquisitions Reclassfications  movements 2016

£m £m £m £m £m

Cash 238 304 - 7 549

Cash equivalents 56 (6) {39) 1 12

Total cash and cash equivalents 294 298 {39) 8 561
Loans and facilities due within one year (5) 5 - {167} {161)
Finance leases due within one year {6) 6 - {4} (4)
Loans and facilities due after one year (598) {525) - 88 {1,035)

Finance leases due after one year {4) - - 4 -
Total debt (613) {514) - 73} (1,200)

Currency component of swaps heid against euro

denominated bonds — - - 2 2

Net cash/(debt) (319) 216) (39) {63) {(637)
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Net cash flow Currency and

1 January and rom-cash 31 Decernber

2015 acquisitions movements 2015

£m £m £m £m
Cash : 234 3 ) 1 238

Cash equivalents 63 _(8) ) 56

Total cash and cash equivalents 297 ) - 294
Loans and facilities due within one year {78) 73 ) - ) 5)
Finance leases due within cne year ) 7) 7 6) 6)
Loans and facilities due after one year {161} {433) (4) {598)
Finance leases due after one year (10) - 6 {4)
Total debt (256) {353) (&) {613)
Net cash/({debt) 41 {356) (4) (319)

Cash and cash aquivalents

Included within cash equivalents is £4 million (2015: £10 miilion), the use of which is restricted to meeting finance lease
commitments under programme sale and (easebacks (see note 4.2). During 2016 gilts of £39 million (2015: £39 million)
were reclassified to other pension assets. This was as a result of the outcome of legal action atternpting to remaove the
charging deed executed on these gilts in respect of the unfunded pension commitments of four former Granada
executives. Refer ta note 3.7 for further details.

Loans and facilities dus within one year

At various periods during the year the Group drew down on the Revolving Credit Facility (RCF)) to meet short-term
funding requirements, All short-term drawings were repaid by the end of the year (2015: no outstanding short-term
funding), The maximum draw down of the RCF during the year was £500 million in May. The maximum draw down
on the RCF during 2015 was £362 million,

The Group also had an unsecured £161 million Eurobond which matured in January 2017 and had a coupon of 6.125%.

Loans and loan notes due after one year

The Group has two bilateral loan fadlities maturing in March 2017; both loans can be extended until 2018 at ITV's
option. The two facilities are a £100 million bilateral loan that is fully drawn down as of 31 December 2016, and

a £150 million bitaterat loan with an unconditionat right to set off with cash on deposit with the counterparty.
The £150 million arrangement is in a net £nil position.

In December 2016 the Group issued a seven-year €500 million Eurobond at a fixed coupon of 2.0% which will mature in
December 2023. The bond has been swapped badk to sterling using a tross currency interest swap. The resulting fixed
rate payable is ¢ 3.5%. The praoceeds of the bond were for general corporate purposes including the repayrnent of the
£161 million sterling bond which matured in January 2017 and settling the acquisition related liabilities due in 2017.

In September 2015 the Group issued a seven-year €600 million Eurobond at a fixed coupon of 2125% which will mature
in September 2022. The bond refinanced the 12-month bridge loan facility of €500 million used for the purchase of
Talpa Media in April 2015,
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42
Borrowings
and finance
leases

Keeping The Graup borrows money frem financial institutions in the form of bands, bank
it simple facilities and other financial instruments. The interest payable on these instruments
is shown in the net financing costs note in note 4.4,

There are Board-approved petlicies in place to manage the Group’s financial risks.
Macroeconomic market risks, which impact currency transactions and interest rates,
are discussed in note 4.3. Credit and liquidity risks are discussed below.

» Credit risk: the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty fails
to meet its contractual obligations and

* Liquidity risk: the risk that the Group will not be able tc meet its financial
cbligaticns as they fall due

The Group is required to disclose the fair value of its debt instruments. The fair value
is the amount the Group would gay a third party to transfer the liability. 't is
caleulated based on the present value of future principal and interest cash flows,
discounted at the market rate cf interest at the reporting date. This calculation of
fair value is consistent with instruments valued under level 2 in note 4.5.

Accounting policies

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less directly attributable transaction costs, with subsequent
measurement at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Under the amortised cost method the
difference between the amount initially recognised and the redemption value is recorded in the income statement
over the period of the borrowing on an effective interest rate basis.

Finance leases

Histarically, ITV has entered into sale and leaseback agreements in relation to certain programme titles. Related
outstanding sale and leaseback obligations, which comprise the principat and accrued interest, are inctuded within
borrowings. The finance related element of the agreement is charged to the income statement over the term of

the lease on an effective interest basis. Sale and leaseback obligations are secured against an equivalent cash balance

held within cash and cash equivalents.

Managing credit and liquidity risk

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of derivative financial assets
(see note 4.3), trade receivables {see note 3.1.3), and cash and cash equivalents {note 4.1).

Trade and other receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual charactetistics of each customer. The majority

of trade receivables relate to airtime sales contracts with advertising agencies and advertisers. Credit insurance has
been taken out against these companies to minimise the impact on the Group in the event of a possible default and

is also taken out for other significant receivables. In December 2016 the Group sighed a hew £100 million non-recourse

receivables purchase agreement to replace the £75 million invoice discount facility. In December 2016 £35 million
invoices were sold under the agreement (2015: £nil). The receivables in relation to those were derecognised and the
Group collected cash on behalf of the counterparty.

Cash
The Group operates investment guidelines with respect to surplus cash that emphasise preservation of capital. The

guidelines set out procedures and limits on counterparty risk and maturity profile of cash placed. Counterparty limits
for cash deposits are largely based upon long-term ratings published by the major credit rating agencies and perceived

state support. Depasits longer than 12 months require the approval of the Board.
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Borrowings

ITV is rated as investment grade by Moody's and S&P. ITV's credit ratings, the cost of credit default swap hedging
and the absolute levet of interest rates are key determinants in the cost of new borrowings for ITV.

Liquidity risk

The Group's financing policy is to fund itself for the medium to long-term by using debt instruments with a range
of maturities and to ensure access to appropriate short-term borrowing facilities with a minimum of £250 milion
of undrawn facilities available at all times.

Long-term funding comes from the UK and Eurcpean Capital markets, while any short to medium-term debt
requirements are provided through bank credit facilities totalling £930 million (see below). Management maonitors
rolling forecasts of the Group's liquidity reserve {comprising undrawn bank facllities and cash and cash equivalents)
on the basis of expected cash flows. This monitoring inclides financial ratios to assess any possible future impact
on credit ratings and headroom and takes into account the accessibility of cash and cash equivalents.

The Group has £630 million available funds through a Revolving Credit Facility (RCF) with a group of relationship banks.
This £630 million facility was amended and extended in December 2016, matures in 2021 and is comrmitted with
leverage and interest cover finandal covenants. In addition, the Group has £300 million of financial covenant free
financing which runs to 2021, Both of these facilities were undrawn at 31 December 2016 (2015: no drawings).

Fair value versus book value
The tables below provide fair value information for the Group’s borrowings:

Book value Fair value
2016 2015 2016 2015
Maturity Em £m £m £m
Loans due within one year
Other short-tertri loans Various - 5 - 5
£161 million Eurcbond Jan 2017 161 161 162 168
Loans due in more than one year
Bilateral loan facility Jun2018 100 - 100 -
€600 million Eurcbond Sept 2022 508 437 529 445
€500 million Eurobond Dec2023 427 - 431 -
1,196 603 1,222 618
Finance leases
The following table analyses when finance lease liabilities are due for payment:
Minimum Minimum
lexse 2016 lease 2015
payments Interest Principal payments Interest Princlpal
£m £m £m £m £m €m
In one year or less 4 - 4 6 _ &
Inmore than one year but not
mare than five years - - - 4 - 4
4 - 4 10 - 10

Finance leases principally comprise programimes under sale and leaseback arrangements. The net book value of
tangible assets held under finance leases at 31 December 2016 was £nil (2015: £1 million).
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4.3
Managing
market risks:
derivative
financial
instruments

Keeping
it simple

&

Accounting policies

What is a derivative?

A derivative is a type of finandial instrument typically used to manage risk. A derivative's
value changes over time in response tounderlying variables such as exchange rates ar
interest rates and is entered into for a fixed period. A hedqge is where a derivative is used
to manage exposure in anunderlying variable,

The Group is exposed to certain market risks. in accordance with Board approved
policies, which are set out in this note, the Group manages these risks by using
derivative financial instruments to hedge the underlying exposures.

Why do we need them?
The key market risks facing the Group are:

« Currency risk arising from:

i. translation risk, that is, the risk in the period of adverse currency fluctuations in
the translation of foreign currency profits, assets and liabilities {balance sheet
visk’) and non-functional currency monetary assets and liabilities {income
statement risk’); and

ii. transaction risk, that is, the risk that currency fluctuations will have a negative
effect on the value of the Group's non-functional currency trading cash flows,

A non-functional currency transaction is a transaction in any currency other than
the reporting currency of the subsidiary.
¢ Interest rate risk to the Group arises from significant changes in interest rates on

borrowings issued at or swapped to floating rates.

How do we use them?
The Group mainly employs four types of derivative financial instruments when
managing its currency and interest rate risk:

* Foreign exchange swap contracts are derivative instruments used to hedge income
statement transiation risk arising from short term intercampany loans
denorninated in a foreign currency;

Ferward foreign exchange contracts are derivative instruments used to hedge
transaction visk so they enable the sale or purchase of foreign currency at a known
fixed rate on an agreed future date .

Interest rate swaps are derivative instruments that exchange a fixed rate of
interest for a floating rate, or vice versa, or one type of floating rate for anather,
and are used to manage interest rate risk; and

Cross-currency interest rate swaps are derivative instruments used to exchange the
principal and interest coupons in a debt mstrurment from one currency to another.

Analysis of the derivatives used by the Group to hedge its exposure and the various
methods used to calculate their respective fair values are detailed in this section.

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value and are subsequently remeasured at fair value with
the movement recorded in the income statement, except where derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge accounting.
In this case, the effective portion of a cash flow hedge is recognised in other comprehensive income and presented

in the hedging reserve within equity. The cumulative gain or loss is later reclassified to the income statement in the
same period as the relevant hedged transaction is realised. Derivatives with positive fair values are recorded as assets
and negative fair values as liabilities.
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Determining Fair Vatue

The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined by using the difference between the contract
exchange rate and the quoted forward exchange rate at the reporting date. The fair value of interest rate swaps
is the estimated amount that the Group would receive or pay to terminate the swap at the reporting date, taking
into account current interest rates and our current creditworthiness, as well as that of our swap counterparties.

Third-party valuations are used to fair value the Group's interest rate derivatives. The valuation techniques use inputs
such as interest rate yield curves and currency prices/yields, volatilities of underlying instruments and correlations

betweeninputs.

How do we manage our currency and interest rate risk?
Currency risk

As the Group expands its international operations, the performance of the business becomes increasingly sensitive

to movements in foreign exchange rates, primarily with respect to the US dollar and the euro,

The Group’s foreign exchange policy is to use forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge materiat non-functional
currency denominated costs or revenue at the tirme of commitment for up to five years forward. The Group also
hedges a proportion of highly probable non-functional currency denominated costs or revenue on a rolling 18-month

basis (see ‘Keeping it simple box' for explanation of non-functional currency transactions).

The Group ensures that its net exposure to foreign currency denominated cash balances is kept to a minimat level by
using foreign currency swaps to exchange balances back into sterling or by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot

rates when necessary,

The Group also utilises foreign exchange swaps and cross-currency interest rate swaps both to manage foreign

currency cash flow tirming differences and to hedge foreign currency denominated monetary items.

The Group's net investments in overseas subsidiaries may be hedged where the currency exposure is considered to be
material In 2015 the Group designated a portion of its euro barrowings into a net investment hedge against its euro

denominated assets following the acquisition of Talpa Media.

The following table highlights the Group's sensitivity to translation risk resulting from a "10% strengthening/weakening

in sterting against the US dollar and euro, assuming all other variables are held constant:

2016 - past- 2015 - post-
taxprofit 2016 - equity tax profit 2015~ equlty
US dollar _ £3million £32million  £10milion  £63 million
Eurc £10 milion €T milion  £8 mitlion  £41 milllon

The Group's sensitivity to transtation risk for revenue and adjusted EBITA is disclosed in the Financial and Performance
Review on page 44. The key difference between the foreign currency sensitivity for adjusted EBITA and profit after tax
is the impact on the US dollar and eurc denominated exceptional costs, including acquisition related costs, acquired

intangible amortisation and net financing cost.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate policy is to allow fixed rate grass debt to vary between 20% and 100% of total gross debt to

accommodate floating rate borrowings under the revolving credit facility.

At 31 December 2016 the Group's fixed rate debt represented 92% of total gross debt (2015: 99%). Consequently a
1% movement in interest rates on floating rate debt would impact the 2016 post-tax profit for the year by £2 million

015: £nil).

For financial assets and liabilities classified at fair value through profit or loss, the movemnents in the year relating to

changes in fair value and interest are not separated.
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What is the value of our derivative financlal instruments?

The following table shows the fair value of derivative financial instruments analysed by type of contract. interest rate

swap fair values exclude accrued interest.

Assets Liabilities
At 31 Decemnber 2016 £m £m
Current
Foreign exchange forward contracts and swaps — cash flow hedges 6 (U]
Foreign exchange forward contracts and swaps - fair value through profit or loss 2 2
Non-current
Cross currency interest swaps - cash flow hedges - {6)
Foreign exchange forward contracts and swaps - cash flow hedges 1 (3)
9 (12)
Assats Liabylities
At 31 Decemnber 2015 £m £m
Current
Foreign exchange forward contracts and swaps — cash flow hedges - {4)
Foreign exchange forward contracts and swaps - fair value through profit or loss 17 )]
Non-current
Interest rate swaps — fair value through profit or loss 8 (€}
9 ()]

Cash flow hedges

The Group applies hedge accounting for certain foreign currency firm commitments and highly probably cash flows
where the underlying cash flows are payable within the next two to seven years. in order to fix the sterling cash
outflows associated with the commitments and interest payments — which are mainly denominated in AUD or euros -
the Group has taken out forward foreign exchange contracts and cross currency interest swaps for the same foreign

currency amount and maturity date as the expected foreign currency outflow.

The armount recognised in other comprehensive income during the period all relates to the effective portion of the revaluation
loss assodiated with these contracts. There was less than £1 million (2015: £1 million) ineffectiveness taken to the income
statement and £5 million cumutative gain (2015 £6 million loss) recyded to the income statement in the year.

Onissuing the 2023 Euroband, the Group entered into a portfolio of aross-currency interest rate swaps, which swapped the
euro principal and fixed rate coupons into sterling. As a result the Group makes sterling interest payments at a fixed rate.

Net investment hedges

The Group uses euro denominated debt to partially hedge against the change in the sterling value of its euro

denominated net assets due to movements in foreign exchange rates. The fair value of debt in a net investrment
hedge was £168 million (2015: £141 miltion). A foreign exchange loss of £21 million (2015: £2 million) relating to the net
investment hedges has been netted off within exchange differences on translation of foreign operations as presented

on the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Interest rate swaps

On issuing the 2017 Eurobond, the Group entered into a portfolio of fixed to floating interest rate swaps and then
subsequently overlaid a portfolio of floating to fixed interest rate swaps with the result that interest was 100% fixed
on these borrowings. The tirming of entering into these swaps locked in an interest benefit for the Group, resulting in a

net mark-to-market gain on the portfolio.
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Undiscounted financial Uabilities

Keeping The Group is required to disclose the expected timings of cash outflows for each of its

it Simple financial liabilities (including derivatives). The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows {inctuding interest), so will not always reconcile
with the amounts disclosed on the staterent of financial position.

&

Carrying “m‘Toul Less than Between Between Over
valuw cash flows 1year 1and2years 2and5years Syears
At 31 December 2016 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings (1196) _ (1338) (194) (M9 (58) B67)
Trade and other payables {912) {912) {855) (48) (8) ()]
Other payables — non-current 1) {11) - (6) &) [U)]
Other payables — commitrnents on
acquisitions {158) (328)* (122) (56) _(150) -
Derivative finandal instruments :
Foreign exchange forward contracts and
swaps - cash flow hedges
Inflow 7 n3 127 86 - -
Outflow (4) 109 (123) 87 - -
Cross currency swaps — cash flow hedges
' Inflow - 497 10 10 30 447
Outflow {6) (542) {17) (7 £Y) {457
Foreign exchange forward contracts and
swaps - fair value through profit or loss
Inflow 263 263 258 5 - -
Outflow @63) (263) (258) ) - -
Interest rate swaps - fair value through profit
or loss
Inflow - 13 13 - - -
Outflow - (6) (6) - - -
(22800 (,624) (1.167) 237) @47 (879)
Total
Carrying  contractual Less than Between Between Qver
valie  cashflows 1year 1and2years 2andS5years 5 years
At 31 Decemnber 2015 £m £m £m £m €m £m
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings (613) 703 (30) (184) (28) (461
Trade and other payables {834) (834) {786) {34) (14) -
Other payables - non-current {4) (4) - ) 2 M
Gther payables — commitrments on acquisitions (85) (303)* (12 (108) 183) -
Derivative financial instruments
Cash flow hedges
Inflow 66 66 49 17 - -
Outflow 9 Y] (63) (17 - -
Foreign exchange forward contracts and
swaps
Inflow 147 147 144 3 - -
Outflow (147) (147 (144) 3 - -
Interest rate swaps
Inflow 8 22 9 13 - -
Outflow € 02 (6) {6 -

(1.538) {1838) (829) (320) @) (462

* Expected future payments depending on performance of acquisitions, the total maximum consideration is discussed in the Ainancial
and Performance Review.
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4.4
Net financing
costs

Keeping This section details the interest income generated on the Group's cash and other
it simple financial assets and the interest expense incurred on barrowings and other
financial liabilities,

% Inreparting ‘adjusted profit’, the Group adjusts net financing costs to exclude

unrealised mark-to-market movements on interest rate and foreign exchange
derivatives, gains/losses on bend buybacks, net pension interest, interest and fair
value movements in acquisition-related tiabilities and other financing costs.

Our rationale for adjustments made to financing cestsis set out in the Financial and
Performance Review.

Accounting policies

Net financing costs comprise interest incorne on funds invested, gains/losses on the disposal of financial instruments,

changes in the fair value of financial instruments, interest expense on borrowings and finance leases, unwinding
of the discount on provisions, unwinding of the discount on liabllities to non-contrelling interest, foreign exchange
gains/losses, and imputed interest on pension assets and liabilities. Interest income and expense is recognised as it
accrues in profit or loss, using the effective interest method.

Net financing costs
Net financing costs can be analysed as follows:

2016 2015
£m £€m
Financing income:
Interest income 2 3
Change in fair vatue of instruments classified at fair value through profit or loss - 3
2 6
Financing costs:
Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost (25) (17)
Net pension interest (see note 3.7) () (10)
Change in fair value of instruments classified at fair value through profit or loss 1) -
Foreign exchange loss (8) 2
Other finance expense (14) 8
3) (37
Net financing costs L) (E))

Interest on financial liabilities relates to the interest incurred on the Group’s borrowings in the year.

Other finance expense includes the amortisation of facility commitment and upfront fees as well as movements
in the estimated value of acquisition-related contingent liabilities, which contributed to most of the 2016 expense,
This Is where estimates of the future performance against stretch targets is reassessed, resulting in adjustments
to the related put option liabilities.
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4.5
Fair value
hierarchy

166

Keeping
it simple

&

The financial instrurments included on the ITV statement of financial position

are measured at either fair value or amortised cost. The measurement of this fair
value canin some cases be subjective, and can depend on the inputs used in the
calcutations. TV generally uses externat valuations using market inputs or market
values (e.g. external share prices). The different valuation methods are called
‘hierarchies’ and are described below.

Level
Fair values are measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2
Fair values are measured using inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability either directly or indirectly.

Interest rate swaps and options are accounted for at their fair value based upon
termination prices. Forward fareign exchange contracts are accounted for at the
difference between the contract exchange rate and the quoted forward exchange
rate at the reporting date.

Level 3
Fair values are measured using inputs for the asset or liability that arc nat based on
observable market data.

The tables below set out the financial instruments induded on the [TV statement of financial position at “fair value'.

Fair value Lavel1 Level2 Level3
ne N D b 31 December 31 Dacember
2016 2016 2016 2016
£m £m £m £m
Assets measured at fair value
Available for sale financial instruments
Other pension assets — gilts (see note 3.7) 39 39 - - ‘
Avaitable for sale investments (see note 3.5) 12 - - 12
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Foreign exchange forward contracts and swaps 2 - 2 -
Financial liabilities at fair value through reserves
Cash flow hedges 7 - 7 -
60 39 9 12
Fair value Levelt Level 2 Level3
3D e 31 Decemb 31 Decembar
016 2016 2016 2016
£m £m £m £m
Liabilities measured at fair value
Financial iabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Contingent consideration (U] - - m
Foreign exchange forward contracts and swaps 3 - 3 -
Financial liabilities at fair value through reserves
Cash flow hedges {9) - (9) -
13) - (12) m
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Fair valug Level 1 Level2 Level 3
31 December 31 December 31December 31Decernber
2015 2015 2015 2015
£m £m £m £m
Assets measured at fair value
Avaiiable for sale financial instruments
Available for sale gilts (see note 4.1) 38 38 - -
Available for sale investments (see note 3.5) T - - "
Finandial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Foreign exchange forward contracts and swaps 1 1 -
Interest rate swaps 8 - 8 —
58 38 9 1
Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
31 December 31December 31December 31 December
2015 2015 2015 2015
£m £m £m £m
Liabilities measured at fair value
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Contingent consideration {3) - - (3)
Foreign exchange forward contracts and swaps {1) - (1} -
Interest rate swaps {6) - {6} -
Financial liabilities at fair value through reserves
Cash flow hedges {4) - (4} -
(14) - an €]

Refer to note 4.3 for how we value interest rate swaps and forward foreign currency contracts. The available for sale

investrnents are valued at cost and assessed for impairment.
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4.6
Equity

168

Keeping This section explains material movements recorded in shareholders’ equity that are
it simple not explained elsewhere in the financial statements. The movements in equity and
the balance at 31 December 2016 are presented in the consolidated statement of

Accounting policles

Available for sale reserve

Available for sale assets are stated at fair value, with any gain or loss recognised directly in the available for sale reserve
in equity, unless the loss is a permanent impairment, when it is then recorded in the income statement.

Dividends
Dividends are recognised through equity on the earlier of their approval by the Company’s shareholders or their payment.

4.6.1 Share capital and share premium

The Group's share capital at 31 December 2016 of £403 million {2015: £403 million) and share prermium of £174 million
(2015: £174 million) is the same as that of TV plc. Details of this are given in the ITV plc Company financial statements
section of this Annual Report.

changes in equity.

4.6.2 Merger and other reserves
Merger and other reserves at 31 December 2016 include the following reserves:

2016 2015

£m Em

Merger reserves ~ . _ o8 i 88
Capital reserves ) L - mz 112
Capital redemption reserves 36 36
Revaluation reserves ] 2 2
Put option liabilities arising on acquisition of subsidiaries [°2)) @7

Total 221 2

4.6.3 Translation reserve
The translation reserve comprises:

» all foreign exchange differences arising on the translation of the accounts of, and investments in, foreign operations;
and
» the gains or losses on the portion of cash flow hedges that have been deemed effective (see note 4.3).

4.6.4 Avallable for sale reserve
The available for sale reserve comprises all movements arising on the revaluation of giits accounted for as available
for sale financial instruments (see note 3.7).

4.6.5 Retained earnings

The retained earmnings reserve comprises profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company of £448 million
{2015: £495 million} and other iterns recognised directly through equity as presented in the consolidated statement

of changes in equity. Other items include the credit for the Group's share-based compensation schemes and the charge
for the purchase of TV shares via the ITV Employees’ Benefit Trust, which are describedinnote 4.7.

The distributable reserves of TV ple are disclosed in note vili to the iTV plc Company Financial Statements.
The Directors of ITV plc propose a final dividend of 7.2p per share and a special dividend of Sp per share.
See details on distributable reserves on page 182
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4.7
Share-based
compensation

4.6.6 Non-controlling interests
The movement far the year comprises:

= the share of profits attributable to non-controlling interests of £4 million (2015: £7miltion); and
= the distributions made to non-controlling interests of £4 million (2015: £5 million),

Keeping The Group utilises share award schemes as part of its employee remuneration
packages, and therefore operates a number of share-based compensation schemes,
namely the Deferred Share Award {DSA), Performance Share Plan (PSP), Long Term
incentive Plan (LTIP) and Save As You Earn (SAYE) schemes.

% Atransactiaon will be classed as share-based campensation where the Group receives

it simple

services from employees and pays for these in shares or similar equity instruments. If
the Group incurs aliability based on the price or value of the Group’s shares then this
will also fall under a share-based transaction.

A description of each type of share-based payment arrangement that existed at any
time during the pericd are set out in the Annual Remuneration Report.

Accounting polices
For each of the Group's share-based compensation schemes, the fair value of the equity instrument granted is

measured at grant date and spread aver the vesting period via a charge to the income staternent with a corresponding

increase in equity,
The fair value of the share options and awards is measured using either market price at grant date or, for the Save As

You Earmn scheme (SAYE), a Black-Scholes maodel, taking into account the terms and conditions of the individual scheme,

Vesting conditions are limited to service conditions and performance conditions. For performance-based schemes,
the relevant Group performance measures are projected to the end of the performance period in order to determine
the number of options expected to vest. The estimate is then used to determine the option fair value, discounted

to present value. The Group revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest, including an
estimate of forfeitures at each reporting date. The impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, are recognised
in the income statement, with a corresponding adjustrnent to equity.

Exercises of share options granted to employees can be satisfied by market purchase or issue of new shares. No new
shares may be issued to satisfy exercises under the terms of the DSA. During the year all exercises were satisfied by
using shares purchased in the market and held in the ITV Employees’ Benefit Trust.

Share-based compensation charges totalled £10 million in 2016 (2015: £14 million).
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Share options outstanding

The table below surmmarises the movements in the number of share options outstanding for the Group and their

weighted average exercise price:

2016 2015

Weighted wi
Number average Number average
of aptions  exercisa price of optlons  exercise price
{ooo) {pence} {000} {pence}
Outstanding at 1.January 40,167 55.63 51933 3297
Granted during the year - nil priced 7,351 ~ 6,744 -
Granted during the year - other 8,002 167.62 4615 198.94
Forfeited during the year (255) 151.17 (30) 143.65
Exercised during the year 12293 2881 {19.477) 16.65
Expired during the year __{6/439) 109.25 {3,618} 18.77
Qutstanding at 31 December 36,533 657.86 40,167 55.63
Exercisable at 31 December 83 ~ 610 5317

The average share price during 2016 was 209.91 pence (2015: 254.24 pence).

Of the optians still outstanding, the range of exercise prices and weighted average remaining contractual life of these

options can be analysed as follows:

2016
Weighted 2015
average Welghted
Weighted remalning Welghted average
g Numb L average Number remaining
axercise price of options s  exercise price of optlons  contractual Ufe
Range of exercise prices [pence) {pence) ooy {years) {pence) {00D) (vears)
Nil - 01531 189 - 25910 179
20.00-4999 - - - - - -
50,00 - 69.95 67.71 505 0.91 67.24 991 0.58
70.00-9999 - - - 7358 301 0.92
100.00 - 109.99 102.59 185 192 102.59 1672 114
1000 - 11899 - - ~ - - -
120.00 - 149.99 13144 1923 216 13144 1,175 1.52
150.00 - 195.99 167.37 13,251 187 17258 8,088 222
200.00 - 24999 206.83 891 141 206.83 2,054 252

Assumptions

DSA, LTIP and PSP options are valued directly by reference to the share price at date of grant.

The options for the SAYE scheme, an HMRC approved SAYE scheme, are valued using the Black-Scholes model, using

the assumptions below:
Share price Expected Gross dividend fusk-free

atgrant Exercise price volatility  Expacted life yield rate Fair value
Scheme name Date of grant (pence) (pence) % {years) % % {pence)
3 Year 2 April 2015 25100 19252 2600 325 227 0.74 65.85
5 Year 2 April 2015 251.00 19252 32.00 525 227 114 80.81
3 Year 16 Sept 2015 24960 206.83 2500 3.25 228 097 55.71
5 Year 16 Sept 2015 249.60 206.83 30.00 525 228 138 7202
3 Year 29 March 2016 24330 187.79 2500 325 3.00 0.41 56.64
5Year 29 March 2016 243.30 187.79 29.00 525 3.00 073 6594
3 Year 16 Sept 2016 19540 15746 30.00 325 3.00 0.41 46.97
5 Year 16 Sept 2016 195.40 157.46 .00 525 3.00 0.73 5215
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Section 5: Other Notes

Employees’ Benefit Trust

The Group has investments in its own shares as a result of shares purchased by the ITV Employees' Benefit Trust (EBT).
Transactions with the Group-sponsored EBT are included in these financial statements and primarily consist of the
EBT's purchases of shares in ITV plc, which are accounted for as a reduction to retained earnings.

The table below shows the number of ITV plc shares held in the EBT at 31 December 2016 and the purchases/(releases)
from the EBT made in the year to satisfy awards under the Group’s share schemes:

SIUNUNINS (RPURUd |

Number of shares Nominat value
Scheme Shares held at {released)/purchased
1 January 2016 16,949,851 1,694,985
DSA releases {2,889,078)
PSP releases (6,200,608)
SAYE releases (3,003,419)
Shares purchased 8553378
31 December 2016 14,410,124 1,438,557

51
Related
party

transactions

The total number of shares held by the EBT at 31 December 2016 represents 0.36% (2015: 0.42%) of ITV's issued share
capital The market value of own shares held at 31 December 2016 is £30 million (2015: £47 million).

The shares will be held in the EBT until such time as they may be transferred to participants of the various Group share
schemes. Rights to dividends have been waived by the EBT in respect of shares held which do not relate to restricted
shares under the DSA. In accordance with the Trust Deed, the Trustees of the EBT have the power to exercise all voting
rights in relation to any investment (including shares) held within that trust.

Keeping Therelated parties identified by the Directors include joint ventures, associated
it simple undertakings, fixed asset investments and key management personnel.

To enable users of cur financial statements to form a view about the effects

of related party relationships on the Group, we disclose the Group's transactions with
those related parties during the year and any associated year end trading balances.

Transactions with joint ventures and associated undertakings
Transactions with joint ventures and associated undertakings during the year were:

2016 2015

£m £m

Sales to joint ventures 8 9
Sales to associated undertakings 10 13
Purchases from joint ventures 26 24
Purchases from associated undertakings 70 65

The transactions with joint ventures primarily relate to sales and purchases of digital multiplex services with
Digital 3&4 Limited,

Purchases from associated undertakings primarily relate to the purchase of news services from ITN.

All transactions with associated undertakings and joint ventures arise in the normal course of business on an arm's
length basis. None of the balances are secured.

17



Financlal Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements
Section 5: Other Notes continued

The amounts owed by and to these related parties at the year end were:

2016 2015

£m £m
Amounts owed by joint ventures - 3
Amounts owed by associated undertakings 57 66
Amounts owed to joint ventures - 2
Amounts owed to assocdiated undertakings - 5

Balances owed by associated undertakings largely relate to loan notes and production funding advanced to Tormorrow
ITV Studios for US saripted investment.

Amounts paid to the Group’s retirement benefit plans are set out in note 3.7.

Transactions with key managsmaent parsonnel
Key management consists of ITV plc Executive and Non-executive Directors and the ITV Management Board.
Key management personnel compensation is as follows:

206 2015

£m £m

Short-term employee benefits 8 )
Share-based compensation 2 6
10 15

52 Keeping A contingent liability is a liability that is not sufficiently certain to qualify for
CQntingen‘t it Simple recognition as a provision where uncertainty may exist reqarding the outcome of
liab".ities future events.

There are contingent Liabilities in respect of certain litigation and quarantees, broadcasting issues, and in re of

g P A C 9
warranties given in connection with certain disposals of businesses. Nonhe of these items are expected to have a
9 5p ol

material effect on the Group’s results or financial position.
53 Keeping Where the Group receives information in the period between 31 December 2076
subsequent it simple and the date of this report about conditions related to certain events that existed at
events 31 December 2016, we update our disclosures that relate to those conditions in tight
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of the new information. Such everits can be categorised as adjusting ot non-adjusting
% depending on whether the condition existed at 31 December 2016 If non-adjusting

events are material, non-disclosure could influence the economic decisions that
users make an the hasis of the financial statements. Accordingly, for each material
category of non-adjusting event after the reporting period we disclose in this section
the nature of the event and an estimate of its financial effect, or a statement that
such an estimate cannot be made

Eurobond repayment

On 5 January 2017 the £161 Eurobond matured and the Group repaid the capital amount, The related interest rate swap
contracts were settled at the same time, The repayment was financed using the €500 million Eurobond issued

in December 2016,

Exercise of Gurney Productions LLC call option
On 6 February 2017, the Group exercised the call option to acquire the remaining 38.5% membership interest of Gurney
Productions LLC.

The Group has initiated legal proceedings against the sellers for alleged breaches of contracts and their fiduciary duties,
as well as self-dealing and fraudulent concealment. The sellers dispute the allegations, the exercise and the value of the
call option, and they have counter-claimed for unspecified damages of at least $100 million, which the Directors believe
is completely without merit.
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London Property Strategy
On 21 February 2017, the Directors announcad the outcome of an extensive review of the Group’s London property

requirements. The Group intends to seek planning permission to redevelop its South Bank site and build a new London home.
The teams currently located in the South Bank site will be relocated to various sites in London during the
redevelopment period.

As a result of the review of the Group’s London property needs, the Directors are proposing to dose The London
Studios (TLS) business and use studio capacity in the external market to meet our future business needs, The Group has
begun a pericd of consultation with the employees affected by this closure.

Acquisition of Tetra Madia Studios SAS
On 28 February 2017, the Group announced the acquisition of 65.05% of the capital of the French production business

Tetra Media Studios SAS. The transaction is on a cash free / debt free basis, with put/call options to acquire the
remaining interest depending on future performance of the business. The acquisition was financed through the Group's

existing cash and debt facilities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Section 5: Other Notes continued

5.4 Keeping Certain subsidiaries of the Group can take an exemption from having an audit. Strict
Subsidiaries it simple criteria must be met for this exemption to be taken, and it must be agreed to by the
exempt Directors of that subsidiary entity.

from audit %]

Listed below are subsidiaries controlled and consolidated by the Group, where the Directors have taken the exemption
from having an audit of its financial statements. This exemption is taken in accordance with Companies Act s479A

Company Number Company Name Cormpany Nurmber  Carpany Name

10058419 Back Productions Limited 10171346 BGSS Limited

10404493 Big Talk Bliss Limited 10496857 Big Talk Cold Feet Limited

10528766 Big Talk Diana Limited 10528592 Big Talk Living the Dream Limited

1891539 Broad Street Films Limited 2285229 Campania Limited

5078683 Carbon Media Limited 4159249 Cartton Content Holdings Limited

301188 Cartton Film Distributors Limited 1692483 Carton Finance Limited

3984490 Cariton Food Network Limited 3307790 Carltonco 103

3210452 Cartton Screen Advertising (Holdings) 3053908 Catltan Programmes Development
Limited Limited

2625225 Carltonco Forty Investments 3210363 Carltonco Ninety-Six

2852812 Cosgrove Hall Films Lirnited 3209058 DTV Limited

290076 Granada Group Limited 3962410 Granada Limited

3106798 Granada Media Limited 5344772 Granada Screen (2005) Limited

733063 Granada Televislon Overseas Limited 6914987 ITV (HC) Limited

10384774 ITV Bancroft Limited 4206924 ITV Beowulf Limited

1127148 1TV Breathless Limited 4209918 TV Cilta Limited

4206900 TV Cradle Limited 4159210 TV Holdings Limited

4207680 ITV Home Fires Limited 4206912 [TV J&H Limited

4206871 ITV Jericho Limited 4206927 ITV JR Limnited

8723446 ITV Lewis Limited 10031419 [TV Little Boy Blue Limited

10058180 ITV Loch Ness Limited 8534385 ITV Lucan Limited

4206935 [TV Moorside Limited 4033106 ITV Mr Selfridge Limited

3916436 TV News Channel Limited 8554937 ITV Shetland Limited

42068397 [TV Spitit Limited 10528702 TV Studios Newco 1 Limited

10031818 [TV T&B Limited 9499040 TV Tennison Limited

9498177 1TV Top Class Limited 8586211 ITV Thundetbirds Limited

9499012 TV Tut Limited 10384819 ITV Traumna Limited

5518785 Juice Music UK Limited 10058008 [TV Wagstaffe Limited

10528827 Mammoth Screen (ENDS) Limited 10528851 Mammoth Screen (City) Limited

10031005 Mammoth Screen (Pol3) Limited 1049117 Mammoth Screen (NOK) Limited

9646520 Mammoth Screen (QV) Limited 10528763 Mammoth Screen (Pol4) Limited

4201477 Marning TV Limited 10043079 Mammaoth Screen (WFTP) Limited

4206913 SOM (ITV) Limited
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ITV plc Company Financial Statements

Company Balance Sheet

2016 2016 2015 2015
As at 31 December Note £m £m £m £m
Non-current assets
investrments in subsidiary undertakings iii 1,861 1,861
Derivative financial instruments vi 4 9
Deferred tax asset 2 2
1,867 1872
Curvent assets
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 4,066 3864
Derivative financlal instruments vi 10 6
Other recelvables 19 16
Cash and cash equivalents 438 126
4,533 4012
Current liabilities
Borrowings v {161) -
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings {2,856) (3,760}
Accruals and deferred income (22) 271}
Derivative financial instruments vi {10) (6)
{3.049) 3787
Net current assets/({liabilities) 1,484 225
Total assets less current labillties 3,351 2,097
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings v {1,035) {598)
Derivative financial instruments vi (9) (6)
(1,044) (604)
Net assets 2,307 1493
Capital and reserves
Share capital vii 403 403
Share premium wiii 174 174
Other reserves vl 28 36
Retained eamings viil 1,702 880
Total equity 2,307 1,493

The accounts were approved by the Board of Directors on 1 March 2017 and were signed on its behalf by:

lan Griffiths
Director

175
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ITV plc Company Financial Statements continued

Company Statement of Changes in Equity

Share Share Other Retained
Capitat Prernium Reserves Earnings Total
~ ~ Note £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 2016 ) 403 174 36 880 1493
Total comprehensive income for the year )
Profit ) - - - 1475 1475
Net loss on cash flow hedges - - (8) - (8)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - (8) 1,475 1,467
Transactions with owners recorded directly in equity
Contributions by and distributions to owners )
Equity dividends ) - ) - - - (663) {663)
Movements due to share based compensation - - - 10 10
Total contributions by ang distributions to owners - - - (653) (653)
Total transactions with owners - - - (653) (653)
Balance at 31 December 2016 viifviii 403 174 a8 1,702 2307
Share Share Cther Retalned
Capital Premlum Reserves Earnings Total
Nate Em £m £m Em £m
Balance at1January2015 i 403 174 36 654 1267
Total comprehensive income for the year . .
Profit - - - 671 671
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 671 671
Transactions with owners recorded directly in equity
Contributions by and distributions to owners ) _ ]
Equity dividends - - - - (459) {459)
Movements due to share based compensation - - - 14 14
Total contributions by and distributions to cwners - - (445) (445)
Total transactions with owners - - - (445) {445)
Balance at 31 December 2015 viifvili 403 174 36 880 1,493
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Notes to the ITV plc Company Financial Statements

Note i In this This section sets out the notes to the ITV plc Company only financial statements.
Accounting section Those statements form the basis of the dividend decisions made by the Directors,

pulil.il'.'.b as explalnad [h detail in note viii below.

These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting
Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework.

Basis of preparation
The Company is a qualifying entity as it is a member of the ITV plc Group where ITV plc, the ultimate parent prepares
publicly available consolidated financial statements.

Exemptions Applied
The Company is taking advantage of the following disclosure exemptions under FRS101.

« Presentation of a Statement of Cash Flows

= Disclosure of key management personnel compensation

« Disclosure of related party transactions between wholly-owned subsidiaries and parents within a group

+ Disclosures required under IFRS 2 Share Based Payments in respect of group settled share based payrnents
« Disclosures required by IFRS 7 Financial Instrument: Disclosure

« Certain disclosures required under IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurernent

« Disclosure of information In relation to new standards not yet applied

As permitted by section 408 (3) of the Companies Act 2006, a separate income statement dealing with the results
of the parent company has not been presented.

Subsidiarias

Subsidiaries are entities that are directly or indirectly controlled by the Company. Control exists where the Company
has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of the entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
The investment in the Company's subsidiaries is recorded at cost.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into sterting at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the
transaction. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date are translated into sterling
at the rate of exchange ruling at that date. Foreign exchange differences arising on translation are recognised in the

profit and loss account. Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at historical cost are translated into sterling at

the rate of exchange on the date of the transaction.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recagnised initialty at fair value including directly attributable transaction costs, with subsequent
measurement at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. The difference between initiat fair value
and the redernption value is recorded in the profit and loss account over the period of the liability on an effective
interest basis.
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Notes to the ITV plc Company Financial Statements

continued

Derivatives and other financial instruments
The Company uses a limited number of derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to fluctuations in interest
and other foreign exchange rates. The Company does not hold or issue derivative instruments for speculative purposes.

Derivative financial instruments are initiaily recognised at fair value and are subsequently remeasured at fair value with
the movement recorded in the profit and loss account within net financing costs, except where derivatives qualify

for cash flow hedge accounting. In this case, the effective portion of cash flow hedge is recognised in retained profits
within equity. The cumulative gain or loss is later reclassified to the profit and loss account in the same period as the
relevant hedged transaction is realised. Derivatives with positive fair values are recorded as assets and negative fair
values as liabilities.

The fair value of foreign currency forward contracts is determined by using the difference between the contract
exchange rate and the guoted forward exchange rate at the balance sheet date.

The fair value of interest rate swaps is the estimated amount that the Company wauld receive or pay to terminate
the swap at the balance sheet date, taking into account current interest rates and the current creditworthiness of
swap counterparties.

Third-party valuations are used to fair value the Company’s derivatives. The vatuation techniques use inputs such as
interest rate yield curves and currency pricesiyields, volatilities of underlying instruments and correlations between
inputs. For financial assets and liabilities dassified at fair value through profit or loss the fair value change and interest
income/expense are not separated.

Deferved tax
The tax charge for the period is recognised in the income statement or directly in equity according to the accounting
treatment of the related transaction.

Deferred tax arises due to certain temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and those for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities. A deferred tax asset is
recognised only to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to utilise the ternporary
difference. Recognition of deferred tax assets, therefore involves judgement regarding timing and level of future
taxable income.

Share-based compeansation !
The Company utilises share award schemes as part of its employee remuneration packages, and therefore operates

a number of share-based compensation schernes, namely the Deferred Share Award (DSA), Perforrnance Share Plan

(PSP), Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) and Save As You Eam (SAYE) schemes.

A transaction will be dlassed as share-based compensation where the Company receives services from employees and
pays for these in shares or similar equity instruments. If the Company incurs a liability based on the price or value of the
shares then this wilt also fall under a share-based transacticn. The Company recognises the retained earnings impact of '
the share-based compensation for the Group as awards are settied in ITV plc shares. The cost of providing those awards

is recharged to subsidiaries that receive the service from employees.

The fair value of the equity instrument granted is measured at grant date and spread over the vesting petiod via a
charge to the income statement with a corresponding increase in equity. The fair value of the share options and awards
is measured using either market price at grant date or, for the Save As You Earmn scheme (SAYE), a Black-5choles medel,
taking into account the terms and conditions of the individual scheme.

Vesting conditions are limited to service conditions and performance conditions. For performance-based schemes, the
relevant performance measures are projected to the end of the performance period in order to determine the number
of options expected to vest. The estimate is then used to determine the option fair value, discounted to present value.
The Company revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest, including an estimate of
forfeitures at each reporting date. The impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, are recognised in the income
statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

Exercises of share options granted to employees can be satisfied by market purchase or issue of new shares. No new
shares may be issued to satisfy exercises under the terms of the DSA. During the year all exercises were satisfiad hy
using shares purchased in the market and held in the ITV Employees’ Benefit Trust

Dividends
Dividends are recognised through equity on the earlier of their approval by the Company’s shareholders ar their payment.
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Note ii
Employees
and share
based
payments

Note iii
Investments
in subsidiary
undertakings

Note iv
Amounts
owed
(to)/from
subsidiary
undertakings

Note v
Botrowings

Two (2015: two) Directors of TV pic were employees of the Company during the year, both of whom remain at the year
end. The costs relating to these Directors are disclosed in the Rermuneration Report.

Share based payments

The weighted average share price of share options exercised during the year was 55.33p (2015: 16.65p). The options
outstanding at the year end have an exercise price in the range of nil to 206.83p (2015: nil to 206.83p) and a weighted
average contractual life of one year (2015: one year) for all the Schemes in place for the Group.

The principal subsidiary undertakings are listed on page 184, The carrying value at 31 December 2016 was £1,861 million
{2015: £1,861 million).

In 2015, the Company increased investment in subsidiaries by £156 million.

The Company operates an intra-group cash pool policy with certain 100% owned UK subsidiaries. The pool applies
ta bank accounts where there is an unconditional right of set off and invelves the daily dosing cash position for
participating subsidiaries whether positive or negative, being cleared to £nil via daily bank transfers to/from ITV plc.
These daily transactions create a corresponding intercompany creditor or debtor which can resuit in significant
movements in amounts owed to and from subsidiary undertakings in the Company batance sheet.

The Directors manage the Group's capital structure as disclosed in Section &
to the consalidated financial statements. Borrowings, cash and derivative
financialinstruments are mainly held by ITV ple and disclosed in these
Company financial statements.

Keeping
it simple

&

Loans and facilities due within one year

At various periods during the year the Group drew down on the Revolving Credit Facility (RCF} to meet short-term
funding requirements. All short-term drawings were repaid by the end of the year (2015: ne outstanding short-term
funding). The maximum draw down of the RCF during the year was £500 million in May.

The Group also had an unsecured £16% million Eurobond which matured in January 2017 and had a coupon of 6.125%.
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Notes to the ITV plc Company Financial Statements
continued

Loans and loan notes due after one year

The Group has two bilateral loan facilities maturing in March 2017; both loans can be extended until 2018 at ITV's
option. The two facilities are a £100 million bitateral loan that is fully drawn down as of 31 December 2016, and

a £150 million bilateral loan with an unconditional right to set off with cash on deposit with the counterparty.
The £150 million arrangement is in a net £nil position.

In December 2016 the Group issued a seven-year €500 million Eurobond at a fixed coupon of 2.0% which will mature
in December 2023. The bond has been swapped back to sterling using a cross currency interest swap. The resulting
fixed rate payable is ¢. 3.5%. The proceeds of the bond were for general corporate purposes including the repayment
of the £161 million sterling bond which matured in January 2017,

In Septernber 2015 the Group issued a seven-year €600 million Eurobond at a fixed coupon of 2.125% which will mature
in September 2022. The bond refinanced the 12-month bridge loan facility of €500 million used for the purchase of
Talpa Media in April 2015,

What is the value of our derivative financial instruments?

:lnote vi Assets Lablice?
anagln_g Current - -
ma'_kEt_ risks: Foreign exchange forward contracts and swaps - cash flow hedges ] 7 @
derivative Foreign exchange forward contracts and swaps - fair value through profit or loss 3 [E)
financial Non-current )
instruments Cross currency interest swaps — cash flow hedges ) - ©)
Foreign exchange forward contracts and swaps — cash flow hedges 4 @)
1% (19)
Assets Liabllities
2015 2015
Current o ] '
Foreign exchange forward contracts and swaps — cash flow hedges B 3 4)
Foreign exchange forward contracts and swaps — fair value through profit or loss 3 @
Non-current -
interest Rate Swaps — fair value through profit or loss 9 {8)
15 (12)
The Company mainly employs three types of derivative finandial instruments when managing its currency and interest
rate risk:

* Foreign exchange swap contracts are derivative instruments used to hedge income statement translation risk
arising from short-term intercompany loans denominated in a foreign currency.

« Forward foreign exchange contracts are derivative instruments used to hedge transaction risk so they enable the
sale or purchase of foreign currency at a known fixed rate on an agreed future date.

« Interest rate swaps are derivative instruments that exchange a fixed rate of interest for a floating rate or vice-versa
or one type of floating interest rate for another and are used to manage interest rate risk.

* Cross-currency Interest rate swaps are derivative instruments used to exchange the principal and interest coupons
in & debt instrurnent from one currency to ahather.

Cash flow hedges

The Group applies hedge accounting for certain foreign currency firm commitments and highly probably cash flows
where the underlying cash flows are payable within the next two to seven years. in order to fix the sterling cash inflows
and outflows associated with the commitments and interest payments — which are mainly denominated in AUD or
euros — the Group has taken out forward foreign exchange contracts and cross currency interest swaps for the same
foreign currency amount and maturity date as the expected foreign currency outflow.

On issuing the 2023 Eurcbond, the Group entered into a portfolio of cross-currency interest rate swaps, which swapped the
euro principal and fixed rate coupons into sterling, In result the Group makes stering interest payments at a fixed rate.

The amount recognised in other comprehensive income during the period all relates to the effective portion of the
revaluation loss associated with these contracts. There was less than £1 million 2015: £1million) ineffectiveness taken to
theincome statement and £2 million cumulative gain (2015: £6 million loss) recyded to the income statement in the year.
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Interest rate swaps

On issuing the 2017 Eurobond, the Company entered into a portfolio of fixed to fleating interest rate swaps and then
subsequently overlaid a portfolio of floating to fixed interest rate swaps with the result that interest was 100% fixed
on these borrowings. The timing of entering into these swaps locked in aninterest benefit for the Company, resulting
in a net mark-to-market gain on the portfolio.

Undiscounted financial liabilities

The Company is required to disclose the expected timings of cash outflows for each of its derivative financial liabilities.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest), so will not always
reconcile with the amounts disclosed on the staterment of financial position.

SuUBWINMS jRpuURL |

Carrying cmm Less than Between Between
value cash flows 1year 1and2years  2and5years Over 5 years
At 31 Decamber 2016 £m £m £m £m £€m £m
Non-current and current
Foreign exchange forward contracts
and swaps - cash flow hedges
inflow " 393 237 156 - -
Outflow (10) (392 237 {155) - -
Cross currency swaps — cash flow
hedges
Inflow - 497 10 10 30 L447
Outfiow (&) (542) (17) (a7) ) (457)
Foreign exchange forward contracts
and swaps - fair value through profit
or loss
Inflow 412 412 402 10 - -
Outflow (419 {412) {402) {10) - -
Interest Rate Swaps - fair value
through profit or loss
inflow - 13 13 - - -
Outflow - {6) {6) - — _
(5) B9 - () )] (10}
Total
Carrying Contractual Less than Between Between
value cash flows 1year 1and2years  2andSyears Over 5 years
At 31December 2015 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Non-current and current
Foreign exchange forward contracts
and swaps - cash flow hedges
Inflow 3 136 102 34 - -
Outflow {4) {136} (102) (34) - -
Fareign exchange forward contracts
and swaps - fair value through profit
or loss
Inflow 3 253 248 5 - -
Outflow 2 (252) (247) (5) - -
Interast Rate Swaps - fair value
through profit or loss
Inflow 9 2 9 13 - -
Outflow (6} (12) {6) {€) - -
3 11 4 7 - -
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Note vii
Share capital

Note viii
Equity and
dividends

Note ix
Contingent
liabilities

182

Aliotted, issued

Authonsed and fully paid
2016 & 2015 2016 & 2015
£m

£m
Authorised ordinary shares of 10 pence each 8,000,000,000 800
Allotted, issued and fully paid ordinary shares of 10 pence each 4025409194 403
Total 800 403

The Company’s ordinary shares give sharehclders equal rights to vote, receive dividends and to the repayment
of capital.

Keeping ITV plcis a non-trading investment holding company and derives its profits from
it simple dividends paid by subsidiary companies.

The Directors consider the Group's capitat structure and dividend policy at least twice
avyear ahead of announcing results and de so in the context of its ability to continue

% as a going concern, to execute the strategy and ta invest in opportunities to grow the
business and enhance shareholder value.

The dividend policy is influenced by a number of the principal risks as identified on
pages 50 1o 56 that could have anegative impact on the performance of the Group

In determining the level of dividend in any year the Directors follow the dividend
policy and also consider a numbe other factors thatinfluence the proposed
dividend, including:

The level of retained distributable reserves in ITV ple the Company,

Availability of cash resources (as disclosed in note 41 ta the consolidated financial
statements),

Future cash cammitments and investment plans, in line with Group’s strategic plan.

Equity

The retained earmings reserve includes profit after tax for the year of £1,475 million (2015: £671 million profit)

which includes dividends of £1,500 million from subsidiaries in 2016 2015: £700 million). Other reserves of £28 million
(2015: £36 million) relate to share-buy backs in prior periods and foreign currency translation net of cashfiow hedging.

Dividends
The Directors of the Company propose a final dividend of 7.2p per share and a special dividend of 5p per share.

Distributable reserves
The distributable reserves of [TV plc approximate to the balance of the retained eamings reserve of £1,702 million

as at 31 December 2016.

Keeping A contingent liability is a liability that is not sufficiently certain to qualify
it simple for recognition as a provision where uncertainty may exist regarding the
outcorme of future events.

&

uUnder a Group registration, the Company is jointly and severally liable for VAT at 31 December 2016 of £47 million
(31 December 2015: £59 million). The Company has guaranteed certain finance and operating lease obligations of
subsidiary undertakings.

There are contingent liabilities in respect of certain litigation and guarantees, broadcasting issues, and in respect
of watranties given in connection with certain disposals of businesses. None of these items are expected to have
a material effect on the Company's results or financial position.

Where the Company enters into financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other companies
within its Group, the Company considers these to be insurance arrangements, and accounts for them as such. In this
respect, the Company treats the guarantee contract as a contingent liability until such time as it becomes probable
that the Company will be required to make a payment under the guarantee.



TV plc Annuat Report and Accounts

2016

Note x
Capital and
other
commitments

Note xi
Related party
transactions

There are no capital commitments at 31 December 2016 (2015: none).

Keeping
it simple

&

The related parties identified by the Directors include solely key management,
as ITV plcis a holding company with no commercial activity.

To enable the users of the financial statements to form a view about the effects of
related party retationships on the Company, we disclose the Company's transactions
with those during the year.

Transactions with key management personnel
Key managemnent consists of ITV plc Executive Directors.

Key management personnel compensation, on an accounting basis, is as follows:

Note Xii
Subsequent
events

2016 2015
e £m £m

Short-term employee benefits e 3 3
Share-based compensation 2 3
5 6

Total emoluments and gains on share options received by key management personnel in the year were:

2016 2015
£m £m
Emolurnents 3 3
Gains on exercise of?ﬁanpTions 2 3
Gains on release of restricted share awards 2 3
7 9

Keeping
it simple

&

Where the Group receives information in the period between 31 Gecember 2016

and the date of this report about conditions related to certain events that existed at

31December 2016, we update our disclosures that relate to those conditions in light

of the new information. Such events can be cateqorised as adjusting or non-adjusting

depending on whether the condition existed at 31 December 2016. If non-adjusting

events are material, non-disclosure could influence the economic decisions that user
make on the basis of the financial statements. Accordingly, for each material cateqory
of non-adjusting event after the reporting period we disclose in this section the
nature of the event and an estirmate of its financial effect, or a statement that

such an estimate cannot be made.

5

0On 5 January 2017 the £161 Eurobond matured and the Group repaid the capital amount. The related interest rate swap
contracts were settled at the same time. The bond was refinanced earlier in December 2016,
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Subsidiary undertakings and investments

Principal subsidiary undertakings

The principal subsidiary undertakings of the Company at 31 Decemnber 2016, all of which are wholly owned [directly or indirectly) and
incorporated and registered where stated.

Company Name Country Principal Business Activity % Holding
Carlton Communications Limited* (1){a)(d) UK Helding company 100
1TV Broadcasting Limited (1)(@) UK Broadcast of television programmas 100
ITV Consurner Limited {(1)(a) UK Development of platforms, broadband, transactional and mobile services 100
TV Digital Channels Limited ()3} UKk Operation of digital television chaninels 10°0
ITV Global Entertainment Limited (1)(a) UK Rights ownership and distribution of television programmes and films 100
ITV Network Limited (1)(i) UK Scheduling and commissioning of television programmes 100
ITV Rights Limited {1){3) UK Rights ownership 100
ITV Services Limited (1)(a)(e) UK Provision of services for other companies within the Group 100
ITV Studios Limlited (13} UK Production of television programmes 100
ITV2LImited (1){a) UK Operation of digltal television channels 100
SDN Limited (1){a) UK Operation of Freeview Mult:iplex A 100
Talpa Media BV, (S3){3) Nethertands  Production of television pragrammes 100
1TV Studios, inc. (70)() usa Production of tetevision programmes 100
Leftfield Entertainment, LLC {63)(h) USA Production of television programmes 100
Subsidiary undertakings
Company Name Country % Company Name Country %
Holding Holding
12 Yard (North) Praductions Limited (T){a) UK 100 Cat's on the Roof Medla Limited (1j{a) UK 100
12 Yard Limited {1)(a) UK 100 Central Television Limited (1)(a) UK 100
12 Yard Productions dnvestimants; Lirnited (W){a} UK 0o Channel Television Holdings Limited (143} UK 1006
12 Yard Productions Limited (1){a) LK 100 Cosgrove Hall Films Limited (1}{a) UK 100
A.L.E. (1588) Limited (1){a) UK 100 Denipurna Limited {1a) UK 100
Action Time Holdings (1){a) UK 100 DTV Limited (1)(a) UK 100
Anglia Television Group (1)(a) UK 100 Electronic Rentals Group (1)(2) UK 100
Anglia Television Limited (1)(a) UK w00 EQ Pictures Uimited (1)@) UK 100
Back Productions Limited (7){a) UK 100 GIL Limited (T{a) UK 100
BGSS Limited (1)(a) UK 100 Granada AV Solutions Limited (1)(3) UK 00
Big Talk Bliss Limited (14(a) UK 100 Granada Fllm (1{a) UK 100
Big Talk Cold Feet Limited (1)(3) UK 100 Granada Fiim Productions Limited (1)(a) UK 0
Big Talk Investments Limited {1){a} UK 100 Granada GGroup Limited (1)(a} UK 100
Big Talk JL Limited (1}{a) UK 160 Granada Limited (T)a) UK 100
Big Talk Pictures Limited (1)(a) UK 100 Granada Media Group Limited (1)) UK 100
Big Talk Productions Limited (1){a} UK 100 Granada Media Lipited (1))} UK 100
Broad Street Flims Limited (1){a) UK 100 Granada Productions Limited {1){a) UK 100
Campania Limited (1)(a){f) UK 100 Granada Propertles {1)(a) UK 100
Carbon Media Limited (1)) UK 100 Granada Screen (2005) Limited (1)(@) UK 100
Carlton Active Limited (1}a) UK 100 Granada Television Intevnational (1)) UK 100
Carlton Cinema Limited (1)) UK 100 Granada Television Limited{1)a) UK 100
Carlton Conteht Holdings Limited (1)(a) UK 100 Granada Teievision Overseas Limited (1)) UK 100
CarltonEntertainment {1)(a) UK 100 Granada Televlsion Productions Limited (1)(a) UK 100
Cariton Film Distributors Limited (1){2) UK 100 Granada UK Rental and Retail Limited (1)(a)(e) uK 100
Carlton Films Limited (1)@} UK 100 Interactive Telephony Limited (T(a) UK 100
Cariton Finance Limlted{1)(a) UK 100 Intemational Televislon Enterprises Longon Limited (T){a)(d) UK 100
Carlton Food Network Limited (1){a} LK 100 I7C Distribution (1)(2) UK 100
Carlton Productions Limited (T)(a) UK 100 ITC Entertainment Group Limited {1)(a) UK 100
Carlton Programimes Development Limited (T)(a) UK 00 ITC Entertainment Holdings Limited (@) UK 100
Carlton Screen Advertising (Holdings) Limited {1)(a) UK 100 1TV (HC) Limited* {1){a) UK 100
Carltonco 103 (1{a) UK 1e0 ITV (Scotland) Limited (30)(a) UK 100
Caritenco 99 Limited {(1)(a) UK 100 1TV Bancroft Limited (1)(a) UK 100
Carltonco Eighty-One Limited {1)(a)({b) UK 100 ITV Beowulf Limited (1)(a} UK 400
Carltanco Fifty Limited ((@)(k) UK 100 TV Border Limlted (T)(a} UK 100
Carltonco Forty investments (1)(3) UK 100 ITV Breakfast Broadcasting Limited {1)(a) UK 100
Caritonce Forty-Five Limited (1)) UK 100 ITV Breakfast Limited (1)) UK 00
Carltonco Ninety-Six (1){2)(f) UK 100 ITV Breathless Limited (1)(a) UK 100
Caritonco Seventeen Limited (1)(a) UK 100 ITV Central Limited (T)(3) UK 100
Castlefield Properties Limited (1)(g) UK 100 ITV Channets Limited {1)(a) UK 100
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Company Name Country % Company Name Country %
Holding Holding
iTV Cilta Limited (1)(a) UK 100 Mammoth Screen (Bouguet) Limited (1)) UK 100
TV Cradie Limited {Ty{a) UK 100 Mammoth Screen (BW) Limited (26€)(a) UK 100
ITV DC Trustee Limited (1)(a) UK 100 Mammoth Screen (End) Ltd (1){a) UK 100
ITV Digital Holdings Limited {(1)(a) UK 100 Mammaoth Screen (End?) Limited (T)a) UK 100
ITV Enterprises Limited (1)(a) UK 100 Mammoth Screen (Faicon) Limited {1}a} UK 100
ITV Globat Caontent Limited (1){a} UK 100 Mammoth Screen {Fearless) Limited (1)(a) UK 100
ITV Holdings Limited (1)(a) UK 100 Mammaoth Screen (Monroe) Limited (Tya) UK 100
ITV Home Flres Limited (1){a) UK 100 Mammoth Screen (NE) Limited {1)(a) UK 100
ITV International Channels (Asla) Limited (1){a) LUK 100 Marnmoth Screen (NI) Limited (35)(a) UK 100
ITV Investments Limited* (1)(a) UK 100 Marnmoth Screen (NW) Limited (1)) UK 100
ITV J&H Limited (1)(a) UK 100 Mammoth Screen (PE) Limited (1)(a) UK 100
ITV Jeticho Limited (1)(a) UK 100 Mammaoth Screen (Pol2) Limited (1)(a) UK 100
ITV JR Limited (1)(a) UK 100 Mammoth Screen (Pol3) Limited (1){a) UK 100
ITV Lewis Limited ()(a) UK 100 Mamimoth Screen (Poldark) Limited (1)@} UK 100
ITV Little Boy Blue Limited (T){(a) UK 100 Mammoth Screen (QV) Limited (1)(a) UK 100
ITV Loch Ness Lirmited (1)(a) UK 100 Mammoth Screen (RM) Limited (1){a} UK 100
TV LTVC (Scotland) Lirmted (30)(2) UK 100 Mamimaoth Screen (WFTP) Lirited (1)(a) UK 100
1TV Lucan Limlted {T{a) UK 100 Mammaoth Screen (WH) Limited (1){a) UK 100
ITV Meridian Limited (1)(a) UK 100 Mammoth Screen Ltd (1){a) UK 100
ITV Moorside Limnited {1)(a) UK 100 Millbank Studios (1)(2) UK 100
TV Mr Selfridge Limited (T)(a) UK 100 Morning TV Limited (1}{a) UK 100
ITV News Channel Limited (1)(a)(k) UK 100 Moving Picture Company Films Limited (1)(@) UK 100
ITV NP Limited {1)(a} UK 100 New Providence Productions Limited (T){a) UK 100
ITV Penslon Scheme Limited {1){a)(b) UK 100 Partridge Holdings (T{z) UK 100
ITV Play Limited {1(a) UK 100 Pickwick Packaging Limited {1){3) UK 100
ITV Productions Limited (1)a} UK 100 Planet 24 (T)a) UK 100
ITV Properties {Developments) Limited {T)a) UK 100 Pro-Vision Facilitles Limited (1}{a) UK 100
ITV Shetland Limited (T){a) UK 100 Sightseers Film Limited (1)) UK 100
1TV Spirit Limited (1){a) UK 100 Signpost Limited {1){@) UK 100
1TV Sport Channet Limited (1)) UK 100 SOM(ITV} Limited (1}(a) UK 100
ITV Studios (israel) Limited (1)(a) UK 100 So Television Developrments Limited (1)(@) UK 100
ITV Studios Newco 1 Limited {1)(a) UK 100 S0 Television Limited (1)(a) UK 100
ITV Studios Newco 2 Limited (1)() UK 100 Talpa Media UK Ltd (1)(s) UK 100
ITV Studios Newco 3 Limited {1)a) UK 100 Telewision Music Limited (1)(a) UK 100
ITV Studios Newto 4 Limited {T4a) UK 100 The CITV Channel Limited (T)(a) UK 100
ITV Studios Newco 5 Limited {1)(a) UK 100 The Garden Productions Limited (1)(z) UK 100
ITV Studios Newco 6 Limited (1)(2) UK 100 The London Studios Limited (1)(a) UK 100
ITV Supplerentary Pension Scheme UK 100 Tyne Tees Televisicn Holdings (1) UK 100
Umited (1(a) Tyne Tees Television Limited (1)(a) UK 100
ITVT&B Limited (1a) UK 100 United Broadcasting & Entertainment UK 100
ITV Tennison Limited (1){a) UK 100 Limited (1)(a)
ITV Text Santa Limited (1§a) UK 100 United Broadcasting Holdings (1) UK 100
ITV Thunderbirds Limited (1)(a) UK 100 UTV Limited (34)(a) UK 100
ITV Top Class Limited (1){a) UK 100 VOD Member (ITVA) Limited (1)) UK 100
ITV Trauma Limited (1){a) UK 100 VOD Member (ITVE) Limited (1}a) UK 100
1TV Tut Limited {1)z) UK 100 Westcountry Television Limited {14a) UK 100
ITV Ventures Limited ()6 UK 100 Yorkshire Television Limnited (1){a) UK 100
ITV Wagstaffe Limited (1)) UK 100 Yorkshire-Tyne Tees Television Enterprises Limited (1)(a) UK 100
ITV Wales & West Group Limited {1)(a) UK 100 Yorkshire-Tyne Tees Productions Limited (1{a) UK 100
TV Wales & West Limited {1)(a) UK 100 Zebedee Productions Limited (1}(a) UK 100
TV3 Limited (1)(a) UK 100 Artist Services Cable Pty Ltd {36)(a) Australia 00
ITV4 Limited (1)(2) UK 100 Artist Services Investments Pty Limited (36)(a) Australia 100
Juice Music UK Limited {1)(a) UK 100 Artist Services Productlons Pty Ltd (36)a) Australia 100
Leftfield (UK) Limited (21)(a) UK 100 Granada Media International (Australia) Pty Ltd (36)(z) Australia 100
Link Electronics Limited (1)(3) UK 100 Granada Medla Investments (Australia) Pty Ltd (36)(a) Australla 100
London News Network (1){a) UK 100
London Weekend Television Limited (1)(a) UK 100 Granada Productions Pty Ltd (36)(2) Australia 100
LWT (Holdings) Limited (1)(a){(c} UK 100 ITV Services Pty Ltd (35)(g) Australia 100
LWT Productions Limited (1)(@) UK 100 ITV Studios Australia Pty Ltd (35)(a) Australia 100
Marmmoth Screen (AR) Limited (1)) UK 100 Leftfield Australia Pty Ltd (37)(a) Australia 100
Mamimoth Screen (ATTWN) Limited (1)(a) UK 100 Totally Full Frontal Productions Pty Limnited (36)(a) Australla 100
LTP Productions Inc{75){)} Canada 00

185

I



Financial Statements

Notes to the ITV plc Company Financial Statements

continued

Company Name Country * Company Name Country %
Holding Holding
Granada Decernber Eight Limited (38)(z) Cayman 100 ITV Entertainment Services Inc.(63)() usa 100
Islands ITV Global Entertainment Inc. 63)(j} usA 100
Granada December Nine Limited (38)(a) Cgrr:\d:n R0 ITV Gnitty Holding Inc {63)(j) USA 100
ITV Holdings {Cayman) Limited (39)(a} ::savman 100 iTV Gurney Holding Inc. (63)(j) usa 100
felands ITV HN Holding Inc. (63)() USA 100
Tatpa Chile SpA {97)(a) Chite 100 ITV International Corporation (63)()) usa 100
United Productions Ap5 (42)) Denmark 100 TV Leftfield Holding Inc. (63 usa 100
TV Studios Fintand Oy #43)(a) Finland 100 [TV New Form Holding inc (63)() ush 100
TV Studios France {Holdings) SAS {98)(a) France 100 1T Popco Holding Inc. (63)() usA 1an
ITV Studios France SAS (443 France 100 TV svODHoldinglne. 63)) ___ usa 100
TV Studios Germany GrbH @6)E) Germany 100 ITV Thinkfactory Holding Inc. (6?)(]) Usa 100
ITV Studios Germany Holdings GmbH (46)(z) Germany 100 v Tomorr?w Holdinglnc. {63)() usa 100
Newtopia GmBH (100)(g) Germany 100 ITY US Haldings tc. (6310) LSA 100
Talpa Germany Fiction GmbH (59)(a) Germany 100 TV US Productions Inc.'(sa)(]) usA 100
Talpa Germany Grbh & Co KG (@7)(a) Germary 100 J? Entertainment Helding Company Inc. (63)()) USA 100
Talpa Germany Verwaltungs GmbH (47)a) Germany 100 Kirkstall Road Enterprises inc. (63)() UsA 100
Elecrent Insurance Limited {31)(2) Guernsey 100 Leftfield Pictures of N Holdings, LLC (53)(D UsA 100
ITV Global Entertainment (Hong Kong) Limited (43)(a) HongKong 100 Leftfield Prctures of Y, LLC (63)() LsA 100
Talpa China Lirnited {48)(a) HorgKong 100 Leftfield Ven-tums, LLC (6315} usA 109
Carltan Home Entertainment Ireland Limited (50)(a) ireland 100 LWT Enterprises inc. (63KD UsA 100
Channel Televislon Limited (32)(a) Jersey 100 Quer the Pand Productions inc. (83)() usA 190
ITV Londan Properties Limited (331@) Jersey 00 Quay Street Enterprisesinc (63) USA 100
TV Broperties (lersey) Limited (33)(a) Jersey 100 Red Orange Praductions. LLC (34)() usa 100
Brandcams Intermational BY. (52)(a) Netherlands_100 So Television US Inc. 7OXI) UsA 100
Global Music & Talent Agency BV. (33)() Netherlands 100 Talpa MediaUSA Inc B4)G) _ usA 100
ITV (Europe) Holdings BV (55)@) Netherlands 100 Upper Ground Enterprises inc. (63){j) USA 100
ITV Enterprises BY. (55)a) Netheriands_ 10D Znna Productions LLCSN® _ S 100
ITV Finance (Europe} BV {55)(a) Netherlands 100
MasMedia B V. (56)(a) Netherlands 100 Joint ventures and investments
Talpa Content BV.{57)(a) Netherlands 100 Company Name Country %,
Talpa Fictie 8¥(57)(a) Netherlands 100 Holding
Talpa Germany Holding BNV.(93)(a) Netherlands 100 Absalutely Rights Limited (6){a) UK 20
Taipa Globat BV.(53)(a} Netherlands 100 That Mitchell and Webb Company Limited (73a) UK 20
Talpa Non-Spot BV{57)(3) Netherlands 100 DTV Services Limited (17)a) UK 20
Talpa Producties BV.(57)(a) Netherlands 100 Route 24 Limited (24)(a) UK 249
Utopla BM.{57)(a) Netherlands 100 Monumental Television Limisted (79)(a) UK 2492
Voist Media B.V. (102)(a) Netherlands 100 Channel Murm Limited (12)(a) UK 25
Wardour Street Films BV. (59){a) Netherlands 100 Clearcast Limited {14)(a) UK 25
1TV Studios Norway AS (76)§3) Norway 100 15AN UK Limited (25)(a) UK 25
ITV Studios Nordic AB{77){(a) Sweden 100 Clrkus International Limited (13)(a) UK 28
Talpa Asia Pte. Ltd. (9€){a) Singapore 100 Thinkbox TV Limited (23)a} UK 2858
ITV Studios Germany GmbH, Kéln, Zweigniederlassung Switzerland 100 Cirkus Limited (13)(a) UK 51
Zirich (78)(m) Malacara Limited 2)(a) UK 3675
12Yard Holdings, Inc. (Fa)() usA oo Hartequin Agency Limited (5)a) UK 375
Pink Rose Bud Limited (2)(a) UK 375
Anglia Television Inc (70)(j) USA 100 Mainstreet Arlington Productians Limited @)(a) UK 38.25
Astrum Productions, LLC (S4)1)) USA 100 Manstreet Pictures Limited (&)(a) UK 38,25
Cardinal Productions of Chio Inc (63)(j) USA 100 Unforgotten2 Limited (4} @) UK 3825
Carlton Media Company Inc. (63){) UsA 100 Bait Studio Limited {S)ia) UK 55
Electric Farm Entertalnment Holdings Inc. (63)() USA 100 Cloth Cat Animation Limited (5)(@) UK .25
Grahada Cracker US Productions (70){j) USA 100 Cloth Cat LBB Limited (S){a) UK 125
Granada Television International Inc. (63)(j) USA 100 Independent Television News Limited (20)(a) UK 0
Hamdon Entertainment ine.(63))) USA 100 Thud Media Limited (5) (a) UK 025
1TC Distribution, LLC (63)(]) USA 100 BoneKickers Limited (1){a) UK 50
ITC Entertainment Group Inc (63)j) USA 100 Box Clever Technology Limited (8){a) UK 50
ITC Fitms, LLC (63))) usA 100 Biritish Film-Makers Limited (T){a) UK 50
ITC Praductions, HL.C (63)() USA 100 Digital 3 and 4 Umited (16)(3) UK 50
ITV Arnerica Inc.(63)(]) USA 100 Freesat (UK) Lirnited (18)(a) UK 50
1TV Believe Holding Inc. (63)(]) usa 100 Gameface Productions Limited {1)(a) UK 50
ITV Diga Holding Inc. {63)(j) UsA 100 Noho Film and Television Limited (28)(a) UK 50
Standard Music Limited (29)(a) UK 50
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Cotnpany Name Country % Company Name Country %
Holding Holding
Television Media Marketing Limited (1)(z) UK 50 Rangers Productions SRL (83)(a) Mexico 65
Possessed Limited (1)(@) UK 51 Identity Mansion BV, {95)(a) Netherlands 25
OSF (Wales) Limited (5)(a) UK 46.27 Pomper & Linders BV (101){a) Netherlands 20
Oxford Scientific Films Limited (5)(a) UK 46.27 Talpa Arabia Holding Ltd (84)(a) UAE 90
Second Act Productions Limited {1){a) UK 74.07 Maximum Media Production FZ-LLC {84)(a) UAE 90
Age Before Beauty Limited (4){a) UK 75 Talpa Middle East FZ-LLC (84)a) UAE g0
Alm Films Limited (3)(a) UK 75 Eight Bells Productions, LLC (63)(k) USA 60
Boom Cymru TV Ltd (5){@@) UK 75 What's the Business, ELC (88)(h) USA 60
Boom Pictures Limited (1)(a) UK 75 FT Productions, LLC (63)(h) usa 615
Cynhyrchiadau Boomerang Cyf (2)(a) UK 75 Shirina, LLC (63)(h) USA 6325
Double Double Limited (1){a) UK 75 Crew Ready Everywhere, LLC (63)(h) UsSA 65
Gorilla TV Group Limited {5){a) UK 75 Hatfietd and McCoay Productions, LLC (63)(h) USA 65
Gorilla TV Limited (5){(a) UK 75 Highball Music Greup, LLC (63)h) USA 65
Indus Films Lirnited (2)(a) UK 75 LG Filmes, LLC (63}(h) UsA &5
ITV TFG Holdings Limited {1)(a) UK 75 Marriage Boot Camp Reallty Stars, LLC (63)(h) UsA 65
Him Productions Limited (&)(a) UK 75 MDQuartet, LLC {63)(h) Usa 65
TwoFour Group Lirmited (xx)(x} UK 75 Signal Post Facilities, LLC {(63)(h) USA 65
TwoFour Broadcast Limited (xx)(x) UK 75 Sound and Stage Studios, LLC (63)(h) USA &5
Twofour Group Holdings Limited (T)a) UK 75 Texas Rangers, LLC (63)(h) UsA 55
3sixtymedia Limited (1)@) UK 80 Thinkfactory Media, LLC (87)(h) UsA 65
GC Films Pty Lirnited (36)(a) Australia 49 Web Legal, LLC (63)(h) USA 65
Think Factory Productions Canada Ltd (80)(j) Canada 65 Woestside Film Partners, LLC (63)(h} USA 65
Talpa Nordic ApS (41){a) Denmark 5 Loud Tetevision, LLC (63)(h) UsA 75
Imago TV Film und Fernsehproduktion GmbH(&5)(a) Germany 80 Next 5teps Productions, LLC (63)(h) USA 75
The Lab Television 2013 Limited Partnership {81)(a) Israel 50 Outpost Entertainment, LLC (63)(h) LUSA 75
Talpa Italia 5rl {82)(3) Italy 50 Tomorrow [TV Studios, LLC (63)(k) LSA 25
Memberships, Partnerships and Companies Limited by Guarantee
Company Name Country  %Holding  CompanyName Country % Holding
TV LTVC Scottish Limited Partnership {30)(h) UK 100 High Noon West, LLC (71(h) USA &0
TV Scottish Limited Parthership (30)(h) UK 100 Feeding Time Productions, LLC (89)(h) USA 615
OTT Muttiplex Operators Limited (17){1) UK 25 Hollywood Camera and Lighting, LLC G0)(h) USA 615
Digital Production Partnership Limited {1){i} UK 50 Gurney Productions, LLC (7O)(h) USA 615
Producers Rights Agency Limited {25)() UK 20 RICMA, LLC {65)(h) USA &15
ITV Netherlands Co-operatief W.A*(55)(h) Netherlands 100 Yukon RAFT Productions, LLC (91)(h) USA 615
Chad Alan Productions, LLC (62){h) usa 100 Brat Brigade, LLC (73)(h} USA 63.25
Double Down Films Holdings, LLC (63)(h) USA 100 Deep Gotham Post, LLC (73)(h) USA 63,25
Double Down Films, LLC (63)(h) USA 100 DGK S, LLC (63)(h) UsA 63.25
Electric Farm Entertainment, LLC [63)(h) USA 100 Diga Holdings, LLC (63){h) usa 6325
Moving Pictures Services Inc. (63)h} USA 100 Diga Production Studios, LLC (63)(h) UsA 63.25
Gaktawn Pacific Properties, LLC (66)(H) USA 100 Diga, LLC (63){h) UsA 63.25
Sirens Media, LLC (63)(h) UsA 100 Film Productions Rentals, LLC (70)(h) USA 65
Sirens Project 1203, LLC {63}h) USA 100 Roasters, LLC (63)(h} USA 65
Sirens Project 1223, LLC (63)(h) UsSA 100 Thinkfactory Group, LLC (63)(h) UsA 65
Sirens Project 1226, LLC (63)(h) UsA 100 1016 Productions, LLC {60)(h) UsA 75
Sirens Project 1227, LLC (63)(h) usa 100 6565 Productions Studios, LLC (60)h) USA 75
Sirens Project 1301, LLC (63)(h) UsA 100 6565 Productions Studios 2, LLC (60)(h) usa 75
Sirens Project 1303, LLC (63)(h) UsA 100 6565 Productions Studios 3, LLC (60)(h) usA 75
Sirens Project 1309, LLC {63)(h) UsA 100 6565 Productions Studios &, LLC (50)(h} UsA 75
Slrens Project 1316, LLC {63)(h) USA 100 Allin Post,LLC (60)(h) USA 75
Slrens Project 1326, LLC {63)(h} UsA 1co Cheese String Studios, LLC {72){h} USA 75
Sirens Project 1408, LLC(63)(h) UsA 100 In Reatity Productions, LLC (72)(h) USA 75
Sirens Project 1410, LLC (63)(h) UsA 100 Gritty Productions, LLC {63){h} UsA 100
Sirens Television Development, LLC (63)(h) UsA 160 East Olive Productions, LLC (60)(hy USA 75
Sunshine Productions Holdings, LLC {63)(h) USA 100 BB Rights, LLC (63)(h) Usa 50
Wark Shop of NY, LLC (63)(h} USA 100 Britbox, LLC (92)(h) USA 405
Jaffe/Braunstein Entertainment, LLC (69)(h) USA 100 Twofour America, LLC {70)h) USA 75
High Noon East, LLC (71)(h) UsA 60 Twofour Broadcast Media, LLC (7O0)(h) Usa 75
High Noon Group, LLC {71)(h) USsA 60
HighNeon Productions, LLC {7Ty(h) usa 60
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Address key

(8 The London Teievision Centre, Upper Ground, London, SET9LT, UK

{2) 278Penarth Road, Cardiff, CF118NN, UK

(3) Twofour Studios, Estover, Plymouth, Devon, PL6 7RG, UK

(&) Kingsbourne House, 229-231High Holborn, London, WC1V 7DA, UK

(5) Gloworks, Porth Teigr Way, Cardiff, Wales, CF10 4GA, UK

(6) 18 Glasshouse Studios, Fryern Court Rd, Fordingbridge, Hampshire, SP6 ING, UK

{7) 26 Nassau Street, London, W1W 7AQ, UK

(8) 5 New Street Square, London, EC4A 3TW, UK

(9) 20 Cathedral Road, Cardiff, CF¥19LJ, UK

(10} S Mansfietd Street, London, WM 9FH, UK

(11) 20 Orange Street, 3rd Floor, London, WC2H 7EF, UK

(12) 21 HattonGardens {(Room 9),London ECIN 9BA, UK

{13) The Met Building, 22 Percy Street, London, W1T 2BU, UK

(1) 4 Roger Street, 2nd Floor, London, WCIX 2JX, UK

(15) c/oCreative Skillset, 1-3 Grosvenor Place, Fifth floor (Suite 5B), London, SW1X 7HJ, UK

(16} 124 Horseferry Road, London, SW1P 2TX, UK

(17} 27 Mortimer Street, London, W1T 3JF, UK

(18) 23-24 Newman Street,London, W1T 1PJ, UK

{19) Unit 8 Acorn Production Centre, R/O 105 Blundel| Street, Londen, N7 9BN, UK

{20) 200 Gray's Inn Road, London, WCTX 8HF, UK

(21) ClayBarn, |psley Court, Berrington Close, Redditch, Worcestershire, B98 0TD, UK

{22) 10 Lower Thames Street, (Third Floor}, London, EC3R 6YT, UK

{23) Manning House, 22 Carlisle Place, London, SWIP1JA, UK

(24) YorkHouse, Empire Way, Wembley, Middlesex, HAS OFQ, UK

(25) FitzroviaHouse, (3rd Floar), 153-157 Cleveland Street, London, W1T 6QW, UK

{26) Round Foundry Media Centre, Foundry Street, Leeds, L51150P, UK

{27) ¢/o Archery Pictures, 3 Archery Close, London, W2 2BE, UK

{28) 59 Charlotte Street, (Third Floor), London, W1T 4PE, UK

(29} Roundhouse, 212 Regent's Park Ruad, London, NW1 BAW, UK

(30) Quartermile One, 15 Lauriston Place, Edinburgh, EH3 9EP, Scatland

(37) PO Box 308, 5t. Peter Port House, Union Street, St Peter Port, GY13TA, Guermnsey

{32) Le Capelain House, Castle Quay, St. Heller, JE2 3EH, Jersey

(33) Ogler House, The Esplanade, St. Heller, JE4 9WG, Jersey

{34) Ormeau Road, Belfast, BY7 1EB, Northern Ireland

{35) 5Cromac Avenue, The Gasworks, Belfast, BT7 215, Northern Ireland

(3€) Building 61, Fax Studios Australia, 38 Driver Avenue, Moore Park NSW 2021, Australia

(37) c/o Addisons, Level 12, 60 Carrington Street, Sydnay NSW 2000, Australla

(38) Appleby Corporate Servites (Cayman) Limited, Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, P.O.
Box 190 GT, Georgetown, Grand Cayman, KY1-1108, Cayman Islands

(39} c/o Appleby Trust (Cayman) Limited, Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, PO.Box 1350,
Gegrgetown, Grand Cayman, KY1-1108, Cayman istands

{(40) Ugland House, PO. Box 309, South Church Street, Georgetown, Grand Cayman,
Cayman lslands

(47 Mosedalve] 14,2500, Valby, Copenhagen, Denmark

(42) Flnsensve] 6E, 2000, Frederiksberg, Denmark

(43} Etimaenkatu 9 A, Helsinkl, 00510, Finland

(44) 23 Rue Montorgueil, 75001, Paris, France

(45} Keplerstrasse 4-6,10589, Berlin, Germany

(46) Am Coloneum 6, 50829, Cologne, Germany

(47} Jenfelder Allee 80, 22039, Hamburg, Germany

(48} Room 1902, 19F Lee Garden One, 33 Hysan Avenue, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

(49 Gloucester Tower (8th Floor), The Landmark, 11 Pedder Street, Central, Hong Kong

(50) One Spencer Dock, North Wall Quay, Dublin 1, Ireland

(5T) Mayor Street Upper, Dublin, DUBLIN 1, ireland

(52) Burgemeester Stramanweg 97.c, 1191EA, Ouderkerk aan de Amstel, Netherlands

(53) Sumatralaan 45,1217 GP, Hilversurm, Netherlands

(54) Heemraadssingel 180, 3021 DL, Rotterdam, Netherlands

Interast key

(@) CQrdinary (h) Membership/Partnership
(b) Deferred { Guarantee

(9 Speclaldeferred ( Common

(d) Redeemable preference (k) Preference

(& Cumulative preference () Partpreference

{fi Cumulative redeernable preference fm) Branch

(@) Convertible preference * Direct subsidiary
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(55} Hoogoorddreef 15, 1101 8A, Amsterdaim, Netherlands

{56) Noorderweg 8,1221AA, Hilversum, Netherlands

(57) Zevenend 45,1251RL, Laren, North Holland, Netherlands

(58) Veorstraat 61,4797 BE, Willemstad, Netherlands

{59} Herikerbergweg 238, T101 CM, Amsterdam Zuidoost, Netherlands

(60) 121\West Lexington Drive, Suite 401, Glendale CA 91203,USA

{61) 1633 Bayshore Highway, Suite 320, Burlingarne CA 84010, USA

{62) 3867 Plaza Tower, 15t Floor, Baton Rouge, Los Angeles CA 70816, USA

{63) The Corporation Trust Company, Corporate Trust Center, 1209 Orange Street,
Wilmington, Newcastle, DE 19801, USA

{64) Corporation Service Company, 2711 Centreville Road (Suite 400), Wilmington,
Newcastle DE 19808, USA

{65) 8929 South Sepulveda Boulevard, Suite 510, Los Angeles, CA 90045, USA

(66) The Corporation Trust Company, 311 South Division Street,
Carston City NV 89703, USA

{67) 450 North Roxbury Drive, 8th Flocr, Beverly Hills CA 90210, USA

{68) United Corporate Services, Inc, 874 Walker Road (Sulte C), Dover, Kent, DE 19904, USA

{69) 321Souther Beverly Drive, Suite M, Beverly Hills, CA 90212, USA

(70) CT Corporatioh Systern, 818 West Seventh Street, Suite 930, Los Angeles,
CA90017,USA

(71} The Hodson Law Firm, 1129, East T7th Avenue, Denvar, CO 80014, USA

(72) 24955 Pacific Coast Highway, Suite C302, Malibu, CA 90265, USA

(73) CT Corporation System, 111 Elghth Averue, 13th Floor, New York, NY 10011, USA

(74) 21Holborn Viaduct, London, EC1A 2DY, UK

(75) 120 West 3rd Avenue #201, Vancouver, BC VSY 1EG, Canada

(76} Starvhusgaten 24, Bergen, Norway

(77) Soder Malarstrand 65, 11825, Stockholm, Sweden

(78) Scharenmoosstrasse 105, 8052, Zurich, Switzerland

(79} 95t Peters Street, London, N18JD, UK

(80) Bucchil GoldsteinLLF, 99 Atlantic Avenue, Sirte 2, Toronto, MK 38, Canada

(81} 23Habarzel Street, Tel Aviv, 69710, Israel

(82) ViaEnrico, Tazzoli 6, Rome, taly

{83 Gongzales Carillo, SC Abogades, Montes Urales no 632, Piso 3,Lomas de Chapaltpec,
DF 11000, Mexica

(84) Bullding 2, Dubal Media City, Dubia, UAE

(85) 3035 South Parker Road, Suite 500, Denver, CO 80014, USA

(86) eResldent Agent Inc_12121Wilshire Boulevard ~1201, Los Angeles, CA 90025, USA

(87) 1640 South Sepulveda Boulevard, Suite 300, Los Angeles, CA 90025, USA

(88) LT Corporation System, 306 Maln Street, Suite 512, Frankfort, KY 4060, UsA

(89) CT Corporatlon System, 5615 Corporate Boulevard, Sulte 400B, Baton Rouge, CA
70808, Los Angeles, USA

(30) 24955 Pacific Coast Highway, Suite C302, Mallbu, CA 90265, USA

(91} Incorp Services Inc, 101 E. 9th Avenue, Suite 12-B, Anchorage, AK99501-3651, USA

{92) 1120 Avenue of Americas, Sth Floor, New York, NY10036, USA

(93) Famille de Moliaan 1,1217 ZB Hilversum, Netheriands

{94) 15000 Ventura Blvd, Suite 202, Sherman Oaks, CA 91403, USA

(95) Westersingel 108, 3015 LD Rotterdamn, Netherlands

(96) 198A Telok Ayer Street, Singapore 068637

(97) calle Cerro EL Plomo 5855, oficina 1605, comuna de Las Condes,
Region Metropolitana, Chile

(38} 3 rue Taytor, {5 20004, 74310, Paris, France

{9%) Gethiner Strasse 5,10785, Berlin, Germany

{100) August-Bebel Strasse 58, 15711, Konigs Wusterhausen, Germany

{10T) Keizersgracht 1493, 1015CL, Amsterdam, Netherlands

{102) Hollandse Kade 34, 1391M, Abcoude, Netherlands
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Shareholder information

Shareholder profile

Halders Shares heid
Information as at 21 December 2016 Number % Millions %
Type of holder:
Insurance companies 5 0.01 0 0
Banks and nominee companies 3,015 5.52 3,887 96.58
Individuals 51,260 93.87 123 3.06
Others 333 060 15 0.36
Totals 54,613 100 4,025 100

Holders

Number % Shares held %
Size of hotding:
1-100 8,781 16.07 306,634 0.0
101 - 200 7164 13M 1,076,804 0.03
201-500 13,605 2491 4,421,055 on
501-1,000 8,758 16.03 6431692 016
1,001 -2,000 6,809 1247 9,895,045 0.25
2,001-5,000 5188 9.5 16,306,370 0.41
5,001-10,000 1,863 341 13187431 0.33
10,001 -50,000 1,392 285 28,193,018 0.70
50,001-100,000 221 041 15,752,927 0.39
100,001 - 500,000 363 067 90,071,530 2.24
500,001 - 1,000,000 19 0.22 88,194,950 219
1,000,001 - 5,000,000 223 041 540614448 13.43
5,000,001 - 10,000,000 53 01 368,562661 a16
10,000,001 - 50,000,000 60 om 177107879 29.24
50,000,001 and above 14 0.03 1,665,286,750 41,37
Totals 54,613 100 4,025,409194 100
Company website Registrars and transfer office

Investor and shareholder-related information, including the current
price of ITV pl¢ shares, can be found on the Company website at:

@ www.itvplc.com

Financial calendar

Ex-dividend date for the Final and Special dividend 27 April 2017
Record date for the Final and Spedial dividend 28 April 2017
Annual General Meeting 10 May 2017
Interim Management Statement 10 May 2017
Payment date for the Final and Speciat Dividend 25 May 2017
Half year results announcement 26 luly 2017
Registered office

The London Television Centre

Upper Ground

London

SET19LT

(@ 02071573000

Company registration number 4967001

All administrative enquiries relating to shareholdings and requests
to receive corporate documents should be directed to Capita Asset
Services, The Registry, 34 Beckenharn Road, Beckenham, BR3 4TU,
They can be contacted by telephone on

0871664 0300 from the UK {calls cost 12 pence per minute plus network
charges}and

@ +44 371664 0300 from outside the UK (calls UK will be charged at the
applicable international rate).

Lines are open Monday to Friday 9.00 a.m.t0 530 p.m.

Alternatively you could email them at:

@ shareholderenquines@capita.co.uk

Annual Genaral Meesting

The Annual General Meeting will be held on Wednesday 10th May
2017 at 11.00 a.m. at the Queen Elizabeth || Conference Centre, Broad
Sanctuary, Westminster, London SW1P 3EE. The Notice of the AGM
contains an explanation of special business to be considered at the
meeting and a copy of thisis available on the Company website.

@ www.itvplc.com/investors/shareholder-information/agm
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Additionat Information P Glossary

Glossary

Broadcasters’ Audience Research
Board {BARB) — organisation owned by
broadcasters and advertisers providing
data on linear and online television
viewing statistics by UK households

Catch up viewing - non-live viewing

of recently broadcast television programmes,
either via a recording device {often calleda
PVR or DTR) such as Sky+ or through a Video
on Demand service such as the ITV Hub, BBC
iPlayer, All 4 or My5

Channel 3 licences - the 16 regional licences
and one national licence awarded tc transmit
Channel 3 across the UK. All are owned by ITV
with the exception of two of the regional
licences which are owned by STV

Contract Rights Renewal (CRR) - the
remedy agreed by Carlton and Granada in
2003 as a pre-condition of the merger, which
governs the way in which [TV airtime is soid
by ITV toits advertising customers

Free-to-Air (FTA) television - viewing

of television through devices not requiring
asubscription such as the Freeview or
Freesat services

High Definition (HD) - channels or services
broadcast in substantially higher resolution
than standard, providing improved

picture quality

Impact or Commercial Impact - one
Commerdcial Impact is defined as one
viewer watching one 30-second
television commercial

ITV Family - the ITV family of channels
whichincludes {TV,ITV2,ITV3, ITV4, ITVBe,
ITV Encore, CITV,ITV Breakfast, CITV
Breakfast and all associated +1and HD
equivalents, Viewing figures include the
whole of the ITV network. Revenue figures
include only ITV plc operated regions

Linear television - television service
where the viewer has to watch a scheduled
TV program at the particular time it's
offered, and on the particular channet

it’s presented on
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Long-form video requests - video requests
are a measure of the total number of videos
requested across all platforms (such asitv.
com, Virgin and mobile devices) and includes
simuicast. A long-form video is a programme
that has been broadcast on televisionand is
available to watch anline and on demand in
its entirety

Long-form online viewing (consurmption)
- total number of hours of ITV VOD content
viewed on advertiser funded platforms (such
as mobiles, itv.com, connected TVs)

Media sales commisslon - commission
earned by ITV plc on sales of airtime on
behalf of the non-cansolidated licensees
(STV and UTV until acquisition in Feb 2016)

Net Advertising Revenue (NAR]j - the
amount of money received by a brcadcaster
as payment for television spot advertising
net of any commission paid to agencies

Total Schedule Costs/Total Network
Pragramme Budget (NPB) - the budget
spent on programming broadcast on the
[TV family of channets, including spend on
ragional programming and ITV Breakfast

Non-consolidated licensees - the

two regional channel 3 licences which ITV
does not own. These licences are owned
by STV and revenues received from these
licences for TV programming content are
referred to as mincrity revenues

Non-NAR revenue - non-NAR revenue
includes all [TV revenue, both internal and
external, except net advertising revenue
(NAR). This includes inter-segment revenue
fromthe sale of ITV Studios shows to the
ITV Network

Ofcom - independent regulator and
competition autharity for the UK
communications industries

Over-the-top content (OTT) - delivery
of audio, video, and other media over
the Internet, this includes content
from providers such as Netfiix, Amazon
and Hulu and also our own on demand
service, the iTV Hub

SDN - multiplex operator owned by TV
which operates one of the eight national
multiplex ticences in the UK on Freeview

Share of Broadcast (S0B) - IT\'s share
of UK television advertising revenue (NAR),
ameasure of market share

Share of Commercial Impacts (SOCI) -

the term used to define the share of total

UK television commercial impacts which is
delivered by one channel or group of
channels. This measure excludes viewing

of BBC channels as they do not generate
commerdial impacts. Unless stated otherwise,
SOCI figures cited throughout this report

are based on BARB data and are based on

the universe of Adults (16+)

Share of Viewing (SOV) - the share of

the total viewing audience during a defined
period gained by a programme or channel.
This measure includes viewing of 8BC
channels. Unless stated otherwise, SOV
figures cited throughout this report are
based on BARB data and are based on the
universe of individuals

Spotadvertising — Linear television
advertising occupying a short break during
or between programmes

Subscription Video on Demand (SVOD) - a
paid for service where a subscriber has access
towide range of content whenever they
request it

Video on Demand (VOD) ~ the ability
to deliver video content to a customer’s
television set, computer or device when
the customer requests it

YouView ~ a joint venture (with the BBC,
Channel 4, Channel 5, BT, TalkTalk, and Argiva)
to operate and promaote a hybrid television
platform carnbining Freeview channels with
catch up and on demand services
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London
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@ www.itv.com
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